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From Mallk Afghan was Qails Abdul Rashlid
_(contemporary of the loly Prophet Peace be upon him)(died 632
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(Gharghusht)

1
'
'
t

Batre{Batrin)
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{died 1030 -
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Malik

Malik
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Zirak {(contemporary of Shah Rukh Mirza of Persia)

(died 1447
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.-.:_ Y ,:“_-. ;.‘;::.'.):;_: I‘ . “ Alkozaj_ ) ..‘
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1 ] A
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Bado - Ayub ]
(descendants o
are known as e
Baddzal). 3

Sme (descendants are known as Bamezal)
w“'contemporary. of Sultan Sikandar Lodhi(died 1517

-
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“tﬁﬂ-s*i 4 Sultan Ibrahlm Lodhi.(died 1526 . o
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- MaL1k; S;ieh (contemporary of Sher Shah Suri) LT
-23““ LN (died 1545°ALD.) SEAN

lik Saddu (er i-Afghan)descendants are known as Saddozal.
. o born on 30th September 1558 A.D.(18 Zilhijj 965 A.H.)
‘fna;;fT died in April 1626 .{Ist Rajab 1036 A.H.)

‘ (2)

Khan Maudud
{descendants are known as
Maudud Khel and Khan Khel)

Khwaja Khlzer Khan
:(descéndants are
known."as Khizer khel)

¥ % .born’ An Junc 1580 A.D. born in July 1582 A.D.
;iifj=(Ist Raqgan 990 A.H.) (15th Shawal 992 A.H.)
~. diled in QOctober 1626 - died in 1642
(2nd Muharfim-ul-Haram (1053 A.H.)
o 3 (4) (5)
~ : : 3
Kamran Khan Bahadur Khan Zafran Khan
(descendants are (descendants (descendants are
known as Kamran are known as known as
Khel) Bahadur Khel) Zafran Khel)
4. . dled in 1639 « n,
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... Sultan . Khuda-Dad Khan Sarmast Sultan
alias ‘Sultan Khudakka. born in 1614 A,D.
‘ borniln 1612 A.D. (1024 A.H,) .
S50 (10285AWHL) - \ b
¥ ‘L'.".- d’iediﬂ 1665 A-D. : :...;
(2nd°Safar 1076 A.H,) Daulat Khan e
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E*‘ Khudgkga;Snddozai. Zaman Khan
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fr.._‘_;.\. » Qalandafkhan . ] L] 1 3 .
S (1ssueleds)  (n2vat  Havab Khan ' z,1p5qar AlL Mardan Ahmad. '
A 1 S nan 2 Khan Khan Shah - = .-
.- . ({issue- Sultan ‘ Durels
; o - less) Hayat Khan : Durran.
v S ‘ Lugman (King
it o Khan of D
;?-e. iy T Afghan-
Lo S ‘
& ‘:?ltan Hayat Khan Khudakka istan)
,.-}'., ] E
! (. (2) 3) (4)
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N Sultan Muhammad Mugarrab Mawab Abdul
: Abdullah Bagir Khan Khan Aziz Khan
Khan alias (issueless) (naib Nazim of
(Ruler of Sardar Khan Multan)
Hirat) !
1
E Mubammad Sharif Khan
r ]
, ‘ '
1
! Din Muhammad Khan
Th ' S
. ; ;
p— ]
. ! Ali Muhammad Khan(the author of
' Tazkirat-ul-Muluk)
1]
(1) (2) (3) (4)
' ‘ ' '
Assadullah Muhammad Allah Yar  Ali Yar
Khan Khan Khan Khan
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‘ Inayat Khan Ablid Khan Baglr Khan
alias ! -
Wafadar Khan II '
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LR S Nawab Zahid Khan
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NawabShakir Khan - . Nawab Shuja Khan
‘(naib " Nazim of Multan) = Subedar{Governor)of Multan

]
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. '
]
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* Nawab Muhammad Sikandar
.. Muzaffar Khan Khan ﬁ:azanfar Sanjar Khan
'~ Safdar Jang Bahadur, an
.- Subedar(Governrr) of
“Multan
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(1) (2) (3) {(4)
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. Nawab Sarfra:z Zulfligar Shah Nawaz Mumtaz
;;' Khan Khan Khan Khan
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Shahbaz Hag Nawaz Azaz Amir Baz
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© 4 . BAHADUR KHEL- SUBIDAR OF MULTAN
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& e ' Malik Saddu
I . . :
it W e Bahadur Khan
Bt - !
e 7 ,A1L Khan
&
e . Yousuf Khan -
| Abdul Shakoor Khan alias Shakroo Khan
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i "gfﬁ:e (Subedar of Multan and
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{ﬁﬁ' ~ 7 . . HNawab Abdul Rahim Khan Qazi Ha}i Muhammau Khan
s .. (Subedar of (Qazi of Dera Ghazi Khan)
S © Dera Ghazl Khan)
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Mohsinzai Khugani Subedur of Multan

5M$1{k:5haﬁpal {(contemporary of Akbar the Great)

" From him was Siddique Khan
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,Usman Khan
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Subedar {Governor) of Multan
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CHAPTER 1II:

Ancestral History of the Afghan Subedarsof Multan

i Their Origin

i1 The Saddozals
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Once Sulaiman passed over a beautiful place 'Rodah or Roh'
* %

situated on the 'Kaseghar mountain'. He liked the place

very much and there he held his court. The place 1is known
'Tnkht-i—Sulaimag'till this day. Before leaving the place,
Sulaiman gave it to Malik Afghan, who settled there alongwith
his tribesmag. Malik Afghan and hls tribesmen entered into
matrimonial alliances with the local people of village 'Pasﬁi'
and with the passage of time their descendants adopted their
mofhet\tongue that is 'Pashtu’' and left their ancestral
laﬁguage 'Hebrew'. The descendants of Malik Afghan are better

9
"known as 'Pakhtun' because of the village 'Pasht'.

o Rodah'or Roh is the same word, a Pashtu word meaning

- mountain,
* % lKaSegHar:'situated in the Sulaiman range.

5._éi1 1”\;5‘- " man: situated in the Sulaiman range.
é;;'JZiﬁ:ﬁ” , PP.5,6; Fraser Tytler, Afghanistan,

London, 1953, P.49., says that 'the orlginal habitat of
the Pathan was the country lying round the Sulaiman range'.

¢¢ " 'Pasht: In Tajik persian signifying the back of a
mountaln range. Hence came the word Pashtan, with its
plural Pashtanah. From this was derived the hard Pakhtun
of the northern Afghans and the general appellation
Pathan'; Fraser Tytler, op.cit., PP.49,50.

9. I,M., - . PP.6,7; Cavoe,op.cit., P.252, says 'the
Abdalls are a »eople Persian in language and in dress
half Persian, half Pakhtun'; Tate, The Kingdom of
Afghanistan,Karachi, 1973, P.15., writes that 'the
Afghans call themselves Pakhtan(Pakhtana), from which
the change to Paktana and again to Pathan is easy'.

Ry Jlead 5 el el o A o a0y sUyy Sl S SBL UL ok Gl

o,-..-,‘,.g’u_-‘ l) L&-y)}c.:- JLst -_'ml &;".-gd.;...‘__,)d \7);., _J)l:u u.a‘ g M-S\—.:).; UL:-L;
1 e - ol ) o wiaTagi b ja o c i e Lo sam
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Qais Abdir-Rashid, a descendant of Malik Afghan,

rmbraced Islam and was confcrred the title of 'Batan' by the

'l'-Holy Proplict, because the former displayed great valour in

a battle agalinst the infidels. The word 'Batan' was changed10
into fPathan', therefore, hils descendants are called 'Pathans’

| The Abdalil tribe to which Ahmad Shoh Dur-{-Durran and
ﬁhé last rulers of Multan belonged,traces its origin from

'Malik Abdal' the fifth in descent from 'Qals Abdur Rashid’'.

Maiik Abdal son of Tarin was the grandson of Mallik Sharkbun

“who%e grandson was Malik Rajjar. Mallk Rajjar had four sons,

Malik Isa, Nur, Khukar and Mako. Malik Isa's son was Zirak and

his Bdn was Malik Popal, Malik Popal's son Malik Hablb was

the father of Malik Bame whose son 'Malik Saleh' was the
11

‘father of 'Malik Saddu'

10. T.M,, . . PP.7,8; T.K.J.,PP.58-64; Tate,op.cit.,PP,10, 15
writes, 'Bahtan' - the rudder,or the mast or both of a ship

Bellew,op.cit.,PP.15, lG.,wrltes, 'Bahtan the rudder of a
ship'.All the above mentioned authors !'ave mentioned this,
but it could not be verified from the c¢arly Islamic sources.

Also See:T.K.J., _PP.50,51,53,55,175,176.
11, T.M.,e, ... .,PP.9-19,

The Follow1ng authors give a different account which cannot
be given the credence deserved by TAZKIRAT-UL-MULUK. Tate,
og.cit.,P.33.,'Saddo'5 father was Umar';Ganda Singh,op.clt.,
P.1.,'Umar's second son was Saddo'.,Tariekh-1-Ahmad Shahi,

yPP.3,4,,'Saddo was son of Bame and Saleh was his
brother"Atta HJ'\mmad Taza-Nawai-Muarak, ..Shikarpur,
ed.Karachi,1959,(1271 A.H),P.769.,"Saleh was elder Brother
of Saddu'.; Azlruddln Fafalzai, Timur Shah Durrani, Kabul,
1333,P.46.,'Umar Khan Fofalzal was father of Asadullah
alias Saddu'; Caroe, op.cit.,P.12., confirms that 'Abdal
was son of Tariln and grandson of Sharkbun'. Also See:
T.K.J., |, ., PP.170,171,182; Rahmat,Khulasat-ul-~Ansab,
MS,PP.4-30;Faiz Yuhammad,Tuhfatul-Habib,MS,1770 A.lk.
(1184 A.H.), PP 20-60.
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Malik Saddu was a great warrior, a politician and
a pious man, Hls descendants are called SADDOZAIS and
command great respect till this day. Thelr rule in Hirat
(Afghanigtan)and Multan lasted till 1818 .Malik Saddu
died on Thursday, April 1626 ..(Ist Rajab 1036 A.H.) atan
advaneoed age of 71.He left five sons, Khwajla Khizer Khan
(born on Ist Ramzan 990 A.H.) June 1580 .., Khan Haudud
born in July 1582 715th Shawwal 992 A.H.), Kamran Khan
" "born in April 158k (Rajab 994 A.H.), Bahadur Khan(born
in 1588 (998 A.H,) and Zafran Khan born in 1600
L;f.(lOIgA.H.). Malik Saddu was succeeded by his eldest son

. . 2
+  Khwafa Khilzer Khan. He was a very plous man. He had no
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 _1h£eré5t71n wordly affalrs and after three months of his

SUGdession, he abdicatedin favour of his younger brother

A T

. Khan Mauddd,‘Khwaja Khizer Khan digd after a short time 1n
. T 10

- e : A
~ October 1626 .{2nd Muharamul Haram 1037 A.H.). The descendants

of.Khwaja Khizer Khan are called Khizer Khel. Ahmad Shah Dud-1i-
S? : Ddrran, the founder of Afghanistan was his direct descendant.
'Khwaja Khizer Khan was a godly man and is stlll worshipped

by the Afghans as a favourlite salnt to whom offers of 'Misar-o-
NMliaz', presents and prayers, are made on all solemn occasions,
The devotion and awe, inspired by this holy personage, lent

a sense of sanctity to the whole clan of Saddozais and its

gl 7. I.M.. ,P.31; P.C., P.476.
8. I,.M., . PP.29,30; 7.A., | +P.9; Ganda Singh,
op.cit..ti.1,2; P.C., , M.476;Taza Nawai-Muarak,
o v, P.769: Timur Shah Durrani,r- . w,P 463
T.K.3J., , P.171,
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memnbers enjoyed peculiar privileges. Their persons were
sacred, no punishment could be inflicted on them, except
by one of thecir own family; nor could even the head of the

11
Abdalees himself pass sentence of death upon a Saddozye'.

Ktan Maudud was an exceptlonally brave man and
fodght several battles. He maintalned good relations wlth
tha Safavide Emperor and his Governor of Kandhar, Ali
ttardan Khan. The Safavlde Emperor bestowed upon him the
title of 'Khan', therefore, hls descendants are called
‘Khan Khel' and the last Muslim rulers of Multan were his
dirqcﬁ descendants. After an effectlive rule of 17 years-over
Safa?%nd'its surrounding, he laid down.his life in 1642
(1053;A.H.) fighting against Mir Yahya Diwan, In the civil

S 12
war of Kabul.

9. I.M., -, P.32; Tate,op.cit., P.33; P.C.,
P.476; Ganda Singh, op.cit., P.2., He writes that
Khwaja Khizer was the second son of Malik Saddu which
1s incorrect.

16, 7T.M., .. P.33; P.C., . . P.476; Taza Nawai-
Muarak, op.ni+ P.769,

11. T.M., .. P.33; Ganda Sinah. op.cit., P.2;
Saulat-i-Afghani, PP.336,337; Hayat Khan,

Hayat-i-Afghani,tahore, PP,115,122,123,

(Note): This Khwaja Khizer Khan should not be confused
with the Prophet Hazrat Khwaja Khizer ofAb-i-Hayat
fame, He was so named after him.
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During the time of Khan Maudud, a custom developed
amongst Aloose Abdali which still exists that the Nikah
ceremony would take place in the house of bridegroom.
This custom started as the son of Kamran Khan, the younger
brothef.of Khan Maudud, was betrothed to the daughter of
an Afghan chief but he later on refused to give the hand
of his daughter. When Khan Maudud was told about this
;: refusal, he ordered to take the girl by force to the house
of the bridegroom and the Nikah ceremony was performed

13
there. Khan Maudud left two sons, Shah Hussaln Khan and

Ailah Dad Khan., He was succeeded by his elder son S5hah

- 14
g _;Hussaln Khan with the help of the Mughal Governor Khawas Khan.
phovn 8 2 .
#“;":--j:': 1 g —‘“’[ il
B f:';;‘: P 1
.'_".‘_‘;:_..’._. . P . )
e I, sy PP.34,36.
ﬁfjﬁ ;% _ . The  suthBrs- named below have wrongly stated that
g “. *~the title of 'Sultan' was conferred upon Khan Maudud
S5 ﬁ-~"'by the Safavide Emperor. They are also mistaken

that Khwaja Khizer was succeeded by his eldest son
Khudadad Khan or Khudhai Sultan. The correct position
is that the Safavide Emperor bestowed upon Maudud Khan
“the title of 'Khan', therefore, his descendants are
-cdalled 'Khan Khel'., It was Khudadad Khan alias
Khudakka who styled himself 'Sultan' and he was the
-first amongst Aloose Abdali. Ganda Singh, op.cit.,P.2;
Tate,op.cit., P.33; Atta Muhammad (Taza Nawai Huarak),
P. 769 Sher Muhammad Nadir (Z.A. Z.A.),
P¥.10,13,, because their references are weak comparing
" to Tazklratul-Maluk whose author was the direct

ﬁ; F ' descendant of Malik Saddu, and his research Is correct.
$ , _.......IJJ.a d)tJWJ‘H—-’ Lﬁ-l—q.’rg‘—h- L:& .-k-cag "JJU "'"J‘ L-'-L’ L’
% 13. T.M., op.cit., P.35.
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During the same period the Safavide Emperor, Shah Abbas 11,
wanted to capture Kandhar . When Khudadad Khan met him in

Isfahan, both agreed to cooperate. The Emperor attacked

Kandhar in 1648 . ,(1058 A.H.) and captured it with the
18
help of Khudadad Khan in 1649 - .(1059 A.H.). Now Khudadad

Khan attacled Safa and captured fit. Shah Hussain Khan in spite
of the help of Khawas Khan’Mughal Governor of Kandhar wai,9
defeated and he alongwith the Mughal Governor fled to India.
Shah Hussaln Khan was the first Saddozai chief to arrive In
Multan in 1649 - (1059 A.H.) alongwith his younger brother
Allah Dad Khan. He was elevated to the rank of seven hundred,
alongwith a Jagir In Rangpur (linzaffargarh District) by the
Emp:ror Shah Jahan, He settled down in Multan and built his
Kiri there.In¢his Kiri, he built a very beautiful palace

known as Shish Mahal and a mosque which is still there. He

was also conferred the title of Wafadar Khan by the Mughal

20
Emperor.
18, T.M., ' PP.37.38; P.C., . P.477,
19, T,.H., PP.36,38; P.C., P.477.
?
. 20, T.M., o PP.181-184;7.A., P.18; Ganda Singh
) op.cit., P.'; Saulat-i-Afqghani, P.338;
Hayat-i-Afahani : P.123,124; Tate, P.35; P.C.,

P. 478,

* Kiri: In Pashfto it means a place of residence meant
particulardy for the Chief of a tribe and his
tribesmen.

¢ Shish Mihal: It was destroyed L. the Sikhs in 1818
Later on Commissioner's residence was constructed

on its site. : e .. .
‘/- L.:f g ad oy l_":.._... .,_4,\_.‘ f ._l‘;.- ‘l 1 _-J-) - ._"-
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He commanded great respect during the reign of Aurangzeb.

His younger brother Allah Dad Khan dled durlng his life

T time. Shah Hussaln Khan was I{ssuelecss. After hls death

' . oy

K ;Péillfightlﬁg alongwith his five sons and one daughter 1in

in 1659 . . (1069 A.H.) he was succeeded by hls nephew
Inayat Khan son of Allah Dad Khan, as the chief of Multani
Pathans, He was glven the rank of flve hundred and the Jaglr
o%rhis uncle with the title of Wafadar Khan 11 by the Emperor
Auréngzeb. After his death, his younger brother Abid Khan
_became the chief of Maudud Khel Khan Khel Pathans of Multgi.
‘érém;ABid Khan descended the ancestors of MNawab Muhammad
?ﬂﬂﬁzﬁf}affkhan Saddozal, the last Muslim ruler of Multan, who

o 22
his struggle agalnst Maharaja Ranjit Singh in June 1818 . .

'-I‘.After’defeatlng Shah Hussain Khan near Safa and

'rendéring valuable services to the Safavlde Emperor, Shah

Abbas II during the siege of Kandhar In 1648-49 .(1058-1059 A )

Khudadad Khan established his rule in Safe. His territory

included the area extending from Kaseghar to Kandhar including

Arglstan. Only Kandhar fort was left for the Safavide

Emperor to satlsfy his greed. He ruled independently and

did not pay the annual tribute either to the Safavide Emperor

or to the Mughals. He was the first amongst the Saddozals

who styled himse¢lf as 'Su]tgi‘. Sultan Khudadad Khan alias

Sultan Khudakka ruled for more than 16 years and died at the

age of 54 in MNovember 1663 ° .. (on 2nd Safar 1076 A.H.),
Lo ot Ly o5, ol al e ,‘__,T_-.HJ_-\L_ of (Bl spe =blan b Ly ey
ceailyy A ol Gl Gl coo s piplanst Gt JSl (el o A plal
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- leaving behind three sons, Qalandar Khan, Inayat Khan and
" Hayat thﬁ. The descendants of Sultan Khudakka are called
Khudakka Saddozais. The celebrated author of Tazkirat-ul-
Muluk, Ali Muhammad Khan Khudakka Saddozal was the direct
descendant of 5Sultan Khudakka. Sultan Khudakka was succeeded

by his eldest son Sultan Qalandar Khan who was an ambitious

man, He wanted to capture Kandhar and hence he attacked 1t

TRANT e

; with a large force but was killed in the battle during the

% siege of Kandhar fort. His rule lasted only for two months
i%é» .+ and 23 dasg.Sultan Qalandar Khan had no male issue. He was

EE;.' ” suéqeéded by his younger brother Sultan Inayat Khan. His

‘ uhélé Sarmast Sultan challenged his succession and a civil

war broke out amongst Aloose Abdall. Ultimately Sarmast
ol ;JSultan was defeated and killed and Sultan Inayat Khan was
TEE O 26
_recognised as chief of Aloose Abdalil., He maintained friendly

relations with the Iranlan Governor of Kandhar.His younger

21. T.M., . PP.186-189; Z.A., . : P.23;
Taza Nawai-Muarak, P.769.
22. I.M., : P.256; 2. Z.A., | .. PP.84-86;

Ganda Sinup op.cit., P.3; Saulat-1-Afghani,
P.338; Haxwt i- Afghani op.cit., P.125; P.C.,

op.cit., .487; P.D.G., M.D., : sy P.56.
* Arglstan: The territory around Safa was known as
Arglstan.
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brother Hayat Khan who was 19 at the time of his father's
death, was very ambitious. When once his brother Sultan Tnayat
Khan was on a hunting excursion, he avalled of this copportunity
and got him assassinated in Janunry 1667 ..{on 23rd Rabi-
Us-5anl 1078 A?a.). As Sultan Inayvat Khan had no male issue,
his younger brother Hayat Khan was declared as the chief

§f Aloose Abdali. In spite of the fact that he got his elder
brothér killed treacherously and besides the opposition of

his brave mother Murad Bibi, he could succeed as the chief
ofihlé trlsg and styled himself as the Sultan., He was a1 very
bfave‘man. He fought several battles with the Iranians and

maintined his independence. He became a terror not only

for his enemles but also for his own people. Several important

23, T.M., PP.38,39; Ganda Singh,gop.cit., P.2,
the author is migtaken that 'tne title 'Sultan' was
given to Khudadad Khan by the Empernr Aurangzeb', as
he practically helped the Safavide Emperor during
the siege of Kandhar in 1648-4¢ .. (1058-59 A.H.}
and never maintained good relations with the Mughals.

‘!}l 'TIMI PI“OI

25, Ibid. PP.40,4)1. The authors mentioned below have not
given any authentic reference, therefore, they are
mistaken that 'Sultan Khudakka resigned his office in
favour of his younger brother Sher Khan', firstly
Sultan Khudakka neve: resigned and secondly his
younger brother was not Sher Khan. His name was
Sarmast Sultan who was great-grand-father of Ahmad Shah
Dur-i-Durran and lastly Sultan Khudakka was succeeded
by his eldest son Sultan Qalandar Khan; Ganda Singh,

op.cit., P.2; Tate,op.cit.,PP.34,35.
QL%- JU 3| Sdy g g SN 1] ch-c \;—_,-‘3)-’ ul-l-'ﬁ,‘ 9 5‘ ahasd DL’-l )“ .’«“ R 5 =4
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persons of Alonse Abdali left Safs for Multan due to his
fear, One of these Saddozais was Jalal Khan (maternal uncle
of Zaman Khan, the father of Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran) son
of Aldal Khan son of Zafran Khan son of Malik Saddu, who
got refuge in Kirif Shah Hussain Khan with his maternal

29
uncle Shah Hussain Khan the chief of Khan Khel Saddozals.

.“'_'“{“;, AT VI i e

Hig rule lasted from 1667 {1078 A H.)to 1680
% (1091 A.H.), Sultan Hayat Khan fought 32 battles during
48 his short period of about 13 years against his enemies
s \‘LBCIUding the Iranian rulers of Kandhar and Hirat. He was
Wrl o defeated near Kandhar in 1680  .(1091 A.H.) and fled to
;g. | ‘in&?a via Kohistan, Before leaving his ancestral land, he
%%bil .IVnghihaied ﬁis cousin Jaffar Sultan as chief of Aloose Abdali

ﬁith the instructions to sign a peace treaty with the

Iranlan Emperor. Sultan Hayat Khan reached Multan on 16th

October 1682 . (l4th Shawwal 1093 A,H.) via Dera Ghaz!l
Khan alongwith his family including his eldest son Abdullah
Khan aged 12, his nephew Zaman Khan(father of Ahmad Shah

Dur-i-Durran) and several other notable Saddozais.He settled

26. T.M. P.t1l,

—" !

27. Ibid. PP.%1,42.

28, Ibid.P.43., the correct name was Sultan Hayat Khan
and not Hayat Sultan, as stated hy Tate, op.cit.,P.35.

29, T.M,, P.43,
* The territory above the present Dera lsmail Khan

was known as Kohistan,
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.down permanently in Multan and was granted a perpetual

,grant of rupees 10 thousand per month and revenue-free 500

'Zacres of agricultural land in Multan by the Mughal Emperor,

30

Aurangzeb. He bullt his Kirl near a site where the present

- Deputy Commissioner's house is located. He also bullt a

. ¢

- palace, a fruit garden and a mosque. He died at an advanced
;,age of 84 on 15tkhApril 1729 (27¢th Raqghn 1141 A.H.} and

X 31

W0 was buried in his own garden.

- Jaffar Sultan the chief of Aloose Abdall met the

3Iran1an Emperor in Hirat and accepted hils overlordship.

-fThe Emperor bestowed upon him the title of Sultan. He

.wﬂ,l%fmaintained good relations with the Iranian Governor of
; Lok 32
W_Kandhar. He died in 1695 . . (1106 A.H.). When the news

L]

fof the death of Jaffar Sultan reached Multan; Abdullah Khan,
'the,eldest son of Sultan Hayat Khan Khudakka Saddozai

alongwith his cousin and brother-in-law Zaman Khan{father

of Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran) and with several other Saddozals

© 30.

T.M., PP.45,46,48,3235325,338,339;,Tate.,

op.cit., PP.35,36., writes 'Hayat Khan the cause of

this trouble migrated to India and settled in Multan,
Hayat Sultan had resigned his authority to his young
kinsman Daulat Khan', but according to Tazkirat-ul-Muluk
it is incorrect as stated above Jaffar Sultan had been
nominated as hls successor.

This mosgque still exists in the compound of Deputy
Commlssioner's bungalow but his palace was destroyed
by the Sikhs during thelr first raid on Multan in
1764
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faf note left Multan and soon reached Safa. He was welcomed

1: L

by Aloose Abdali and succeeded to the chieftainship of his
tribe in Safa. He also adopted the title of Sultan. After
estabiishing his rule, he appolinted his brother-in-law

iaman Khan as hils Deputy {(Nailb) and left Safa for Multan in
i704 {1116 A.H.) to pay respects to his father Sultan
,Hayat.Khan who was very happy over his success In their
ancestral territozs On his return journey he was accompanied
‘~jBQ his eldest son Asadullah Khan who was not only very
szi%handsome but was also~ an exceptionally brave youth of 18,
 fIn gafa he met Mir Wals Ghilzai, Chief of Hotak, who had

ﬁ; reoently come back from Pilgrimage. He requested Sultan
'fiAbdhllah Khan to unite against the Iranians. Both the chiefs
attacked Kandhar and during the siege, Gurgin Khan, the

““LViiiceorglah chief and the Iranian Governor of Kandhar was killed.

31.. T.M., PP.338, 339,
£. 0 32. 1bid. PP.48,49. |
33. I.M., - P.49; Tate and Ganda Singh are not

correct in saying that 'Sultan “Abdullah Khan with

his son Asadullah came from Multan and joined Kai Khasrau

Khan and recelved the office of chieftain of the Abdalis'

See: Tate, op.cit., P.43; Ganda Singh. op.cit.

PP,7,8. The actual position is that this chieftainship

he inherited from his father Sultan Hayat Khan and it

was not bestowed or given by Kal Khasrau Khan nor was

he ever appolnted by any Emperor. Also See: T.K.J.,
PP.136, 137.
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When the Iranian army advanced, Mir Wals Ghiizai requested
Sultan Abdullah Khan to check its advance. The Ahdali chief
rushed towards the Iranian army and after a pitched battle
near Faraﬁ, defeated it. The news of Afghan victory reached
Kandhar and the Iranians surrendered the Fort. The fort was
captured by Mir Wais Ghilzai in 1708 .(1120 A.H.). When
Sultan Abdullah Khan returned to Kandhar after defeating the
Iranian army, Mir Wais Ghilzai closed the doors of the Fort.
On his enquiry, Mir Wais Ghilzal sent a mcssage to him to
take nver all the lands outside Kandhar ekcluding the Fort.
“ultan Abdullah Khan frustrated gith the treacherous role of

Mir Wais Ghilzal went back to Safa. Then 'Mir Wais proclaimed
35

the independance of the Afghans at Qandhar'.

Sultan Anhdullah Khan fought several bettles not
only «¢gainst Ghilzals but also against the Iranians. He

alongwlth his brave son Asadullah Khan marched towards

* Farah:a town 170 miles west of Kandhar.
34, T.M., bp.49-52; Tate. op.cit.,

PP.36,37,41-43.

35. Ganda Singh,op.cit., P.73 Lockhart,Nadir Shah,
London, 1938, P,3; Malleson, History of Afghanistan,
London, 1879, Pﬂ?fzs; Ferrier, History of the Afghans,
London, 1858, PP.EB, 29; Sultan Mahmmad,Tarikh-i-5ultani,
Bombay, 1881 (1298 A.H.), PP.68,69.
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Khurasan and captured many forts and towns. Asadullah Khan
defeated ‘the Iranlan army and conquered Hirat in August

1712 . .(1Sth Ramgan 1124 A, 36) On hearing this good news,
Sultan Abdullah Khan reached Hirat,enthroned himself as

tShah' and thus he became the acknowledged head of the

37
Abdalls. He was the first amongst the Saddozais who became
38
73_master of Hirat, declared Independence and styled himself
'Shah' He struck colns and read Khutba In the name of
39

S

i.
r.

? <:

h]s old father Sultan Hayat Khan living in Multan. Aloose

Apdall migrated to Hirat from Safa. Hls star was on its
o ﬂAvit
&énith in 1719 . When his ahlc and brave son Asadullah

o tw

'% Khan defeated a powerful Iranian army, numbering thrity

, 40
thqu;and strong, under the command of Safi Quli Khan. A

pltdﬁéd'baftle between Aloose Abdali and the Ghllzals was
»*

'« fought in October 1720 . .(Ziqad 1132 A.H,) at Dil-Aram on

the right bank of river Kash Rud in which Asadullah Khan
41
lost his 1life at the age of 26. It was a great shock for

Sultan Abdullah Khan,

36, I.M., PP.53-56., the dates of the capture
of Hirat given by Tate. op.cit., P.43 as 25th July
1717 and Ganda Singh, op.cit., P.8 as 26 July 1717

(26th of Shaban 1129 A.H.), are jncorrect, because
while stating the dates they havefgiven the reference
of any original snurce. See: T.K.J., . P,137,

37. Ganda Singh, gp.cit., P.S8.
38, 1Ibid. P.8.
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£ v

The Ghilzais and the Iranians decided to take

5 T
=R,

revenga of thelr previous defeats at the hands of Alocose

Abdali and Mahmud Ghilzai agreed to assist the Iranians
42

ln any military move against the Abdalis. A large army was

collected by the Iranian Emperor under Ismail Khan to

march on Hirat. Sultan Abdullah Khan got the news and

| marched with a strong army towards Mashhad to take the
'+ battle fleld in December 1720 - .(Jamadi-ul-Awwal 1133 A.H.).
ﬂ; \

. Before leaving Hirat, he appointed his brother-in-law
Zaman Khan(father of Ahmad Shah Dur-1-Durran) as his deputy

f; 1n Hirut. When he reached Mashhad, he got the news that
igu Zaman Khan had declared his independence and had closed the
§ *

lﬁ qOors §f the fort Hirat. Zaman Khan was supported by Khalu

'L;akhan f%pﬁér‘oﬁ Ghani Khan Alkozai., Sultan Abdullah Khan at
once rushed Back to Hirat and forclbly took 1t. Zaman Khan,
khalu Khan and several other Abdalis were captured and put
to death; This incldent took place In the month of July
1721 . ~ .t{Shaban 1133 A.:?). It divided Aloose Abdali into

two groups which led to a civlil war and which resulted iIn

39. I.M., o . P.57.
40. Ibid. PP.57,58; Ganda Singh, op.cit., P.9;
Tarikh i- Sultanl, : PP.5,6, 97 » 783 Saulat-l-Aﬁghani,
. P.340,
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the age of 7. Soon afterwards he was carried to his

Y ancestral land to Join his elder brother Zuvlfigar Khan.
After the revolt of Zaman Khan in 1721 (1133 A.H.),
Sultan Abdullah Khan wrote to his father Sultan Hayat Khan

to send his (Abdullah Kh&n's) second son Muhammad
46
2 - HKban from Multan to Hirat. In the meantime, Sultan Abdullah
T : ¢
i Khan was treacherously killed by Qasim Khan son of Said

Khaﬁ'son of Jalal Khan {Zafran Khel Saddozal in Rauza Bagh
47

. A
at Hirat in August 1721 .{(23rd Muhapam-ul-Haram 1134 A.H.).
Sult$h Abdullah Khan ruled over Hirat for 9 years 4 months
aard 7'day5 and was 53 at the time of death. He left 3 sons,

Muhammad Khan (from the sister of Zaman Khan), Allah Yar
. Khan and All Yar Khan. Qasim Khan succeeded as the chief
R 48
5 of Aloose Abdali at Hlrat.When the news of the assassination

by, T.M., PP.65,201,202; Ganda Singh, op.cit.,
P.15; Taza Nawal Muarak, op.cit., P./69; Yousuf
Gardezi, .cit., P.56; E.B., ' P.964,

45, Taza Nawai Muarak, 0,769,

Lbe., J.M,, P.65.

¢ Qasim Khan: His grant father Jalal Khan was brother

of the grant-mother of Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran.

-

47. Ibid. P.67.

46. Ibid. PP.67,68.
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of Sultan Abduliush Khan reached Multan, his son Muhammad
Khan had already left for Hirat. His old father Sultan
Hayat Khan was very much shocked and to take revenge, he

at once despatched his third son tlugarrab Khan who 'reached
Kandhar from Multan, on a riding camel, very easily in

eight dagz'. On reaching Farah all Aloose Abdall gathered
round him and hc marched on Hirat which was captured without
any resistance In March 1722 .+Shaban 1134 A, H.). The
tvyrant Qasim Khan was killed atter a rule of 7 months. In
the meantime, Muhammad Khan also rcached Hirat, MHugarrab
Khan offered him the govcernment ol Hirat which he hesitantly
accepted. Muhammad Khan succecded as the chief of Aloose
Abdali at Hirat in April 1722 (Ram?an 1134 A.a?), with

all privileges. HMuqgarrab Khan then lcoft for Multan,

Mahmud Ghilzal conquered Isfahan in 1723
(1135 A.H.), and the Safavide Emperor, Shah Hussain, was
made prisoner. Encouraged by the weakness of the Iranians,
Muhammad Khan attacked Kpurasan and after conquering

E * % 5 1
several towns like Turhat and Bustam, he besieged Mashha-l,

49. Raverty, HNofes on Afghanistan and Baluchistan,Quetta,
1976 , P.12.

50. T.M., PP.62-73; Tate. op.cit., P.44;
Ganda Singh. op.cit., P.10; TarTkh-1-Sultani,
r.1l00; Lockhart, op.cit., P.31.
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: ¢
In his absence Shah Nawaz Khan Khugani instigated Zulfikar

khan (elder brother of Ahmad Shah Dur-{-Durran) to take
revenge of the murder of his father from Muhammad Khan.

Zulfikar Khan revolted and many Abdalis gathered round him.

'Tﬁe fesult was that the Aloose Abdali was divided into two

groupé once agaln. They fought with each other. Ultimately
after blood-shed, the elders decided that neither Zulfikar
Khan nor Muhammad Khan deserved the chieftainship of Aloosg
Abdali. Allah Yar Khan was to be invited from Multan to
succeed as the chicP of Aloose Abdali. Zulfikar Khan was

¢
asked to go to Pamarz Wa Chaman and Muhammad Khan was

requested to abdicate in favour of his younger brother

Allah Yar Khan. 1In the meantime, Allah Yar Khan reached

' S July

Hirat from Multan in/ 1724 AZilhij$ 1136 A.H.), and
succeeded as the chief of Aloose Abdall, Muhammad Khan went

* TJurbat: 100 miles west of Hirat,.

#* Bystam: Near Turbat.

51. T.M., PP.73,74; Tate, op.cit., P.55,
¢: Shah Nawaz Khan Khuganji: He was chief of his tribe.

¢¢: Pamarz Wa Chaman: A valley east of Hirat.

52. T.M., - . PP.74,75.,, 1t is incorrect that 'Allah
Yar Khan was elected the chief of the tribe in
1725-26 A.D.{(1138 A.H,) as stated by the following
authors, Ganda Singh, op.cit., P.10; Tate. op.cit.,

P.55. They have not given any originai source.
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back to Multan. The peaceful rule of Allah Yar Khan was*
disturbed in 1727 . .(1139 A.H.) by Abdul Ghanl Alkozal
‘whose father Khalu Khan was murdered alongwith Zaman Khan
by the ordcr of Sultan Abdullah Khan. He instigated and
supperted Zulfikar Khan to revolt against Allah Yar Khan.
The result was once again a division of Aloose Abdali who

f.wentrat war with each other and the Ghilzals availed the
.0pportqnity.and captured thelr lands in Kandhar. This led
to}a Serieé of battles against each other. Zulfilkar Khan
{weaéfback to his stronghold 'Farah'. In the meantime,Nadlr

i.:Quli Afshar, later came to be known as Nadir Shah, who was

fCommander 1n~Ch1ef of the army of Shah Tahmasp II Safavide,

:ﬂinvaded Khurasan. He encouraged the division of Alcose Abdali.

i :Zulfikar Khan was recognised as the chief of 'Farah', and

i 53
_ Allah Yar Khanlas accepted as the chlef of Hirat. Aloose

“Abdall were divided into two groups with two chiefs Allah
Yar Khan at Hirat and Zulfikar Khan at Farah. Both fought

with each other as well as with the Ghilzais and the Iranians.

¢ : Abdul Ghanl Khan Alkozi: He was maternal uncle of
Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran.

53, T.M., - PP.76,77; Tate, op.cit., P.55;
Ganda Singh, op.cit., P. ll T.K.J., . P.138,
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147;7 Nadir Shah attacked Hirat in June 1729 . .(Shawwal 1141 A,H.).
N but could not conquer 1t, Nadir Shah was satisfied wlth the
nominal submission of Allah Yar Khan and both agreed to help
each other against the common enemy, the Ghilzagz. In the
‘meantime, Zulfikar Khan got the opportunity and captured

e "Hirat in June 1730 (3rd Shawwal 1142 A.H.,})and Allah Yar

| _ Khan went to Maﬁ%haa:. Now Zulfikar Khan advanced towards
}Lf{' \;Ma;hhad and besimed it on 30th July 1730 (13¢th Muhad;m-
ul;Hhrah 1143 A.H.) but could not conquer the fort., The moment
fhe Heard the news of Nadir Shah coming to the help of his
brother Ibrahim Khan, Zulfikar Khan went back to Hirgz.

Now‘it_was the turn of Nadir Shah. Hec advanced towards

Hirat in March 1731 . . (RamZan 1143 A.H.). On hearing thls

3 news Zulfitar Khan requested the Ghllzai chief for help,
; 'h’ - S5aidal Khan was despatched to Hirat from Kandhar with a
| strong army of 3008, to help him against Nadir Shah. Nadir
Shah attacked ilirat in(MuhaﬁFﬁ-ul—Haram 1144 A, H.},July 1731
Zulfikar Khan, even with the help of Saidal Khan, could

0 not repulse the attack of Nadir Shah who was assisted by

54, T.M., PP.70-80; Tate, op.cit., P.56;
Ganda Sinuh,op.clit., P.11.

*¥ Maruchaak: A valley east of Hirat.

35. TI.M., op.cit., PP.81-84; Tate, =p.cit., PP,56,57;
Ganda Singh, op.cit., P.12,.
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.Allah Yar Khan, In the meantime, Saidal Khan fled to Kandhar.

Now Nadir Shah forced Zulflkar Khan to hand over Hlrat to

Allah Yar Khan, and it was done with the help of the elders

7 e Ty
e T L

; o of Aloose Abdali on 24%July 1731 (18th Safar 1ll44 A.S?)
%% Zulflkar Khan alongwith his younger brother Ahmad Khan

%ﬁ: .(Ahhad Shah Dur-i-Durran, the founder of Afghanlstan) left
g?? Hirat for Farah, When he reached Farah, he found Saidal
Ei{ -Khan'fhere. Saidallkhan took Zulfikar Khan and his younger

-brothers Alil Mardan Khan and Ahmad Khan to Kandhar with an

Tk iasaurance to get help from the Ghilzal chlef. But on thelir

I: iﬁrrivai at Kandhar, Hussain Ghilzal, the ruler of Kandhar,
-treacherOUSly confined them in the fort. They remained 1in

_ the Kandhar fort till it was captured by Nadir Shah on

“{i‘ 2&«March_l738 {2nd 2ilhij3 1150 A.H.,), and then they
wéré'éet-?fee. Nadir &hah had fought several battles agalnst
Allah Yar Khan and Zulflkar Khan. He realized their importance
and was impressed by the bravery of Aloose Abdall. He gave

* 57
2ulfikar Khan and hls brothers lands in Mazandaran and

A settled them there. Soon Ahmad Khan Saddozi son of Zaman

Khan joined the army ofNadir Shah and within a very short

56. TI.M., ,PP.87-95; Tate., op.cit., P.57;

Ganda Siugh, op.cit., P.12; TATS., P.7.

* Mazandaran: a mountainous range in Iran near the
Caspian Sea.
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period became chief of the contingent consisting of
Aloose Abdalil. He accompanled Nadir Shah to almost all
expeditions, He enjoyed the confldence of Nadir Shah,
It Is said that 'once Nadir Shah humbiy said to him,
remember Ahmad Khan Abdali, that after me the kingship
shall pass on to you. But you should treat the

58
descendants of Nadlr Shah with kindness'.The kingdom

57. T.M., PP.96,104,105; Ganda Singh, op.cit.,
PP.16,17; Tate. op.cit., PP.59,62,63,65; Tasa Mawai-
"1arak, - P.769; Latif, History of the Panjab,
Lahore, 18921, P,198; Svkes, op.cit., PP.,337,338;
T.A‘SI’ P.7.

58. Ganda Singh, op.cit., P.17; Svkes,op.cit., P.352;
T.A.5., PP,9,10,
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- passed on to 'Ahmad Khan Abdali', soon after Nadir Shah

was assassinated on the night of Saturday 8-9 June 1747
: 59
(11th Jamadi-u-Sani 1160 A,H,) 'Ahmad Shah Abdalil'

ascended the Afghan throne in the month of July 1747
60
and styled himself as Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran.

59, T.M., . P.1073 Tate, op.cit., P.68; Lockhart,
og.cit., p.261) Caroe,op.cit,, P.254; H.P.,
P. Gupta,M. It.b., C Tcutta, 1944 y P.159;
Ravertv, op.citi. , P.615, gives the date of

.assassination 15 Jamadi ~us=Sani, 1060 A.H,, and

Ganda Singh,op.cit., P, 21., wrltes 'on the night
fgfnof the'T9 20 gune 1747 .

aa so.‘ T M., op.cit., P.109; Ganda Sinah.op.cit., P.31; Tate,
i : E.cit., PP.68,69; Caroe, .clt., PP.255 12363
. raser Tytler, o .cit., E
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f © Multan under the Mughals (1739 - 1755)

11 Ascendancy of the Saddozals. . In Multan
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Multan under the Mughals (1739 - 1752)

From the earliest times to the advent of
Mughal rule in India, Multan had all along been an
important centre of political and cultural activity.
It was the seat of Qazl-ul-Quzzat and also had a

silver and copper mint. Its importance can be easily

l'judged from the appointment of its Subedars. Most of

.?ﬁhg time princes of the royal blood were appointed as

. 1ts Subédars and they lived here, 1f not, their visits

iwwéfé-frequent. Militarily it worked as a base during

a,the~siege of Kandhar in the reign of Emperor Shah Jahan.
gThére is no denying the fact that 'Multan was one of the

.ﬂllargest pfovinces of the Mughal Empire'. It was so

large that 'on the east 1t adjolned the Sarkar of Sirhind,

6n the north Peshawar, on the south the Subah of Ajmer
and on the west Kach and Mukran, which tract of country,
in ;he early times formed part of, or was included ln
Sind:The Geo-political sub-divisions of this province
havé been described as comprising of 'three Sarkars,

Multan (proper), Dipalpur and Bhakkar, containing elghty

eight parganahs,.. Thattah now forms the fourth Sarkar



d T
& i

A
T R ey

R

-46-

of the Multan Subah, but, formerly, for a long perlod of
2

time, 1t was a separate country'. Proper Hultan was the

headquarter of this Iimportant and large 'Subah' of the
3
Mughal Empire. But in due rouise of time it was decided

" that 'on account of the great distance between the

northern and the southern routes', it should have 'two
4

seats of Government at Lahore and Multan'. Its importance

‘:

can be judged from the fact that 'Multan commanded an

-3edually important position in the southern part of the-
‘ pfbv1nce. It controlled the waters of the Panjab rivers
. ¥*

‘and also the roads leading to Delhi via Marot, to Lahore

i * %
and Sirhind via Dipalpur and to Jaisalmir via Derawar,

including the routes from the Tochi, the Gomal and the

" Bolan Passes. Uesides, it was connected with all the

1. Raverty, op.cit., PP.557, 558.
2, 1bid. PP.557, 558.

3. 1.G.I1., P.27.

* Marot: a I'nrt situated in the desert 50 miles sourth
east of U.ihawalpur.

*# Derawar: a fort sltuated in the desert 30 miles south
of Ahmadpur East.

b, M.H.P., _ P.1l.



-47-

important places in the doabs of the province through
the rivers. Its geographical position, therefore, made
It the most important centre of trade in the south
where Panjab goods were brought through the rivers,
and where they were exchanged by caravans for the

5
commodities of Aifghanistan, Baluchistan and Iran'.

The Mughal Empire started declining soon after
;ﬁl ,:: the death of Emperor Aurangzeb. The weak, incapable and
cpirupt successors of Ehperor Aurangzeb contributed
'Lf ' i.ﬂofhlng’thereby encouraging the centrifugal forces to
gi' .- de$qroy everything., The ambitlous Subedars of the Mughal:

”Empire became independent in thelr internal affalrs. They

' 6n1y paid nominal tribute to the Mughals and enjoyed all
ﬁi'” ' thé powers. The weakness of the Mughal rule was exposed
S by Nadir Shah and Ahmad Shah Dur-i- - Jurran, when both of
them not only defeated the Mughals but also annexed a

6
vast -territory of the Mughal Empire.

5. Ibid. PP.11,12.

6. I1bid. P.14,
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Multan and Lahore enjoyed peace durlng the

Subedari of Nawab Abdus~Samad Khan, Dalairjang, Sailfud-
Doulahand his noble son Khan Bahadur Zakaria Khan. Nawab
Abdus Samad Khan died {n Multan in June 1737 .(1150 A.H?).
During his rule, he built the Eid-gah of Multan in 1735
(Lihs A.H.) which still exhlblts the craftmanship of
‘Multani artisans. He was succeeded to the Government of
Multan by hils eldest son Zakaria Khan who was already the
Govérnor of Lahore since 1726 . with a title of Khan
Bahadur from the Mughal court. During his Viceroyalty,

" his second son Hayatullah Khan (Shahnawaz Khan) held charge

,of4the province of Multan. Zakaria Khan enjoyed absolute

auﬁhdrity and remalned 'ap indifferent spectator' during
the 'rise of the Marathag'. The corrupt and carcless

Hughél rule neglected the 'most important frontier Province'
of ‘Afghanistan. 1Its Governor, since 1720 . was MNasir

Khan who was incapable to manage the affalrs. His Government

was always in deflcit due to shortage of revenues. The

7. I.M., P.196; Ganda Singh, op.cit., P.40;
H.P., P.193; Shah Nawaz Khan, Samsamud-Daulah,
Ma'asirul-Umra (Urdu translation), vol.ii.,Calcutta,
1858 P.514-517.
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administration of this strategically important province
suffered becau.c, 'Nasir Khan's army had been in orrears
of pay for five ycars (1733-38 ° ) and the soldiers
poorly fed, poorly armed and povorly equlpped clamoured

for even one year's dues In order to nay their creditors,
but no attention was ever pald to the repecated applicatlions
of the Governoi’. The result was that when MNadir Shah
advanced towar:ds Indla, there was no strong army fto oppose
him. He reached Lahore and 'defeated Zakaria Khan on the
Ravil, on the 21+t January 1739 ‘lq.'. After levying

'a fine of twenty lakhs of rupees from him', MNadir Shah
reinstal. d him. Then he reached Karnal, dcfeated the
Mughal army and marched on Delhi which he occupied without
much resistance. It exposcd the military weakness of the

Mughals. The Mughals ceded ali the territories north west

of the Indus,alongwith Sindh and Thatta. The distric!: of

8. H.P., ".193; Trvine, Later Mughals, vol.ii
(1719-3¢ ry Calcutta, 1922, P.325; Ma'asirul Umra,
op.cit., PIr.103,520; Aulad Ali, Muragqa-i-Multan,
Lahore, 1238, P,115.

9. HM.H.P., P.29,

10. Ibid. P.31i.
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*
Cujrat, Sialkot, Aurangabad and Pasrur known as Chahar

Mahal, were placed under the charge of Zakarla Khan on
the condition of 'payment' of a certain sum as annual
tribute' g the invudéi. Madir Shah,bhefore leaving Larkana
{(Sindh} in February 1740 .. appointed Zakaria Khan's
second son ilayatullah Khan as the Governor of Hultan and
hestowed upon him the title of Shahnawaz Khan. When
Zakaria Khan died on July 1, 1745 .{12th of Jamadi-
us-Sani 1158 A.H.) his eldest son Yahya Khan succeeded
his father with the blesslngs of a royal farman. DBut he‘
was opposed by Shahnawaz Khan, the Governor of Multan, He
marched on Lahore and after defeating Yahya Khan entered
Lahore on 21st March 1747 ° Now he was the Viceroy of
Multan and Lahore. He appointed Kaura Mal his Diwan, but
he could not get a royal decree of confirmatlon in this
respect from the Mughal court. Advised by Adina Beg Khan,
he, therefore, invited Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran who after
the assassinativn of Hadir Shah had established himsclf
as the King of Afghanistan in July 1747 . . Shah MNawaz
Khan sent his ambassador to Ahmad Shah Dur-I-Durran

'with the message, Crown to Ahmad Shah and Wazirship to

iz
Shahnawaz'.

* Aurangabad: situated near Sialkot.
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During the Mughal rule, 8sometimes one Subedar

was appointed to run the Government of both Multan and
Lahore and . sometimes two different persons were there to

head both the provinces separately. Whenever there was

11, 1bid.PP,31,32; Irvine, op.cit., P.337; H.P.,

P.207; CGupta, mentions that twenty lacks were
fixed as revenue of Chahar Mahal, M.H.P.,op.cit.,
PP.31,32; Percy Sykes, mentlons fourteen lacs were
fixed as revenue of Chahar Mahal, op.ecit., P.355,

120 T.M., P.111; M.H.P., OP.64-68;

H.P. P, PP. 213 21&; P,D.G. , M.D,,
P.45; Joseph Davey Cunnlngham, A History of the Sikhs,
“lLondon, 1918, PP.93,94; Shkahamat Ali, The History of
Bahawalpur, London, 1848, P.38; Ganda Sinah,op.cit.,
PP.39-42; U.T., Lahore, 1885, vol.i., PP.1147¥T3__‘_
"Ali-ud- Din, , Ibrat Namah, vol.l., Lahore, 1961, P.233;
Ghulam Hussain Khan, Slzar, Calcutta, 1789, vol.iil.,
P.254; Ma'asirul 3Umra, op.cit., P.104; Gupta, H.S.
(1739-68). Calcutta, 1936 = P.39,
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one man to look after the administration of both the

13
provinces, it was a custom to have a nalb Nazim or naib
Diwan in Multan because the Subedar used to live at

Lahore,

13. Gupnta mentions 'Nazim was the Governor of a

Liovince. He was a militaryman who commanded
the troops and administecred the country. The

. Diwan, who was the superintendent of finances,

~was qulte independent of him and was a check on
him, But when both these offices were combined
in one person, he was called Subedar or Viceroy',
M.H.P., .- .. P.60.
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~Ascendancy of the SaddozaiS . in Multan

Nawab 7ahid Khan Maudud Khel Khan Khel Sgddgzai
as naib Nazim of Multan (1738-49)

[-aY)

Nawab Zahid Khan was the son of Abid Khan son of
Allah Dad Khan, the younger brother of Shah Hussaln Khan.
Abid Khan commanded great respect in the Mughal court at

Dalhi as well as in the court of Muhammad Bagir Khan, the

~ Nazim of Multan. Being the chief of Maudud Khel Khan Khel

Saddozai Pathans of Multan, he used to hold the court and

decidéd the cases of his tribe independently, When he

.died,fﬁe left three sons and one daughter,Zahld Khan, the
. eldest{}Arif Khan and Khadija alias Khan Khur werc from

:ﬁohe mother who was daughter of Jalal Khan Saddozai son of

: 1
Aldal Khan Zafran Khel. Wasil Khan, the youngest son was

from another wife. On the death of Abid Khan, the descendants
of Allah Dad Khan quarrelled with each other over the

issue of succession. On one side Lashkar Khan, the brother

of Abid Khan was a claimant and on the other side Asghar

Khan son of Inayat Khan allas Wafadar Khan II was aspiring

1. T.M., 'P.188,189; Z.A., . PP.24.-27,
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to hecome the chlef of the tribe while the third clalmant
was Abdul Aziz Khan (a very ambltlous young man who becams
Governor of Multan after a few years) son of Sultan Hayat
Khan and lastly Zahid Khan the eldest son of Abid Khan also
claimed the chiefdom of Maudud Khel Khan Khel Pathans of
- Multan. After a long disCUssion, the elders decided to

of fer the chiefdom of not only Maudud Khel Khan Khel
Pathans, but also the chieftainship of all the Pathans
”of-ﬂultan to the great Khan, Sultan Hayat Khan Khizer Khel
Khudakka Saddozal, a former ruler of 'Safa'(Afghanistan).
B But:;he Great Khan turned down the offer with the remarks
that.it was not hls own country where he could rule
indépendently. Now the elders requested him again to
give his declision in favour of any one of the clalmants.

After hearing all the parties, Sultan Hayat Khan dispassionately
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decided the issue in favour of Zahid Khan, in spite of

the fact that his own son Abdul Aziz Khan was one of the
claimants. His declision was accepted by all and he
installed Zahid Khan, not only as the chief of Maudud

Khel Khan Khel Pathans but also as the chief of all the
Pathans of Multan in his own garden with the ceremony of
placing the Turban of chiefhood on his head. Since then,
it became » custom that the finstallation ceremony of the
chiefdem was always performed in the garden of Sultan
Hayat Khan and the turban of chiefhood was always placed
on the head of the chief of Maudud Khel Khan Khel Saddozai
Pathans of Multan by the eldest descendant of Sultan Hayat

2
Khan. Zahid Khan then approached the lmperial court at

2. T.M., PP.189-192; Z.A., P.29;
P.C., P.478,
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Delhi with a letter of recommendation from Sultan Hayat
Khan and got a Mansab of five hundred Zat and fifty Sawar.
After the death of Sultan Hayat Khan, he proved to be a
very Influentlal person and commanded great respect in
Myltan. On th~ death of Abdus Samad Khan, the Subedar

of Multan, his son Zakaria Khan took his dead-body from
Multan to Lahore, leaving his second son Hayatullah

Kiian (Shahnawaz Khan) as in%harge of Multan. Tt was
Heoyatullah Khan who with thé approval of his father
Zakaria Khan, ihe Viceroy of Lahore and Multan,appointed
NMawab Zahid Khan as naib Nazim of Multan in 1738

His role as naib Nazim of Multan was very successful. He

3
was holding this office when Madir Shah Invaded India.

3. T.r_1.,pp,/96»/97-

Latii - ntions that 'during the invasion of
NMadir Shah (1738-3")Zahid Khan, a Saddozai Afghan,
was appointed Viceroy of HMultan through the
influence of his friend Kamruddin Khan,the
Mi ister of the Delbi Imperor Mubommad Shah' but
the author is confused brrause Mawab Zahid Khan
became naib Nazim with his help in 1746

E.H.M., P.27.
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-

Shahﬁawaz Khan was confirmed as*Governor of Multan.

by Nadir Shah. Mawab Zahid Khan was allowed to continue

; as nalb Nazim, Nawab Abdul Aziz Khan son of Sultan Hayat
Khan, who was a very ambitious man also coveted this office
M- ahd offered Shoiinawaz Khan fifty thousand rupees. Nawab

%' ' - Zahid Khan, having come to know of this bargain, approached

Shahnawaz Khan, managed to pay the required amount and
' 4

~ratained the naib Nizamat.

On the death of 7akaria Khan on July 1,1745.
- Shahnawaz Khan was confirmed as the Governor of Multan by
the Mughal court. As he was very ambitious, he left for

.‘-Lahérp,_leaving Khwaja Ishaq Khan as his naib Nazim in

‘Multan and reached Lahore on November 21, 1746/(18th Ziqada
. 3,
“1159 A.H.)and 'demanded a formal division of the property

" of his father. Beling anxious to obtain the royal sanad

gk for his naib tlizamat Zahid Khan went to the Mughal court
o 6
'“ at DElhi and 'through Ali Muhammad Khan Ruhila' requested

* Nawab Zahid Khan: He was naib Nazim of Hultan in
174344 (1156 A,H,) as it is evident from an
original Farman issued by Nawab Zahid Khan in 1156 A.H.,
which grants a certain amount to Mukhdum Shaikh
Muhammad Raju Gardezi.

B, T.M., P.197.
5. Ganda Singh.,op.cit., PP.41,78; Sivar, op.cit.,P.254,

6. Ganda Singh, op.cit., P.78.
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Qamarud Din Khan, the Delhi Wazir for a royal farman of

" the naib Niramat of Multan, which was soon granted alongwith

the title of HNawab,

to convey the good news

He at once sent a messanger to Multan

Multan., With the royal forman received from the Delhi

d .

b

e S NS L
Iy I ¥

 Khan opposed him but he was defeated. Nawab Zahid Khan

7

: "qeérge but also with the help of a Pathan force. He was

PO

o007

to his sons and other Pathans of
> Wazir, Nawab Zahid Khan marched back to Multan. Khwaja Ishagq

fentergd the city in early 1747 y not only with a royal

S

7.. T.M.,

LERNE

cemof el Clf

CPP,T8,79; Z.A.,

PP.198-200; GCanda Singh op.cit.
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accept
prudent enough to/the overlordship of Shahnawaz Khan and

as well as of the Delhi Wazir, hence he ruled for several
years successfully, During the Subedari of Shahnawaz Khan
and the naib Nizamat of Nawab Zahid Khan, an incident took
place in Multan., On the occasion of Eﬂiifﬁﬁiﬂ Jaspat Rai,
the Diwan of Multan, who was the younger brother of Lakhpat-~
Rai (Diwan of Lahore) alongwith his followers and a Mughal

foroce started from Bohar Qate {one of the gates of the

~'walled eity) on their way to the River Chenab for Ashnan
_(religious bath in the river). When they reached the Kiri

;;Afghéna;'oﬁe of the soldiers misbehaved with an Afghan boy.

They were attacked by the Pathans and approximately two to

'jthree hundrcd persons includlng Hindus and Mughal soldiers

were killed. Jaspat Ral was serliously wounded. It raised

a gréat hue and cry in the Lahore court. Shahnawaz Khan
asked Nawab Zahid Khan to produce the culprits, but it was
very difficult {or Nawab Zahid Khan to comply with the
orders, as they were Pathans belonging to his own tribe.
He sent his eldest son Shakir Khan who had been married

a day earlier, alongwith the sons of Muhammad Bagir Khan
and Abdul Aziz Khan sons of Sultan Hayat «<han with an
apology for the unpleasant incident. In the beginning

Shahnawaz Khan was very much annoyed and placed them under
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8
guard, but later on released them and pardoned them. They

were allowed to go back to Multan, but he did not hand over

the real culprits. Zahid Khan thereupon sent hls own son

alongwith the sons of other chlefs In order to persuade

Shahnawaz Khan to pardon everybody involved In the incident.

if was because of this kind and considerate attitude towards
~ his people that he.was very popular amongst the Pathans

of Mﬁltan.

B. .T T.M., PP-t9y,/48> Sher Mehammeod A/aa/r

'does not place the events c..unmlogically Zl" FP- 33’3" Gt
P.472., has wrongly stated that certain solT.ers

"misbehavrd with an Afghan woman. He 1is also confused

while stating that Mir Manu was Viceroy of Lahore.
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After the death of Sultan Hayat Khan, an inclident
took place which created bitterness between the Khudakkas

and the Khan Khels., During the naib Nizamat of Nawab

Zahid "t «n Langee Khan Khugani built a beautiful garden
E@ ned the Kinl Afghanan., It was a big garden having all
}* kinds of ris... trees. As he was issueless, he decided to

.sell i{t, Muhammad Khan son of Sultan Abdullah Khan (ruler
.?of Hirat) purchased it in 1740 . (1152 A.H.) on a payment
"~ 6f twelve thousand rupees, The garden was a picnic spot
.:-u:fqritheiPathans and had developed into a public place.
AMuhaﬁhad_Khan was a hrave, emotional and hot-tempered

man, The people knew that he would not allow anybody to

B  ente;.fﬁe garden. They approached Nawab Zahid Khan with

‘the request to purchase the garden because they knew that
Nawab 2ahid Khan being a kind-hearted and bhrcad-minded person
would accede to their request. In spite of the fact that
Muhammad Khan made the payment, Nawab Zahid Khan called
Langee Khan Khugani ts his place and asked him to cancel

the deal. When Langee Khan informed Muhammad Khan about

the new dev«lopment, he found him firm. This garden bhecamc

a bone of contentio  between the two Khans. When Muhammad
Khan failed to take its possession, he approached the Delhi

court. The Mughal Emperor Muhammad Shah having come to know
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that a former ruler of Hirat was in neecd of help,bestowed
upon Mishammad Khan the 'tille of Wafadar Khan with a mansab
of Haft Hazari and Jagirs in Shahjah:n-Abad,tahore and

Multan and further ordered MHawab Zahid Khan to hand over

thc possesslon of the Bagh (garden) Langee Khan' to the
purchaser. Muhammad Khan came to !li:ltan with flying colours
and took possession of the garden. Ilawab Zahid Khan felt
humlliated. When Muhammad Khan went to Lahore to take charge
of his new Jagir, Nawab Zahid Khan manoeuvred through
Hayatullah Khan (Shchnawaz Khan) to yct Muhammad Khan arrested
by Zakaria Khan, the Viceroy of Lahore and Multan, on his
arrival at Lahore. His sun Abdul Rahim Khan approached

Nadir Shah Afshar for help because Madir Shah had recently
rcturned viectorious from India and he held the family of

the Khudakkas in hiqh esteem for their valour in the

Khurasan campainns. It was Allah Yar Khan, i{he yunger
hrother of Muhammad Khan who fought sevceral battles with
Nadir Shah beforc the fail of Hirat. Nadir Shah, therefore,
not only gave him ' release order addressed to 7Zakaria Khan
but also conferred upon him a Jagir in Dera Ghari Khan'. When

9
Zakaria Khan heard of it, 'he at once released Muhammad Khan'.

. 0On the arrival of Abdul Rahim Khan in Multan his father was

already there. This dcvelopment created a guly between these

two branches of the Saddozais.

9. I.M., PP.#623-432,
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The Rise 0f Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran{1747 - 1772)

Ahmad Shah Dur~i-Durran, 'was born of Zarghuna
Alikozal in 1722 . at Multai'. He Jolined the army of
Nadir Shah and soo:n became chlief of Nadir Shah's Afghan
contingent. Nadir Shah often remarked in open court,
'I have not found in Iran, Turan or Hind any man equal to
Ahmad Abdall iIn capacity and charactei'.After the
assassination of Nadir Shah, Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran

became king and founder of modern Afghanistan.Considering

"himself as successor of Nadir Shah he captured at Kandhar'

'a treasure of two Crores of rupees in money, diamonds

: 3
‘and Shawls', 'carrled hy three hundred camels' from India

~to Iran in the form of annual revenues under the escort

of an Afghan guard. He at once distributed it amongst
4

 his people, which strengthened his hands. After becoming

1. Ganda Singh. op.cit., P.15,

2. HM,H.P., ' P.158; Ganda Singh, gp.cit., P.18;
T.A.S5.,, PP.92,10, ,

3. Ganda Singh,op.clt., P.29,.

4. T.M,, P.110; Ganda Singh,op.cit., P.30; M.H.P.,
P.160; Tate,op.cit., P.69; Siyar, vol.jil
PP.252,253; T.A.5., | b.13. ’

PR LA P ST 7 T S vy ) W) ] PPN E ST LIPS TR
- .J__,.J)f ot Uy aeg o 0 asun et Jgal o s

(e o) ofi



e
P
o
:?'l

Y e

ro

-6h-

the Klng of Afghanistan, Ahmad Khan styled himself

Dur-i-Durran with the title of Shah, gave the title of
5

Durrani to his tribe - the Abdalis, and struck a coin

6

‘with the following inscription:

Iy ..". .}’. . dL:JL: .J,._:-.‘ O O’_::,.:.: JJ‘L; )l a2 rf..a-

-
. olmlo bzt S s pen o) S
( oS 145 )

.\.'A‘l . A/
~'Command came from God, the Insaytable, to Ahmad the King,

‘strike coin on silver and gold from the bottom of the sea

7

'ftb the moon. The official seal for his royal farmans was,

'By the command of God, the Bestower of Victory: Ahmad

Shah;ithe Pearl of Pearls'. At the end, 'the picture of
S 8
a peacock was carved on 1t',

5. T.M., ?.109; Ganda Singh,op.cit., P.27;
Caroe,op.cit., P.256; 'Taza Nawai #uarak, . ' P.770;

Yousuf Gardezl, op.cit., PP.56,57; Percy pykes,op.cit,
P.353; Malleson,op.cit., P.276. ’

6. T.M., P,109; T.A.S5., P.13:Ganda Sinagh,
op.cit., Fi.31,32; M.H,P.,, ' tP,160,161; H.P.,
P.2155Azfizud Din Fofalzai, D.T.Z.,Kabul,1337,
P.267.

7. Ganda Sinah,op.cit., PP.31,32; T.A.S. P14,

8. T.M., . P.109; Ganda Singh,op.cit., PP.31,32;
M.H,P. PP.160,16L; H.P,, P.215;
T.A'S"' P.lu.
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Now Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran marched on Kabul and after
annexing it, advanced to Peshawar. He was welcomed by the
Afghan tribes of that areg. In the meantime, he was

tnvited by Shahnawaz Khan., Adina Beg Khan playcd a doubhle
role and Informed the Delhi Wazir about the seerect
correspondence of Shahnawaz Khan» with Ahmad Shah Dur-i-
Durran. The result was that Wazir Qamarud Din Khan managed
to send him a reoyal farman confeérring upon him the Government
of the Panjab, with the request to oppose the king of

10
Afghanistan, whlch he agreed. Shahnawaz Xhan did not welcome

9 T.H., P.111; Ganda Sinah, op.cit., PP,.37,38;
fiLH.P., . PP.161,162: Tate, op.ctti., P.70.

10, T.M., . 7.111; Ganda Sinah, op.cit., PP,42-44;
RH.P. ., PP.68,162,163; Tate,on.cit., P.70;
Siyar, PP.254,255; 1bral Namah =~ . P.233;
Anandram Mukhlis, Ta-kirat-i-‘nandram, MS.cnds in
1748 (India),P.2i5%; H.S5., P.392,
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Haroon khan Saddozai, the envoy of Dur-i-i{urran and later

%
on also annoyed (¢ Afghan King by killing Pir Sabir Sh;i.
Ahmas Shah Dbur-!-Durran then rushed towards Lahore and
wvrived on the right bank of the Ravi on Bth January, 1748
(18th of Huhargmul Haram 1161 A.H.). He crossed the river
on the 10th January and encamped in the Shalamar Garden,
The next dav, f.e., 11th January, the Afghan King defeated

1?
Shahnawaz Khan, who fled to Delhi. Thus Ahmad Shah Dur-i-durran

* Pir Sabir Shah: He belonged tn lLahore and was Pir

of Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Darran.

1. T.M., PP.I11,112 3 TLA.S. .. P,14;
Ganda Sinah,op.cit., PP.&44-4¢6: lbrat Ilamah,
PP.202,233,234; H.P,, PP.216,217; Siyar,

PP,.25%.-759; Tazki at-i-Apandram, .
P.256; M.H.P., PP, .70 H.S., P.40,

12, T.M., Fro112,113; T.A.5., P17
Gan. © oy, op.ocit., PPLO4S-51; MLH.IP
S LA B I Fazki:b-i-Apa~dram, ' ~ PP.257,258;
Tate., op.cit., 1".70; H.P., P.217; H.S.,

. PP.39,40; Taza Maw~i ' arak, ’ ILT7T7]G

hiyar, P.259; Ibr-n Mamah, P.204,
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I}
hecame master ~f{ the two provinces, Lahors and Hultan.

After occupying Labore he struck 1 coln bhearing the
14
faliowing Inseviption: 'King, Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran

Mint, at the capltal of Lahore, Auspicious years of the

Reign, one'.

( Jfoo b/l o RIUEE B

Ahmad Shah Dur-1i-Durran then wrote a letter to Nawab
»*

Zahid Khan, naib Nazim of Multan, asking him to forget

13. Siyar, P.259,

14, Ganda Singh,op.cit., PP,52,53; H.P., P.215.

* The instructlons issued by Qamarud Din Khan to all
the Covernors and Mansabdars includlng Mawab Zahid
Khan to ji+in the Imperlal army against the Afghan

King confirmed the bonafide status of the Nawab;
Ganda Singh,op.cit., P.55.
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the old rivalry between Khizer Khel and Maudud Khel
groups of Saddo.ai tribe and cooperate with him for

the establishment of an Afghan State In India. Nawab
Zahid Khan not only spurned his offer but also used
derogatary remarks against him. He decided to remain
loyal to the Delhi Empire. The Afghan King was
indignant over his attituéz. The Afghan King advanced
agalnst Sirhind and the battle of Manupur was fought on
Friday, March 11,1748 .{22nd of Rabi-ul-Awwal 1161 A.H.)
In which the D€lh1l Wazir - Qamarud Din Khan was killed.
Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran lost the battle and went back to
Kandhar +ia Lahore, Peshawar and Khyber Paig. The Mughal
victory at Manupur elevated Mir HMannu son of the late

Wazir Qamarud Din Khan to the Viceroyalilty of Lahore and

Multan with the title of Mir Muinul-Mulk from Prince Ahmad

15. T.M., Pp.zoo,zol;'LaZ/fﬂﬂéW“?{fl .
writes that Ahmazd Shah D:yv . -Durran confirmed Mawab

Zahid Khan 1in the government of thsltan which is
Incorrect.
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17
on llth April 1748 .{(23rd Rabi-us-Sani 1161 A.H.) .

In the meantime, the Mughal Emperor Mahammad Shah died

on l4th April 1748 .. and was succeeded by his son
18
Prince Ahmad. Mir Muinul-Mulk appointed Kaura Mal as
19

Nazim of Multan with the title of Maharaja.

16, T.M., PPL113-1155T7.A.5., ., PP.18-20:

——

Ibrat Mamah,. PP.204,205.

17, M., ,P.:153Canda Sinah,op.cit.,P.72; H.P.,
P.219; M.H.P,,. PP.73,165; CGhulam Ali Azad,

Khazana-i-Amira,PP.97,98; Josenph Cunningham,op.cit.,
P.94; Ibrat Namah, . PP.205,206. =~

18. T.M., ~ ,P.115; Ganda Singh,op.cit.,P.73;5iyar,
- ,P.263; H.P.,op.cit.,PP.219,220,

19. T.M., P.201; Ganda Sinqh,og.cit.,P.79;M.H.P.,
. . PP.66,73,75; Z.A., | © LP.34; Ashraf Gurgani,
Sadig-at-Tawarickh,Bahawalpur,l4v9 .. (1317 A.H.)P.272;
Ibrs: Mamah,- .. P.20s.
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Maharaja Diwan Kaura Mal as the
Subedar of Hult. n(1748-1749 -

Kaura i'al was the son of Waloo Mal a personal
servant of Muhammad Bagir Khan Khudakka son of Sultan
Hayat Khan. Waloo Mal used to get only s5ixty rupees per
month from Muhammad Baglir Khan. His son Kaura Mal also
lived with him and got a remuneration of fifteen rupees
per monti. After sometime Kaura Mal went to Lahore and
joined the services of Zakaria Khan, where he rose to a
prominent position. When Shahnawaz Khan defeated his
elder brothrr Yahya Khan in ‘March 1747/und captured Lahore,
he appointed Kaura HMal as his Diwag. When Ahmad Shah Dur-i-
Ourran defeated Shahnawaz Khan, Kaura Mal alongwith his
master Shahnawaz Khan fled to Dlhi, Kaura Mal joined the
services of Mir Mannu and when Mir Mannu took over the
charge of Lahore and Multan, he appointed him as his Diwan

3
and also Governor of Multan with the title of Maharaja.

. T.M,, PP.350,351; H.S., P.33.,writes
the name of kaura Mal's father Dalu HMal which is
incorrect.

2. T.M.,. P.351; Y.H.P., op.cit.,P.66.
3. T.M., P.351; “anda Sinanbh,op.cit.,P.79;
M.t P, PP.66,73,75; 7.A.5 P.34;
Ibrat MHamah P.206.
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Mawab Zahid Khan was a clnse friendof Shahnawaz Khar and
at the same tin~ he was also loyal to the Delhi Court. The
Delhil Wazir Safdar Jang was against Mir Mulnul-Mulk who
dismissed Nawab Zahid Khan and sent Maharaja Kaura HMal to
take charge of Multaﬁ. In spite of the opposition of his
own sons Shakir Khan, Shuja Khan and othe' prominent
members of the Sad<ozais, Mawab Zahid Khan, who was ruler
of Multan for more thannine years declded to give fight
to the tahore army which was supported by Zahid Khan's
great enemy, MNawab Abdul Aziz Khan. Mawab Zahid Khan did
not like to bow down before the son of Waloo Mal and
Mawab Abdul Aziz Khan. He alongwith his small force

>+
stopped the Lahore army outside Multan near vlllage HMattital.

A battle was fought in 1748 - .(1161 A.H.) in which Mawab
* %
Zahid Khan was defeated and he ran away to Seitpur after
5
having crossed the river Chenab, Multan w.:~- captured but
&, T.M., ,P.70l; lorat Hamah, P.206;Ganda Singh,
op.cit.,P.72; Z.A., P.34. He is confused and

writes that ltaharaja Kaura Mal endorsed the naib
Mizamat of Mawab Zahid Xhan, which is incorrect.

* Mattital: 15 miles from Multan on way to Lahore.
*¥*  Scitpur: 40 miles south of Khangarh(Muzaffargarh).

5. T.M., PP.201,202;Ibrat MNamah, P.206G;
Ganda Singn,op.cit.,P. 79; Bal Ki-han Batra,
Tawarickh-~i-Multan,Publister N.A., 1926,PP.48-50;
Maclagan, G.NI.D.,Lahore, 1202, P.49., he is also
confused because Nawab Zahid Khan never acted as
naib Nazim under Kaura Mal; Muraggqa-i-Multan,.
P.116., does not describe the events chronologicaliy.
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with no monetary galn, because all the family members
of Nawab 7ahid Khan took refuge in the palace of
Muhammad Baqgir Khan alias Sardar Khan. Maharaja Kaura Mal
appoainted Nawab Abdul Azlz Khan as hls nalb Nazim of
Multag. Maharaja Kaura Mal at hls instance ordered his
troops tn besiege the palace of Muhammad Bagqir Khan in
nrder to arrest the family members of Nawab Zahid Khan.
Actually, Nawab Abdul Aziz Khan with the consent of
Maharaja Kaura Mal demanded nineteen lécs of rupees from
Nawab Zahid Khan's family which he claimed to bc¢ the
revenues of Multan collected by the former nailb Nazim,

Nawab Abdul Aziz Khan advanced to the palace of his

elder step-brother,'iuhammad Bagir Khan with his retinue.

6. T.M., PP.408,409; Ganda Singh,op.cit., P.79.
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When Muhammad Barqlr Khan was told about his arrival, he was
not only cold In his behaviour bu:z:lso annoyed with Nawab
Abdul Aziz Khan for his violation of family traditions.As

» last resort he decided to go to Maharaja Kaura Mal in
order to srttle the affalrs directly with hi;. HMuhammad
Bagir Khan who was falrly advanced In age sent a message

to Maharaja Kaura Mal seeking his audlence as he had not
met him since long. The next moment Muhammad Baqlr Khan
reached his palace., MaharajJa Kaura Mal at once came out of
his palace bare-footed and keeping iIn view the status of

the aged KHAN apologlsed for all of his misconduct. He

@
ordered the withdrawl of his troops and dropped the idea

7. T.MW PP.350-354,
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5
of vollecting monev from the family of !awab Zahid Khan,

The next day Maharaja Kaura Mal wvisited the palace of
lfuhammad Bagir Kh. not only to express his rcyrets once
anain but to pay respects to Muhammad Bagir Khan in
aciknowledoement of the Khan's patronage to his fatheor
Waloo Ma?. Having scttled the affairs at Multan Maharaja

iagura Mal lefl 7»nr Lahore

8. 1bid. PP.354,355.
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Nawab Abdul Aziz Khan Khudakka Saddozai
as nalb Mazim of Hn[lgn—Tl748—49>

Sultan Havat Khan Khizer Khel Khudakka Saddozai
had four sons. The eldest son Sultan Abdullah Khan became
ruler of Hirat in 1712 . (1124 A.;.). After a successful
rule of nine ycars and four months he was murdered in 1722

(23rd Mnha@?m-ul-naram 1134 A.l.) in Rowza Bagﬁ ncar
Hirat by his cousin LasimKhan during the life time of his
father. Sultan Hayat Khs»a had three other sons, Muhammad
Raqir Khan {the 2nd elgest), Mugarrab Khan and Mawob Abdul-

Azi; Khan, the youngest from his sccond wife, Sultan Hayat

Khan the ruler of Safa (Afghanisian) aftcr his defeat at

4
the hands of the Safavide Emperor in 1680 ., . (1091 A.H.)
migrated to India and settled down in Multan in 16832
5
(1093 A.H.)., He was a man of rvich resourcc.. He died on
1. T.H., PP.56,57.

2. Ibid. P.67.

3. 1Ibid. ?P.339,340.
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6
15th April 1729  ..(27th Ramgan 1141 A.H.). His youngest

wlfe was an Indlan singing giri who was mother of Nawab
Abdul Azlz Khan, She was very dear to the Khan and
consequently the Khan loved his youngest son very m;ch.
Nawab Abdul Azfz Khan was born in 1695 °~ .(1107 A.H.)}.He
was an extremely lIlntelligent, clever and a very ambitious
person., As he was very close to hils father, he mils-
approprlated a major portlon of hls wealtﬁ after hls death.
Since the very life time of hils father, he was trying to
get the Nizamat of Multan. He malntalned extremely good

relations wlth all the Mansabdars and was respected in the

6. Ibid. P,338,
7. 1bid, PP.340,341,406,407.
8. 1lbid. P,340,

Note:- The grave of Sultan Hayat Khan Khudakka Saddozai
still exists alongwith the graves of his sons and
des ~dants near the Road Crossing adjacent to the
residence of Superintendent of Police. His san
Muhammad Baqir Khan alias Sardar Khan had constructed
d grand edlfice over the qgrave of his father which

was also destroyed by the Sikhs during their invasion

in (744 His Kirl and garden are still called as
Bagh Khudakka and Chah Khudakka in the Revenue records,
His family p:oved a very important role in the politics

of Whurasan and Multan. The Multani Saddozais are
called Khudakka Saddozais and are direct descendantls
of Sultan Hayat Khan.



Mughal court. He spent his wealth lavishly in order to
secure the Nizamat of Multan., As statcd earlier, even the
payment of a handsome amount of money could .ot help him
in achieving his object and Nawab Zahld Khan proved too
clever for hlai as he could retain the nalb Nizamat of
Multan on the basls of hlis good relations with Shahnawaz
Khan and Nawab Qamarud Din Khan, the Delhi Wazii. Nawab
Abdul Aziz Khan though capable was unscruplous and an
opportunist. In order to achieve his object, he could go
to any extent. After the death of his father when
litigation started among his brothers, he prolonged the
litigation by using money. To his great disappointment
Muhammad Bagir Khan was recognized as the chief of the
family and was granted the title of Sardar Khig with a
mansab. It was during the regime of Kaura Mal that Abdul

i1
Aziz Khan could at last secure the covetoed naib Nizamat,

10. T.M., P.344,

11. 1Ibid, PP.408, 409,
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Thre
4 Jagir in Hulian and the title of Hawab.
¥han ruled over
bost to reduce the influepnce of

disgraced

In the meantine, Ahmad Shah Invaded India

time and crossing Indus in Decemher 1748

Haram 1162 A.H.)approached Shahdra

heginning of 1749 He asked Mir

over the revenues nf Chahar Mahal, which

Hadir Shah in 1732 by Muhammad Shah,
Emperor. Mir Muinul-tixlk procrastinated and

the permission of the elhi court concluded

12
in 1749 (1162 A.H.), Ahmad Shah retired
dera Ghazi Khan and Kalat. On hi~ way back

Ahmad Shah stesped on the western bank

Nawab Abdul

Mulbtan for about six months.

Hawab Zahid Khan.

werao

of Indus in

Mughali Ermreror bestowed upon him the mansab alongwith

Azlz
He did his

He
12

his friends and even placed them under servillence.

for the sccond

.(r-tuharﬁ{m-ul-

near Lahore in the

Muinul-{lulk to hand

ceded to

the then Hughal

imttimately with

a treaty accordlngly
;o Kandhar vla
to Kandhar,

March-April

1749 Sl -gs-5ani 1162 A.H.) and order-d all the Pathans

of Sadriozai tribe of Nultan to meet him. He met his aunt-wife

12, Ibid, P.409,

i3. Ibid. ".115; U.T.,vol. , PP.12%.129;Ganda Sinah,
op.cit., PP.73~ 73; Elphlnatonc An Aceounl of Lhe
Kingdom of Caubul, vol.ii., Kavachi, 1972., PP.286,287;
H.S. y PPL63-6%; M.H.P., PLYasy HLP L,
P22 2?1 Taza Nawalil Huarak, P.7772: Perecy Syhkes,
09.01t., P.3%%; Elliot and lLowson, The ‘listory of India
as told by its o-n Historians s,valViii..tondon, 1877;
Mhhammad \ﬁlam i rhat - un—Nd71r1n P.1bb; Baulat-i-Afghani,

P.2453J oaqﬁﬁ—tuanhqham.op cit.,P.102; Sivar,

ap.cito LY AR ...89.
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of Sultan Abdullah Khan and mother of Muhammad Khan
alongwith several other ladies of Saddozal tribe. He
requestcd his aunt to ask Muhammad Khan to remain In

India and avoid :oming to Afghanistan as there was danger
to his 1ife due to the rivalry between the two familles

of Xhizer Khel branch of Saddozai triég. Ahmad Shah was
genulnely afraid of Muhammad Khan's claim to the
Chieftainship of Aloose Abdali beling the son of Sultan
Abdullah Khan, the ruler of Hirat and morcsover he had once
been the ruler of Hirat. H1s aunt gave him the assurance
he required. Then he met all the male members of Saddozal
tribe including Muhammad Bagqir Khan and Nawab Abdul Aziz
Khan. He was pleased with the flattery of Nawab Abdul Aziz
Khan. He gave presents to all of themaccording to thelir
statii. In the beginning,Nawab Zahld Khan was reluctant to
meet the Afghan ruler because aof his previous attitude,but
ultimately on the assurance of the safety ol his life and
person he came from Seftpur and requested Ahmad Shah{who

was born In his own Kiri in Multan) tv grant him the Nizamat

of Multan. Nawab 7Zahid Khan was a close relative of Ahmad Shah.

4. T.H,, PP.115,116,356; 7.A., P.32.,
wrices that Ahmad Shah returned to Kandhar via Multan
after his first invasion which is incorrect. The
correct positionfis that after his second invasion, he
went to Kandhar via Dera Chazi Khan and Kalat.

~

15, T.M., PP.115,116,356,358,410,411.
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The mother of Nawab Zahid Kharn was the daughter of Jalal
Khan Saddoz;?. is the Afchan Kineg was notqhappy with his
previous conduct, he turned down his requeZt on the plea
that a Saddozai (lawab abdul aziz Khan) was already ruling
Multan. Ze showed no concern over the ascendancy of a

Hindu chief as the Wazim of Multan and left for wandahar via

Kalat.

The new Mughal amperor Ahmad Shah was weak and
indolent by nature. He approinted Abdul llansur Khan Safdar Jang,
as his grand Vazir. Safdar Jang was an old rival and anemy
o0f the late Wa2zir .«amarud Din Knhanrn. ile 'looked more to the
satisfaction of his personal animosities than to the
strencthenineg 07 the Btate: As the provinces of Lahore and
Multan were enjoying peace and presverity during the
Viceroyalty of Mir Muinul-Mulk, Safdar Jang out of sheer
rivalry planned to reduce the power of IMir Muinul-lulk,

After the departure of the Afﬁﬁan ruler , Safdar Jans sent

Shahnawaz Khan to take the Province of lMultan forcibly.

—— —————— e - a— —_—— e ——

16. Ibid. P.192.

17. Ibid. F.202; c.f., Ganda Singh, Op.Cit., FP.79;
Latif writes that Ahmad Shah confirmed Nawabt Zahid .
Khan in the Goverament of Fultan, E.H.M., PP,97-99,
Also see: Z.he, P.32. —h )
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Shahnawaz Khan at «once Informed Mawab Zahid Khan of his
planning. As Shahnawaz Khan marched against Multan and
Nawab Zahid Khan heard of him, he alongwith his small
contlngent left Seltpur and joined him. Nawab Abdul

%Fiz Khan put up no resistance and left Multan for Lahore,
He could rule only for ahout six months. His rival Nawab
Zahld Khan once aaaln entered the city triumphantly in
1749 A, D.(1162 A.H.), o course with the help of Shahnawaz
Khan., Nawab Zahid Khan appreclated the role offluhammad

20
Ragir Khan for all he had done to save the family prestige.

18. Ganda Sinah,op.cit., PP.,73,92.

19, 1bid. PP.73,92; H.P.. PP.221,222;
7.A., PP.32,33.

20. T.M., PP.203,35%6; Ganda S5ingh,op.cit., P.79;
Z.A., PP.32-35., he nas not stated the events

chroriclogicully. Beina a personal servant of
Nawab Sarfaraz Khan son of Nawab Muzaffar Khan, the

last Muslim ruler of Multan, he was oniy careful in
pralsing his master's ancestors while writing the
history.
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Within a couple of dav~, Mawab Abdul Aziz Khan was back
with Maharaja Kauia Mal, supported by the Sikh leader
Jassa Singh. W:~n the Lahore army reached neay Hultan,
Shakir Khan, the elidest son of ltawab Zahid Khan, who was
also very brave and amhbitious like Nawah Ahdul Aziz Khan
joined hands with Maharaja Kaura Mal against his father,
whereas his younger brother Shuja Khan rewained loyal to
his old father. A battle wes fought in 1749 (L1162 AHL),
'near the tomb of Shah Shams Sabhzwari' in which Shahnawaz
Khan and Mawab Abdul Aziz Khan were killié. Bue to his old
age Mawab Zahid Khan remained in the fort and did not 1ake
part in the battle., TIlaharaja Kaura Mal captured Hultan and
appointed Hawab Shakir Khan son of Hawab Zahid Khan as his

*
naib Mazim., Ahmad S%ah invaded Indio in 1751 (L1164 A H.),
Maharaja Kaura HMal was summoned to lLahore by Mir Muinul-Mulk.

Before leaving Multan he appointed Kheaja Ishaq Khan alias

Khwaja Hussain Khan as his naib Hazim. Khwaja Ishag Khan

21, .M., . i7.203.
e ——————
* Shakir Khan went to Labore and was appointed
naib Nazim of Hultan. See: Ibrat Hamah,
PrL206,207.
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i

ruled over Multan till its annexation by Ahmad Skat ir
1752 (1165 A.H.). Nawab Zghid Khan died on the third

' 22
day of his defeat in 1749 (1162 A.H.).

Nawab Zahid Khan was a very pious and a learned
ran. He always kept with him the Masnavi of Maulana Kum

and Kimia-i-Saadat of Imam Muhammad Ghazali. He had memorised

many verses of these books and used to quote them omn
appropriate occasions, He ruled Multan very effectively

for several years. He was very generous snd just and never
loved money. He had a soft corner for the Pathags. He
respected Muhammad Bagir Khan for nis timely help as stated

earlier and was indebted to him otherwise too. The two

22, T.Me. PP.203-205, c.f. Epigraphia, Indo-Moslemica
1927-.5) , ArcnanLUﬁLcaE Eurvey of India, Froi1-15.
Alf-ud-Din writes that when Shahnawaz Khan was killed,
Nawab Zahid Khan went to Seitpur, The correct vercion is
that Nawab Zahid Khan died in Multan on the third day
of that battle.

* He had paid Rs.12000/- without any surety, stating tns’
'it was a present from a brotzer'. He was snorh of tnls
alouldl wiaoeoo . iy 8,50000/- Lo Bhabnawan nlion

.M., ' L PP.AUL, 1S, RS0,
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families of Nawab Zahid Khan and Muhammad Bagir Khan
maintained very sincere relations with each other in spite
of the fact that Nawab Abdul Aziz Khan, the step-brother

of Muhammad Bagir Khan did not keep good relations with
Nawab 2ahid Khan and he always intrigued against him to
secure the Nizamat of Multan. Mawab Zahid Khan was a God-
fearing man. Once his officer reported that a certain
Pathan soldier was getting horse allowance regularly

without having a horse, he told him to be merciful to the
poor Pathan and ignored the complaint of his officig. When
he was delcated by Maharaja Kaura HMal and his rival Nawab
Abdul Aziz Khan became naib Nazim, he settled down in
Seitpur. To overcome this political set-back and to mitigate
his woe, he found diversions and1passed his time in enjoving
the plays performed by the gypsic:. The extent of his
frustration can be detgrmined from the fact that he would
say that he had wasted the whole of his life and it was Iin
these playful persuits that he was really enjoying life. It
was sheer escapism from the disappointment he had at the
hands of his rival MNawab Abdul Aziz Khan who had defeated
him and deprived him of the naib Nizamat of Hultan. He lodged
a cemplaint to Ahmad Shah who ignored him intentionally

25
because of his previous behaviour.On the whole Wawab Zahid Khan

23, I.M., . P.204, N UV IS S L S PO, SRR g

24- ij.d. P.EOQ. —L:‘n-_ ;\L “ '-.:‘ 05 ru.:
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was an able, pious. generous, just and popular ruler. He was
loved by all. He commanded great respect, specially in the

. 26
Mughal court. He left two sons, Shakir Khan and Shuja Khan,

Although the province of Multan, one of the
largest provinces of the Mughal Emplire, gradullay lost its
territory aft~r the death of Aurangzeb, it never lost its
political ‘importance. In the first Instance, Thatta and Sindh
were separated from lt, then Dipalpur was attached to Lahore
and finally Bhakkar was annexed wlth Dera)Ghazi Khan. At the
time of the invaslon of Ahmad Shah, it was the old parganah
of proper Multan only which was left to be known as the
province of Multan. It was further reduced when Maharaja
Kaura Mal handed over to Nawab Bahawal Khan I a large
tercvitory in the south known as Adam Wahan which was adjacent
to thz State Bahawalpur on the annual lease of only four
thousand rupegz. The territory consisting of Lodhran and
Mailsi including Lhe important towns of Kahror and Dunyapur
were taken over by MHawab Mubarak Khan of Bahawalpur in

23

1751 A.D.(1164 A.H.).Nawab Bahawal Khan I and his successors

25. Ibid. PP,202-204.

26. Ibid. P.204; 7.A., P.36.
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24

dug many canals and brought the land into cultivatior.
The rulers of Bahawalpur never returned the acquired

territory of Multan till it was forcibly taken away by

Maharaja Ranjit Singh.

29. ITbid.PP.54, 56,
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Multan under the Afghans (1752 - 1818 ) o

Political History

The First Phase

The promlsed revenues of Chahar Mahal in accordance
with the treaty of 1749 . having fallen Into arrcars,
Ahmad Shah sent Snkh Jiwan Mal a Khatrl of Kabul to Mir
Muinul Mulk in 1750 for the collection of the same.Mir
Mulnul Mulk blamed Nasir Khan who then held the charge of
Chahar Mahal for non-payment and could pay only nine lacs.
The result was that the Afghan King marched on Lahore in
1751 . 1. Ahmad Shah crossed Ravi and encamped In the Shalamar
garden. Mir Mulnul Mulk decided to give fight. He recalled
Maharaja Kaura Mal from Multan who Joined him alongwith hlis
strong contingcrt, Mir llninul Mulk also requested the Delhi
Darbar for help bhut the Delhi Wazir ¢id not send any force.
Ultimately a battle was fought on 5th March 1752 . .(1165 A.H.)
in which Haharaja Kaura Mal was killed and Mir Muinul Hulk
surrendereﬁ. Mir Muinul Mulk fearlessly appcarﬂd before the

Afghan King Ahmad Shah who asked him, 'What would you have

done to me, had I been captured by you' ? Mir Muinul Mulk boldly

1. T.H., 9.117; CGanda “ingh,op.cit,,PP.92,93,101,102;
WLLP. PP.75,167; Ji.P., T P.0R25 7.A.,
- I*.?7, Jdadunath Sariar, Fall of the Hughal fmpire,
vol.i., Calcutta, 1932, P /.2; Rudolf Hoernle & Herbert Star

A_History of India,Cuttack (Orissa), 1909, P.125;
Perev Sykes,op.cit., P.357,
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replied, 'l should have cut off your head and sent it to

my master-the Mughal Emperor'. Ahmad Shah asked again,

'Mow you have bheen defeated and you have surrendered,

what should I do to you' ? The vanquished Viceroy of

Lahore and Multan gave a very bold answer, 'if you are a
shopkeeper, sell me for a ransom, if you are a butcher,
kill me, but if you are a Badshah, then grant me your

yrace and pardon', The answer hlghly pleased the Afghan
King. He ecmbraced him and called him his son(Farzand Khan)
and honoured him with the title of Rustam-i-Hind. He also
bestowed upon him a robe of honour, an aigrette for the
crest, and the very turban he himself was wearing. In the
meantiime, he despatched Abdullah Khan to Kashmir who
conquered it soon. Ahmad Shah anncxed Lahore, Multan,Kashmir
and Sind: and sent Nalandar Beg to Delhi to secure

confirmation of the gains of his sword. The terrified

Emperor and his ministers at once agreed to the formal

2, T.M., PP.117,11S; Thrat Mamakh ’.210;

3. CGand. Sinok sp.cat., PPL11A-119; lbrat Namal.

PPLY 2,000,270 MLHLD PP.T6,78,168;U. 7
op.cit., vol.i.. PP .4, v 1n.p., P22, e2h;
Jadunatlh Sariat . up.cit,. P!.2ﬁ§T§h6; .5, ,

PP.74,75; Fl1lio anc¢ vawsor ,op.cit.. P.168; Percy Svkes,

op.cit., P.357;T A.5 TPPLo1,22.
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cession of Lahore, Multan, Kashmir and Sindh to the

Afghan King on Monday April 13, 1752 ° -.(9th of Jamad-us-
Sanl 1165 A.a.). Brfore leaving for Kandhar, the Afghan
King appointed Mir Mulnul Mulk as his Vitecroy of Lahore
and Multan and asked him to pay rupees one crore as war
Indemnity which was later on reduced to rupees fifty lacs.
Although the Lahore Viceroy was asked to look after the
administration of Multan but a real responsible Subedar

of Multan was also appolnted, who was directly answerable
to the Afghan Kin§. In splte of the fact that Khwaja
Ishagq Khan alias Khwaja Hussain Khan was there, and in

the beginning hls Subedarl was confirmed, but before
leaving for Kandhar Ahmad Shah appointed Ali Muhammad Khan
Khugani as his Subedar of Multan. He also appointed the

7
Khatri of Kabul Sukh Jiwan Mal as the Governor of Kashmir.

4, T.M., b,118; T.A.S.,. P.22; M.H.P.,
".168; Ganda Sinaqh,op.cit., P.124-126.

5. T.M., P.118: T.A.S5..0p.cit.,PP.22; Thrat 'lamah.
LS .
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Multan, where a large number o! Saddozai Afghans
(fellow-clansmen of Ahm. . Shab) were living had been a
strong-hnld of Lhe Pathans. During the naih Mizamatl of'
Nawab Zabit Whan, a large numhcer of Jagirs were distributed
among the Multani Saddozais. Since its annexation by the
Arghan King,lt became an autonomous Afghan terri!nory as 1t
stopped paying annual tribute to the tlughals., The “ubedar
of Multan was almost independent 1n his internal affairs
and he even by-passed his nominal Vlcero- Mir Huinul Hulk
In malntaining relations with Kandhar. The Saddozals
played a vital rote in the politics of Multan and ultimately
the vubedari of Multan became a privilege of ‘he Saddozais
of Multaz. The Afghan Kings were only intevested in the
anpual tribut. and they did not interfere in the internal
affairs of llult.n. The Subedar of !MMultan enjnycd absolute
powers s long as ' ‘s Afghan masirr was happy and was

satisfi~ with his behaviour. When civil war broke out in

4. H.S., CL895 Tasa Nawai Hoaral . P.774.

7. T.H, PPLLIA, 205, 20, Ganda  gng' . op.eil.,
PP, 1241262 M. H. 2, P16k o

8. TI.C.(.. P27y GLus P69y

Jadun.au Sarkaroon,ct L., U 244,
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Afghanistan amonqg the sons of Taimur Shah, the Subedar of
Multan stopped parying tribute regularly and & time camc when
Multan became . Independent Afaghan S“tate In the Sub-continent
till It was annexed by Maharaja Ranjit Singh in 1518 A.D.
Multan, since 1722 never paid its annual trlbute to
Delhi,'its Subedar  drew his real powers not from the

Delh{ Emperor but from the King of quhanistai'.Although

the Marathas and the Sikhs capturerd Multan, it remained
loyal "o Afghanistan and its independence was maintained

by the Afghan rulers. The Mughal rule had end~d in Multan

in 1752 and a Mew Afghan Rulc had taken its place

sirce its annexation by the Afghan King Ahmad Shah. The

New #usiim Rule lasted in Multan Lill its conquest by the
Sikh leader itaharaja ftanjit Singh in 1816 The HNew

Muslim Rule can rlqitly be called 'THE LAST PHALE OF

MUSLIM RULE IN HULTAU',

9. H.S., PP.84,85,
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Ali Muhammad Khan Khugani as Subedar ‘Governor)
of Multan ( 175» . 1767 )

Ahmad Shah appointed Alil Muhammad Khan Khugani
as the Subcdar of Muitan in 1752 : Ahmad Shah did not
interfere in the admipistratiorn of Multan because he was
only interested In thec annual tribute, éli Muhammad Khan
belonged to the Mohsinzal tribe of the Khvgani Afghani.
H.s ancestor, Malik Shahpal, migrated from Kandhar to
India during Akbar's reign. He alongwith his other
clansmen settled in Multan outside Bohar gate and Lohari
gate (outside the western walls of the city) and founded

2
Kiri Afghanan., Ali Muhammad Khan traced his geneology in

* %
his official stamp.Usman Khan, the father of All Muyhammad
Khan Khugani was a rich merc' U of Multan. He had been

running the troide of camels., He had two other sons, the

eldest was Ismail Khan and the youngest was Abdul Nabi Khan.

* Kivigani Afghans are also called Durrani as it is
evident frcm an o:iginal Farman of Ahmad Shah
addressed to Al Muhammad Khan., 1t is avail. '~
in Syed !'fuhammad Ramzan Shah Gardezi's library.

1. T.!M., P.214.

2. P.D.C.. ©.D., P.112; P.C., . PP.310,311;
Hukawm . =, np.cit., P.163.

* % Ali Muhammad Khan was son of Usman Khan who was
son nf Farooq Khan, son aof Siddique Khan;
T.H.. P.. 145 Yousaf Gardezi, op.cit.,P.60;

Arz-i-tultan, P.78.
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Alil Muhammad Khan was a man of exceptional ability. He
was very ambliltious. When Ahmad Shah became King of
Afghanistan, he wrote several letters to the Afghan
ruler informing him of the weaknesses of the Mughals. He
also wrote about the political affalirs in Multan. Thus
he maintained a close lialron with the Afghan King.During
the Nizamat of Mawab Zahid Khan,Usman Khan died leaving
a huge property. Ali Muhammad Khan was involve& in propetty
feud with his c'der brother Ismall Khan. Being a youngman,
he quarrell-d with him, injured him with his sword and ran
away from Multan. In the meantime, the Afghan King had
reached Peshawar. He joined his army, soon rose to a
prominent position and was included in his personal staF?.
Being a personal attendant of the monarch he pleased his
masler by sheer dint of his ability and leoyalty. After the
annexation of Multan in 1752 (1165 A.H.) Ahmad Shah

4

appointed him Subedar of Multan and he immediately took over

charge from Khwaja Ishaq Khan because he was already 'the

J
lease-holder of Dera Ghazi Khan'.He enjoyed full confidence

of his master. For all purposes he was an ahsolute ruler of

3. T.M.. PP.214,215.
4, JIbid., P.118; Hukam Chand,op.cit., P.163.

5. Ganda Singh,op.cit., P.126.
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Multan and was twice appolnted us Subedar. During his first
governorship of Multan, he trcated everybody with respect.
He took specla' care of the Saddozals In his dealings with
them. He used to pay visits to the palace of Nawab Shaklr
Khan, as well as Muihiammad Baqir Khan. Being the nominee

of Ahmad Shah he enjoyed the active co-operation of all the
Pathans of Multan. Mawab Shakir Khan who had been naib
Nazim of Hultan as well as the chief of the Pathans under
Yaharaja Kaura Mal remarked that they enjoyed their supremacy
during the Mughal rulezgiz it had now ceased because the
Pathans then referred thelr disputes to the court of the
Subedar of Hulnag .Previously their cases were declided by
their own Chief, s they were so rigid that they would
not forward their cases to the court of the Subedar. They
respected their Chief and their customary laws very much,
hence Lhe position of the Chief of the Pathans was very
strong. He was respected not only in the court of Subedar
but he also enjoyed a positon of esteem in the tlughal
Court. The Mughals never intcrfered in tribal affairs of

the Pathons, Thec annexation ¢: Multan by Ahmad Shah c¢reated

a sense of pride in the leadership of the Saddozai Chief

6. T.M., PP.205,206.
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who also belonyed to the Khizer Khels. Having realised
that none but an Afghan Chief All Muhammad Khan as the
nominee of the Afghan ruler was the Subedar of Multan,
Nawab Shakir Khan accepted his overlordship and remarked
that henceforth the Pathans of Multan would accept the
Afghan Subedar not only as the ruler of the province but
also as the chief of the Pathanz. This leadership of the
Pathans proved to be a source of strength for the 5S5addozals
and it was also a bone of contention between the Khugani
Subedar and the Saddozal Chilef. Ultimately the dual role
of the Saddozal Chief was recognised as the Chief of the
Pathans of Multan as well as their ruler. It also became

a hereditary title till the annexation of Multan by Maharaja
Ran}it Singh in 1818 °~ . Ali Muhammad Khan Khugani having
assumned charge o7 Multan, minted a coin at Multan in the
name of his master Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran, the founder
King of Afghanistan., This c¢oin is available in the Lahore
Museum. The inscription of 1165 A.H. on the coin minted at
Multan, confirms that Multan was arnexed and it became an
Afghan provincc in 1757 (1165 A.H.,). The following

6
inscription can be easily read:

— OL.-:L: U-@L L—_)‘ )l ;jj r:_u)-l O)' OS_m o‘f‘dL‘ d‘_>-\ ~ Q:'_:.: )-“_" )‘ S0 rj‘—} HECS) (,-':)-l
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The Hawab of Bahawalpur had provided facillties
to the agriculturists living in the south of Multan. The
land in the south of Multan thus became cultivable. It
attracted a large population and this territory fell under
the influence of the Nawabs of Bahawalpur. This situation
w:s not palatable to the new Subedar who was loyal to the
Afghan King. Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan Khugani who was not
only an able administrator but also a very ambitious Afghan,
On his arrival at Multan decrided to give fight to the
Nawab of Bahawalpur in order to eliminate his influence
from that areca. He requested the Afghan King, when he was
In Dera Ghazl ¥han on his way to Kandhar to send a strong
army angalnst MNawab Muhammad Mubarak: Khar, the Mawab of
Bahawalpur., Ahmad Shah before leavlng Dera Ghazi Khan fov»
Kandhar at once despotched a strong army under the command
of his General Sardar Jahan Khan Popalzail. Jan Nisar Khan,
Governor of Dera Ghazi Khan was also ordered to assist
him. Jan Nisar Khan happened to be a friend of Mawab
Mubarak Khan. He informed the MNMawab of Bahawalpur abont
the Afghan motives. When the Afghan army 'crossed the

Panjnad and encamped at Uch', the ruler of Bahawalpur

8. P.D.G., Il.D., P.45; White Head, op.cit.,
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‘retired to the fort of Mojgarh', sltuated at a distance
of about forty miles to the south-ecast of Bahawalpur which
was occunfed by the Afghan General. Ultimately the

*
Daudputras assembled 'at the town of Khalrpur' (Taml-wali)
leaving thelr ladles in the fort of Mojgarh. A battle was
fought 'at Khatlala, about two miles to Lhe west of the
town' (Khairpur) in which the Afghan army was put to fllght
and the victors pursued it to Lal Sohanra 20 mlles from
Bahawalpur city. The Bahawalpur clty 'was stilll In the
hands of Sardar Jahan Khan', Nawab Mubarak. Khan 'opened
negotlations for peace'. Sardar Jahan Khan accepted the

peace proposals forwardrd by the Mawab of Bahawalpur. After

concluding the treaty 'Sardar Jahan Khan crossed the Sutle]

at the Ferry of Fatehpur' »nd returncd to Multan 'for homeward

9
Journey',

Ahmad Shah and hls successors maintalned the
pollicy adopted by MNadir Shah in 1739 A.D. Sirhind was
declared as the border belwecen the Afghan Empire and the
Mughals and Bahawalpur served as the buffer State between
the two Empires. The Afghan Kings invaded it several times
but they never annexed it. The rulers of Bahawalpur proved

to be great diplomats. They pleased both the Afghans 4nd

* The Ruling family of the Bahawalpur State claiming

their descent from the Holy Prophet's uncle Hazrat Abbas.

2. Ganda Singh,op.cit.,PP.126,127; P.S.G.,B.S.,
P.55; Shahamat Ali, op.cit., PP.38,39.
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the Mughals. They maintained very good relations with the
Subedar of Multan and supported him during the Sikh
invasions. In casc of defeat, they always gave him shelter.
They also provided empluyment to the Pathans of Multan.

The Bahawalpur State was thus the second home for the Pathans
as well as the Subedar of Multan, Ali Muhammad Khan, the
Subedar of Multan knew that it was not the policy of the
Afcthan King to aainex Bahawalpur, hence he extended his
cooperation to the NDaudputras. He ncquiésccd In the extenslon
of thelr influence In the southern territory of Multan,
After a couple of years, he entered into a matrimonial
alllance with a Zamlndar of the Joya family of Bahawalnagar,
“hen Nawab Ali Mubammac Khan was killed in Hultan alongwith
his son by the order of Ahmad Shah in 1767 A.D.(118) A.H.),
his second wife Ehsan Bihi, belonging to the Joya tribe of
Bahawalnagar took shelter with her parents. As she was
pregnant, sh' gave birth to a son whose descendants are
still living in !'ruza Bonga Ehsan Pibil in "ahawalnpagar, a
village given to Ethsan Blbi by her father. At present almost
all the agricultrral land of tMauza Fhsan Bibi belongs to

the descendants of late Ali Muhammad Khan.Therec are no

10
descendants of this branch of Khugani Afghans in Multan.

10, P.D.G., M.D., P.117.
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Ali Muhammad Khan was a man of great qualities. He was not

only a good administrator but was also a rcformer. During
his first governorship, from 1752 . to 1758 A.D., he
did a lot for the welfare of his people, His rule was
sensible and popular. He was a great huilder. He rcbuilt
the rampart of the city. He constructed a very bheautiful
mosque in 1757 °~ . (1171 A%é.) in the hecort of the city,
which still exists and is wrongly known as Masjid Wali

Muhammad Khan. It is a fine specimen of cnamelled tiles

of Multan. It was converted into a Court during the Sikh

period, where Granth Sahib was placed for deciding the cases.

12
It was restored to the Muslims during the British period.

On- the wall of the mosque the following inscription

still exists:
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Ali Muhammad Khan emulating the Daudputras of Bahawalpur

State, dug many canals and one of them is wrongly known as

1. T.M., P.215; Hukam Chand,op.cit., P.43J.
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Nala Wali Muhammad Khan. It played a vital role in the
economy of the agrarlan community of Multan and gave
prosperity to thr people. Ahmad Shah fixed !'7 lacs of
rupees as the annual tribute which was paid very reqularly
by Nawab Ali Muham..ad Khig. The Afghan King malntained
his Saddozai relative living in Multan with an annual
pension of rupces one lac from the Multan's exchequi:.
The Governor of Multan ralsed another onerlac of rupees
annually for his miscellaneous expenditui;. Due to pcace
and prosperily prevailing in Multan during the relgn of
Ahmad Shah, the Governor accumulated so much wealth that
he offered one crore of rupees to the Afghan King If he
and his son Mustafa Khan were pardoned and their lives

16
spared. Ahmad Shah invaded India fourth time in autumn

af 1756  :.{(Safar 1170 A.H.) when he returned to Kandhar
In April 1757 °  .(l1171A.H.) he appointed his son Prince
Timur Shah as Vi.croy of his In:dian provinces - the Panjab,
12, T.M., P.286.

13- Ibldo .L-;_fl}l)o Om: s )’)\’ al ')"f )"‘5 U.‘ h-‘-‘":.:r
L". i » -..r. .- - ] .o
1 Ibid. P.215 motoe e Ll e AlS 2o
15. Ibid. P.2'", (V1 e )0){\_;

leé. Ibid. P.215.
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17 %
Kashmir, Multan and Sindh. During his absence, Adina Beg

invited the Marathas, Prince Timur Shah alongwith Sardar
Jahan Khan escaped to Kabul. The Marathas occupied Lahore
in April 1758 . Raghunath Rao, the brother of Peshwa
and the chief of the expedition, despatched 'Ramji and
Shamji to Multii'. The Maratha hords defeated Mawab Ali
Muhammad Kban and ¢ Lured Multan in May 1758 19. Nawab
All Muhammad Khan after his defeat crossed Sutle] and
sought refuge in Khalrpur. The Marathas plundercd Multan
indiscriminately. In the meaniime, Saleh ng got'the Subedari
of Multan after paying some money to the Pandits of the
Marathas at Lah0§§i A Maratha army of six thousand was

stationed at Multan to protect the new Governor. During

their rule which lasted more than a year, 'the Saddozais

17, Ibid. PP,121,122,

* Adina Beg: A man of low birth but dve to hard work
rose to a prominent posit:on and became Governor of
the Panjab in April 1758 under HMaratha Suzerainty.
See: M.H.P., PP.,5¢-102.

18, Ganda Sinal .op.cit.. M,214.

19, T.M., P.122; Siv-r, . P.377.

** Saleh Beg: A man of unknown o.igin.

20, T M., ?.122; Ganda Singh,op.cit., P.221.,
writers the name of the Maratha Governor of Hultan
"Saleh Khan'; also See: Batra. , P.525 H.P.,

’ P.231., writes that the Marathas appointed
"Lwamaji Pao' 8s th. fovernor of Multan. Jt might
be true in the heginning ut later on Saleh Beg was
appointed Gove, 1nr; See: H.S., P.127.,

wirites ’'Salik ikoan'.
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faced great hardships'. 1In the beginning they resisted
but ultimately they sent a delegation of thelir elders
to the Marathas, under their able and brave chief Nawab
Shakir Khiﬁ son of Nawab Zahid Khan and a truce was

concluded.

Asong the llultani Pathans, the descendants of
Nawab Zahid Khan and the descendants of Sultan Hayat Khan
Khudakka had pliyed an important role in the politics of
Multan. Nawab 'l1i Muhammad Khan was the only non-Saddozal
ruler of Multan who also played a vital role in the
~olltics of Multan., On his assumption of power as the
Subedar of tultan in 1752 (1165 A.H.) Mawab Ali Muhammad
Khan used to pay visits to Muhammad Bagir KKEK on several
occasions in order to pleise his master, the Afghan King.
He did not know that his master had grave apprehensions
against his own kith and kin in Multan. The moment the

Afghan King car~ to know about his visits, hc at once

21. Ganda Singh,op.cit.. P.226; Jadunath Sarkar,
Fall of the Nughal ~ire, vol.ii.,Calcutta, 1924, P.80.

22. T.M., . PLo06.

%% Muhammod Haqgir Khan Khudakka was chicf of Khudakka
Khizer Khcl branch of Saddozais, he was respected
very much by Ahmad Shah, when he met the Afghan King
in 1750 (1*43 A.H.). He gave him-a Jaqir in
Dera Ghazi Khan and used the word uncle for him
because he was cousin of his father.
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23
instructed his Governor to be careful amil keep an eye on

the activities of Muhammad Bagir Khan Khudakka as well as
other members of the khudakka family because they were
the only rival claimants to the Afghan leadership. The
Afghan King pald them full respect but would never tolerate
their progress in the politics of Multan, which could be
dangerous to his throne. He was perhaps conscious of the
fact that in spite of his generous distribution of wealth
among the Afghans, they accepted him as their chief only
In the absence of a direct descendant of Sultan Khudakka.
Morcover Muhammad Khan, the ex-ruler of Hirat, son of
Sultan Abdullah Khan (whose mother was the real sister

of Zaman IKhan father of Ahmad Shah) could be the possible
candidate. He was living in Multan. He had already
aporoached the Mughal court and Muhammad Shah the Mughal
Emperor had granted him Haft Hazari mansab and Jagirs in
Multan, Shahjahanabad and Lahore in 1740 (1152 A?ﬁ.).
During Ahmad Shah's first lIndian invasion, Muhammad Khan
was with the Mughals and had fought against him in

1748 . (1161 A.H.). The Mughal Crown Prince Ahmad had

23, bid | op.cit., pp.358,359.
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also sent him as an envoy to the Afghan King bcfore the
battle of ilan pur. The Afghan King had met him in

Sirhind in 1748 A?g., bafore the battlce of Manupur. The
Afghan King o instructed him that bhe should never think
~f coming to his ancestral land. He offered him evcrything
but in tiultan.The Afghan King was very careful in his
dealings with the Saddozais of tultan. When Ahmad Shah
annexed Chahar MHahal in 1749 A.D.(1162 A.H.), the tiughal
Emperor Ahmad Shab consulted Muhammad Khan Khudakka
reaardi g Lht . Afghan actlon and 1t was decided that he
would go to Kandhar as an Ambassador of the Mughal Cmpecror
apparently}ionotlate some undcrstanding between the two
rilers hut aclually he would kill the Afrghan Kii; and
declare himself as th. chief of the Afghans as and when

he found a suitable opportunity. lt was also settled that
he would accept the sovereingnty of the flughals and would
strik.: coins ~d read Khutlha in their naﬁz. Attock was
decided to be the boundary Jine between the two kingdohg.
Huhammad Khan pror -eded to Kandhar via {"wltan and Dcra

Ghazi Khan. On his arvival at Multan, he discloscd his

plan to his mother who opposed his visit to Kandhar,

25. Thid. P.1l6., writes that Muhammad Khan fought on
the side of Mudghals in the hattle of Manupur in
Harch 1745
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As he was firm in his decision to kill his cousin, she
kept qulet, When '+ reachnd Dera Ghazl Khan, its Governg;
Jan Nlsar Khan at once informed his master of his desiqns.
In the meantime, he rcached Sewi (Sibbi) alongwith a sma'l
contlngent labelled as his personal staff. The Afghan

King had already directcd his Governor of Sewi (Sihbl) not
to allow him to cross the bordgg. This resultecd into a
flghting in which Muhummad khan Khadakka,alongwith his
third son Asghar Khan was killed in 1750 (1163 A?i.).
The fear of a possible coup in f. vour of the direct descendant
of Sultan Hayat jhan had always been lurking in the mind
of the Afghan King and hence he had appointed Mawab Ali
FMuhammad Khan a non-5addozai as his “overnor of HMultan in
1752 (1165 A.H.). He 'ad i ¢n on his pecrsnnal staff
and was very loyal to him. The Afghan King could nnt

also trust iawab Zahid Xhan Kban Khel or even his cldest
son Mawab ~hakir Khan In such circumstances, hc instructed
his Governor cf llultan to be watchful of their activities

but at the same timc, he wanted that his relatives be

properly respected.

28. ibid. P.433,
29, Ibid. P.434,
30. Ibid. P.434,

31, Ibid. P.435, R UUUE O T Y I VI § SR S
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Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan was a very clever man.
In the beginning, he maintained cordial relations with
the Khudakkas and the Khan Khels but as he came to know
that his master did not like it, he started lgnoring them
during his second governorship. During the short interlude
of Marath. rule over Multan, Saleh Beg, the Governor of
Multan expected Muhammad Baqir Khan Khudakka who was 79
at that time, to visit his court. Muhammad Baqglir Khan
Khudakka had never attended the court of the Subedar of
Multan, nor did he ever send hls son. It was misconstrued
as insolence on his part and he was imposed a fine of
ons lac of rupces which was later on reduced to thirty
thousand. The Governor wanted his physical attendance
In his court and only in that case the amount could be
remitted. Muhammad Baqir Khan was approached by Mawab
“hakir Khan and other elders of the Multani Pathans with
a request to visit the court of the Governor or at lteast
send his son. He remained firm and instcad of qgoing there,
immediater]ly sent the fine of rupces thirty thousand to
the Governzi. He also wrote a detailed letter to Ahmad Shah

requesting him to free them from the clutches of the Marathas.

32. Ibid. P.359. Spar 02 ol :.«\_,9- )\ \_v_‘-"“i;' of r"k') LP'"‘
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Ahmad Shah also recelved several letters from other
Saddozals., Mawab Al lthammad Khan, his own Governor of
Multan {(now a ref.gyee At Khairpur}) also Informed him of
the hardships the Saddozais were facing at the hands of
the Marathas and requested his intervcntlgi. The Afghan
King therefore Invaded India onc; again in October 1759
(S5afar 1173 A.H.). When the larathas heard of hls arrlval,

they immediately le¢ft Multan for Lahore .nd from there

“wrriedlyrushed to Delhi. As soon as Mawab All Muhammad Khan

came to- know that the news of hils master's arrival had

4

'-dreated;féar among the Marathas and they had deserted Multan

leaving Saleh Beg alone, he at once collected a few hundred

'soldiers and marched on Multan. After defeating Saleh Beg,

15
=1

he became the master of Multan once again in winter 1759
Muhammad Baglr Khan saw with his own eyes the crushing

defeat of Saleh Becg who had impos:d fine oo him. Mawab All
Muhammad Khan conveyed the news of the fall of Multan to

the Afghan Kingq who had already arrived in Lahore. Ahmad Shah
appreclated his role and relnstated him., When the Arghan

King was in Labore, 'his informer told him that Muhammad Shah

Khan son of Muhammad Baglr Khan was very popuolar among The

32, Ibld. P.1722.

WM. PUDLGL, DD, .. P.50.

» Sen volia-.
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Pathans and was known as Badshah because of his bravery

and gencrosity'. The Afghan King enquired about his
desiggz. In spite of the fact that a satisfactory report
was furnished, {t did not wash away his suspicions. When
the Afghan King left for Sirhind, 'Huhammad Shah Khan

was found dead in mysterious circumstances while he was

on his hunting trip on l4th February 1760 . (25th Jamadi-u~n
Sani 1173 A?S.). Muhammad Bagir Khan Khudakka, an old man
of 80 could not survive this shock and died on 0thJuly

1760 . . (160Zilhijj 1173 A?;.). The Afghan King always
remain d in touch with the affairs in Multan. After
defeating the Marathas in the battle of Panipat, he arrived
at Lahore on April 26, 1761 v« He appointed Nawab
Surbuland Khan as the Governor of Dera Ghazi thg as a
punishment for his failure to pay his annual tribute of

the Jullundar province. In the same way Mawab Ali Miohammad
Kh a was found in arrears of the annual tribute from Multan
because it remained under the Maratha domination since

May 1758 A.D. hence Ahmad Shah appointed Yaqut Khan a

39
euinuch as Governor of Multan before his departure for

35. T.'1., P.360. ol o.:\_w..'l.:_"- aslic L) o‘_,f-JL( o rl.f
36. lb; -!. PP.J.)U,R.Gl. Q__,C-‘v' L‘) /'J G \L:.u).:_:n u;w.“_"—)" Q‘)J )‘)
37. lbid. PP.360,361. SR RUAPS B L

(3o ) f).g
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Afahanistan In May 1761 . .. Yaqut Khan was incompetent
and failed to administer the province. Then the Afghan 40
King deputed Allah Yar Khan Badozai in 1761 ~ {1174 A.H.}

to supervise the affalrs of the provincc but ho also failed.,
In the meantine, Mawab All Muhammad Khan sent a portion

of the filxed annual tribute to Kandhar with an undertaking

to be loyal and regular in the payment of the annual tribute,
hence Ali Muhammad Khan was relnstated as the Covernor of

bl
Multan Iin the same year., Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan durling his

38. lIbjd. PP,271,272;

. The corrcct version is
that the recal! name of Sarbuland Khan was Jiwan Khan
and he was the grandson of Sohbat Khan son of Ismalil
Khan son of Nahadur Khan son of Malik Saddu, Mir-i-
Afghana. Hi:. father was cousin of Zaman Khan
father of Ahmad Shah,

When Ahmad Shah conquered India and its cap-ital

wus occupicd, he bestowed upon him the title of Mawab
Sarbuland Khan and appointed him as the Covernor of
Jallundur for a fixed trlibute of runees Liirty lacs.
Nawab Sarbul iad Khan was a very gecnorous man to a
fault. He,therefore, could not pay in time the fixed
tribute to the Afghan King, hence was dismissed but
he was acain appointed as the Covernor of Kashmir.
Cue to non-payment of fixed Ilribute, he was again
dismisscd but later on appointed as the Covernor of
Dvrra Gharsi Khan. He was lastly Governor of Rohtas

in 1744, A.D. when he was captured by the Sikhs

(T.1m.5PP.270-274); also See: Ibrat lamah, PP.237.
—
39, T.t., - TL215; ELH.M, , P.9Y; Epiyraphia,

Tndo-losiemica,
PP.38,39.

P.6; P.CT™. 4805 7.A7, ,
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second governorship constructed the boundary walls of

"the Tomb of Hazrat Bahaud-din Zakaria in 1761 (1174 ALHL),

soon after he had rec-eived his confirmation orders as the

Subedar of Multn from the Afghan King. He fixed an 1nscriptio:
written on the enamelled tiles, on the western gate-way,
which 1s still there. Ahmad Shah paid great respect to the

Mukhdums of the shrinc: rf Hazrat Bahaud-din Zakarla, Hazrat
Syed Muhammad Yousuf Shah Gardezl
In order to please his master the grain meant for the

shrine of Hazrat Bahaud-din Zakaria was exempted from octrol

and he wrote it on the gate-way of the shrine.

40. P.D.G., M.D., P.50; Yousuf Gardezl, op.cit.,
41 T.M,, P.215; E.H.M., P.29. Epigraphia,
ndo-Mosigmica, . .6,
OU et p g S0 Olpe a0 e o
b jor g dd s s Ty T
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During his second governorship an incident took
place which confirmed the fear of Ahmad Shah about the
Khudakkas. Neing the genuine chlief of the Afghans, they
had the feelings that their right to rule had been usurped
by others in Afghanistan as well as in Multan. Anwar Khan
son of Muhammad Saeed Khan son of Muhammad Bagir Khan
Khudakka Saddozal was an ambitious young man with such
ideas. Once when Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan was not in Multan,
Anwar Khan alongwith a few of his friends attacked the
Multan Fort, captured it in 1762 (1176 A?ﬁ.)and assumed
power as the Subedar. The moment, Mawab A)li Muhammad Khan

heard thls news, he at once rushed to Multan alongwith his

contingent. He attacked the Multan fort and recaptured it.

** It is evident from several original Faramins of
Ahmad Shah.

The Afqghan King had 'granted a fixed amount of
Rs.. . »0/- annually for the malntenance of the
shrine of Hazrat Syed Muhammad Yousuf Shah
Gardez1l and for the family of Mukhdum Syed

Muhammad Raju Shah Gardezi’. It is evident from
a Royal Farman which was issued on 1lé6th
Decembor 1753 (18th Safar 1167 A.H.) and is

available inthe library of 5yed Muhammad
Ramzan Shah Gardezi.
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Anwar Khan with his friends was killed while defending
the Fort. After this event Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan
never left the Multan Fort undefended. He ruled Multan
very successfully till he was replaced by Mawab Shuja

43
Khan Khan Khel Saddozai in 1763 (early 1177 A.H.).

42, T.M., P.362.

43, fid . P.211.
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NMawab Shuja Khan Khan Khel Saddozai as Suhedar(Governor)
of Multan (1763 = 6b .3 1177 A.H.),(Jdune 767 - June 70}

Nawab Shu}a Khan Khan Khel Saddozal was the
second son of Nawab Zahid Khan, After the death of his
elder brother Mawab Shakir Khan, he became the leading
man of his tribe, Hassan Khan the eldest son of Nawab
Shakir Khan was however declared as the chief of his
tribe but he was only a titular hecad. Shuja Khan gave his
own house to hils nephew Hassan Khan and occupied Shish
Mahai forclbly which was the scat of the chief of the
tribe. Hassan Khan dled after a few years and Shuja Khan-
became the chief of the Khan Khel trlbe. He was a very
capable man. l'e purchased a huge propert§ within a very
short peiﬁod and attracted the Saddozais of Multan
becauseZhis ability and generosit;. As he was very
ambitious to become th+ Subedar of Multan, he had

4

reqgular corrcspondence with his materral-uncle Fatchullah Khan

*
Saddozai who was a very trusted officer of Ahmad Shah.

1. T.M., P.206.

2. Ibid. P..10.

p.2lo.
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Mawab Ali Muhammad Khan, durinqg his second
governorship had imposed tax on the grain market as well
as on several other articles. He also collected revenue
“rom the tax-exempted agricultural lands of Mukhdum
Muhammad Raju Cardezf. Ali Muhammad Khan,therefore, became
unpopular due to his greedy nature. He also ignored the
Saddozais of Multan, rather he tried to reduce their
influence. Even his subordinates were inconsideratn to
thei, hence they lodged complaints to the Afghan King.
Ultimately he was dlsmissed and Nawab Shuja Khan was
appointed as the Subedar of Multan through the good offices
of Fatehullah Khan “addozai in 1763 V. .(1177 A.g.).

Abmad Shah was always very careful in handling the

Saddozals of Multan. When he annexed Multan ln 1752

x Fatehullah. Khan was son of Haroon Khan son of
Yousuf Khan son of Yagoob Khan son of Musa Khan
Kamran Khel Saddozai. He commanded ¢great respect in
the court of Ahmad Shah. He was a source of strength
for 'ie Saddo:ois. During the reign of Timur Shah,
whio Ahdul Khalig Khan revgted, Fatehul!lah Khan
supported the Kina. After the success,Jimur Shah
appolnted him as his Wazir with the title of

Wafadar Khan. He died in 1788 (1203 A.H.);T.1.,
op.cit., PP.170-172; also Seec: D.Z. . ,P.234,
¢ When the Afuhan ing was informed, he 'ssued a
Farman in which he ordered the governr =t officials
in Multan not to collect the revenue tax. This
Farman was issued in August 1762 . .(Huharamul Haram 1176

and is available in the library of Uved Muhammad
Ramzan Shah Gardezi.
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he had appointed a non-Saddozail Subedar, who enjoyed his
confidence for a long perlod. When the Afghan King decided
to remove Mawab Al tt hammad Khan who had stopped paying
due respect to Lhe Saddozais, the Afghan King appointed a
Khan Khel Saddozai as the Subedar of Multan in order to
enhance and restore the respect of the Saddozais in the
eyes of the people. The Afghan King did not like to

appoint anybody from the older branch of the Khizer Khel,
i.e. Khudakkas as the Subedar of Multan, because of the
known reason. He knew that the Khudakkas and the Khan Khels
had not maintained cordial relations between themselves
after the death of Nawab Shakir Khan, becouse the Khudakka
chief Muhammad Sharif Khan son of Minhammad Bagir Khan had
refused to place the turban of chieftainship on the head

of Shuja Khan, rather he had supported the cause of

Hasesan Khan son of MNawab Shakir Khar. When Shuja Khan
forcib!* occupied Shish Mahal,Hassan. Khan lodged a complaint
against his uncle and Muhammad Sharif Khan supported him.
Such things were reported to t"e Afghan King and he was
convinced that both of these branches of the Saddozai tribe

did not maintain good relations. Having thus been convinced
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of Lhe rivalry between the two families and of Shuja Khan's
loyalty, he appointed him the Subedar of !Multan, with the titl:
of Nawab. Nawab Shuja Khan conveyed his appointment as
Subedar to Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan who rrtreated to Khairpur
Tamewalf. Nawab Shuja Khan took over Multan without any
rcsistence. As a result of this change many leading Afghans
shifted to Khairpur alongwith Mawab Ali Muhammad Khan,

Jamadar Azim Khan Malezaz, a handsome, brave young chief of

Malezal tribc .iso left Multan and went to Khairpur alongwith

nis strong contingent.

Mawab Shuja Khan was brave, ambitious and a very
hard task master.Re was a very good administrator. He 'had
already purchased one-fourth of the area of Multan8 before
assuming charqge as fhe Subedar of Multan. He had alrendy
proved himself a capable administrator in looking after his
huge property. He was a great builder. He construcloed new
huildings in the Shish Mahal. He founded the town of
Shujaabad and built forts at Shujaabad and Sikandarabad.
Under his able quidance his daughter Khan Ribi huilt the
forted rown of XKhangarh and his son Ghazanfar Khan, the

9
fort and town ol Ghaezanfargarh. Due to his harsh attitude,

7. Ibid.P.211.

8. Ibid.P.210.

9. 1hid.lP.210 2.4 pqz
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the people startéd leaving Multan and migrated to
Bahawalpur. !is behaviour with the Afghans was also zgry
harsh, They secretly invited Mawab Ali Muhammad Khan.
Mawab Ali Muhammad Khan with the help of Jamadar Azim Khan
Malezai marched on Multan with a small but seclected
contingent of six hundred horscmen}l Mawab Shuja Khan
stopped him gutside Multan with a force of two thousand
and five hundred horsemei? A battle was fought in early 1764
(1177 A.H.). Shuja Khan fought very bravely, but was
defe;ted and his army ran away. While escaping he was
attacKed by Ghulam Mustafa Khan son: of Nawab Ali Muhammad
khah without knowing who he was. It was his good fortune
that he was wearing the coat of mail which saved him. In
the meantime, a soldier disclosed his identity. MNawab
Shuja Khan was caught and was brought to Multan where he
was imprisoned in the Fort? His rule lasted only for six
months, HNawab Ali Muhammad Khan won the bat;ie and after

occupying Multan confiscated all his property. The Saddozals

were humiliated and the people laughed at them. The

10. T.M., P21,
11.  Ibid.P.211,

12.  1bid.P.211

13.  Ibid.lR211,212.

14,  Ibid.P.212
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agricultural lands (Jagirs) of all the supporters of Nawab
Shuja Khan werc confiscated. The Saddozais wrote several
letters to Ahmad Shah, stating the affairs in Multan. During
this perliod, the Sikhs had created havoc all over the Panjab
and ultimately they brought Lahore under their control in

15
February 1764

After occupying Lahore, the Sikhs'marched to the
south-west for over two hundred and fifty miles, crossing
the Indus and penotrating into the Derig' under thelir
‘Commanders 'Sardar lart Singh Bhanqi and his sons, Jhanda
Singh and Ganda 5ingh’' alongwith Hira Singh. These infidels
dest:oye: everything, plundered and killed the people
mercile-sly, sct the houses of the Muslims on fire and
demolished the mosquéz. Ultimately, under the command of
Jhanda “ingh and Cs.da Singh, they appeared before Multan

18
on Itlarch 1764 (12%hRamzan 1178 A.Il.).

Nawab AJi Muhammad Khan, the Subedar of Multan
had a. nounced throuch the beat of drum that the Sikhs were
advancing towards Multan, hence everybody was asked to

enter into the walled city alongwith his valuable belongings.

15. . Ganda Sinqgh, op.cit., P.29%%4,
l6. IL:d. P,296.
17, MNur (tuhammad, Jang MamalPersian HS),Amritsar,1939.,PP.38-

18, T.M., PP.365,366.
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He closed the gates of the fort and the city. All the
people living outside except the Saddozais entered the
city. The Khan Khel Saddozals went to Shujaabad fort but
the Khudakka Saddozals thought that lawab All Muhammad Khan
was playing a trick with them because of his enmity. He
had already imprlsoned Nawab Shuja Khan and now he wanted
to grab their wealth. Muhammad Sharif Khan son of Muhammad
Baglir Khan, the Khudakka Chief, therefore, decided not to
leave his Kii?. The Xhvtakka Saddozais did not trust the
Subedar. In the meantime, the Sikhs under their leader
Jhanda S.ngh reached Multan and went straight to the Kirl
Sultan Hayat Khan as if they had already been informgg of
the treasure of the Khudakkas worth 50 lacg of rupees.
tuhammad Sharif Khan closed the gates of his Kiri and
declded to glve fight to the Sikhs. He alongwith hls relatives

and the loyal servants numbering a few hundred resisted till

cvening but he could not stand before the Sikh army. All the

19. 1lbid. P.366.

20. Ibid. P.366.

* The Khudakka Treasure was well known +sincc the days of
Sultan llavat Khon and the mode of their action proved
that Ali " -hammad Khan informed them and he did so in
order to save his own wealth. This view is confirmed
by the Tazkirat-ul-Muluk and is alsc¢ endorsed by the
Khudakkas; Sce:T.H., PP,367,368.
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realatives of Muhammad Sharif Xhan including three sons of

the late Nawab Abdul Aziz Khan, one son of Ali Yar Khan

son of Sultan Abdullah Khan, Salabat Khan son of Ashraf Khan
Haudud Khel, a cousin of Muhammad Shacif Khan and Ahmad Khan
son of Abdullah Khan Bahadur Khel including seyeral other
Afghans and loval scrvants laid down their livii but did not
~urrender to the infidels. HMuhammad Sharif Khan having received
18 wounds fell unconscjnii and was discovered fyom the dead
bodies. He was taken prisoner alongwith his sons Pir Muhammad
Khan and Din Muhammad Khii. Azim Yar Khan son of late Nawab
Abdul Aziz Khan was also taken prisoner. Their lives were
ultimately sparcd because they were close relatives of the
Afghan King. Huhammad Sharif Khan was accorded a good
treatment because he was the cousin of Ahmad Shah. When the

Sikhs entecred the Kiri Sultan Hayat Khan, the ladies of the

Khiudakka family ranfaway and entered the cily bare-footed and

24
barc-" ued - saved thelir lives and honour. During this
* our MHuhammad, tho celebrated author of Jung-Hamah gives
the dctails of this ¢ .aign. He writes that "The Dons
(Sikhs) have brought ..mensec booty from there. Hy rind

refuses (Lo de:cribe)what the Dogs did there. 0 faithful
ones lsince the days of the auspicious-natured Adam none
remembers lo have heard of such miseries inflicted anywherc
except in lHultan" ; H.H.P., P.197.

21, Ibid. PP.366,367.

22. Ihid., P.367.

23, Ibid., P.368.
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attack on the Khudakkas, Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan, the
powerful Subedar_qf Multan did not help them and remained

a silent spcctatb:, The Sikhs lnnted the Kiri and latcr on
set It on fire. Tiiey plundered the trcasure of the

Khudakka famlly worth 50 lacs which included gold dust,
diamonds, pearls and jcwellis. After three days, the Sikhs
went back., During thelr invasion they did not attack the
fort or the city. They remalned busy in collecting the
valuables from the Kiri Sultan Hayat Khan and left nothing
but ashes. The ladies of the Khudakka family occupled the
house of thcelr late ioyal servant Waloo Miz, the father of
Maharaja Kaura Mal, inside the city till the release of
tluhammad harif Kham,., He was not released for three years and
remained a prisoner with the Sikh chief. When Ahma:! Shah
came to know of the plight of the !(hudakkas, he instructed
the Subedar of Multan to pay ransom and get Huhammad Sharlif
Khan and others released. On the approach of the representative
of the Subedar of Multan, 'he Sikh chief, released everybody
on ransom except Muhammad Sharif Khan with the pretext t7 it

a cousin of the Afghan King should remain with them as a

28
hostage in tokenlof their victory. After three years when

24, T.M., op.cit., PP.367,3685.
25. 1Ibid. P.366.
26. 1bid. P.36S.
27. Ibid. P.s69.

28. TIbid. P.368.
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the Sikh c¢iief died, his widow demanded twelve thousand
supees as ransor. which was immediately pai to her and
Muhammad Sharif Khan was relcased. He came o Multan and

resettled his family in the old devastated Kiri after 1its

repairs. Hc went to Kandhar where he met Ahmad Shah in
29
1770 (1184 A.H.) and told him the whole story. The

Afghan IL.ng who was on his death bed welcomed him and
s>mpathic~d with him. He granted him the Jagirs in Dera
Ghazi Khan and Multan alongwith twelve thousand rupees in

30
cash.

After the Sikh invasion of Multan, Nawab Ali
Huhammad Khan was approached by Bihi Khan Khur the daughter

of Mawab Abid Khan and the sister «f "awab Zahid Khan with

31
Lhe request to release her nephew Nowabh Shuja Khan. In
order to nacify the Saddozais, ftl:e: Subadar, at once released
Shuja Khan. He remained in the Multan fort as prisoner for

six months :nd during that period he did not cut the nails
of his fingers nor did he trim his head and beard. After his
release, hc cut the nails, trimmed his head and beard and sent

M 32
it to the Afqghan King alongwith a letter of Bibi Khan Khur.

29. Ibid. PP.369,371.

30. Ibid. P.371.

31. TIbid. P.212.
x* Khan Khur: Her real name was Khadija.

oh ¢!

37, Ibid. P.213; Yousuf GardeziJ*P.43.



~124-

His maternal uncle Fatehullah Khan Saddozai also told about
the atrocities of the Sikhs to the Af«han King. When the
Sikhs had taken away Muhammad Sharif Khan as prisoner,

Abdul Rahim Khan son of Muhammad Khan (a cousin of Ahmad Shah)
son of Sultan Abdullah Khan had also informed Lhe Afghan
King of the atrocities of the Sikhs. He wrote that the old
enmity was between the males of the two branches of Khizer
Khel Saddozais (Sultan Abdullah Khan had killed Zaman Khan)
but the ladles were not invole;. He further reprcscnted
that the Subhedar Ali Muhammad Khan in spite of a strong
force at hls disposal extended no help to them. Flushed as
he was with thce victory at Panipat, the Afghan King took the
harrowing tale of the Sikh atroclties at Multan as a great
affront. He, thercfore, wrote to hils Lieutenant Mir Naseer
iKhan Baluch, the Khan of Kalat to postpone his pilgrimage to
Mecca and join hands with him to crush the infidels, which

34
the Khan of Kalat aarced.

The Afghan King marched from Afghanistan In the
month of October 1764 A.D. and simultaneously the Baluch
Chief started from Baluchistan. Ahmad Shah was encamped at
Eminabad when the Baluch Chief joined him 'at the head of

35
twelve thousand Baoluchis'., The main object was to crush the

33, T.H., PP.213,214.

34, Jang Mamah, PP.38-44,

35. Ganda Sinah.,ep cit., P,297; .l.H.P., P20,
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Sikh infidels who had devastated not only ‘he Panjab but

also the Derajats and Mult:g. The Afghan i.ing, with thqhelp of
Mir Nasecr Khan Baluch defeated the Sikhs everywhere and for
tie time being they ran to the mountains. e was so busy in
his campafgn against the Sikhs that he could not pay attention
to Mult.in, When he started for his home-ward journey in

April 1765 ., he granted Mir Naseer Khan Baluch 'the
territory of Quetta at his reqguest and also offerecd him the
nelighbouring territories of Derajat,Multan and 3Jhang, which

he respectfully declined to accept for fear of' lnvolvement
with 'the SikaZ!. In the meantlme, Mawab Ali Muhammad Khan
reached Pakpattan and paid him the revcnues due from Multan.
He also apologised for his misdeed and hclplessness before
the Sikh hordes. He assisted his master in the transportatlion
of the immense booty to Afghanistan. The Afghan King unce
again conferred upon him the Subedarfi of Multan because he

could sce in him the only person who could hold Multan against

the Sikhs. Mawah Ali Muhammad Khan ruled over Multan gloriously

Nawal Shuja Khan had settled down at Shujabad.
The indificrence of the Subedar of Multan had heen reported

to the Afghan King but as he was busy with his internal affair:

'during thec vear 1765 . and carly 17¢4 .'y he, 'cauld not
38

find time to attend to :..jab and Multan'.Ultimately he

36. Janc Mamah, PP,38-44,

37. HM.H.P., #.217; Ganda Singh.op.cit., P.307.
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decided to punl.h Nawah Ali Muhammad Khan. During his

eighth invasion in the autuwn of 1765 . . he lefu for India
39
and 'crossed the Indus at Attock early in Dccember'. Flrst of

all, he punisha:d the Slkhs and then decclded to settle the
affairs of Multan. On hi- home-ward journcy, he stopprnd

'at Machhlwara on the hank of the Sutlc] on 23rd of March
40
1767  +.and stayed there for a month and a half . After
41

organislng 'various expeditious In pursuit of the Sikhs',
he continued his journey towar«s Multanfin the last week of
May 1767 . Mawab Ali Muhammad Khan recei -« his master

fy 7
near Pakpattan nd accompanied him to Multan. In carly June

1767 .., the Afghan King crossed the Sutlej and entered

Multan. Abhmad Shah occupied the city and the fort. In June
43

1767 . (Huhaf%mul ttaram .181 A.H.), the Afghan King ic1ld

*
his court in the Multan Fort. He met all the three Mukhdums

and bestowed upon them the Khilats. He alse issuecd a lNarman

In their FToveur for the renewal of the tax-free Jagirs for the
h
maintenance of the respective shrinc,. The Multani Saddozais

38. Canda Singh,op.cit., P.308.
39, MLH.P., p.218.

40. Ganda Sinah, op.cit., P.317.

Al. H.H.D.. iFi.221,222.,
42, T.M., P.213; 7.A., op.cit., P.4l,
43, T,M., P.213,

* Qureshi, Cilani and Gardezi.
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led by Nawab Shuja Khan lodged complaints against the
Subedar ~f Multgi. The complaints were collective as wcil as
individual. They told the Afghan King about their sufferings
and the malltreatment which they had met at the hands of
Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan and also about the sufferings and
disgrace which Nawab Shuja Khan had faced during his
imprisonment. The Khizer Khel Saddozais also told him about
the invasion of thele Kirl, the destruction of their houses
and the loss of thclr wealth and honour at the hands of the
Sikhs. They also complained that the Subedar of Multan did
not come to thelr rescue in spite of his resources. They
even pilaced before the Afghan King a concrete example of the
cuarelessness of the Nawab who in spite of the clear instructionr
from the Afghan King, did not get Muhammad Sharif Khan, the
Khudakka Chief, released on ransom from th: ".ikhs., He was
“till a prlsoner with the Sikh chicf. It annoyed the Afghan
King and on his enquiry from the Nawab who failed to satisfy
his master, he openly c¢nondemned the Subedar's attitude and

46

that he ha ' to face infamy due to his inaction. He ordered

that the Subedar and his son Ghulam Mustafa Khan alongwith

44, Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.43,
45, JT,.M., P.2313; Z.A., P.41;

Yousui Cardezi, op.cit., P.43,

46, T.r., P.2V4; Z.A., P.41;

Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.43,
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three nephews (two sons of brother and one son of sister)

be ripped up. Mawab Ali Muhammad Khan apologised for his
misdeeds and offered one crore¢ of rupees in case hishéife
alongwith the lives of his son and nephews were spared.

Shah Wali Khan Namezal, the Prime Minlster, requestcd his
master to spare thelr llves against the payment of one

crore of rupezg. I' annoyed Ahmad Shah and he showed his
Prime Minlster the lctter of Abdul Rahim Khan Khudakka in
which he had desperately stated that their ladies had been
disgraced in the presence of ltawab Ali Muhammad thz during
the Sikh invasion of Multan. The Afghan King at once ordered
that their bellies be ripped open and roared ferociously

that onencrore of rupees was not thc worth of the Saddozail's
dishonozr. Their bellies having been ripped open, their dead
"bddies were thrown over the back of camels and paraded througl
the streets of Multan. It was promulgated by the beat of
drum that such would be the fate of g;yone who should dare

to show opposition to a Saddozai ruler , Before leaving for

Kandhar, the Afqghan King reappointed Mawab Shuja Khan as the

47. T.M., P.?13; Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., PP.&43 44,
48, T.li., P.213,

49, 1bid. PP.213,216.

50. Ibid. P.213; . . , Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit.
P.4L; Ibrat Maman, P.240. ’
Vb joaniys aloa;
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52
Subedar of Muitan with the title of Safdar Jang Bahadar

and distrihuted the Jagirs among the Saddozais. He also
gave away cash prizes according to their status. All the
Jagirs of the late Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan and his family were

confiscated.

Nawab Shuj.. Khan proved himself a just and
generous rulcr during his second governorship. All the
extra taxes imposed by the late Nawab All Muhammad Khan were
withdrawn, He issued a Farma: of perpetual exemption of
tax-free Jagirs to Mukhdum Gardei?. Ife proved too lenlent
in"his administrative deelings. This encouraged the decoits
and the robbers who created problems of law and order for
him. The people felt insecure after the sun set. Robbery
hbecame common in the suburbs of Multan., This lawlessness
was due to the connivance of Jamadar Azim Khan Malezi? -

a close ally of late Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan.At the time of
the punishment of tlawab Ali Muhammad Khan, he had slipped

away alongwith his strong contingent., He harasscd the Subedar

as well as the people by invadine #Multan and using the Sikhs

1. T.M., - PP.213,214; E.H.M.. ' P.100;
7.AL, P.41; You-nf Gardezi, op.cit., P.44,

52. T.H., P,214; Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.44;
Ibrat Mamah, P.240; U.T,, : P.165.

* The oriqi=+1 Farman is in the personal library of
Syed MHubammad %“amzan “hah Gardezi.

53. Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.44,
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tactiecs of hide and seek. He also looied the villggers

and due to his fear, the life outsidc the city became
Insecure. i activities encouraged the decnits and

robbers. Whenever Mawab Shuja Khan scnl his army to eatch
ihim, he always cscapcd towards Lhe south in the forests
adjaccnt to Dahawalpur, He would take away the animals

of the poor villagers and other valuablcs including the
grai~s. He also plundered the caravans and the goldsmiths.
The pliyht of the people was so had that Multan which was a
'Darul-Aman' during the Mugh:l rule became a trouble spot in
1768 and nohody dared to n.ass by 1L during the day what
to talk of spending nights in it or even closer Lo il.
Ultimately scveral emissaries weore sent to him and on a
personal gqguarantee for his safely, he came to Mawab Shuja Khunm
to conclude a Lruce. Mawah Shuja Kkivan having over-powered
him, treacherously killed him and grinded his hon;z in order
to give a lcsson to all such miscreants and law-brecakers.,
This way hi-~ terror came to an end. fl¢ Sikbs revived ULheir
aclivitiecs against Multan under their lcader Jhanda Singh an

ullimately they besieged Hultan. The sieqe lasted for forly
26

days. Nawah Uhiuja Khan elosed the gales of the fort and the
city and detfended Multan brosely. In Lthe meantime, tiawab Shu a
Khan wurriedlv seat a request for aid to Lthe Afqhan King wh
54, 1.0, 2PL215,216;5 /LA PPLL] L2,

Yousrt Carderzi, op,cibt., P.au,
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at once desn - .-hed his able General Sardar Jahan Khan to
Multan. On the vews of his arrival the Sikhs ran away. The
Jangirs of the Saddozais could not escape devastation at the
hands of the Sikhs. The Afghan King, therefore, imposed

70 thousand rupees as extra revenuc¢ annually on Dora7Ghazi Khan
to compensate !'he Sadderals according to their statis. Sardar
Jahan Khan spent the summer of 1768 . In Multan and then
left home-ward to receive his master who had alrcldy left
Kandhar for India in autumn 1768 -« He ’'reached as far as
the left bank of the Chepab and fixed his camp at Jokalian

to the north-west of “ujrat, ten miles from Kunjiﬁ'. Mawab
Shuja Khan went to see his master, early in 1769 . Beforc
lecving Multan, he appointed his cousin 7areef Khan Saddozal
as his naib Subedar in his absenzz. After spending four month:
there, MNawab Shuja Khan came back to Multan. In the mcantime,
thrhar-ad Sharif Khan, the Khudakka Chief, was relcascd and
Hawab Shuja Whan approached him with the rcequest to place th-
Turban of chicftainship oa his hcad as it was placed by Sulta

Hayat Khan on the head of MNawab 7ahid Khan.ilnhammad Sharif Khawn

replied that his father Muhammad Baqir Khan had placced the
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Turban of Chicfdom on the head of Nawah Shakir Xhan and now

{t was not possible to lgnore the clalm of his son, Hussaln
Khan. It annoyed Nawab Shuja Khan and h» retorted that 1t

was shecr out ol respect for the Khudakka Chief that he

had requested him to enjoy this privilege, otherwise in the
aresence of Ahmad Shah, the chlef of Khizer Khcls, nobody
amona the Khizer Khels even the Khudakkas could be more
privileged than tl.e Afghan King himself. He, therefore,
approached Ahmad Shah throuqgh his maternal uncle Fatehullah
Khan Saddozai and was soon granted a 'I'.rvana' of chieftalnship

5HN
of the Khan Khel Saddozals, alongwith a 'Khilat.

The leniencvy of Nawab Shuja Khan made him popular
In the first in..tance bul it encouraged the miscrecants. Even
after the punishment mcted out to Jamadar Azim Khan Malezai
Mawab Shuja Khan Tailed to cnntrol the situation. le,therefore
became unpopular. The robbers and dccoi!':n took away the
animals of the villagers and looted thelir grains. The
aqgriculturists refused to pay him the revenues. VWhen he
became harsh in the collection of revenucs, thec villagers
left their lands and went to Nailsi and Lodhran in the
territory of Mawab of Rahawalpur where they got land as
well as protcction. The suburbs of Multan looked a deserted
area. Yhen Mawab Shuja Khan failed to payv the annual tribute

to the Afghan Kina, he was removed from he Subcdari of Mullan
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in June 1770 +w vhafar 1184 A.H.). In the meantime, the
Slkhs invaded Hulitan onue again. Mawab Shuja Khan was
replaced by MNawab Hajl Muhammad Sharif Khan Bahadur Khel
Saddozg;. He receivei the orders from the Afghan King
personally and took over the charge from Nawab Shuja Khan
in the samc month. Nawab Shuj. Khan retired to his

A2
strong-hold at Shujaabad.

58. Ganda Sinah,op.cit., P.320., but Ali Muhammad Khan
writes lhat the Afghan King, reached as far as Lahore

where Mawab Shuja Khan met him; T.M,, - ' P.216;
also See: 7.A., P.4z2.
59. T.M., ~ P.216.

60, 1Ibid, PP.216,217.

61. 1lbid. P.?17; Z.A., . P.43; P.C.,
P.481; ° - P.52
62. T.M., P.217; 7.A., P.43;

T, . P.48): , ., P.52.



~134-

Mawab Haji Sharif Khan Bahadur Khel Saddozai as
Subedar (Governor ) of Multan (June 1770 - March 1771

Mawab Haji Sharif Khan was the only son of Abdul

Shakoor I(han son of Yousuf Khan son of Alf Khan son of
1
Bahadur Khan son of Malik Saddu. The descendants of Bahadur

“han are called lbahadur Khel Saddozai. Abdul Shakoor Khan
alitas Shakroo Khan had no landed property and was in the
service of Nawab Abdul Aziz Khan Khudakka son of Sultan Hayat
Khan. He used to look-after the landed property of MNawab
Abdul Aziz Khag. Nawab Ha3}l Sharif Khan was fond of hunting
and was an expert in catching birds alive with a locally
knitted net which he always kept with himsel?. When once
Nawab Ali Muhammad Khuan saw him, he predicted about his
future greatnfsg. He also performed his pilgrimage to Mecca.
He lived on a pension, g?anted to him by the Afghan King,
like other Saddozais of Multaz. During the Subedari! of Nawab
Shuja Khan, he made a request for the grant of a Jagir but it
was turned down by the waedag. He, therefore, ducided to go
to Kandhar to get a Jaqir from Ahmad Shah, the Afghan King.
Nawab Shuja Khan, Subeda- of Multan sent some presents for
the Afghan King through hi;, which he misappropriated and
clandestinely obtained thc Subedari of Multan from the Afghan

King. As the A'ghan King had already received complaints

1. T.M., P.297.
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agalnst Nawab ~'uja Khan, he granted the Subedari of Multan

to Haji Sharif Khan with the title of Nawab in June 1770
(bhafar 1184 A.ﬁ.). The ncws was offlclally conveyed to

Hawab Shu}a Khan who with great disappolntment, retired to
Shujaabad alongwith his family, In the meantime, Nawab Hajl
Sharif Khan Bahadur Khel Saddozal reached Multan and took

over chargz. Having ~ssumed charge, Nawab Sharif Khan demanded
from Nawab Shuja Khan, the payment of the revenues of hls
Jaglrs. Nawab Shuj}a Khan could not tolepate it and 1t resulted
In an open confrontation bet@een the two Chiefs. The Subedar
forclbly confiscated certaln Jagirs of MNawab Shuja Khan

after his refusal to pay the revenues. The Subedar also
demanded the surrender of the Jaqgirs attached to the Subedari
of Multan., Ultimately, such Jag!irs were also forcibly taken
over by the Subedar., He ordered his subordinates to stop

the irrigation facillities for watering the lands of Nawab

Shuja Khan. HNawab Shuja Khan rctaliated and occupied

Sikandaralad with a small force, although he remained in

enjoyment of the canal water. The servants of Nawab Shula
Khan also ‘mprisoned *MNannu' a trus:ied Hindu servant of the
10

Subedar, who was responsibie for controlling the canal water.

4. Jbid. P.298,.
5. Ibid. PP.228,/,99,
6. Ibid., P.2929.

7. Ibid. P.299: '.A., P.43.
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Nawab “'arif Kran could not t:«lerate it and despatched a
force to Shujaabad to punish Mawab Shuja Xhan. lt attacked
the city, plundered it and destroyed everything in the
Bazaii. Nawalh Shuja Khan escaped to Bahawalpuvr. He came
back to Shujaabad Fort when the army of tlawab Shar]f Khan
went back o tlultan. This family feud weakeneq hoth of

them and encouraged the burglars, the thieves and the
dacoits. Lawlessness prevailed in that arca. 1n a
revengelul mood Mawab Shuja Khan alszo gave protection to
such persons and instlgated them, Thefi became the order
of the day and the life, honour and property of the rural
population was r~ndered insecure., The Subedar could not
control it and failc¢s! to punish the culprits., The villaqers
refuicd to pay the rcvenues. A small force of Nawab Hajl
Sharif Khan was placed at the disposal of the revenue officers

for the collection of revenues. Althouah he could collect

a portion of the revenues but he did not pav a single rupee

to the Afahan government on Lir pretext that he took over the
charge of siultan ' a time when MHawab Shuja Khan had alrcady
collected t!:v revenues of Rabi crop whereas hec ¢-.:ld not

get time to collect the revenues of Kharil crop because of

his removal from the Subedari prematurcly. A proverbial

8, T.H., pp . 217,299,
9. Ibid. PP.217,299; . .A., P.43;

P S PLasY.
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saylng became cirrent about Hajl Sharif Khan, 'Hajl Sharif
na Rabi na Khari%'. His fallure to control the situation
in maintaining law and order in the province, In general
and fallure t- pay the annual tribute to the Afghan King,
in particular, provided sufficient grounds for his removal
after his nine months rule over Multan in March 1771 ". .

13
(Zigaad 1184 A.H.).

Mawab Ha}i Sharif Khan was an Intelligent man.
In spite of all his weaknesses he could claim the credit of
effectively controlling the affairs of the city. Sharif
Khan cleverly 1solated Nawab Shuja Khan from the rest of his
Saddozai clansmen. During his rule over Multan which lasted
for nine months Mawab Shuja hhan had never thought of
visiting the Multan City. He remained in the Shujaabad Fort.
Nawab Haji Sharif Khan malntained cordial relations with
all the Saddozais and pald special respect to Muhammad Sharif
Khan Khudakka. During his Subedari, he celebrated the-
marriage of his eldest son Abdul Rahim Khan with great pomp

and show. Abdul Rahim Khan was married to the daughter of

Hajl Mahmood Khan Bahadur Khel Saddozai. His marriage was
10, T.M., P.217.
11 Ibid. i".21:
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attended by al) thc Saddozais except Mawab Shuja ithan

and his nephew llussain Khan son of HNawab Shakir Khan and
cousin Zarif Khan son of Arif Khan. Nawab Haji Sharif Khan
was known for his wisdom and resourcefulness. He himself
visited Hussain Khan and 7arif Khan and broun™t them to

his palai:. Thus MNawab Shuja Khan was Jleft alone and MNawab
Haji Sharif Khan won the sympathles of Khan Kh«els, Although
he was lLhe son of a poor man, he made his fortune during his
Subedari without paying anything to the Kandhar government.
Even after his dismissal, he visited the Imperial court

at Kandhar to give the accounts. ile convinced Ahmad Shah of
nis Yivalty. The Afchan King appointed him as the Subedar
of Dern Ghazi Khig. le again made o fortune there. He was
also given a Jagir in Dera Ghazi Khane He ruled Dera Ghazi
Khan for more than two vears and during his tenure of
Subedari, he never paid the entive amount of tribute to the
Afghaé King. When he faile! tn pay the arrears of three
lacs of rupces, hc was dismissed. He went to the Imperial

Court and requested for the remission of the arrcars.Ahmad

Shah said that it was not proper to punish a Saddozai for

13. Ibid. P.300.

4. Ibid. I’.300.

15, 1Ibid. P.301.
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ié
sucih a petty amount. He was forgiven and duly honoured.
Nawab Sharif Khan was a very ambitious man. lle visited
the court of Timur Shah at Kabul and tried hls best to

get the hubedari of a province but failed, however he

was shown sll respect. te lived in Dera Ghazi Khan with
great pomp and show. The rest of his life, he spent in
hunting hrrcause he was very fond of it and did not

stop it even in his old age evcn when hils eye-sight grew
very wclz. Nawab Sharif Khan had two sons, Hawab Ahdul
Rahim Khan and Qaz! Hajl Muhammad Khan. !'awab Abdul
Rahim Khan was the eldest and was very Intelligent. He
acted as the 'naih' of hls father during his Subedari of
Multan. After the death of his father, he was appointed

Subedar of Dera Ghazi Khan by Shah 7Zaman, lle ruled Dcra

GChazl Khan for more than two ycars till his death in

18
1600 (1215 A.H.). His only son Ahmad Khan who was
192
issueless died in 1829 ° ..(1245 A.H.) while performing

svlgrimage at itccca. Nawab Sharif Khan's -ccond son
vazi Haji Muharmad Khan was a carefree man and never
performed his rcligious duties in his youth. But afteor

performing pilgrimage te llecca, hc became very religious.

l6., Ibid. P.302.

17. 1lbid. . o2,

18, 1Ibid. MP,303-305.
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20
He was appointed Qazl of Dera Ghazi Khan and died during

the lifetlme of his elder brothcr Nawab Abdul Rahlm Khan,
He left five sons and his descerdants are still living

In Dera Chazi Khan.

19, 1Ibid, P.305,

20. Ibid., P,308.

————
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Mirza Sharif Beg Tughlu (larch 1771 - January 1772;> '

Nawab Shuja Khan knew that Nawab Sharif Khan did
not pay a single rupce to the Afghan King as tribute. He
requested a Hindu businessman Dharm Jas who was going to
Afghanistan, on his business trip, to go to the Imperial
Court and request Ahmad Shah, to grant him the Subedari of
Multan with the promise to be loyal to his master in future.
Dharm Jas went to Kandhar and being encouraged in the Imperial
Court with the affectionate attitude of the Afghan King,
obtalned the Subedari of Multan for himseli instead of Nawab
Shuj}ja Khan in March 1771 / ..(Zigaad 1184 A.H.). After
obtaining the Subedari, Dharm Jas despatched his servant
Mirza Sharif Beg Tughlu, to Multan alongwith the royal
Farman to take charge on his behalf, Mirza Sharif Beg
Tughlu, first of all, went to Shujanabad and met Nawab Shuja

Khan with the request to assist him in taking over charge

from Nawab Sharif Khan but Nawab Shu}a Khan did not agree

because Dharm Jas had deceived him, Mirza Sharif Beg Tughlu
was a very clever man. He went to Multan with great
2

confldence and c¢ntered the city from Pak gate. He announced
that he was the new Subedar and showed the royal Farman but

did not allow anvhody to read the name of Dharm Jas. The people

1. Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.44,
2. I1bid. PP.44,45; Sce: 7.A., ., P.43.,writes that

Mirza Sharif Beo Tughlu was appointed Subedar of Multan
by the Afghan King which is incorrect.
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gathered a@round him. le took over the city single-handedly
with sheer inte’ligence and proceeded towards the fFort in

a procession. While reaching near the Fort, he sat down on

a cot and asked the people to 1ift It and placed the royal
Farman on hils head announcing that he was the new Subedar.

He entered the Fort from the Sikki gatz. ‘Nawab Hajl Sharif
Khan was having hls beard dyed at the time In the Samman

Bur} of the Fort®! he despatched several offlcers to enqulire
about the noise but none returned because cverybody finding
the arrival of the new Suhedar showed his loyalty and gathered
around him. At last Nawab Sharif Khan sent hils barber named
Jamal who came back with the news of th¢ arrival of the new
Subeda:. Nawab Sharif Khan finding that his army had already
left him alone, at once, 'escaped by the windoi',and ran

away to Dera Ghazi Khag. He was followed by his family members
and personal Servantz. Mirza Sharif Beg Tughlu ruled the city
effectivelv but soen a messanger brought the news that the
Subedar Dharm J3s was reaching Multan, and Mirza Sharif Beg
Tughlu was askcd to receive him on the bank of River Chenab.
Dharm Jas deceived Nawab Shuja Khan and MNirza Sharif Bey
Tughlu paid him in the same coins. He refuscd to acknowledge

Dharm Jas as the Subedar of Multan and closed the gates of

the Fort with the determination to give fight. Dharm Jas

3. Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.45;

T.M., op.cit., P.300
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reached Multan in April 1771 and stayed In the house

of Diwan Mansa Ram. One fine norning, when Dharm Jas was
wearing his turban on the roof of the house, he was shot
deag by a soldier of Mirza Sharif Beg Tughlu as the house

of Diwan Mansa Ram was close to Lhe Fort and was in front

of ft. Mirza Sharlf Beg Tughlu announced his success and
opened the gates of the Fort. He visited the shrines of
Sved Yousuf Gardezi and Syed Moosa Gilani, in the afternoon.
He also presented Khilats to the Mukhd~ums of both the

9
shrines. Mlrza Sharif Beg Tughlu refused to acknowledge the

sovereignty of the Afghan King and declared his independenig.
In the meantime, Nawab Shuja Khan visited Multan but when he
heard the news of Sharif Beg Tughlu's revolt, Nawab Shuja
Khan went back to his stronghold without meeting Mirza

Sharif Beg Tughlu. During his correspondence with Nawab
Shuja Khan, Mirza Sharif Beg Tughly did not even observe

the protooii. When Nawab Shauja Khan protested, he was
informed that the titles were only meant for the Subedar

12
of Multan. Wh:n the Afghan King was informed of the revolt

5. Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit.,P.45; G.M.D., P.54,
6. T.M,, P.300.

7. Ibid. P.300.
8. Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.45.

9. Ibid. P.45,
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of Mirza Sharlf Beqg Tughlu, Ahmad Shah, at once senf
3

Abdul Karim Khan Bamezal to Multan as the new Subedar.
On the arrival of the new Subedar, Mirza Sharif Beg
Tughlu ¢losed the doors of the Fort and the city.

Abdul Karlm Khan Bamezal besleged Multan and the siege
14
lasted for three months. In the meantime, Mirza Sharif

Beg Tughlu wrote to the Sikhsa for help and promised them
15
a big amount of money. When Abdul Xarim Khan Bamezai
16

heard of it, he went back without faclng the.Slkhs. When
Ahmad Shah wasz informed of the fallure of the expedlition

of Abdul Karim Khan Bamezal, he at once despatched one-eyed
General Sardar Behram Khan Barakzal alias Sardar Behru Khiz
to Multan in 1771 (1185 A.H.) to punlsh the lnsolent
self-made Subedar of Hultan., On the arrival of Sardar

Behru Khan, Nawab Shuja Khan rushed towards Multan alongwith

18
his small contingent and the combincd force besieged Multan,

10. Z7.A., P43,
11, T.M,, P.218.
12, bid. i?.:18,

13.

[
o
[
[«

P.218.

14, 1Ibid, .218;
15. Yousuf Gardesi, uvp.cii., P e, P.C., CoPLlanlg
Ibrat Mamah, P.248,, writes that one lac

of rupecs was o fered to the Sikhs by Mirza Sharif
Ben Tughlu.,
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All the Saddozais residing outside the wall«d city gathered
round Sardar Behru Khan because they were not happy with the
government of Mirza Sharif Beg Tughlu who had usurped the
powers of Nawab Sharif Khan Saddozai and had exploited the
royal Farman of Diwan Dharm Jas. Thelr annoyance was also
due to his behavioupr towards Nawab Shuja Khan Saddozai. The
united Afghan contingent captured the citz with force and
looted it but Mir,. Sharif Beg Tughlu defended the Fort wlth
valour. In the meantime, Mirza Sharlf Beg Tughlu sent a
message to Jhanda Singh and Ganda Singh for heig. The Sikhs
‘declded to avall of the opportunity and marched against
-Mu;tan. ¥hen Sardar Behru Khan heard of thelr arrival, he
at once left Hultan for Kandhgi. He had also heard the news
of his master's serfous 1lllness. Multan was left at the mercy

of the Sikhs, Mawab Shuja Khan called a mececting of all the

Satdozals and on' his request It was decided to shift to

16. T.M., P.218.

17. 1Ibid. P.2J4%; Yousuf Gardezl, op.cit.. P.46; G.M.D.,
' P.BL}; Z.A. . l :

18, T.M., PP.218,219; 7.A. P.au;

P,53; Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit., P.%46.

19, I.M., P.218; Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.46;
Z.A., P.43; .

20. T.M., ?.219; Yousu: Gocdezi, op.cit., P.46;
I.A., P.6H3; Ibrat Namah, P.248,

21, T.M, P.219; Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit., P.4é; Z.A.,
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22
Shuj}aabad. All the 5addozals, therefore, alonqwith their

valuables left Multan and went to Shujaabad, which was
considered to be a safer piaii. The Bhangl Hisl reached
Multan on the invitation of Mirza Sharlf Beg Tughlu but

the Sikhs decelved the Subedar and captured the city
without any reslstance. Mirza 5harif Beg came to know of
thelr deslqgns. He, therefore, shut the gates of the Fort
and resisted their attack. The Sikhs besleged the Fort

and the slege lasted for many months. The 5ikhs falled

to capture It by force. They threatened the Hindu Diwan

of ‘Mirza Sharif Beg Tughlu that in case of the capture of -
the fort, they would cut him to pieciz alongwith his family
members.The Diwan, therefore, declded to cooperate with the
Sikhs and sent them a secret message that the Eidul Fler

would fall soon and Mirza Sharif Beg Tughlu would go to the

Eidgah for hils Eld prayers. In hls absence, hec would open

25
the doors of the Fort. Accordingly the Sikhs entcred the
26
L]
Fort on 5th January 1772 . (lst Shawaal 1185 A.H.). Mow

Jhanda Singh and La''mna 5lngh divlded Multan amongst themselves

¥ EoMgy, P.219.

¢}, lIbid. P.219.

24, Yousuf Gardezl, op.clit., P.4é;

25. Yousuf Gardezi.P?E;?it.. P.46y 2.A,, P.bbs;

26. Joseph Davey Cunningham, op.clt., P.1l4.
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27

and 'appointed one Diwan Singh Chhachowalia, as Qiladar'

of Multan. Mirza Sharif Beg Tughlu having been deceived,

fled to the garden of Sital Das. He started negotiations
with the Sikhs and it was ultimately decided that he
vould live in Tulamba as a Jagirdar of the Sikhs. He

went to Tulamba and buiflt a fort and died there after a

28

few years.

1

27, H.P., P.297; Ibrat Mamah, P.248;

UIT'I Pllé‘

28, Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit,, P.46; ' ' . .
See: Z.A. ~ P.4L., writcs that he died during
the sieq:. of Multan which Is incorrect; Also See:
P.C., - P.481,,writes that Mirza Sharif Beg
Tughlu rap away to Khairpur Tomewali and died there
‘'which is also incorrect.

* Aliud Din gives an interesting story about the capture

of the Fort by the Sikhs which Is also incorrect

because it is not supported by any other contemporary
chronicle. According to him the Sikhs requested Mirza
Sharif Beg Tughlu to allow them to pay a visit to

the Parhalad Temple in the Fort for relligious rites,

It was decided that sixty persons would enter the

Fort to perform theit rellgious rites in the Parhalad
Temple. On theilr return, another batch of sixty would
be allowed till every Sikh soldier was given the
opportunity to perform his religious rites. But the
Sikhs played a trick and instead of sixty, fifty persons
came back and ten Sikhs hid themselves in the Temple
from each batch, till their numher became sufficient to
control the Fort. So this way treacherously, the Sikhs
captured the Fort and the Subedar was allowed to retire
to Tulamba. This story is impracticable as the

Subedar was not a fool to allow them to the Fort and

it is not supportcd by any authentic source, lbrat Namah,
’ P.246.
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The Sikh Interlude
{January 1772 to January 1780

After the conquest of Multan, Jhanda Singh imposed
|

twelve thousand rupecs as extra revenue and collected it
for himsel?. He divided the villages among other Sardars
who recalised thre~ 0o seven rupees as extra revenuc for
themselves from cach piece of agricultural land irrigated

3
by a persian well.

The Sikhs as a whole vere most 1}1l-dlsciplined
people. They started their career as robbers. Although
they conquered a vast fterritory but they generally failced
to give it any administration worth the name. They were
the enemles of the Muslims, and hence they destroyed not
only thc.r institutions but also their historical
monuments, They even forbade the call for prayers. The
Sikhs stopped thecir entries into the mosquesand used them
as stables for thcir horses. The Muslims were disgraced
and many of them deejded to leave Multan. During the Sikh
anarchy which lasted for eight years, a large number of
Muslim population shifted to Bahawalpur. The people
living in the rural areas also left their lands. The area

in the soubth of HMultan which was under the influence of the

1. T.M,, P.219.
2. Yousuf Gardesi, op.cit., P.46,

3. Jbid. P.46.
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Mawab of ‘‘ahawalpur offered refuce to Lhem because it
enjoyed peace and prosperity. The farmers were given lands
as well the protcction. Multan, which was called 'Darul
Aman' during the Nuaohal period had become the most disturbed
area. The Sikhs therefore gave away the lands in Karor,
Dunyapur, Fatehpur and Dipalpur to Daudputras on 1easg. The
Sikhs had al!so placed Garanth Sahib in the mosque wrongly
known as anjid Wali Muhammad Khan. The Sikh Kntwal of the
city held his court there. Jhanda Sinah had left a strong
contingent in Multan for the help of his Oiladar before

he left for Amritsar.

In the meantime, Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran, died on
23:0clober 1772 ° (20™Rajab 1186 A.H.?, and was succeeded
by his son Timur Shah who shifted his capital from Kandhar
to Kabul in early 1773 . In the beginning he remaincd
busy in his internal afiai.rs and could not pay his attention
to the Sikhs who had dcvastated a large territory in India.

6

Ultimately he despatched Sardar Madad Khan, (!¢ lshaqgzai

chief, to capture Multan and folliowed him to the Panjab In

7
November 17771 - Sardar Madad Khan reached HMultan and
8
besieged the Tor and the city. e was soon joincd by

Mawab Shuja Khan. At that time Jhanda Singh was fighting

against Jay Singh, the chief of Kaniha Hisl in Jammu where
b4, Ihid.P.47.

5. Tarikh-i-Sultani, SPL146,14757.A.S. P.58.
6. T ., pP.219;

7. ;;T::Q PLLsS

5. J.i., ? 219: Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit.,P.47:
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he lost his life in 1774 ° . ile was succeeded by his
brother Ganda Sibgh as the chief of the Bhiangi Misl. The
Bhangi tiisl couih not extgnd any help to biwan Singh in
Multan. The Sikh Qiladar of Multan closed the doors of the
Fort and rcsisted the Afghan invasion. In the mecantime,
Tlmur Shah ‘rcided to go back in January 1775 . . Hnm
stopped .t Peshawar 'for a couple of months to avoid the regouy
of winter at Kabui'. During his stay in Bala-hissar (Fort)
at Peshawar, !luizullah Khan Hahmonéotried to kill him
treacherously but failed in hls design and was killed
alongwith several other allies. After this incident, Timur
Shah, at once rccalled his General Sardar Madad Khan
Ishaqzaif who left the Muslims of Multan at the mercy of
the Sikhs and soon joined his master. Nawab Shuja Khan

12

canmc back to his strong-hold. He sent hls son Muzaff¥ar

Khan to Kabul to seek help from the Afghan King in order

13
Lo capture Multan. Yar Muhammad Khan Tarin accompanierl
14
tiwzaffar Khan as VYakcel of Nawah Shuja Khan. Timur Shah

did not pay any attention to their request. The Afghan King

9. M.HLP,, D236,

10. T.M., P.138;H.H.P. .PP.236,237:Tate,
op.cit. . ’

11. T, y.21951R.C., P.4bl; Sce:Tate.
op.cit.,P.9G.,stabes that the event occured i1n 1788,

12. T.i4.., P.21I937.A,, P.43,

13. T.M., P.219;7.A., D,44,

14,  T.H., P.21937.A., P.43.
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15
granted Muzaffar Khan a stipend of five thousand rupees

from the revenue of Dera Ghazl Khan and dismissed him. The

faflure of the mlssion annoyed Nawab Shuj}a Khan and he

beat his Wakeel Yar Muhammad Khan Tarin with sticig. Nawab

Shuja Khan himself decided to go to Kabulto seek the Afghan

help. He met the Afghan King who appolnted him as the

17

Mazim of Multan and deputed Sardar Madad Khan Ishagzal to
18

capture Multan., Timur Shah had already written a letter

19
to the Nawab of Dahawalpur to invade Multan. In the meantime,

Muzaffar Khan also approached the Nawab of Bahawalpur to
20
request him to Invade Multan. Thr Nawab of Bahawalpur

marched against Multan with his army of three thousand
soldiers. He was jolned by Muzaffar Khan with his small

contingent., The united force captured Multan in February
21

1775 A.D.{(ZL1hijj 115 A,H.,), They lalid a slege to the Fort,
22

which lasted for 18 days. Diwan Singh, the Oiladar of Multan

15. T.M., P.219,

6. T.M., P.219., See: Z.A., P.45.,
writes thal Hawab showed his annoyan:

17, T.M., P.220; Z.A... P.46.

18§, T.M., P,220; Z.A., P.aé6; P.C.,

—

P "81., See: Tate,op.cit., P.91., states
that toe event occured i1n 1785 which Is incorrect.

19,

-

r

M., P.220; P.C., . P.sal.

20l

(]

AL P.46.
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informed Ganda Singh who reached Multan to help the Sikhs.

On the arrival of Ganda Singh, Nawab Bahawal Khan7Rukunudoulah
23

Daudputra alongwith Muzaffar Khan ran awav. The Sikhs
pursued them. The small contingent of the Afghans consisting
of one hundred horsemen under Muzaffar Khan showed great
valour. The army of the Nawab of Bahawalpur could not

stand before the Sikhs and was put to fligiz. Ganda Singh
besieged Shujaabad and the siege lasted for three months.
The Sikhs failed to capture iz. Having accepted money, the
Sikhs under Ganda Singh lifted the siege. In the meantime,
Nawab Shuja Khan, alongwith Sardar Madad Khan advanced and
hurriedly reached Damgg where they received the news that
Ganda Singh had invaded Shujaabad. A messanger came from
Timur Shah who recalled hls Genergz because of the rebellion
of Abdul Khaliq Khan. Hawab Shuja Khan was very much
disappointed and hurriedly procceded to Bahawalpur via

Dera Ghazi Khan where Nawab Bahawal Khanmﬁeceived him with
{

21, T.M,, P.220; Z.A., P.46.
22. T.,M,, P.220; P.S.G., B.S., . . P.57;
G.M.D., P.55; Z.A., P.4é6.
23, T.M., P.220; Z.A., P.46; P.C.,
. 481,
24, .M., op.cit., P,220; Z.A., P.4é6.
25, I.M., op.cit., P.221; Z.A., . P.46., Sece: P.C.,
PP.481,482., writes that the Sikhs captured
Shujgeaol vd which is incorrect because it is not
support.

hv anv contemporary chronicle.
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28
great honour. He was in Bahawalpur when he received the news
29
of the withdrawal of the Sikhs from Shujaabad. Nawab Shuja
Khan went to Shujaabad where he died on l4th Septcmber

30
1775 . (18%Rajab 1189 A,H.). He was burrled in Shujaabad.

Nawab Shuja Khan was a man of great qualitles.
He was a very hard taskmaster and a good administrator. He
was fond of constructing new buildings. He founded many
towns whére he constructed new forts. He loved fine things
and niceties and collected them. He was also generous 1in
bestowing glifts upon otheii. In spite of the fact that he
was never tired of purchasing landed properties in which
moneywas involved, yet he could afford to be generous. He
wés a'religjous man and never tolerated anything against
Islam, He was not regular In his prayers and fasting during
the month of Ramggﬁ. He never allowed anybody to take unduc

advantage of his being close to the Nawab. He was a very

dominating personality. Nawab Bahawal Khanjalways treated

* Daman: situated in the Frontier region on the other
side of Dera Ismail Khan,

26. T.M., P.221; Z.A., PP 46,47,
27. T.M., P.221; 7.A., P47,
28, T.M., P.221; Z.A. P.47,
29. T.M., P.221; Z.A..- P.47.
30, T.M. . P.224; 7.A., P.48.

31, T.H., p.222,
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him on an cqual footing and paid him due regards. During
the Subedari of MHawab A i Muhanwd Khan Khugani, he never
attended hls court as a courtier. MHe lcft Multan and

lived in Shujaabad. The same way when Mawab Sharif Khan
became Subedar oi Multan, Nawab Shuja Khan leit Multan and
never saw him again. 0On his return journey from Kabul
when he was on his way to Bahawalpur, he stopped at

Dera Ghazi Khan. Nawab Sharif Khan sent him presents and
showed his willingness to call on hlm in case flawab Shuja
Khan would also pay a return visit, MNawab Shuja Khan

did not agree because he never vislted his place before,
He bellieved in protonofz. The same way, when the Mazim of
Dera Ghazi Khan Shaikh Qamaruddin Khan visited him, he

did Hot stand on his arrivg? and kept sitting. fle only
shaok hands with him which offended the Mazim of Dera
Ghazi Khan, Nawab Shuja Khan did not care for such things,.
In short he was really a great —»: and established a govern-

ment which lasted till the conguest of llultan by HMHaharaja

Ranjit Singh in 1818

32. fhid. P.210.

1, Thid. P.221.

34, Ibi

joR

L2221,
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Ganda Singh proceeded towards Pathankot in 1775
A.D. with a large army. After his Multan's campaign, he
fought a battle against Jay Singh of the Kanhia Mis] at
Dinanagar. Thc fighting continued for ten days but abruptly
Ganda Singh fell ill and died. He was succeeded by his son
Desa Singh who left the battle-field and went back to
Amritszi. Desa Sinqgh was not a capable person, hence
the Bhangi Misl lost Pathankot and its. surroundings. The
tribute from Jhang was also stopng. As usual it provided
an opportunity to the Khan Khel Saddozals to request the
Afghan Kilng to intervene in the affalrs of Multan. They
wrote hi rveral letters apprising him of the latest
situation including the weaknesses of the Sikhs. Timur
Shah was genuinely busy in his Internal affalrs. He,
therefore, rem:ined a silent spectator for three years.
The Sikhs continued thelr rule iIn Multan without any
interruption, T!oy usurped the properties of the Saddozals
and the Jagirs of the Mukhdums and increased the octroi
on all goods. The life of the common man became miserable.
The home Industry of Multan which was famous in India was
destroyed. The technical worksers did not get the raw
material and if they succeeded in getting the same, it
was costly as well as inferior. The result was that the
goods produced by the home industry in Multan were inferior

37
as well as costly and the production decrecased. The woven
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cloth and copper utensils as well as the engraved wooden
articles for which Multan was famous lost their markets.
It all happenc.t during the elght ycars of the Sikh rule
which falled to provide peace and prosperity in the area.
The life and property was insecure. Whenever the Slkhs
were short’ of money, they collected money from door to
door and whosoever resisted was disgraced and sometimes

he lost hls life. The people lost their falth in the
Government.

In such circumstances Timur Shah decided to help
the peéple of Multan but he had to deal with Mir Naseer
Khan Baluch, Abdul Khaliq Khan son of Abdul Rahman Khan
" Kamran Khel Saddozai and Mohammad Akbar Khan Khudakka
(Younger brother of Abdul Rahim Khan) son of Mohammad
Khan Khudakka, who alongwith several other Durranis rose
in open rebellion. During their revolt, the Saddozals
of Multan supported Timur Shah and after his success, he
appreciated their support and increased their stipends
by thirty thousand rupezz annually. When Abdul Khalig Khan
revolted he used the name of Akbar Khan Khudakka who was
a direct descendant of Abdullah Khan, (rulcr of Hirat)

and in this wayd large number of Durranis gathered around

35, H.P., P.298.

36. Ibid.P.298.
37. Charvles Masson, Marrative of varinus journeys in

Balochistan, Afghanistan and the Punjab, Karachi,
1974,vo0l.i.,P.395,
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him., He atlacked Kabul but lost the battle and was
capturzz. Akbar Khan's lIlmporionce was also felt during the
days of Ahmad Shah who had ordered hls Subedar of Multan
to conflne Akbar Khan in the fFort, the moment he crossed
Attock on his way to India till his return Journey to
Kandhgg. This practice continued till hls death. During
the -S1kh anarchy, Akbar Khan got the opportunity and ran

away to Kalat to Mlr Maseer Khan Baluch who gave him

asslistance and ultimately he marched agalnst Kandhar in

early March 1775 (1189 A.H,} where he lost the battle
41
and was captured allve, He was sent to Kabul where he was
42

Imprisoned in Bala Hissar. The Afghan King ordered to

kill all the descendants of Sultan Abdullah Khan,

Tlmur Shah then deeclided to recover Multan. Hc
left Xabul {n October 1779 . and reached Peshawar. e
sent Haji All Khan as his envoy to the Slkhs who killed
43

him. On hecaring this news, he despatched Zangi Khan Durrani

with a force of 18000 men who took the Sikhs unaware near

38, T.M., op.cit., P.137,

—

39. 1bid.PP.176-179; Tatc, op.cit., PP.88,89.

|

40, T.M., op.cit., P.438.
41, JTbid. PP.441,442,

42. TIhid. P.442,



-158-

44
Rohtas and gave them a crushing defeat, Timur Shah followed
45
his General and reached Nultan in January 1780 He

besleged the clty and the Fort and the sicge lasted for more
than a month., Muzaffar Khan, the successor of MNawab Shula
Khan alongwith hls small continnent consisting of the
Afghans and the Nawab of Bahawalpur with his 12000 soldiers
joined the Afghan King. The Bhangl Sikhs under their leaders
Jassa 51ngh with 15000 horsemen reached Multan from Lahore.
They found Multan besleged hence they went to Shujaabad.
Myuzaffar Khan rushed to 5hujaabad alongwlth hils contingent
and took the battlefleld « In the meantime, the duststorm: .
blew and a few soldiers of Muzaffar Khan caught a drum beater
of the S1kh ar::. They brounht him to Muzaffar Khan who
spared hls 1ife on the condition that he would beat the

drum in a manner to call the Slk::. The S1kh drum beater

at once started heatin:, the drum and whosoevaer heard 1t
rushed to the 5pg:. As the vislbillty was very poar due to

the duste torm, Muyzaffar Khan had arranged his soldiers in

two stralght lines, in such a way that, rhe moment a Sikh

3. T.A.5.,, PP.67,68; Timur Shah Durrani,
Po88; Hunuany P.239.
g, M.H.P. PP.239,240; Timur Shah Durrani,

PP.87,89. T.A.S, ,0p.cit., PP.68,69.

65, HM.H.P., P.240; Timur Shah Durrani,

PP,.87,B0,
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soldier reachnd them, one of the Nawab's soldiers was to
catch hoid of him and the other was to kill hiz. This process
continued till the Sikhs lost thousands of thelir soldiers
when the duststorm subsided, they realised the situation
and ran away to Lahoig. This way Muzaffar Khan won his first
victory over his deadly enemies in February 1780 . He .
collected the heads of the Slkhs and sent them to Timur Shah
who praised his bravery. Then Muzaffar Khan Jolned his
master in the slege of Multan. When the Sikh Qlladar came
to know of thls catastrophe, he also 165t heart. In the
meantime, Abdul Karim Khan Babar, a Muslim General of the
Sikh army, was won over by Timur Shah. He induced the Sikh
Qiladar for negotiatioii. It was decided that the Slikhs
would be allowed to leave the Fort alongwith their valuablzz.
Accordinqgly, the Slkhs left the Fort from one gate and Timur
Shah entered the Fort from another., Thls way Multan was
conquered in February 1780 (Safar 1194 A?:.). Multan
became once agaln an Afghan Provlnce after eiqght disasterous
years of Sikh rulc. It remained an Afghan Province till {ts
reconquest by the Sikhs under their leader Maharaja Ranjit
Singh 1n 1818 After the conques! of Multan, Timur

55
Shah appouinted Mizaffar Khan as the Nazim (Subedar)of Multan.

46. Yousuf Gardezi, op.clt., P.47.

47, 1Ibid. P.47,

48. 1Ibid. P.47,

L9, 1Ibid. P.47.
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le hestowed upon him the titles of 'Nawab Safdar Jang
Bahadaf',and 'Ru@ﬁud~doulzz (Pillar of the State) as

he was convinced of his loyalty as well as bravery. ;ge
Afghan King fisxnd twelve thousand rupecs as his stipend.

He also gave him one lac of rupees for the maintenance

of the army, rcpair of the rampart of the city and the

Fo?z. Abdul Karim Khan Babar, who wns a very clever and
influentinal officer during the Sikh rule, played a very
important role during the siege of Multan. Hec was appointed

60
by the *fghan King as the naib of Muraffar Khan,

T!. tuakhdums (in charge of the shrines) of Hazrat
"ahauddin Zakria.llazrat Shah Rukunud Din, Hazrat Shaikh
Sved Muhammad Yousuf Gardezi and Hazrat Syed Moose Gilani,
had been granicd tax-free Jagirs for the maintenance of
the shrines as well as their families. The Hukhdums enjoyed
1is privilege since the days of the Sultanate and the
later Muslim rulers had increased it. 1t was during the Sikh

anarchy that their Jaqgirs were .onfiscated. HMNow a deputation

50, Ibid. P.47.

51. Ibid. P.47; M.H.P., P.26]., writes that Timur
Shuh himself gave a crushing defeat to Lhe Sikhs at
Shujaabad on 8th february, 176" which is incorrect

because he has not quotecd any original reference.

52. Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.47; 7.A., P.50;
Ih:-at Mamah, T P.250. B
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ronsisting of Mukhdum Bahawal S5hah (in charge of the
shrines of Hazrat Bahauddin Zakarla and Hazrat 'hah
Rukunud Din and Mukbidum Shalkh Muhammad Raju Gardezi

{in charge of the shrine of Hazrat Syed Muhammad Yousuf
Cardezl) alongwith hls sons Syed Masrud-Din Muhammad and
Syed PIr 5hah allas Syed Shah Ali Muhammad met the Afghan
King and requested him for the restoration of thelr Jagirs
alongwith their privlleg:;. The Afghan King restored thelr
old Jagirs conslsting of 14 villages alongwith their
p}lvilcgﬂs and bestowed upon them the Hhila:i. It created

a very healthy atmnsphere.

53. Yousuf Gardezi, op.clt., P.47; Ibrat MNamah,

P.250; T.A.5., P.71; Shahamal All, op.cit.,
P.é4%,

5. T.M,, P.137; 1.A., pPP.50,51;
LT P.241., writes that HMultan was
conquered on Sth February 1730 1 See: Tate,
gp.clt.. P.21., glves the date 1779 and the
operation lasted for forty days; also See: P.C.,

P.4a82,

55 Faleg ".228; Yousuf Gardezl, op.cit., P.47;
Yon., P.50; Tate,op.clt., P.917 D.7.y .
PP.36,37; Shahmat Ali,op.clt., P.é64,

56, Yousuf GCardezi, op.cit., P.047; D.Z., PP.386,37.

5. BCL., P.4B2; D.2.. PR AE, AT,

58, T.M,, Pi2287 2.A.; PP.50D,51.
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Due to the reveolt of Akbar Khan, Timur Shah was
also afrald of the Khudakkas, He asked his Wazir Fatehullah
Khan (Wafadar Khan) to press Din Muhammad Kha; and Azilm
Yar Khan to izcar fealty to the Afghan King whlch they dld.
Timur Shah also struck his colns at Multgi. Hawving made
sufficlent arrangements for the defence of Multan Timur Shah

left for Kabul.

59. T.M., P.228; Sadliqut Tawarjckh, P.301;
Ll P.50; See: Yousuf Gardezl, op.clt.,P.47.,
wrltes that the Afghan King gave him two lacs of

rupces for the repalr of the rampart of the city and
the Fort.

60, Yousuf Gardezl, op.cit., P.47.

6l, Ibld. P.47., original Marmans are with Syed Muhammad
Amazan Shah Gardezl and Mukhdum Chulam Miran Shah,

62. Ibld, P.&47,

» Din Muhamnad Khan: Son of Muhammad Slarif Khan
and the chief of the Khudakkarn,

63. T.M., P.381.

64, Whltehead, Catalogue of coins in _the Lahore Museum,
vol.ill., Oxford, 1977, P.64.
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THE SZECOND PHAGY

Mawab Haji Muhammad Muzaffar Khan *han Khel Saddozal,
Safdar Jann Bahadur, Rukpud doula® Subedar o
Thazim -~ Govurnor) of Multan: The last Huslim .Susgdar
of Multan: Febrrvary 1780 . to 2nd Junc 1818

Nawab Shuja Khan had four sons and one daughter.

Muzaffar Khan, Sikandar Khan and the daughte; were from one
wife; CGhazanffar Khan and Sanjar Khan were from another
wifé. Muzaffar Khan was the eldest and was very intelligent
and capable person. »ikandar Khan, Ghazanffar Khan and
Sanjar Khan wecre lazy and lethargic. They wasted thelir
properties in mcrry-making and none of thcem proved worth
mentioning excecpt that they earned bad name to their famiéy

rlso to Muzaffar Khan who remained always Kind to them.
Huzaffar Khan bad not married his sister and she lived with
hi;. NMawab Haji I'nzaffar Khan Khan Khel Saddozai was born
in 1757 (1171 A.H.) in Multan. He was given the best
available education in religion, civil administration and
warfare. FHe was a man of great qualities and was well-versed
man in all current <discipline. He offered prayers regularly
from the early age and always fasted in the month of Ramazan.
HHe treated cvervbody with respect and was a man of good

manners., He took kcen interest in the State affairs from

the very beginning and got good training under the able

* Khan Bibi.

1. T.M., . P.224; Z.A., , P47,
5 Tom.. PP.225-227.




-164-

guidance of his f.ther, He was only 18 years old when

he led a mission to Kabul in January 1775 under the

instructions of his Father., His mission failed but he
attracted the attention of the Afghan King who [lixed live
thousand rupees as hi . stipend. He was a brave man and
his Leaining was fed with Sikh enmity., He commanded the
Afghan contingent during the siege of twlton in February
1775 A.D. and showed great bravery. When Ganda Siangh
had invaded Shujaabad, he defended it with great valour
and ultimately having realised the greedy naturc of the
Sikhs, gave th-m some money. He succceded his father at
*he age of 18 in Shujaabad on 18w0October 1775
(20hShaban 1189 A.H.?.

When Mirza Sharif Beg Tuyhlu had invited the
Bhangi Misl for v lp. Hawab Shuja Khan had retired Lo
Shujaabad alongwith all his Saddnzai clansmen. Since then

Muhammad Sharif «han, the Khudakka Chief was also residing

there alongwith his family members. He dicd there on 7th

r

pJ
June 1775 {7th Ilabi-us-Sani 1189 A.H.). He was succeederd
by +is eld- ° son Pir Muhammad Khan, as the chicf of the

6
Khuda “as. It was a practice since the davs of Sultan Hayat

Khan that Lhe t'rnrban of chiefdomship was placed on the head

3. 1bid.P.227; 7.A., P.49.
4 T.i., PP.c8,376.
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of the Khan Khels by the chief of the Khudakkas in the
house of the Khudakka chief. Pir Muhammad Khan was a
young man of 18, He had to face a real problem because
there were two contestants for the chieftalnship,namely,
Muzaffar Khan son of Mawab Shuj}a Khan and Hussain Khan
son of Nawab Shakir Khan. Tarin Khan, a Wakeel of

Muzaffar Khan approached Pir Muhammad Khan that the turban

- of the chieftainship should be placcd on the head of his

master and the ceremony should also take place in Muzaffar
Khan's house to which Pir Muhammad Khan agreeg. It was the
first diplomatic success on the part of Muzaffar Khan.
Muzaffar Khan, at the age of 18 showed great sense of
respbnsiblllty and resourcefulness, He distributed his
father's property among hils brothers equally and when his
youngest brother Sanjar Khan was born posthumously,Muzaffar
Khan took him under his care and also gave him his share
from his own propert;. It was unfortunate that his brothers
were pleasure loving and sold all the property. But
Muzaffar Khan was an affectionate brother and always took

8
care of them,

6. Ibid. PP.374-376.

7. 1Ibld. PP.224.227,

8. Ibid. PP.,227,228,
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¥fhen the 51khs under their leaders Jhanda Singh
and GCanda Singh captured Multan and besieqed Shujaabad,
Hawab Shu}a Khan agreed to pay them a fixed amount of
twelve thousanrd rupees as annual revenuz. After his death,
Muzaffar Khan contlnued to pay the same amount a5 annual
revunig. It created an understanding betwecen the two,
though short-lived and provided an opportunlty to the
Saddozals to visit Multan on certaln occaslons,for example,
when Pir Muhammad Kha:, a very handome youngman of 22, diedll
in Shujaabad on l2th February 1776 . (22nd Z11hijj 1190 A.H.)
and hls dead budyE;;rried to Multan for burial 1n the
aﬁcestral graveyard. The people from far flung areas
attended his funeral at Multan. The Sikhs were surpriscd
to see such a huge funeral and they also attended ii. He
was buried In Sultan Hayat Khan's graveyard. This lialson
vIth Multan was maintained by the Khan Khels as well. During
the Sikh rule in Multan, Nawab Shuja Khan and Muzafrar Khan
on thco one hand pald them the fixed revenue and on Lhe

other hand struggledto oust them.The Khan Khels also

malntained a permanent liaison with the Afghan King and

9. lbid. P.219,

[
o
-
=8

10, 228,

11.

et
{=n
[N
=1

P.378,

12. 1lbid. P.373.
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ultimately achieved the object. When Nawab Muzaffar Khan
was appolnted as the Subedar of Multan, he was only 23, but
keeping In view the requirements of the offlice he was
sufflciently mature and capable. Having reallsed the S1lkh
menace he recruited a large army and malntalned it permanently

12
for the defence of Multan with the permission of Timur Shah.

The mother of Mawab Shuja Khan was the real
sister of Wafadar Khan, the Wazlr of TImur Shah;thcrefore,
Mawab Muzaffar Khan also enjoyed the confidence of the Kabul
government, Mawab Muzaffar Khan was as dear to lhe Afghan

14
Wazir as hls own son.

His rule over Multan was very effective. Yar
Huhammad Khan TarI: was his Wazlr (Wakeel) who was an able
an& an experlenced man. He had already s rved his father
very scrupulously. Abdul Karim Khan Babar was appointed
as hils nalb by Timur Sh;:. He was a very clever and

experlrnced officer and had already served the 5ikhs very

intellligently. 1t was due to his cleverness that the Sikbs

" Pir Muha=mmad Khan was issueless,therefore, he was
succeedcd by his younger brother Din Muhammad Khan
{father of Ali Muhammad Khan, the author of
Tarkirat-ul-Muluk) as the chief of Khudakkas

(Khizer Khels); See: T.M., P.379.
13. Ibid. P.228.
14, Ibid. P.228,
it Tarin: The chief of Khuadadzal Tarin. His descendants

are still living in Multan. Abdul Haleem Khan Khuadad,
one of his descendants has many valuable and original
documents in his personal library.
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16
handed over the Fort to Timur Shah without any loss to

their valuables. Due to his cleverness he kept the Sikhs
satisfied with his arrangements and on th: other side,
Timur Shah was also happy with him for his support.Aftcr
the departure of the Afghan King, Mawab Muzaffar Khan had
repaired the rampart of the Fort and the ciiz. ALl the
S5addozais who had shifted to Shujaabad during the Sikh
anarchy came back to Multan alongvith other Afghans and
regained their old houses and lands. Mawabh Muzaffar Khan
also shifted to Multa» and constructed a new Shish Hah;?.
Later on, he shifted to the Fort where he buil! several

houses for his family as well as for his officers and the

staff.

The Province of Multan under Muzaffar ¥Xhan
extended its boundaries to the Chenab, thdRavi and the
Sutley. Huzaffargarh, Rangpur, lluradabad, Khangarh and

Ghazanfarnarh across the Chenab were also included in this

15, Ibid. P.228; 7.A., °P.50,51.
le. Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.47; 7.A,, P.50;
Ilbrat Namah,orp . P.250.
37, T.M., P.225; Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.47;
7.5\, P.50.
* Shish HMahai: situated on Abdali Road, thc prcsent
Commissioncr's house.

18. Jlukam Chand,op.cit., P.46.
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province, whereas Lodhran, Mailsi, ¥aror, Dunyapur Al
Kabula, although sltuated on this side of the Sutlej and
the Ravli were noui Included in Multan. The lengith of the
Province of Multan was one hundred and ten miles and the
breadth was seventy miléz.only the area near the river
was rich but the rest of the territory was not fértlle
and was thinly populated. During the Sikh anarchy,

many villages were rulned. The collected revenue 'was

Rs,5,50,000/-, of which 2,50,000' was fixed as the tribute
and was paid very regularly to the Afghan Kiﬁg. The army

of the Nawab consisted of 'two thousand men and twently

yuns but the number could be raised In emergency by
su&mé%ing to duty ten thousand or twelve thousand milfitia’'.
Nawab Muzaffar Khan made sufficient arrangements for the
defence of the Fort and the city. He constructed a store

for ammunitions in the fort. Hc paid special attention to

the recrultment and the training of his soldiers. He wa=:

19, Mountstdart Elphinstone, An_account of the Kingdom
of Caubnl,vol.if., Karachl, 1972, P..234,

20, Ibid. P.235., G.M.D.,- ....., P.50; P.O.6.,m.D., . .,
P.46; T.H., o PP L229,232; M.H.P., o, 1273,
wrltes tha. 'rthr (otoi income was Rs.6734u0, The
expenditurc is given below' :-

Pald to the King's treasury - 255000
Talukdars - 323400
Expenses of establishment - 45000
Charity - 50000
673400
also See: li.H.P.,- .. P,273.,writes that 'he commanded

1500 horse and cou:d muster 2000 horse and 4000 foot morc
There were 11 strong Forts'. They contained many pieces of
artillcry’'.
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in favour of cavalry, therefore, a major portion of his
reghlar army consisted of cavalry. He maintained a
strict discipline and Justice while dealing with his officer-

soldiers, personal attendants and the public,

After the departure of Timur Shah, the Panjab
21
faced a famine. In order to collect the grain, the 5lkhs

of Lahore numbering 20,000 horsemen attacked Hultiﬁ but
Nawab Muzaffar Khan resisted their attack very bravely with
his army and militia. In the meantime, the young Nawab
requestcd Nawab Rukunud-doulal Bahawal Khan Daudputra for
help but the Nawab offered no as&lstanii. Ultimately,
after devastating the rural populatlon, the S5ikhs went
back. In the meantime, the chiefs of Sials belonging to
the Jhang territory of Rehana, the Ahmadpur fort and the
Garh-Maharaja fort developed cordial relations with Mawab
Muzaffar Khan., Ouring the same period, 5ahib Khan 5ial,

a Zamindar of Jhang, with the help of Karam Singh Dhangl
attacked the territory of Rehana and busleged the Ahmadpur

-,"l e

fort. The people of the Rehana appealed to Hawab Muzaffar
25
Khan for help. 1t provided on opportunity for the MNawab to

Ala. Tl P.51,

22, Varma, Tnglish East India Company and the Afghans,
Calcutra, 1268, P.44; Yousuf Cardezi, op.cit,, 1?.47;
LAy Pods

¢). T.H., P.228.

246. Z.A., P.52.
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take revenge from the Sikhs, The Nawab despatched a

strong army under hls Commander Sa'adullahb thg. The

Multanl army after crossing the River Chenah gave them

a crushing defeat and put them to fligﬁz. It enhanced

the Image of Nawab Muzaffar Khan and his political Influence
Increased towards Jhang. This way Mawab Muzaffar Khan

took the revenge from the Slkhs and alse served the

Interest of hls Muslim brothers of the Jhang territory.

It was creditable for the Nawab to flght against his

enemies In the battle-field of thelr cholce. The Sikhs

were so dlscouraged that they did not attack Multan for

vore than silx years. It encouraged Nawab Muzaffar Khan and
he declded to punlsh the Daudputras. He despatched hils

army under Abdul Karim Khan Babar to Bahawalpii. The Hawab's
army marched In cover of darkness but the Nawab of Bahawalpur
was Informed wcll iIn tliz. The Bahawalpur army was ready

to glve flght on the right bank of the River Ghara and a

30
battle was fought in which Abdul Karim Khan Babar was shot dead.

25. Ibid. P.52,

26. Ibld. .52,

27. Ibid. P.52.

28, T.1,, P.,228: Shahfet Ali,op.cit., P.&5;
gives date in 1772 (1193 A.H.).
ARG I P.228; Shahamct Ali. op.cit., P.65;
writes Lhat Abdul Karlm Oabar

marched ©On dah.salpur on his owny _og'.Cit,'P-’j'I"' -
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31
The Multani army ran away and was pursued upto Shujaabad.

Ultimately a truce was concluded and Mawab Mucaffar Khan
expressed his rcgrets'for nis actigg. Mawab 'Muzaffar Khan
wrote a detailed letter to his patron the Afghan Wazir,
(Wafadar Khan) and informed him about the Sikh invasion.

He also wrote him about the cold attitude of the Mawab of
Bahawalpur and justified his action against the Daudputras.
He requested his patron to pursuade the Afghan King to
punish the Nawab of Bahawalpur. Nawab Rukunud-doulahMuhammad
dahawal Khan was a tributary of the Afghan King and had

not paid his nrreazg. It provided an opportunlty to Timur
Shah to take action against the Nawab of Bahawalpur. The
Afghan King decided to march to India and wrote to Nawab
Muzaffar 5han in September 1780 'to collect grain for
his troogs'. He despatched his Commander Sardar Madad Khan
in Octgger 1780 and followed him 'in the autumn of

1780 " The Nawab of Bahawalpur 'on hearing the necws of

the Shah's approach loaded his family treasurcs and

30, T.M., - P.228; ShahWmet Ali,op.cit., P.65;
Z.A,, P.51,

31, T.n,, P,228; Shahfet Ali,op.cit., P.é5,

32, T.M., P.229; Shahhet Ali, op.cit., P.&5;
7.A., P.51. -

33, M.JH.P. P.243; Varma, op.cit., P.45.
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provislisons o: camels and took refuge' in his stronghold

of Derawar 'situated In the heart of the water-less deseiﬁ'.
When the Shah's troops reached Dera Ghasl Khan, they were
Jolned by Nawab Muzaffar thz alongwith hils contingent.
Huzaffar Khan was also responslble to provide the graln

for the troops. The united army marched on Nahawalpur and
"plundered the clty and burnt the housig'.'ThmwTimur Shah
despatched Sardar Madad Khan with a strong' army to the
Derawar Fort. He made sufflclent arrangements for the
supply of 'food and water' for hls Commander 'against the
Nawzi'.Sardar Madad Khan besicged the Derawar Fort and dug
three wells at different places which provided him sufficlent
water. The Daudputras resisted with qrecat valour. In the
meantime, 'the magazine In the Fort caught fire' and the
Fort was capturgg. It 'disheartened Bahawal ¥Xhan' who
requested for peace 'by sending hls son' Mubarak Khan to
Timur Shah at Bahawalpur. He paid the Afghan King 'the

arrears of the tribute' and 'acknowledged' his overlordshlp,

with Lhe promise to remain loyal in future and 'agreced to

34, MHW.H.P,,. P.242; Varma,op.cit.,, P.51.

35, M.H.P., P.243.

36, Ibld. P.2as; T.A.S,, PP.73,74; Timur Shah
Durranl, P.21, B

37.  7.A., P.53.

38, ii.H.P,, P.243; T.A.S5., ‘ P.74.
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supply troops to his overlord in case of a fight between
41
him and the Sikhs'. Timur Shah accepted his submission and

retired to Kabul), taking Mubarak Khan as a hostage to
42

ensure the good hehaviour of the Nawab of Bahawalpur.

Before leaving for Kabul, Timur Shah appointed Shah Huhammad
43

*
Khan Badosai as the officer in charge of the Dcrawar fort.

39. M.H.P., : P.243: T.A.S5., P.74,

40, Z.A., P.53; T.A.5., RN

41, H.H.P., . PP.243,244; T.N.S5., PP.74,75.

42, "Tarikh~i-Sultani, . o PPL155,156: T.A.S.,
PP,74,75; Timur Shah Durrani, P.92.

* Shah HMuhammad Khan Padozai son of Wali thuhammad Khan
son of Muhammad Hayat Khan. The father of Huhammad
Hayat Khan naiptained hordes of camels for transportation
purposes. After his death his sons quarreled over the
division of property and consequently were impovershed.
tivirammad Hayat Khan entered into the personal services
of Nawab Abdul Aziz Khan. Tt was Shah Muhammad Khan
who o#doptecd soldiery as his career and he jolned
the army of Ahmad 5"“ah and later on served HNawab
Ali hohammad Khan a::d MNawab Shuja Khan. During the
siege of HMultan in January 1780 ° . he distinguished
himself, therefore, Timur Shah gave him 'a Jagir
at PDera Din Panah and one at Dcra Ghazi Khan,worth
Rs.1l0,000'., He built a fort at Dera Din Panah for
his family. He aaain distinquished himself during

Lthe sleqge ol the Derawar fort. He rose to a pruminent
nositien and Mawab Muzaffar Khan had realiscd it. He
dicd in 1751 He left three son:s, namely, Sarfaraz

Khan, Abdus S mad Khan and Hafiz Sartuland Khan,
Sarfaraz Khan lost his life during the sicge of Leiah.
His brothers bergan to quarrel on the property . -

ultimately AbduS§ Samad Khan setzed the whole., lic
served undcer Mawab Muzaffar Khan but was very ambitious
mer and bocame a rival of {lavwab MHuzalffar Khan; Ycc:

T.:, PR.247-252; op.citl.,

)
PP.310-J21,
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On the retlrement of the Afghan King, tzf Nawab of
Bahawalpur forc¢ihly took the Derawar for;. Shah Muhammad
Khan Badozal ran away to hls Jagir in Dera DIin Panah. He
appealed .o Nawab Muzaffar Khan for help but the Nawab

showed no respanse.

After the departure of Timur Shah, Nawab
Muzaffar Khan devoted himself to the welfare of his
people., 1In spitc of the fact that he was a youngman,he

showed a great sense of responsibllity. Multan which had

a
experlenced destruction many/times at the hands of thc
45
S1khs enjoyed peace and prosperity once agaln under the

bé
guidance of its able ruler Nawab Muzaffar Khan. He

maintalned law and order and tried his best to glve
securlty to his people. He paif speclal attention to the
welfare of the agrarilan communi;;. He was a ngreat builder,
He founded towns and provided the people with many other
facllities., MHe duqg sevecral canals and provided the farmers

with the canal water for irrigatlon purposes without

enhancing the revenue. Durlng hls first five years of rule,

43, C.r., P.31%; 7.A.,, F.53,
44, C.T., P.319; Z.A., PP.53,54,
*e Dera Din Painah: situated in Muzaffargarh and is

wronqly called Daira Din Panah.

45. Z.A., PP.68-52,

46, Ibid. P.52.

47, lbid. P.52.
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he devoted himself to the development and upllift of hls
people. There was no warfare and the 5ikhs did not
fnvade Multan for more than five years. Multan became
once again 'Darul Aman'. Those who had left the country
during the 5ikh period, once agaln came back to their
ancestral land. Nawab Muzaffar Khan remalined very loyal
to his Afghan master and paid him the tribute very
regularly. The Hawab of Bahawalpur had never paid the
tribute In one Instalment. He was always under the
pressure of his arrears and sometimes the outstanding
arrears were never paid, He was in aucunstant statr of
war with the Subedar of Pera Ghazl Hhag who was a tributory
of the Afghan King. The Nawab of Bahawalpur had grabed

2 larger area of southern Dera Ghazi Khan. The Afghan King
decided to punish him, Tlmur Shah once again 'invaded
India in December 1785 . * and reached Peshawar 'on the
18¢th Dunembgf: On the one side the Afghan King despatched

a strong army of 20,000 horsemen under his son Prince
Humayun and General 5ardar Madad Kham to Kashmir to crush
the revolt of Azad Khan son of Haji Karimdad Khan and on

50
the other side his Ceneral Sardar Ahmad Khan Hurcai marched

48. Ibid. P.53; T.A.5., PP.74.,75.

49, M.H.P., P,.245,

50. T.M., P.229; Shahmot hli.ns.cit.. B, 73
writes that Sardar Madad Khan was espatched tn'

Bahawalpur in 1785 A.D.(1200 A.H.) which 1ls incerrect
because he was sent to Kashmir soon after the defcat
of the royal army against Azad Khan; also 5ee:
M.H,P., PP.245-247,
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51
on Bahawalpur In 1786 (1200 A.H.) to punlish the Mawab.

Sardar Ahmad Khan Murzal advanced towards Dahawalpur via
Khangarh, When i.c reached Khangarh, he was joined by

- 52
Mawab Muzarffar Khan under the Instructlions of his master,

and provided graln for the royal troops. The unlted army

crossed the river and invaded Bahawalpur. The MHawab had

left '+ Bahawalpur earller and had entrenched himself 1in
53

the Derawar Fort. The city was sacked and the royal houses
54

were set on flre. Having been defeated the Mawab of Bahawalpur
pnald the arrcars of tribute with the promise to remain

55 56
loyal .=’ to the Afghan Klng. Then the royal army rctired.

The loyalty of Mawab Muzaffar Khan enhanced hls
prestlge in the eyes of his master but made others Jealous
of him. The Sikhs were opposed to the Afghan King and his
tributaries In Indla, hence, they invaded Multan once agaln
in 1787 y but due to the tough resistance and the valour
of young NHawab of Multan, they retired soon after devastating
the rural pupulatizi. The peaceful atmosphere of Multan had

been disturbed once again by the Sikhs which forced Hawab

Muzaffar «han to request his master's intervention to punish

51. . P.229.
52. Ibid. i’.222; Shahimet All,op.cit., P.73.
53. Shabmet Ali,op.cit., PP.73,74.

S4. Ibid. P.74,
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the Sikhs. 'The Nawab of Bahawalpur had not paid tribule'’

to Timur Shah as usual and 'the annual subsidy from Sind
58

had remained unpaid for several years past'. In such

circumstances, Timur Shah left Kabul for India in December

59
1788 . (Rabiul Awwal 1203 A.H.). He had already
written to Nawab Muzaffar Khan 'to collect grain, cloth
60
and other necessary material for his forces', When the
61

Sikhs heard of his arrival, they ran away to the forests.

The Afghan King with his strong army, ‘consisting of
62
1,20,000 cavalry' reached Khangarh via Derajats. lle encamprd

at Khangarh wher~ Nawab Muzaffar Khan joined him alongwith
63
his contingent. He was made responsible for all supplies

to the royal army. In Khangar’s the Saddozais of HMultan met
him and gave him assurance of their loya]?:. The Afghan
King marched on Bahawalpur and the Nawab alongwith his
family ngbers once again took shelter in his stronghold

of Derawar. Ultimately the Daudputras were defcated and

Bahawalpur “as captured. Timur Shah despatched Sardar Madad

66

Khan Ishagzai to the Derawar Fort. On hcaring the arrival

55, Ibid. PP.75,76.

56. 1hid. P.76.

57. T.HM., P.229; Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit., P.u47.

586. HM.H.P., P.249,

59. T.H., ' P.PP.140,229; Shahamel Ali,op.cit., P,77;
\ogsuf LJPHQZ%. op.cit., P.47; h.H.p.. P.249;
writes that Timur Shah marched from Peshawar nn the
10th November'. which is incorrect because he has

not quotecd any original source.
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of the Afghan General, Rukunud-doulakhBahawal Khan left
Alam Khan as in'oharge of the Derawar For' and 'he took to
flight - Bikan;Z’.Thqughan General besieged the Derawar
Fort. The Daudputra chief had reallsed his weaknesses and
at once sent Izzet Rae, as hls agent to the Afghan King

to offer his submlsslon. 'The agent was admitted to an
oudlence through the Interest of Noor Muhammad Khan Baba;
the Ameen-ul—HuIi, who was a frilend of the Khan' (the
Daudputra chief) and 'was favourably receivgg'.Tlmur Shah
accrpred the submlssion only on payment of the arrears

of tribute and the presence of his son Mubarak Khan 1In

the royal court as hostagz. The Nawab of Bahawalpur aqgreed
and sent hls son Mubarak Khan alongwith the arrears of

70
tribute of ten lacs. Tlmur Shah bestowed upon him a Khilat

60, M,H.P., . P.249; Varma,op.cit., P.51,

61, M.H.P.,. P.249, .

62. 1lbid. P.249; T.M., . p.l40,

€7, Shahamet Ali,op.clt., P.77; Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit.,
L.A. . P.53.,

64. T.M., P.229.

65. Sﬁahamnk Ali,op.cit., P.77; Tate. op.cit., P.91;
T.0H., P 150. ) -

66. Shahamet Aii,op.cit., P.78; Tate,op.cit., P.91;

T.M., , 5150, T "

67. Shahamet Ali,op.cit., P.78; T.M., N P.140;
M.H.PL, . P.250.

P.47;
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and also gave him a stipend of rupees twelve thousand from
: 71
the revenue of Multan. He took Mubarak Khan with him to

Kabul and 'conferred on him the title of Sarbuland Khan'
72

and granted him 'the State of Bahawalpur through a Farman'.
He blanned to ralse Mubarak Khan's claim against his father

73
but could not do it and was disappointed.

After his Bahawalpur campaign, the Afghan King
halted at Khangarh where all the Saddozais waited on him
‘again. Timur Shah gave them stipends according to thelir
status. Nawab Muzaffar Khan had always rendered very
valuable services to his master, therefore, in the begirning
the Afghan King reduced the revenue of Multan to one lac
of rupeZ:, but later on, on the instigation of Nesr Muhammad
Khan Babar, Ameen-ul-Mulk,Timur Shzg was annoyed with the
Subedar. Neor Muhammad Khan Babar, as officer in charge of
the Finance Department, showed several lacs of rupees as
arrears. Timur Shah asked Nawab Muzaffar Khan to submit the
accouzg. On his failure to submit the account the Afghan

77
King increased revenue of Multan to three lacs of rupees.

X% Ameen-u!-jlulk: Finance Minister.
68. T.M., . P.1403 Shahamet Ali,op.cit., P.7%.
69. T.M., P.141; Shahamet Ali,op.cit., P.79;

Tate,op.cit., P.91.
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Mawab Muzaffar Khan had to face a delicate situation
because if he refused to pay, thecre were other claimant
ready to pay the same amount for the Subcdari of Hultzg.

ile accepted the royal verdict with mental reservation and
did not agree to glve the previous account on the basis of
new assessment. One day, Timur Shah ordered to imprison
the officers of the Nawab. When Muzaffar Khan came to
know, he asked the royal officers to arrest him instead of
his servan:z. The moment Timur Shah was Informed of the
Nawab's reactlion, he ordered to set free all his officers
because n would not defame the Afghan King in India and
let the pcople say that Timur Shah arrested a Saddozal
against the non-paymcnt of a certalin amount. He remitted
the previous arrcars and confirmed him as Subedar of Multg:.
The enemles of Nawab Muzaffar Khan were disappointed when
they came to know of the magnanimity of the Afghan King who
did not like to disgrace iWawab Muzaffar Khan hence thelr

a1
schemes failed.

70. T.M., P.l4l; Varma,op.cit., P,51; Shahamet Alfi,
op.cit., P,78; Tate.op.cit., .

71. T.M., D.141; Shahamet Ali, op.cit., P.78.

72. P.5.G., B.S., P.59,

73, Ibid. P.59,

74, T.M., CP.229.

75. 1bid. PP.232,2.3).
76. Ibid. P,229.
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After settling the affalrs of HMultan and
Bahawalpur, Timur Shah pald his attentlon toggrds Sindh and
succeeded In collecting the arrears of tribute. Then the
Afghan King retired to Kabul in early 1789 and ttawab
Muzaffar Khan accompanled him to Dera Ghazi Khan, having

83
obtalned his permisslon he came back to Hultan,

Timur Shah was conslderate to Hawab Muzaffar
Khan due to Wafadar Khan's patronage of the Nawab. On hls
return journey, Wafadar Khan dled In Kabul. Tlmur Shah
summoned hls son Rechmatullah Khan from Kandhar and appolnted
him as hils Waz?a. Rehmatullah Khan 5addozal also treated
Nawab Muzaffar Khan with great respect and affection and
patronised h?z. Rehmatullah Khan could not enjoy the

confidence of hls master for long because Noor Muhammad Khan

Babar, Ameen-ui-Mul, Instigated the Afghan King against him,

77. T.MH., . PL229; Z.A.L P.53.,writes
that the revenue of Multon was increased to double.

78. lbid. P.229; Z.A., P.53.

79, T.1., P.229,.

80. Pebds FLdYG Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., PP.483,49;
Shahamot Vie op.elt., P.79; Z.A.,. P.53.

te. TuHL, n.230.

82, M.H.P.. P.251., writes that 'he succeeded in

exﬁ%tinq about sixty lakhs of rupces'.

83. Yousuf fardezi, op.cit., PP.48,49,
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The Wazir excused his presence in the court on the grounds
of Lllness and did not attend the court till the death of
Timur Shgg. After hils death when Shah Zaman succeeded to
the Afghan throne, Rehmatullah Khan was again honoured

and glven the title of Wafadar Khan II and was appolinted

as Wazir. Wafadar Khan became very powerful, and the
Afghan King never thought of doing anything against his
wishes. He was a great source of strength for Mawab Muzaffar

87
Khan. .

When Ghulam Qadir Ruhlla assumed power in Declhi
in 1788 . . and blinded the Mughal Emperor Shah Alam II,
Mifza Ahsan Bakh! the second son of the Mughal Emperor
decided to go to Kabul to seek heclp from the Afghan King.
On his way to Kabul, he stoppe:d at Multgg in summer 1790 /
He was qiven due respect by Nawab Muzaffar Khan and was

provided with all facllitles. In Kabul, he met the Afghan

King who gave him the assurance to invade India once agaln.

84. T.M., o P.172,

85, lbid. P.172.

86, Ibid. P.233.

87. 1bld. P.172.

88.

~N
>
e
i
s



-184-

Timur Shah also gave him a stipend of one lac of rupees

89
from the revenve of Multan. Mirza A.-.an flakht reached
Mu,tan in ilay 1792 He was reccived by the MHawab
20
and was lo. «~d in the Mirza Jan garden. Hec indulged in

loose talk against the Afghan King which was somehow
reported to him. Whilce receiving the news of this
intrigue, the Afghan King became anqry and 'sent secret
instructions to thc Governorg?f Multan to keep HMirza

Ahsan Bakht under surveillence'. His stipend was -lso

cancelled and ultimately, he was allowed to leave Multan.

When Mirzs Ahsan Bakht was already in Kabul,
Ghazind Din, the Delhi Wazir, .+lso proceeded to Kabul via

Bahawalpur, Hultan and Derajats. When he arrived near
922

Multan in summer 1790 . from Khairpur Tomi Wali,MNawab

Muzafiar Khan scnt his eldest son Sarfaraz Khan to receive
93
hi-. He was duly honoured and brought to Multan as the

gucst of Nawab Muzaffar Khan. HNawab Muzatfar Khan cai)oed
94
on him apd provided him ai!l the facilities. In Kabul, Ghaziud

Din met the Afghan King who, on the rcquest of llirza
95
Ahsan Bakht, g anted him pardon for having murdered Alamgir II.

89. Ibid. P.54: T.A.S., P.luG
90. 71.° , P54
91, W.H.P., P.259
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The Mawab Wazir of Oudh sent his gifis to Kabul
and his 'agents took the route through Bahawalpur , Multan
and Derajzg'. They were also recelved with honour in
Myltan and were provided all the facilities . In December
1797 A.D. (Rajab 1212 A.H.) Ghulam Muhammad Khan son of
Faizullah Khan son of Nawab Ali Muhammad Khangguhila, while
on his way to Mecca via Kabul stopped at Multan. HNawab
Muzaffar Khan received him with great respect and extended
him all the facllltizg. ihulam Mubammad Khan also called
on the Afghan King at Kabul who bestoﬁed upon him the

..99
Knilab, .

Mawab Muzaffar Khan maintained very cordlal
relations with all the prominent Muslims of India., He
eXchanged gifts with them. He paid due respect to all
those who visited his domaln. He commanded great respect
and was the only hope for the Muslims In the northern India,
He hoisted high the flag of independence in the beginning
of the 19th century and faced bravely the Sikh menace under
Maharaja Ranjit Singh.He laid down his life while defending
his homeland and to save the life and honour of the

Muslims of Nort! —-rn India.

94, Ibid. P.57.

95, M.H.P.,- P.258.

96. Ibid. P.255.
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the
Mawab Muzaffar Khan was conscious of/entire

political situation in Northern Indla. He had tried to
unite the Muslims of Multan but seeing thelr weaknesses
made a continuous struggle to safeguard hils domain from

the aggression of the Slkhs.

Mawab Muzaffar Khan had started hls rule In
Multan with great confidence. Although Timur Shah had not
invaded Iniia again after his lost invasion in 178%-%
but his officlals had extracted revenues regularly from
his Indlan Provinces including Multan. Timur Shah had
Increased the revenues of Multan, hence MHawab Muzaffar
Khan had to collect thé revenues with great harshness which
was resented by hls peoé?g. In the meantime, Timur Shah
was infurmed that Mawab Muzaffar Khan had constructed a
throne for himself, on which he used to sit while holding
the court. The Afghan King had already tolerated his using
of 'Palki'. He showed his annoyance to Wafadur Khan who

communlcated it to Nawab Muzaffar Khan, 'on hearing of his

annoyance the MNawab gave up hils sitting on the throne' and

97. 1.A., P.55; T.A.S.,  P.138.
98. 1.A., P.55; T.A.S., P.138.

99.. - Yo lubey P.138.
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101 ,

the 'Palki' as well. Then he used to sit on a carpet while
102
holding his court. l.ater on Nawab Muzaffar Khan had become

lethargic and carefree in his official duties due to his
over-confidence. He did not care for anybody and became
harsh in his dealings with his people. Hec even ignored the
roval order of joining Sardar Abdul Rahim Khan Hoti in the

103
campaign of Kachi-Shumalli.

The Province of Kachi-Shumali consisted of Thal,
Bhakar, Mankera and Leiah. It had different chiefs in thelir
respective areas and all of them belonged to the Mirrani
and Jaskani triégg. These Baluch ching were independent
in their internal affairs but they had accepted the over-
lordship of the Afghan Kings since the days of Ahmad Shah.

The annual subsidy from them had remained unpaid since

the departure ofTimur Shah from India. In the meantime,

100. T.HM.. P.230.
101, Ibid. P.230,

* Palki: A wooden cot,covered with beautiful curtains,
beint carriec by slaves/scrvants was in the common
use of royal hou~ec of Mughals in Shahjahanabeo.
Sarbuland Khan Saddozal saw it in Shahjahanabad,
he got it constructed on that pattern and used it
in Multan. When Nawab Shuja Khan saw it, he liked
it very much and also got il cons':=ucted. He used
it during the lifetime of Ahmad Shah who ignored it.
But Timur Shah did not like the idea.

102, T.M., P.230,.
103. Ibid. . ‘i; Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P,u48;

Shaohamet Ali,op.cit., P.S3.

104. Gazetteer of Dera-Ismail-Khan,Lahore, 1883-84
PP.32-35.
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Mian Abdul Nabi, a Kalhora chief was ousted from Sindh by
Hir.Fateh All Khan Talpur in 1784 .'1198 A.H.). He ran
away to Kabul for help. On his way to Kabul, he stopped
at Multan. Nawab Muzaffar Khan provided him with all the
facilitigz and he proceeded to Kabul. Mir Fateh Ali Khan,
the Talpur chief, sent Agha lbrahim Shah Irani as his
envoy to Kabul to get the royal Farman, conficrming the
Talpur chicf as Subedar of Sindh. He was instructed to
give the assurance of paying the tribute regularly to the
Afghan King, Mlan Abdul Nabi then requested Timur Shah
for help as he was his tributoury. The Afghan King asked
him to pay nine lacs of rupégg, the arrear of tribute but
he failed to deposit the amount in the royal treasury.
Timur Shah instructed the envoy of Mir Fateh Ali Khan to
pay nine lacs of rupees in lieu quubcdari of Sindh, which
Be immediately arranégz. Mir Fateh All Khan was then
appointed Subedar of Sindh. Mian Abdul Nabl was granted a

stipend of one lac of rupees from the revenue of Dera Chazi
108

Khan, Iiian Abdul Nabi constantly tried to convince the

* Hayat Khan and Muhammad Khan Jaskani,

¢ Timur Shah gave him the title of Mutamidud Doula
Shahnawaz Khan Feroz Jang in 1780 (1194 ALH.)
See:Ghulam Raspol Mehr, Tarikh-i-S5°ndh,vol.iii.,P.787.

105. 7.7, P.55.

106. & »ikn Munammad Azam, Jawahir-i-Abbasig (Persian HS),

B.hawalpur (1609-30 1 PPAbY 265,
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Afghan King and after two years he ultimately succeeded
In obtaining the royal order to conquer Sindh. Timur Shah
despatched Ahmad¢ Khan Nurzal and Bostan Khan to Sindh In
1788 . .(1202 A.H.). Orders were also lssued to the

Nawab of Nahawalpur and Nawab Muzaffar Khan to help the
Afghan Generi?z. Nawab Muzaffar Khan joined the Afghan
aiig alongwith his small force. But the Afghan army fafled
to conquer Siiii for Mian Abdul Nabi. In the meantime, Mir

Fateh Ali Khan sent his envoy to “abul, to pay the tribute.
Timur Shah confirmed him as the Subedar.or Siiéﬁ. Mian
Abdul.Nabi had also sent his envoy Lala Izzat Ral to the
rqyal court. He was still at Multan, on hils way to Kabul,
wﬁen Mian Abdul Nabl heard the news of the confirmation of
his opponent as the Subedar of Sindh. He at once, recalled
his envoy from Muliji. Mian Abdul Nabi again persuaded

the Afghan King to help him. The Afghan King then granted
him the Province of Kachi-Shumali and despatched Sardar

114
Abdul Rahim Khan Hoti In 1791 .(1205 A.H.) to his help.

107. Ibid, P.265.
108. Ibid. P.259,.

109. P.229; Jawahir-i-Abbasia,

T.H.,
PP.271,272.

NI P.229.

—

110,

-—

111. F¥errier,op.cit., PP.116,118.

112, Jawahir-i-Abbasia, P,285.
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The Afghan King also ordered Nawab Qamaruddin Khan Subedar

of Dera GChazl Khan, the Nawab of Bahawalpur and Nawab
115
Muzaffar Khan to assist Mian Abdul Nabi. The Afghan army

under the command of Sardar Abdul Rahim Khan Hoti conquered

the Province of Kachl-Shumali except Mankera for Mian Abdul
116
Nabl. The Balrh chlef of Mankera defended the Fort bravely

and the slege pralonged. The Afghan King sent Khan Savaani

to Nawab MHuzaffar Khan with clear instructions to 1lnduce
117
him to joln the campaign of Mankera. The Afghan King showed

his annoyance when the MNawab could not joln the Afghan
118
General. On the arrlival of the Afghan envoy, MNawab Muzaffar

Khan; who had already prepared to proceed to Mankera,
appointed Muhammad Kha: son of Yar Muhammad Khan alias
Yaran Khan Saddozal as his naib in Multan and hurriedly
proceeded for the campai;:. The mere arrival of the Mawab
created panic in the enemy's camp and the united army

120
conquered Mankera Fort after nine months of its siege

113, 1Ibid. PP.301,302.

ll4, T.M,, PP.142,143,231,232,

——

115, 1lbid. PP.231,232: Yousuf Gardezi,aop.cit,, P.48;
Shahamet. Ali, op.clt., P.83, , '

116, T.M., PP.231,232; Z.A., . P.55.
117, T.HM., y,P.23%;Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit.,P.48;Shahamet Ali

op.cit.,P.83.,writes that Mankera was occupied by
Muhammad Khan who resisted Abdul MNabi which is incorrect
because at that time Muhammad Khan was nalb of lawah
Muzafiar Khanfin Multan and he was appointed Subcdar

of Mc-kera by Shah Zaman. See: T.H., PP.231,

232; Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit.,P.48; Z.A.,on.cit.,P.55.
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in winter 1791 . (1206 A.H.). During the ahsence of

Mawab Muzaffar Khan, Muhammad Khan verylably looked

after the administration., After the conquecst of Mankera,
Mawab Muzaffar Khan came back to Multan in early 1792

(1206 A.H.). At the time of conquest of Mankera, Timur Shah
was in Peshawar. He acknowledged the services of Nawab

Muzaffar Khan because he had shown great valour in the

118, J.M PpP,231,232; Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit.,
ee——

*
.48; Shahamet All,op.cit., P.82.

]

*  Muhammad Khan son of Yar Muhammad Khan alias Yaran
Khan son of Ghazi Khan son of Sohbat Khan son of
~Ismail Khan son of Bahadur Khan was son of Malik Saddu.
" 'The descendants of NRahadur Khan are called Bahadur Khel
Saddozai. VYar Muhammad Khan married a Tarin woman
who gave birth to a s»n named Muhammad Khan, Yar Muhammad
"Khan became mad and killed his wife, therefore, the
Infant was brought up in the house of his maternal
uncle. He was patronised and financed by Muhammad
Sharif Khan Khudakka at the time of hls joining the
army of the Subedar of Multan. He started his career
as a foot soldier but later on he was provided horse
by Muhammad Sharif Khan and joined the cavalry of !lawab
Shu}a Khan. He was a brave, attractive, tall and
robust young man. During the Subedari of MNawab Sharif
Khan ln Dera Ghazi Khan, he was taken as Jamadar,
When Nawab Muzaffar Khan became Subedar of Multan,
he came back to Multan a3n:y joined his army. He started
his carcer wlth thirty rupees per month but soon
promoted to thc rank of a confident of the Subedar.
When Nawab Muzaffar Khan went to Mankera, he appointed
him as his naib and paid him one hundred rupces
monthly. It was a turning point in hls life and he
Introduced himself as a real able and brave administrator.
He made his fortune and raised hls personal contingent.
During the reign of Shah Zaman, due to the kind
favour of Wafadar Khan II, he was appointed as thec
Subedar of Kachi-Shumali with the title of Huinuddoula
Sarbuland Khan Bahadur Feroz Jang. During the reign
of Shah Mahmud, he was also appointed as the Subedar
of Dera Ismail Khan; See: T.M., . PP.264-283;
also See: / PP.3¢,37.

D7,



-192-

campalgn of Mankera. The Afghan King remitted fifty thousand
rupees from his arrears of tribiié. It encouraged him and

the Nawab decided to go to the royal court for the settlement
of his arrears of tribute with the requust to get concesslon
in the annual tribute as wéii. Nawab Muzaffar Khan also paid
his attention towards his internal affairs and settled them
before leaving Multan for Kabul. It took several months

to proceed to Kabul because the rivers wcre also flowing in
flood. He walted till the decrease of the river water,
Before leaving Multan he appointed Muhammad Khan Saddozai

’as his niaib and then proceeded via Derajats. In the meantime,
Timur Shah had arrived in Peshawar to spend his winter of
1792 A.D. Nawab Muzaffar Khan reached therec with great

123
confidence and met the Afghan King. He was asked to place the

119. T.M., PP.231,232; Yousuf Gardczi,op.cit.,P.48;
Shahamet Ali,op.cit., PP.82,83; Z.A... _ PP.55,564.

120, T.M., PP.142,143,232; Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit.,
P.48; Shahamet Ali,op.cit., P.83; Z.A., P.56.

* Previously it was fixed 3 lacs of rupees annually,
now after this concegsion it became 2 lacs and fifty
thousand; T.M., . P.232,

121. T.M.. o P.232.

122. Ibid. 1,232,

123, T.M., P.232; Z.A., , P.56.
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account of the arrears of tribute. The Mawab was disappointed
because Meer Muhammad Khan Babar, the Amecnul -Mulk who was
against him created hurdles in hils way. The reason of his
being against the Nawab was that once a relatlve of the

Ameenul-Mulk killed a farmer in Multan. His case was brought
Fa
before the Nawab who judiciously ordered his execution In spit:
124
of the request of Her Muhammad Khan Babar. Under the Instructloms

of the Ameen-ul-Mulk, the flnance departmunE prepared a list
125

of arrears of tribute which was calculated In lacs, The
Diwan and the offlcers of the MNawab tried to satisfy the
royal officials but In vam. The matter was reported to the
Hawab who ultimately and ayalnst his wishes, decided to go
to Nesr Muhammad Khan Babar to seek hils favour because the
Nawab's patron Rechmatullah Khan was not attendling the royal
ﬂuiii. Hawab Muzaffar Khan wvilsited the place of Ameenul-Mulk,
who agreed to help him and the next day the account was

set’ Jed according to the wishes of the Haigz. Hawab Muzaffar

1238
Khan felt Jisj.aced after his visit to Mer Muhammad Khan Babar

124. T.M., P.233.

L Hesr Muhammad Khan flabar, Ameenul-Mulk was in charge
of Treasury; See: M.H.P., P.269; Also Sce:
TohiS. ., P.141. Also See: D.7., P.244,

1c5., 1bid. M.233.

126. 1bid, P.233; T.A.5., P.140,
127.  T.M., P.233.

128. Ibid. ».233,
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but there was no way out. At that time Timur Shah was
seriously ill and when the matlcr was reported to him, he

felt very sorry and remarked that the Mawab should have

129
requested him instead of his Amcenul-Mulk. The Afghan King
130
proceeded t~ 'labul and Hawab Muzaffar Khan accompanied him.
131
Timur Shah died in Kabul on 18th 'lay 1793 .(1207 A.H.).

Timur Shah was succeeded by his son Shah Zaman. Rehmatullah
*
Khan son of Fatchullah Khan Saddosai, the Afghan Wazir was

a patron of MNawab Muzaffar Khan and treated him with great

132
affection, Shah Zaman conflrmed MNawab Muzaffar Khan as
133
Subedar of Multan in 1793 ° ,(1207 A.H.). The Afghan King

also bestowed upon him the Khilat and remitted one lac and

ten thousand rupc~s from the arrears of tribute with the
. 134
L )
concession of [~rty thousand rupees from the annual tribute

129, 1Ibid. P.233,

130, Ibid, P.233., Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit., P.48.,writes
that Timur Shah tnok Mawab !uzaffar Khan alongwith
him to Kabo!. While on his way to Pcshawar, the
Afghan King fell seriously i1l and later on dirnd
in KXabul, otherwise, Timur Shah had the intention of
putting the M"Mawab in the confinement which 1is
incorrect because Timur Shah never invaded lndia in

1792 . before his death; See: 7.A., P.56.
131, n.H.P., P.261; Tate.op.cit.. P.22;
Tarikh-j-Sultani, ‘ PP.159-161; D.2., . ' P.
* He war nromoted from Wazir to Prime Minister in
1192 (1213 A.H.); See: D.Z.,0p.cit., P.235: T.M,,
op.cit., P.l44; T.A,S.. «.cit., P.140.
132, At P.233; Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit.,P.49;

D.7., "P.239,240.,

23
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Mawab Muzaffar Khan came back to Multan in winter 1793
via Derajats. In his long absencr, Muhammad Khan Saddozal
ruled over !itltan very successfully. It provided him an
opportunity to get an experlience and training in the
administration which he utilised in administering the

Province of Kachi-Shumali Aduring his governorship.

Mawab Muzaffar Khan had gained some experience
from his visit to Kabul. He had seen the death of one
monarch and the successlon of another. Shah Zaman wns a
young man of 23, the Nawab had studied and watched him
closely. He had also Judged his politlcal wisdom alongwith
the political c¢nvironment of Kabul. He had noticed his
weaknesses and the intrigues of his courtiers. It all made
Nawab Muzaffar Khan bold and the fcar of the royal authority

135
had vanished from his mind.

S5hah Zaman, after scttllng his intcrnal problems
paid his att.olion towards his Indian affairs. He marched
'in person to Dcra Ghazi Khan to consolidate his authority

over Sindh', He reached Dera Ghazi Khan on 2th January

136
1794 . He collected the 'arrears of rcvenue' and qgave
* ¥ Annual tribute of Multan:After this concession, it
becamec 2 lacs and +ten thensand.
133, T.,H., P.233; Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit.,P?.49;
Z.A., P.56; D.Z., PP.3¢, 37

I3n. T.i., rP.233.
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audience to all notables. The Nawab of Bahawalpur sent his
son Falzullah Khan. He alongwith several other notable
Saddozals of Multan including Din Muhammad Khan Khudakka
walted on 'his maj}esty, to condole with him on the death

137
of the late monavch and to congratulate him on his succession'.

All of them were recelved with great honizg. PDin Huhammad
Khan Khudakka and several other Saddozais of Multan lodged
complaints to the Afghan King against the harsh attitude
of Nawab!'Muzaffar Kigz. Shah Zaman pald full attention to
their complalnts but d!ld not take any action against the
Nawab due to the favourable attitude of his Wazir towards
quab Muzaffar Kigg. On the other hand, the Mawab was fed
up with their complaints and hi{s attitude became more harsh
which caused division among the Saddoz;?i. This division
weakened the position of the Nawab and it was badly felt
during the invasions of the S5ikhs under Maharaja Ranjit

S5ingh. He realised it and tried to redress their genuine

grievances but falled to win over their hearts.

136. Tatc.,op.cit P.96; T.M., PP.146,147.

137, T.M., PP.146,147,23%4; Shahamet All,op.clt., P.8%
138. T.M., PP.146,147,234;5hahamet Ali,op.cit,, P.85.
139, T.M., P.234,
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Mian Abdul Nabi the Subedar of Kachi-Shumali
was in arrears of tribute worth 1,20,000 rupees. He became
also unpopular due to his tyranny. He also met the Afghan
King in Dera Ghazi Khan, who asked him to clear his account.
Due to the good offices of Nawah Muzaffar Khan, 'five hundred
camels were agreed in lieu of that iﬁi'. But he failed to
furnish the same. It rcsulted in his dismissal. Shah Zaman,
on the recommendation of Wafadar Khan II, appointed Muhammad
Khan Saddozai (who was naib of Nawab Muzaffar Khan )as the
Subedar of Kachi-Shum;ii. After settling his Indian affairs,
Shah Zaman retired in February 1794 - The Afghan King
1ssued orders to Nawab Muzaffar Khan, the Subedar of Dera
Ghazi Khan and Sarfaraz Khan Badozal to assist him in
recovering the Province of Kachi-Shumiii. Nawab Muzaffar Khan
placed the army at his dispoigi and Muhammad Khan Saddozal
marched on Leiah, the capital of Kachi-Shumali. Mian Abdul
Nabi fought a battle outside the Lefah Fort and after being

defeated closed the gates of the Fort. During the siege,

141, 1Ibid. P.234,

Pp——

142. Shahamet Ali,op.cit., P.85.

143, T.H,., P.278; Yousuf Gardczi,op.cit., P.50; ‘
Shahamet: Ali,op.cit., P.87; Gazetteer of the Dera Ismail
Khan District,1883-84., P.35372.A., , P.56;
D/, P.37,.

lag, T.M,, : '.278; Yousuf GCardezi,op.cit., P.50;

Shahamet Ali.op.cit., P.87; Z.A., ~— —  D.56.
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sevenal prominent persons from both sjdes including Abdul
Rahim Khan Babar, Sarfaraz Khan Badozal amd Muhammad Arif
Khan son of Mian Abdul Mabl were kilizz. Mian Abdul MNabi
ran away to Dera Ghafl Khan and the Fort was captured by
Muhammad Khan Saddoisz. This way the Province of Kachl-
Shumal! was conqurred with the help of HMHawab Muzafftar

Khan and It enhanced his image.

Mawab 'Muzaffar Khan's rule was a continuous war'
but still he paid hls attentlon towards the bhetterment
and development of hls people. He reallsed the [mportance
of 'Musan Hattf'on the road leading from Multan to Dera
Ghazi KﬁZﬁ,on the right silde of the river Chenab. lir declded
to bulld a Fort there, therefore, 'the Fort and town of
Muzaffargarh' were founded in 1794 149' He also repalred
the Fort of Khangarh, the Fort of Ghazanfargarh, the Forts
at Sikandarbad and Shujaabad. He dug many canals and

provided facilltles to the people. Muzaffargarh becawe hls

central town on the right slde of Chenab. Thils way the

145, T.M,,op.cit.,?.278; Yousuffardezi,aop.cit., P.50;
Shahamet All,op.cit., P.87; 2.A,,0p.cit., P.56.

Kachi Janubi: TL consisted of Alipur, Arain, Kinjhar,Khor,
Mahra, 5S¢rl and Trund. Previously it was in the
possessinn of the Nawabs of Thal but 'between 1790 A.D.
and the cnd of the century Mawab Bahawal Khan IT1
took possecssion' of it. Now it forms the southern and
western nart of Lhe Murzaffargarh Tehsil; See: P.D.G.,
Muyraffargarh, P.32. ‘

146. T.M.,op.cit.,PP.250,251,278;Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit.,P.50;
Shahamet Ali,op.cit., P.87; Jawahir-i-AbbasIa,op.cit.,
PPL312,314, —
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territory on the right bank of the river Chenab attracted
the people. The agriculturists migrated there from the
nther parts of the territory. During the downfall of the
Mughals, the Provinces of Sindh, Multan,Bahawalpur,™Pan}ab
and Kashmir became the areas of influence of the Afghan
Kingdom, But after the death of Timur Shah, their internal
feuds provided the opportunity to the Indian Provinces to
behave Independently. The Sikh menace encouraged it. The
Subedars of the Afghan Provinces had realised the weaknesses
of the Afghan Kings after the death of Timur Shah and mere
.obtaining a voyal Farman from Delhi or Kabul was nothing;
the real thing was to have a strong base alongwith a strong

army, Nawab Muzaffar Khan had realised it sincc his visit

to Kabul and was doing his best to provide all the facllities

to his people to hi» deep roots amongst his people. He

had constructed many forts in different parts of his territory

and had posted hls men for their defence. This way he

strengthened his position In his territory. It increcascd

his influence nhich was felt far and wide. The geographical
147, T.M,, P.279; Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit., P,50;

Shahamet Ali,op.cit., P.87.

*® Musan Hatti:A shop situated on the right bank of the

river Ciicrab,

148. Punjab District Gazetteers, vol.xxxiv-A,,Muzaffargarh
District (1908),Lahore, 1910 P.31.

149, Ibid. P.1.
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situation of the territory of the Nawab also helped him

in strengthening his position. 'A favourable saying of the
local :lstoriiig' indicates safety and prosperity of the
territory of Nawab Muzaffar Khan. Nawab Muzaffar Khan paid
equal attention to all parts of his territory. He made
remarkable improvements in the country on the right bank

of the Chenab speclally in Rangpur! Muradabad, Muzaffargarh,
Khangarh, Ghazanfargarh but never neglected his area on

the left bank of the river Chenab which was considered as

his stronghold. He also paid special attention to Sikandarabacd

Shujaabad and Multan.

After the retirement of Shah Zaman, Nawab
.
Muzaffar Khan wrote him a detallcd letizi on l4mMarch 1794
(27hRajab 1208 A.H.) and tried to convince him of his loyalty,
probably he was afraid of the complaints made to the Afghan
King by the neatable Saddoz;fi of Multan. He also invited
the Afghan King to invade India, but Shah Zaman could not

respond due to his preoccupation in his internal affalirs,

* Udhar Dilhi di Sultanat men futur, Idhar Shahan Kabul
ki nazaron se dur., See: Ibid. P.30.(on that side
anarchy in the Delhi Kingdom; on this side far from
the eyes of the Kngs of Kabul). It is generally said
about Muzaffargarh but it is also true about Multan.

150. Ibid., P.31.

—————

151. D.zZ., PP.38-40,

Note: The original Farman/is available in Kabul. It is a
detailed self explainatory letter. It is also a
piece of literature. Sec: D.Z., PP.38-40.




-201-

His tr-'hers Mahmud and Humayun had revolted agains? him.

Prince Mahmud surrendered an'! was pardoned through the

153
good offices »f his mother who m:t Shah Zaman at Dilaram
vn early 1795 but Prince Humayun fled to Baluchlstan.

In the meantime, orders were issued 'to Hultan,ﬂahawalpoze
and to the Rulers of Sind, to prevent his further advaige'.
Prince llumayun came back to his ancestral land but was
defeated by S@rdar Ahmad Khan MNurzai near Kandhar 'on 9th
August 1795 e Prince Humayun once agnin rectired to
Baluchistan. From there he went to Kachi-Shumali via Sibi
alongwith his small contingent numbering one hundpgd, When
he reached the vicinlty of Leiah, the news of his arrival
was reported to Nawab Muhammad Khan Saddozai, Governor of

Kachi-Shumali. As the Governor approached there with a

‘arce of five hundered horsemen, fightin+ took place in

which Prince Sultan Ahmad son of Prlnce Humavun and several

156
others were killed.Prince llumryun was wounded and capturcd.
152, T.M,, . P.234,

153. Tatre,op.cit., P.100,

154, Ibid. P.97; Shahamet Ali,op.cit., P.88.,Hemoirs of
Pecr Thrahem Knan,op.cit., P.b4.

155, Tafe,op.cit., P.100.

156. T.M., PP.146,2792; Shahamet Ali,op.c't.. P.88;
Hemoirs <7 Peor Tbralirm Khan, P.55; Tate,
op.cit., .15 D./. ' PP.70,71; T.A.S5.,

pp.1is, 116,
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The Afghan King had already left for India to punish the
Sikhs. He 'arrived at Peshawar on the 18th December 1795
where he was reported about the capture of Prince Humaygg?
who was then brought to Peshawar on 30th December 1795

Shah 7aman was 50 much pleased with thls ncws that he
conferred the title of 'Mulnud doulah Sarbuland Khan Bahadur
Feroz Jang' upon Nawab Muhammad Khan and also oppointed him
as the Governor of Dera Ismalhkﬁig. How the Afghan King
crossed attock In early 1726 . and 'went on to Hasan
Abdal wherce he stayed for seven days oi?:. He despatched
Ahmad Khan Nurzal! to subdue the Sikhs of the Panjab, and

'to take possession of the fort of Rohtas'. The Afghan Command: A
suceeeded.in capturing the fort but his army falled to
subdue the 51::2. He soon came back and jolned his master.
In the ﬁeantime, Shah Zaman had imprisoncd Prince Humayun

at Bala Hisar In Kabul. The captive was deprived of hls
sight and this cﬁllousness on the part of the hrether was
resented by the Durranfs., The moment Prince Mahmud heard

~of It, he once agaln revolted In Hirat. The matter was

157. Tate,op.ecit., P.101,

158, T.M., P.279; Shahamet Alf,op.cit., P.89;
Hemoris of Peer Ibr;hcm Ko, P.56;

Cazetteer of Dera Ismail Khan Distrlct i&ﬂ]«&ﬂ.
op.cit., P.386.

159. Tate,ag.cff.. P.101; D.7., P.62;
T.M., P.147.

e
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reported to the Afghan King, who immediatcly retired to
161

Kabul. The Sikh anarchy prevailed in“Panjab. The Court

intrigues compelled the Mughal Emperor Shah Alam 11 to

invite the Afghan King to his rescue, but Shah Zaman

excused on the yrounds of bad wcather and hurriedly went

162
back to crush the revolt of Prince Mahmud.

5in¢r the days of Ahmad Shah, the image of the
Afghan Kings was so towering, awe-inspiring in the minds
of the Muslim rulers of the Sub-continent that whenever
they faced any danger to their authority, they looked back
to the Afghan King as thelr saviour. Tipu Sultan and
Ghulam Muhammad Khan Ruhila having becen defeated by the
English, approached the Afghan King for help. Unfortunately
the Afghan King had his own familyﬂgﬁﬁghe could not render
timely assistance, nevertheless. he had been studying the

situation and as soon as he got the opportunity, he rushed

towards India, in the winter of 1796 . to crush the S5ikh

memate. . He crosscd the Indus at Attock on 13th December
163

17964 .{12th Jamadi-us-San! 1211 A.H.). Shah 7aman

despatched a strong army of 20,000 under thc command of

160. Tate,op.cit., P.101; D.Z., . PP.6?,63.
161. Tate,op.cit., PP.101,102; D.Z., PP.63,71,81.
162, D.Z., . PP.71,73,81.

163. D.Z7., P.232.
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Sher Muhar ad Khan Mukhtar-ud-Daulahson of Sardar Shah
Wall Khan Bamezal to punish the Sii:g. At the time of the
Afghan invaslon, the Panjab was ruled by several Sikh
Sardars. PProminent amongst them were, Sahib Singh of
Gulrat, Ranjit Singh of Wazirabad, Lehna Singbh of Lahore
and Gulab Singh of Amritsar. When the Sikhs heard of the
Afghans, they rdﬂaway while the Vanegaurd of the Afghans
reached Lahore In the last week of December 1796 ’
followed by Shah Zaman. As the Afghan King arrived near

Lahore, Lehna Singh handed over the charge of Lahore 'to

Mlan Shah Cheraqh, a descendant’ of the famous saint,

165
Abdul Qadir 3Jilani' and ran away. Shah Zaman entered
. 166
Lahore on 3dJanuary 1797 .(Rajab 1211 A,H.) and stayed

for one month. During his stay In Lahore, all of his
tributaries in compliance with his orders sent thelr
contingents to flght agalnst the Sikhs. The Subedar of
Multan, Nawab Muzaffar Khan also despatched his contingent
to Lahore as a token of hils loyalty. In February 1797

the Afahan King again got the news of Prince MHahmud's revolt

in Hirat and he rushed back to Kabul. In the meantime,the

leu, ©n.7., P.232.

l65. D.Z., P.82; H.P., .. 302.

166. MMou.'ztuart LClphinstone, An Aecaunt of the Kingdom
o: Caubyl . Vol.YY.,Karaehi,1912,P,315; H.P., o
M, i02; Taie,op.cit.,P.104., gives the date Ist
January 1797 . also Sec:D.Z., P.8":

T.A.5.., PP.127-129,
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heyditary Chief of Kot K. <alia, Saadat Yar Khan Kharral
arrived in lultan to seek help from MHawab Muzafrfar Khan
against the SLlkhs who had captured Kot Kamalia after

the departure of Shah Za;gz. Mawah Muzaftfar Khan directed
his contingent to attack Kot Kamalia on their wav back

to Multan. Kot Kamalia was captured and handed over to
Saariat Yar Kbtan Kharig?. It was a grecat achieverment which

enhanccd the image of the Hawab not only in the minds

of the Muslim rulers but also in the cves of his encmies.

Shabh Zaman invaded India again in Movember
1798 A.D. «and sonn occuplied Lahore in December 1798 .
In the f*anjah 'the Shah was grieved to find the siqns
of the ravaages of the Sikhs'., His army persucd Lhe Sikhs
bul Lhey ran away into the hills on Lhe borders of Lhe
Panjab, MNizam-ud-Dln Xhan, a Pathan of Kasur who was a
brave and capahlc person assisted the Afghan King in

this cnecounter against the Sikhs. The Sikh Jeader,Ranjit

Singhy, a youth of '8, attracted the attention of Lhe

Afghan Kina, In the mcantime, the news of the presence

of Shah Fateh ALl of lIran in Khurassan distuybed him

and he relire.. hurriedly in early 1729 His army

la7., T.11, - . .o PL234y 2 A op.cit., PPL.5S6,57.

las, T M., . oo PU230 2 AL yopaeit., PPLUBE,ST LG,
. . . PLaB2; Yousui Gardezi writes the noame of the
Coo sancer fluhammad Khyn Dadozai. Accordic 10 him

Kot Kamalia was annexed by the Mawasbylarkirat-ul-Hultan
P.69: Alil Muhammad Khan writes that it was uncconomical

for the Mawab teo retain Kot Kam:'ja; T.H,,r
PL234; : T ' S : :
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followed him. Due to heavy rains the river Jhelum was

in flood. While the Shah's army was crossing the river,

his artillery and baggage were swept away. Ranjit Singh

'recovered the Shah's guns which were sent on after him

to Peshawar, where the Shah arrived on the 30th January
’

1799 . . The Afghan King was so pleased with him that
169

he appointed him the Governor of Lahore.

169.

o
.
™~

PP.85,86; Tate,op.cit., P.110;
P.348, ’ ’

T
-
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Maharaja Ranjit Singh

Maharaja Ranjit Singh belongcd to the Sukerchakla
Misl. His father Maha Singh was the Chief of that Misl.
At the time of his father's death in 1792 ., Ranjit
Singh was a youth of 12, He had to struggle very hard for
his existence as he was surrounded by many rivals. Hlis
enemies belonging to his own sect forced him to seek refuge
with the Afghan King who not only patronised him, but also
bestowed upon him, the Royal Farman of governorship of
Lahore in lf?9 . He succeeded in capturing Lahore 1in
July 1799 . DBeing a very ambitious man, he not only
consolidated his terrltories but ultimately established
himself as the unrivalled Chief in the Panjab. He conquered
the whole of the Panjab and established a Sikh dynasty
which lasted for half a century. He was opposed by the
Muslims as well as the non Muslims but he defeatcd all of

his rivals,.

In the meantime a conspiracy was unearthed to kill
Shah Zaman and hls Wazir Wafadar Khan II in 1800 . All
the conspirators including Payanda Khan Barakzai and Moor
Muhammad Khan Babar were executed. Fateh Khan son of
Payanda Khan alongwith his brothers and supporters ran
away to Prince Mahmud who was in exlle in Iran, Wafadar

1
Khan I? summoned Hawab Muzaffar Khan in 1800 (1215 ALHL)
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The Nawab at once provcecded to Kabul vie fierajats. When

he reached Der - Ismail Khan he came to know about the conspknty.
While realising Lhe Afahan cavnital, a disturbed place,

he cancelled his onward journey. During his stay at Dera
Ismail Khan, Hawab Muhammad Khan(Muin-ud-Doulah Sarbuland

Khan Bahadur Feroz Jang) Governor of Dera Ismail Khan, who

had been his emnloyee, called otihim. Hawab Muhammad Khan's
drum-be ter heralded his arriva:‘by anno:incing his entry
into the Camp of Nawab Muzaffar Khan. This announccrent
annoyed Mawab Muzaffar Khan who paid no heed to his arrival,
The MNavab received him casually while sitting on the carpet.
Nawab Muhammad Khan felt disqraced and did not turn up
again, From Dera Ismail Khan, Mawab Muzaflfar Khan came

2
back to liultan.

The year 1801 saw many important events., In
Afghanistan,Shah Zama: was dethroned at the aqge of 32 after
nine years of disturbed rule. His elder brother Prineceo
Mahmud was d:lared the King of Afghanistan with the help
of the Barakzais. Wafadar Khan II was killed. In India,
MHaharaja Ranji® Singh succeeded in capturiag a larqge

territory of the %“ost Panjab. Mizam-ud-Din Khan of Kasur

1. T.M., PP.148,149,234,

2. 1bid. PP,2s54, 279, 280.
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also accepted his overlordship. The family fued of the
Saddozals in Afghanlstan encouraged Maharaja Ranjit Singh

to fulfil his ambltious designs against the Muslims of the
Panjab and Multan, Having realised the changes In Afghanistan
as well as Iin the Panjab, MNawab Muzaffar Khan also prepared
himself to reap politlecal beneflts. Durling the reign of

Shah Mahmud, Afghanistan was wvirtually ruled by his Wazir
Fateh Khan Darakzal. 1In Afghanistan, the practlice had been

that whosoever reigned, he also ruled otherwlse he was

replaced. The Afghans did not like the tyrannlcal rule of

the Barakzals, hence all the tributaries stopped paylng

the annual tribule to Kabul. Mawab lluzaffar Khan also
stopped sending the annual trlbute toe Kabul. He did not
like the Barakzal atrocities on the Saddozals. The {11 will
was mutual., Fateh Khan Barakzal walted for an opportunity
to dislodge Mawab Muzaffar Khanm, It was provided by Abdus

Samad Khan Badozrai.

During the Lelah Campaign in 1794 . Sarfaraz
Khan had lost his 1ife and his brothers Haflz Sarbuland
Khan and Abdus S5amad Khan quarrelled with each other on

the property. In this property fued Abdus 5Samad Khan had

* 'He lived to a good old age and died in Ludhiana,
2 pensloencr on the bounty of the Fast India Company.
e had several sons, nonc of whom , howewver,
¢!*~played any talent, or distinguished themselves
in the events that took place In Afghanistan’.
'Shah Zaman died In exile and was buried in a
graveyard, near the town of Sirhind'. 5ee: Tate,

op.cit., PP.115,116.
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selized the whole en! ite. Haflz Sarbuland Khan had then
appealed to Shah Zaman to intervene. The Shah had given
him an allowance of Rs.6500/-, of whlch Rs.4500/- was to

be pald out of the revenues of Multan. The Afghan King

had also passed an order to the Subedar of Hultan to divide
equally all the Jaglirs betwecen the two hrnther:. Abdus
Samad Khan had refused to abide by this decislon. It was
thelr Jagir in Multan which Nawab Muzaffar Khan could
divide between the two brothers. Thls created resentment

in the mind of Abdus Samad Khan against the Mawab. After

the fall of Shah Zaman, Abdus 5amad Khan went to Kabul and

approached Fateh Khan Barakzal with the result that he was

4

successful in obtaining the Subedar{ of Multan,

The Mukhdum of Uch, 35yed Hamid Gilani had
stﬁined his relations with the Hawab of Bahawalpur {(Rukun-=
ud-Doulah Muhammad Bahawal Khan 11) because he aspired to
éxtend the area of his polltical Influence which was
opposed by the Mawab of Bahawalpur., Mukhdum Hamid Gilani
sent hls envoys Lo Multan and Blkaner to seek help against
the Nawab. He had also approached the Afghan King, Shah

Zaman, who demanded explanation from the Hawab. The Mawab of

3. T.M,., P.234; C.F. Multan District,val.II,
ahore, 1910, PP.319, 320,

L, T.M., PP.2364,23%; C.I., P.320;

Shahamet All,oE.cit.. P.113.
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Bahawalpur confined him in his house and informed Shah
Zaman about felgned insanity. The Mukhdum of Uch was
}olned by Khuda Nakhsh of Kahrani tribe, Hajj Khan of
Mehdanee tribe, Ikhtifar Khan of Marufanee trlbe and
several other Uaudputras against the Nawab of Bahawalpur.
The Nawab sent hls second son Falz Ullah Hha; tno Multan to
seek help from tawab Muzaffar Khan. He was received by
Sarfaraz ¥Xhan the eldest son of the Nawab and was treated
hospitably. Mawab Muzaffar Khan placed a force under the
Command of Khuda Yar Khan Ghilzal and Ahmad Khan at his
disposal, Falz Ullah Khan alongwlth the Multani army
Jolned his elder brother 5Sadiq Kh;; near Bahawalpur and
thls unlted force crushed the rebeli. This timely succour

created better understanding between the Hawab of Bahawalpur

and Hawab Huzaffar Khan.

When Abdus Samad Khan returned from Kabul, he had
also brought royal orders for the Mawab aof Bahawalpur and

L =
for Mir Alam Khan Nurzal, the Governor of Dera Chazl Khan

- Sher Muhammad Madir writes his name 'Faizyab Khan';
L.A., P,58,
e Abdullah Khan was his real name.
5. Z.A., PP.58,59; 5habamet Ali,ep.cit,, PP,90-98,

bl He wa:n .. phew of Sardar Ahmad Khan Hurzai.
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6
to assist him in assuming charge of the Subedari of Hultan,
The Nawaib of Bahawalpur could not afford to be ungrateful
and he refused to comply with the royal orders against Nawab
Muzaffar Khan, The !'i..wab of Bahawalpur thcn sent Gosdeen
Behar Rae as his ecnvoy to Multan who gave assurance to Nawab
Muzaffar Khan for all assistance agalinst Abdus Samad Kha:.

Nawab Muzaffar khan requested the Nawab of Bahawalpur for

help. Nawab Bahawal Khan II agreed to supply a force to

"assist him. As soon as Abdus Samad Khan came to know of

it he al-o approached the Nawab of Bahawalpur seeking his
help in lieu of Khangarh which would be ceded to the Nawab
on perpctual basis in case of success. But the Nawab turned
ddwn his offer and at once placed his strong army consisting
of 5000 horse and foot under the command of Munshi Jiwan Ram,
Din Muhammad Khan, Abdullah Khan and other Daudputra chiefs,
at the disposal of Nawab Muzaffar Khag. Abdus Samad Khan
then decided to give fight. He scnt his family to his
strong-hold of Dera Din Panah. He decided to check the army

of Nawab Muzaffar Khan near his another strong-hold Daud

Jahaninﬁ which he had already fortificd.As Nawab Mu:saffar Khan

6. Z.A., PP.59,60; Shahamct All,op.cit., PP.113,114,

7. Shahamet Ali,op.cit., PP.113,114.

8. Ibid., PP,113,118; C.F., P.320

e ——
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had refused to accept the royal farman appointing Abdus
Samad Khan as the Subedar of Multan, he liad despatched his
army agalnst Abdus Samad Khan without waiting for the army
4f the Mawab of Bahawalpur, under the command of Ghulam
Murtaza Khan and Khan Muhammad (Father-in-law of Zulflkar
Kha:). Abdus Samad Khan stopped the Multani army at village
Dinpur In the vicinity of Daud Jahanian. A battle was
fought In which Abdus Samad Khan was defeatég. He took
refuge In his fort at Daud Jahéﬁan , which was besicged,

The sieqe lasted for one and a half month, Ultimately It
was captured, Abdus Samad Khan ran away to hls second strong-
hold of Dera DIn Panah. The Fort at Daud Jahanlan was
demolished by Mawah Muzaffar Kh;i. The Multani army followed
him to Dera DIn Panah. Abdus Samad Khan appealcd to Mir
Alam Kh.n Nurzal, Governor of Dera Ghazl Khan for help, Mir
Alam Khan at once sent hils envoy Kareem Khan to Hultan to

settle the affair according to the royal Farman. Kareem Khan

was a short-Lempered man, He annoyed Nawab Muzaffar Khan.

¢ It is 5 miles from Muzaffargarh and the village
18 named after the saint Hazrat Daud Jahanian who
is burried there. Sarfaraz Khan, Lhe ~lder brother
of Abdus Samad Khan, built a fort ihcre. [t is
2 miles from the Tomb of Hazrat Daud Jahanian..

9. Shahamet Ali,op.cit., PP.i13,114; C.F.,
P.320; 1.M., p.235,

10. P.D.GC., ti.D,, . P.52,

11, T.H, . P,

D
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The Mawab rcfused to accept Abdus Samad Khan as the

tubedar of Hultan. The failure of the mission annoycd Mir
Alam Khan, who soon despatched one theusand selected
horscmen to Deca Din Panah to render help to Abdus Samad
Kh;i. The arrival of a force from Dera Ghazi Khan encouraged
Abdus S5amad Khan, who with its help repulsed the attack

of the Multani army in a battle fought in the vicinity of
Dera NDin Panah. The Multanl army lost 220 mii. In the
meantime the Bahawalpuri force arrived at Dcra Din Panah and
joilncd the Multani armyiqL ThqycollectIVCly attacked Dcra

Din Panah and besieged it. During the siege, tlawab Huzaflffar
Khan also approached the Afghan King, Shah Mahmud through
the good offices of the Saddozais of Hulta; a3 wecll o5 the
Saddozais of Afghanistan that the Subedari of Hultan should
not be glven te a non Saddozi?. At that time, Fatelh Khan
Marakzal had gone to Daman and Dera lsmail Khaon to collect

the avnual revenue. The abscnce of the Wazir from the

capital provided an opprrtunity to the S5addorzais Lo coenvince

the Afnhan Kira who ultimately withdrew his previous royal
12, Qhid, P.235; Shahamet Ali,op.cit., D.11l4;
*——__, A ——————

13. Sighamet AT, op.cit., P.1Ll4,

14, Thid., P,115.
e —

#* Amongsl the Saddorzais of Multan, Din Mahammad Khan
Khudakka wrote a letter of rccommendation to Lhg
Afohac Iling in favour of Mawab Muczaffar Khan. Sec:
T.l., P.235.
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Farman and conflirmed Mawab Muzaffar Khan as the Subedar of
Hultiﬁ. This new development strengthened the hands of
besieging army and the Fort was captured in 1802 .

(1217 A,H.).Abdus Samad Khan ran away tulHLrhlam Khan., The
Fort of Dera Din Panah was also demolishe;. After this
victory, Mawab Muzaffar Khan exchanged correspondence with
Nawab Muhammad Khan of Dera Ismail Khan and Nawab Bahawal
Khan II. Both of them agreed nﬁ punish Mir Alam Khan,
Covernor of Dera GChazi Khan rupghis nafarious activitles.
Hawab Muzaffar Khan despatchedlh force under his son
Zulfikar Khan. The Mawab of Bahawalpur also sent a force
under the command of his son Abdullah Khan{5adlq Muhammad
Khan). Mawah tluhammad Khan too sent his army under the
command of hls brother Khuda Yar Khan. The united force
gathered at the village of Ajua Walig + It crossed Indus
from Ajub Walah and marched on Dera Ghazi Khan., Mir Alam

Khan finding himself defenceless retired to Jampur in

1
1803 {1218 A.H.}) and from there ran away to Kandhar.
15. T.M,, PP.235,285,286.
l6. 1Ibid. PP.235,286.
17.: Ibld: PP.235,238.
* A village in Muzaffargarh on the bank of the river Indus.

18, O5Shahamel Ali,op.cit., PP.115,116.
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Abdus Samad Khan, who was with him ran away to Lahore to
induce Maharaja Ranjit Singh to fight against Nawab

20
Muzaffar Khan. Shah Mahmud was themdeposed at Kabul and

Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk succeeded him as the King of Afghanistan,

During the reign of Shah Mahmud, Maharaja
Ranjit Singh had established himself as the ruling Chlef.
Being encouraged with his successful campaigns agalnst his
rivals including MHizam-ud-Din Khan of Kasur, he declded to
invade Multan whose prosperity had attracted his greedy
nature. Abdus Samad Khan also played his dirty role and

induced him to invade Multan. He advanced against Multan

in 1803 .(1218 A.H,)and encamped in the vicinity of
21
Kabirwala, 27 miles from Multan. The momcnt Hawah Muzaffar

‘Khan came to know of his arrival, he collected a larqge

= . army and proceeded to check his advance. The Hawab also
it
R encamped in front of the S5ikh army. PHRoti of them decided

to settle the dispute If any through neqotiations, hence they
exchanged letters and ultimately met each other in a cordial
Ei atmosphere and exchanged presents. The Nawab saw for the
| first time this youth of 22 who had shown his administrative
skill, liplomacy and wvalour against his rivals. It was a
meeting of two nreat leaders. They departed in a friendly

atmosphere and Maharaja Ranjit Singh went back to Lahore

124 o Tale, D.216;2.A., PP.61,62:5hahamet ALlL,
"wrltes Lhat 'hils event occured during the reian of
Shah Mahmud, P,116.,where as Ali Muhammad Khan writes
that HMir Alam Khan was ousted during the reign of
Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk.
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27
Gy after receiving some money from the Mawab,
ka .
alie iy
eI When the Afghan King, Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk ascended
iy the throne, he came to Baluchistan via Bolan Pass in
:{ 1804 {1212 A.H.) to extract the arrrars of revenue.

Mir Mahmud, the chief of Baluchlstan agreed to pay a

portlon of the arrears. From there, he entered Into
Shikarpur (5indh) and collected the arrears of the

revenue for the last three yeaig. Then he proceeded to
Dera GChazl Khan, ©On hls arrival at Dera Ghaz! Khan, the
prominent 5S5addozals Including DIn Muhammad Khan Khudakka
went to meet him, Shah Shuja-ul-Mul recelived every body
with great affection. He granted a stlpend of five

£ thousand rupees annually to Dln Muhammad Khan out of the
Ly revenues of Hulti:. Nawab Muzafrar Khan refused to acknowledge
the royal Farman after the departure of the Afghan Hii:.
It created bitterness between the Khudakkas and the Hawab,

hence the Khudakkas remalned aloof during the late invaslons

of Maharaja Ranjit Singh, The Mawab had not paid his

20, C.F., .320.

21, Sita Mam Kohli,Maharaja Ranjit Singh, Allabad,1V33,
PP.84& ,8%; S5ee:z P.C., op.clit., P.883., qiv=zs the
vear 1802 A.D. also See: H.P,,op.cit.,PP.359,1359,

22, Gita Ram Kehli.,. P.85;H.P.,0op.cit., PP.3549,

359; See: U.T.{ii1),op.cit., P.55; Kanhia Lal,

account of a battle which 1s incorrect,
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annual tribute to Kabul for the last threre years. He
avoiﬁad meeting the Afghan King at Dera Ghazi Khan, He sent
his envoy Zardar Khan who met the Queen, Wafa Begum. She
was the daughter of the late Wafadar Khan II who was the
patron of Hawab Muzaffar Khan. Zardar Khan requested

her that the Nawab may be excused from attending the royal
court in person and be allowed to send his son Instcad.The
Queen persuvaded the King who agreed and the MHawab sent his
third son Shah Nawaz Khan to Dera Ghazl Khan to attend the
royal Cuuiz. Hawab Muzaffar Khan also promised to pay a
portion of the arrears very socon. The flueen extended another
favour to the MHawab and gave her quarantee for the payment,
The Wazir of Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk,Sher Muhammad Khan Bamezat
was agalnst thls deal but duc to QUueen's intercesslon, the
Afghan King sho;zd his affection. His son Shah Nawaz Khan

was duly honoured. The Afghan King then went to Kabul via

Peshawar. The rivals of Nawab Muzaffar Khan expected his

23. T.H., PP.154,238; Tate,op.clt., P.121l.,writes
that the “h ' 'recovered 20 Lakhs of rupees In
settlement of arrears of revenue'.

24. T.M., © P.286.

25, _Ibid, PP.15%4,236; Yousuf Cardezi writes that Sher
Huhammad Khan (Diwan of Mawali Muzaffar Khan) escorted
Shah Mawaz Khan; Tuzkirat-ul-Multan, P.70,

26. T1.M., . P.236.

R
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disgrace at the hands of the Afghan King but the royal
behaviour e¢nhanced his image in the eyes of his rivals.
Before leaving Der: Ghaz!i Khan, Shah Shuja-ul-HMulk
appointed Ata Muhammad Khan son of Sher Muhammad Khan

27
Bamezal, as the Governor of Dera Ghazl Khan.

During the same period Maharaja Ranjit Singh,
marched on Jhang,defeated Ahmad ¥han Slal and captured it
In 1804 . (1219 A?s.). Ahmad Khan 51al alongwith his
famlly ran away to Multan to seek refuge with Nawab
Huzaffar Khan and to request him for help agalnst the
Maharaig. Abdus 5amad Khan had another opportunity of
Instigating the Sikh leader against the Nawab and Iinduced
him to invade Multan once agaln, The Maharaja marchecd on
Hultan and encamped at village Mahtam, 10 miles from Multan
on way to Lahore. MNawab Muzaffar Khan, at once rushed to
the village Mahtam and encamped in front of the Maharaja.
Negotlatlons once again started and valuable presents were

exchanged. In the meantime, news reached about the arrival

of i large arm:. of Malrathas pursued by the British army,.

27. lbid. P.236; Shahamet Ali writes that Ata Muhammad Khan
was the son of Ahmad Khan Murzai, he was appointed
Governor of Dera Ghazi Khan during the reiqgn of Shah
Mahmud. He was removed durinqg the reign of Shah
Shuja-ul-Mulk; P.117. The author Is mistaken.

28, T.n,., P.236; Ibrat llamah, P.aQ7;,
7.%., P.63; H.P., P.360., gives the
year 1803,

'-g-'r‘ g =3y g zolel g lall deunll, Lo oy Jhw gL aet Lgjy Jlek 40
- e gl ol
(I e ) ouy;
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Multani army and closed the ga'es of the lort. The Hultan
army defeated the Sikhs and captured Jhang Cily. Then they
besieged the Fort "ut could not capture it. Ultimately,

Fateh Singh Kalian-wala started negotiations and Ahmad

Khan Sial aarced to pay 60,000 rupnes};s Lthe annual tribute -
Maharaja Ranjit Singh in lieu of Jhané. The Sikh in charge

oi the Fort handed over the Fort to Ahmad Khan S5ial and

went Lo Lahore where as the Multani army retired to Multan
triumphantly. It was a prestiacous move on the part of Hawal
Muzaffac ¥an. As the Afghan Wazir, Sher Muhammad Khan
Bamezai was jealous of Nawab Muzaffar Khan, he could not
tolerate his success against the Sikhs. He instigated the
Afghan King and witih his approval instructed his son Ata
Muhammad Khan to extract thc arrears of the revenue from the
Hawab. Ata MHuhammad Khan marched on llultan with the help

of the royal army numbering L[2000 horsemen in 1805

(1220 A.H.) and rcached the village Shah Ali only 10 miles
from Multan. Hawab Muzaffar Khan sent his eldest son
Sarfaraz Ihan with a strong army to opposc him., AL the same

time he appealed ro the Nawab of Bahawalpur for help. Mawab

31. Ibrat Mamah, A P.407;

32, 7.4, P..%; Ibrat Namah, ., P.aosy

H.D,, P.360.
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Bahawal Khan II Intervened and sent his officer Azeem

Khan to settle the dispute. He brought both the partics to
an agreement., Shah Hawaz Khan reprcnented his father

during the negotlatlons. Presents were exchanged and a truce
was concluded, According to the agreement, Ata Muhammad
Khan went back alongwlith the royal army after receiving

33
a portion of the arrears of the revenue.

Maharaja MRanjit Singh had already realised that
the Afghan Government was not happy with Hawab Muzaffar
Khan as he had not pald the annual tribute to Kabul since
the days aof Shah Mahmud. The roval armv under the command
"of Ata Muhammad Khan could reallse a small portion of the
arrears of the revenue. In the meantime, Abdus S5Samad Khan
an Inveterate enemy of the Mawab, who was dispossessed of
Jaglirs and the Fort, agaln instigated thle Maharaja to take
revenge from the Hawab for hls helpling Abhmad Khan S51al in
men and money and causing disgrace to the 5ikhs. Maharaja
Ranjit Singh had also settled his affalrs with the Harathas
and the English East India Company. 1In spite of the lact
that he owed his governorship of Lahore Lo the Afgham King,

he ungratefully de~ided to slaughter all the Afghans In his

33w TiMay . PP.1%4,23735hahamet Ali, writes that
Ata Muh  mad Khan marched on Multan during Lhe
reign of Shah Mahmud, P,120; the author Is mistaken.
Latif writes that Lhe incident occured in (803 . ..
H.P., P,385., which is [ncorrect.
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territory. The Pathans had refused to recognise Maharaja's
overlordship and had to surrender due to thelr own dlsunity.
Maharaja Manjit Singh did not tolerate the tiny Pathan
States at Kasur and ftiyltan. He fought agalinst them and

ultimately annexed both the 5States.

In 1E0T ° .. Maharaja Ranjit 5ingh invaded Kasur
and captured it. Ihcn he declided to march on Multan. He
proceeded to Multan via Dipalpur. After extracting some
money from its people he advanced to Multan. The mumen%the
news of his arrival reached Multan, Nawab Muzaffar Khan
made war preparations and sent hls envoy to Nawab Bahawal
Khan II for hef:. The Hawab of Bahawalpur was also worrled

because the Sikhs could advance to Bahawalpur, hence gave

him only moral support.

The Maharaja encamped at Mahtam before Llnvading
Multan. Sarmast Khan Malizal was the land lord of the
vilfage Mahtam. HMIs affairs were looked after by his manager
Khuda Yar Khan son of Ta} Muhammad Khan Tarin who was a
young bmpave person with great Intelligence. Sarmast Khan
was residing at Hultan. On the arrival of Maharaja Ranjit
Singh at Mahtam, Khuda Yar Khan alongwith other local petty
land lords extended his submlssion and requested for an

interview. The Maharaja accepted his submission and soon

34, Shahamet All,op.cit., P.128.
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called him for an interview. But in the meantime, ~ome-”
one Informed the Maharaj}a that Sarmast Khan was a wealthy
person, It was also stated that Khuda Yar Khan had given
protectlion to all the local wealthy land lords. As the
Maharaja was a greedy person, he decided to arrest him,
Khuda Yar Khan was on his horse back when he was asked to
hand over hls sword, He refused to do so. When the 5ikh
soldlers insisted, he attacked them and kllled four of them,
Showing his great valour, he did not waste time and also
attackcd the Maharaja who was sltting in the hoda of an
elephant., His sword cut the hoda into two pieces. The
Maharala saved his 1ife by quickly squeezing himself in the
rear corner of the hoda. Hls sword was broken and he was
attacked by the 51kh soldiers and was cut into pieces. The
Mahara)a was very much impressed by the bravery of the
young Multani Pathgz. This Incident had a great impact on

his mind.

Hawab Muzaffar Khan undauntedly got ready to
give fight to the Maharaj}a. He was not noing to bow before
the Maharaja. He closed the gates of the walled city and
the fort. The Maharaja reached Multan on 2énlebruary,
1807 . ;;6nzllhiﬂ 1221 ﬂ?g.iﬂnd besicaed both the city

and the fort. The Nawab showed great resistance and valour.

35. Yousuf Gardezi, op.clt., P.53; P.D.G., M.D.,
P.%0,
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The siege prolonged and he Sikh army plundered the suburbs
of Multan. The Sikh devastation made the rural population

to leave their home and hearth. On the 9th day of the siege,
the Wawalb shificd firom the city to the fnii and left his
prople at the mercy of the Sikhs. The neople displayed great
courage and resistance but could not avert the humiliation.
The Sikh commander fateh Sinol. Kalian-wala captured the
walled city and plundered ;3. Maharaja Ranjit Singh tried

his best Fo capture the Fort but failed. The sieqe lastad

for 21 dd;g. Having failed he agread to enter into a treaty
on the 22nd day of the siege. Mawah Muzaffar Khan rcfused

to acknowledqe him as the ruler of Muitan., During the

negotiatiuns the Nawab of Bahawalpur played a very important

role. He sent his envoy Munshi Dhumpat Rae to the Maharaja
41
alongwith presents. MNawah Muzaffar Khan agrecd to paoy the
42

Maharaja a certain amount of money in liecu of war expenscs.

s, T.M,, P.237; Shahamet Ali writes that 'on
the 2nd of Nut®rram, 1222 A.M., the inteclligence of
his march frewmblahcre was reccived in the Khan's court',

P.178.
37, 1.1, P.237; Z.A., N L L
38, T.i., P.237; 71.A,,. ' o oAby Yousuf Garderzi .
op.cit., P.53.
9. LA, P.é4; H.P., Pr.367.
QO.I;E;, PEL155,/37; Yauusut tardezi,op.cib.. P.53.
1. Shawsnet odisep.cit., PP.126,129; U.T.,(ii), P,

—
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The Maharaja then proceeded to Bahawalpur and after crossing
the river C'agra, sent his envoy Fakir Aziz-ud-Din to the
Mawab of Bahawalpur and came to terms with him 2n the
payment of :ome money. They also exchanqed qiftz. Then he
retired to Lahore. Abdus Samad Khan adozai remained with
seeing his mission a failure,

him throughout tihe campaign and; he went back to Lahore

alongwith the Maharaja.

The family fued of the Saddozais in Afghanistan
among the incompetent and selfish successors of Ahmad Shah
provided 0 oupportunity to the Sikhs to eslablish a Sikh
dynasty in the Panjab. The absence of a strong Government
in Kabul as wcll as at Delhi created a vacuum in the Panjfab
which was filled by the Sikh Chief Ranjit Singh. He utilised
the grecater resources of the Panjab in invading the Afghan
area of influence. The tiny Muslim statc of Hultan resisted
under the guldancc of its brave ruler Havab Muzaffar Khan
who ultimately laid his life for the noble cause. The !Mawab
commanded grcat respect among his people who were convinced
of his bravery. As he was fighting for his independence,
all the surrounding rulers of Jhang, Dera Ghazi Khan, "tera

Ismail Khan and Bahawalpur paid tribute to him for his

42. LMo, P.237; Sadiq-ut- Tawarickh,
P 331; Lce: H.P., : PP.367,368., writes that

the Na“ab agreed to pay a Na7rana of 70,000 rupe€es;
U.T.,{ii),op.cit., P.65; Sce: Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit.
P.53 writcs that the Sikh chief accepted Rs.1l0 OOU

as Mazrana and went back.
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superiority., Ranjit Singh's campaigns against him exposed
that he was a no match to the ruler of the Panjab who
commanded heavier resources than the Nawab. The defeat

of the Hawab cncourage:d the miscreants who carried loot

and arsoninhis dominion after the retirement of the Haharag:.
The Nawab despatched a strong army under the command of his
eldest son Sarfaraz Khan against these miscreants including
Rajab 5125. Sarfaraz Khan marched on Sardarpu; and proceeded
to the area of Influepnce of Rajab S5ial. Rajab 51al and his
followers ran away. Ahmadp:; and Garh Hﬂharajg were
captured. After this military action, Sarfaraz Khan imposed
a tax on all the miscreants which they agreed to pay. He
imposcd 80,000 rupees asﬁtax on Rajh Sial and his Followei:.
Then hr ngceeded to TrlJL and encamped on the bank of the
river [tavi. Ahmad Khan Sial, the ruler of Jhang visited

his camp and pald homage to h:i. A timely military actlon
subdued all the miscreants who had dist: rbed peace in the

dominion of the Mawab, Sarfaraz Khan was ultimately

successful in restoring law and order In Multan.

43. Shahamet Ali.op.cit., PI.129,130; H.F., P.368,
G4, 2.A., P.6&,

45. 1bid, P.64,

46. Ibld., P,&5,

47. Ibld. P.é4,

T e e s
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Havlng realised the courage and resourcefulness
of his son Mawab Muzaffar Khan decided to hand over all hls
powers to his eldest son Sarfaraz Khan who was very dear to
him, Sarfaraz Khan was ap experlenced man. He had led
many campalgns against the enemies of his father. He was
taking full Intcrest In the State affairs. He had proved
himself a good commander and a good administrator. No
important decision was taken without consulting him,
Gradually he took over control of all the State affalrs
and Nawab Muzaffar Khan announced him as his successor. He
wanted a formal royal Farman from the Afghan King. He sent
a misslon to Kabul under the guldance of his Dlwan, Sher
Muhammad Khan for this purpose. Sher Muhammad Khan presented
seveval valuable presents to the Qucen Wafa Begum and the
Afghan King on behalf of Nawab Muzaffar Khan, He requested
the Shah that Mawab Muzaffar Khan sought his permission to
procecd pllgrimage to Mecca and further desired his eldest

sen to succccd to the Subedari of Multan, In spite of the

k sardarpur: 30 miles on the north east of Multan.
% Ahmadpur: &40 miles on the north east of Multan.

¢ Garh Hlaharaja:50 miles on the north east of Nultan.

o Trimu: 70 miles on the north east of Multan.
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opposition of his Wazir, Mukhtar-ud-Doulah Sher Muhammad

Khan Bamerai, the Afghan King, on the intercession of the

Quern agreed to grant a roval Farman. Sarfaraz Khan was

bestowed upon the Subedarl of Multanm with the title of
L9

Hawab,

48. 1bid. P.&5.

P.&5; Shahamet Ali,op.cit., P.130.

a

43. 1bi
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Nawab Sarfaraz Khan as Subedar of Hultan
(1807 - 2 June IEIH)

Mawab Muzaffar Khan had 8 sons and 3 daughters
from J wivei. S5arfaraz Khan was the eldest. Sarfaraz
Khan, Zulfikar Khan, Shah Nawaz Khan and Mumtaz Khan were
from one mother. Thelr mother was the real sister of
Abu Raky Khan Khan Khel Saddozal. Shah Baz Khan, Alza:z
Khan and one daughter were born of a dancing girl. Hag
Mawaz Khan and one dauther were from a non-Pathan lady.
The youngest son Mlr Baz Khan and a daughter were born
posthumously. Before leaving for Mecca, Hawab Muzaffar
Khan distributed all hls landed prupert; amongst hls sons,
daughters and wives in 1807 . ,(1222 A.H.}. He gave
three tlmes more of the prngerty to Sarfaraz Khan than to

his other sons on the ground that being the ruler of

Multan he was genuinely entitled to have the lions share.

Nawab Huzaffar Khan, afler investing his
Government to his eldest son Hawab Sarfaraz Khan, decided
to start his sucred journey to Mecca by boar from the
Raj-rhat of the River Chenab in front of Shujaabad. All
his son-, rclatives, friends and the pcople of Hultan went

to the Raj-ghat to see him off. He sailed in December

].I T.."II.... P‘.256.
* [ts annual income was 3 lacs of rupees,

2. Ibid. P.237.
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1807 . (Shawal 1222 A.H.) and reached Panjnad where

he was welcomed by the local ﬁhiaf;. On his arrival at

the villagr of Manjee Wala near Uch, he was ﬂersgnally

received by Nawab Rukun-ud-Doulah Bahawal Khan Il1. The
Mawab of Bahawalpur presented him a few beats and gave

him a grand feast. The MNawab of Bahawalpur was very

much Impressed wlith his religlous sentiments.

Mawab Sarfaraz Khan had obtalned good tralning
in running the state affairs under thre quidance of
his father, During the absence of Nawab HMuzaffar Khan,
he proved a fallure In adminlsterlng hls state, Durlng the
process of the collection of revenue, Nawab Sarfaraz Khan
ordered Rajab 5ial to deposit the required tax, Rajab
5ial dld not obey. MNawab Sarfaraz Khan despatched a
strong army against him, A battle was fought in which
he was defeated and was taken prisune:. He was locked up
in a prison-house situated outside the Multan city. Mehr
Sultan,his couslin approached the Mawab with a request
for his release which was turned down. HMehr Sultan then
reguested Maharaja Ranjlt Singh for help. The Maharaja
despatched a few hundred soldicrs who attacked the prison-

7
house and released hilm.

c P B P.&6.
4. 1bid. P.66: Shahamet All,op.cit., P.I3i,

5y Likiaye PP.66,67.
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During the absence of MNawab Muzaffar Khan,
Maharaja Ranjit Singh despatched a stronqg army of 5000
cavalry undecr Jassa Singh Bhanqi. The Sikh army succceded
in obtaining some money from Nawahb Sarfaraz Khan in 1808 A.i
and went bacz. Nawab Sarfaraz Khan was conscious of his
wcak position, hcence he extended the hand of friendship
tewards the Mawab of Bahawalpur. Mawab Bahawal Khan II
was clever enough . to dictate his own terms and he

*

succeeded in cetti- Khanpur and its adjacent area on
9

lease from Nawab Sarfaraz Khan.

The Afghan King,5hah Shuja-ul-Hulk entered
India through Bolan Pass and reached Sindh in winter 180%
. (1223 A.H.) Sher Muhammad Khan Bamezai who had
revolted against Shah Shuja-ul-Mullk. wrote a letter to
Nawab Sarfaraz Khan and succeeded in creating some misunder-
standing between the Afghan King and his loyal Subedar
of Hult;g. On the arrival of the Afghan King in Dera Ghazi

Khan, Mawab Sarfaraz Khan closcd all the Links with Dera

Ghazi Khan forbidding the people in general and the Saddozai

6. T.M., P.238., Ali Huhamma« Khan wriles that
he was trcacherously made prisoner, P.238.

7. Ibid. P.236., Sher Muhammad Madir writes thal Hawol
EarTaraz iKhan pardoned hin and rcleased him on the
request of his courtiers, P.70.

§., B.P.,op.cit., P.372.

9. Shah. et AL, op.cit., P.13a,

* Kbanpur:situaterd in the south of Muzaffargach and
was part of Multan Province.
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in particular to go there to meet Shah Shuja-ul-HMulk. He
nelther sent his envoy nor did he send any present even

to Queen Wafa Begum who had always patronised the rulers
of Hult;i. It was a great shock for the Wng and the Queen.,
Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk decided to take some actlon against

the Mawab but the disturbances In his own country forced
him to retreat and proceed to Peshawar. Soon after the
departure of the Afghan King, Mir Izzatullah, a reporter
(Waqla Navees) of East India Company arrived in Multan.

He was recelved by the officlals of MNawab S5arfaraz Khan
and wa: glven the best treatment. Nawab Sarfaraz Khan
gave him audience and entertalined hiz. He conveyed to the
Hawab the proposed journey break of the Cngllish Misslon
under Mountstuart Elphinstone at Multan on way to Kabul.
The mission was te negotiate friendly relations with the
Afghan King. After crossing the River Sutlej, the English

Mission entered in the territory of Multan on 5allecember

1808 A.D, Meuntsiuart Elphinstone reached Multan on 1llth

10. T.H., PP.237,218,
11. Ibid, PP.237.238,

12. 1bld. P,238,
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December 1808 . and encamped outside the town. In spite
of the fact tha. Nawab Sarfaraz Khan was already ilnformed
of the arrlval of the English misslon, he suspected thelr
motlves. As the East India Company cmerged as a super
power ln the Sub-contlnent and had already swallowed two
Muslim states of Bengal and Mysore, the ruler of tiny
Musllm statc of Multan was naturally apprehensive. HNawab
Sarfaraz Khan closed the gates of the walled city and the
fort. He did not allow any member of Lhe English mission
to enter the clty wlthout his permlssii:. In the meantlime,
Sikandar Khan, the younger brother of MNawab Muzaffar Khan,
who was on hunting trlp came to know about the arrival of
the misslon., He invited Elphinstone to join him in hunting
the wild boars but the later placed hls excuse. After
his hunting trip, Sikandar Khan sent wild boars and several
other presents to Elphinstone, Flphinstone also sent him
certain presents. - When Sikandar Khan went to Multan, he
was suspcctrd to be In league with the English officers,
He atlgnce returned the presents to Llphinstone and demander

his own, Elphinstone was very much surprised and he

returned the precsents. The Nawab Sarfaraz Khan agreed to

op-cil
14, Hountstuart Elphinstone(vol.I), P.27; Yousuf Gardezi
writes that bhe encamped in Hazuri Bagh, P.70.

15. CLlphinstone, op.cit,, P,22.

16. Ibid. PP,31,32.
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meet Liphinstone on 15kDecember 1808 .'A very large
tenlL was pitched', where he held his court. He received
Mr. Strachey a member of the English inission in this tent.
Hawab Sarfaraz Khan then went to meet Mountstuart
Elphinstonc on 15kDecember 16086 . and welcomed his
vislt to Multiz. The English mission stayed at MHultan

for a few days. Mopntstuarl LClphinstone crossed the river

Chenab on 2UdDeccember and proceeded on his journey to

Kabul.

During the absence of hls father, Nawab Sarfaraz
Khan showed lack of tact and wlsdom. He did not deal
tactfully with Rajab Sial and also became panlcky on the
arrival of the English mission. He annoyed his father
for his ceding Khanpur and its adJacent areas to the Nawabh
of Bahavalpur on a lease. Nawab tuzafiar Khan, after
performing his pilgrimage to Mccca and after vislting all
the sacred places in Arabia returned to Multan. As he
had gone Lo Hecca with great pomp and show, he had to
suffer at the hands of the Badouines. He was attacked by
them and Lt was due to his largec entourage which saved
him from being killed. Even when the ruler of Mecca and
Hadina camc to know of the Hawab's richness, he stopped
him on his way back. He did not let him go till he

18
received 12,000 Riyals. On his way back Lo home, he purchasdd

17. Ibid. PP.29,30.

18. 7.%., PP. 68,69.



-236-

many rare varieties of the Date Palm and brought them

ta Multan. He transplanted them in Shujaabad, Multan and
Muzaffargarh. When he reached Sindh, hc was welcomed by
the Talpura Chiefs and when reached Bahawalpur, he was
personally received by the Nawab of Bahawalpur, who
arranged a qrand feast in his hopour. Hlis sons, courtiers
and relatives “ad joined the feast. After spending more
than a year on hls sacred Journey, he recached safely at
Shujaabad In January 1809 - . (Zilhij) 1223 A%ﬁ.). He
relaxed herc for about a month. He was not happy at the
dealings of his son with Rajab 5122 and his arrangements
with the Nawab of Bahawalpur. As the decision had already
been taken, he kept qulite . He came to Multan and resumed
his ceatrol over his state. He pald special attention
towards the collection of the revenue and the improvement
of agriculturc whlch were neglccted during his absence.
For the next nine years both father and son ruled Multan
fointly hut with great understanding. Whenever there was

a difference of opinion, the father prevailcd over his son

who happily yellded. Mawab Sarfaraz Khan never grudged

the over-lordship of his father. DBDuriag the last invasion
of Maharajo Ranjit Singh in 181f ° |, Nawab Sarfaraz Khan
favoured a truce with the Sikh Chi.:v but when he came to

know_that his father had decidrd to fight aqgainst the Sikhs.
he accepted his decision and fought against them bravely

alongwith others,
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The reign of Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk lasted till
the summer of 1809 . Whenp his brother Shah Mahmud
defeated his army ana captured Kabul, the Queen Wafa
Begum alonqwith the royal trecasure safely reached in
Rawalpindi. Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk, after his defeat went to
Kandhar and from there ran away to India via Gomal Paii.
He soon reached Rawalpindi where he was welcomed by a
local Zamindar(land-lord) Jiwan Singﬁ. In the meantiime,
Maharaja Ranjit Sinqgh had decided to invade Multan once
agaln and had left Lahore for Multan via Cujrgi. The
moment, the Maharaja came to know about the arrival of
Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk 1n Rawalpindi, he sent his envoy with
the request to grant him audiance. The exiled Klng agreed
and himself proceeded towards the Maharaja, who welcomed
him near Pind-Dadan Khi:. The !taharaja paid him full
respect and requested him to accompany him to Multan. He

also promiscd Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk that after its conquest,

he would hand over it to him., But the exiled King turned

19. 1,.M,, - P.238; 7.A., ©.69,

20. T.HW., - . P.238,

21, Tate,op.cit., P.125%; T.M., P.158.

22, I.M..~ | PP.44T7, 4485 1.1, P,108.

23. T.M., - P.448; Tbrat Namah, N LA
24, 1.4, ,P.605;5 See: Thrat Mamak, P.420;

Tate.gp.cit., F.125; Joseph Davey Cunningham writes
that both met at Sahiwal, P.149; Lepel Griffin writes
that both met at Khushah, P.484; also See: H.P.,
op.cit., P.384; Sohan Lal writes that the both met
near Hassan Abdal, P.34,
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down his offer becausc he did not trust the Maharaja
and secondly he did not like to be defamed amongst the
Saddozals for conquering Multan with the help of the
infideig. Defore they departed, the Maharaja requested
the exiled King, at least he should allow some one to
accompany him as his representative to Multan that in
case of conquest, Multan should be handed over to him,
At last Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk hesitantly agreed and sent
Habib Ullah Khan Saddozai, who was a‘brother of the
Queen Wafa Begum, to Multan's campai;ﬁ. He soon went back
to Rawalpindi and from there proceeded to Peshawar
leaving his family at Rawalpindi.

Nawab Muzaffar Khan having realised the danger
of another Sikh invasion, started corresponding with the
Chief of the East India Company at Calcutiz. He requested
him for help against Maharaja-Ranjit Singh. The Govern-
ment of Lord Minto did not ecxtend cooperation in this
regard as thec Governor Ceneral firmly believed in the
policy of non-intervention and secondly the company had
already concluded a'treat; with the Maharaja. Mawab
Muzaftar Khan had already felt the danger of the presence

of the exiled King (Shah Shuja) in the Fanjab. He

was afraid of the Maharaj}a who would have capitalized

25, T1.M., P.4b4g,
26. Ibid.P.u4s.

27, P.C., P.483,
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his presence. The Nawab's apprehension proved to be

true during the 2nd Sikh fnvasion of HMultan in 1810 A.D.
Nawab Muzaffar Khan sent his son Zulfikar Khan to MNawab
Muhammad. Khan of Kachl Shumall (ruler of Lelak and Bhakkar)
for help but due to the fear of the Sikh lcader he dlid
not mosz. Hawab Muzaffar Khan then sent his envoy to
Nawab Sadig Mohammad Khan (Ruler of Bahawalpur). This
mission also failed, In the meantime, Maharaja Ran}it
Singh with extensive war preparations marched on Multan.
Ndwab Muzaffar Khan had to rely on his own resources

and was prepared to face the Sikh Chief single-handedly.

Before reaching Multan, the Maharaja extracted 120,000

‘rupces from Hawab Mphammad Khan of Kachi Shumali as

a ransom of his State and also sent an enpvoy to the
Nawab of Nlahawalpur who agreed to pay him one lac of
rupees along with a contingent of 500 ho;scmen to
flght against ilawab Muzaffar Khig. Meanwhile, the
Sikh chief subdued Syed Hamid Gilani alias Nag Sultan
of Heh and obtained 10,000 rupees from him as Nazrana.

Maharaja Ranjit Singh was very successful in his early

moves against Hawab Huzaffar Khan who was thus isolated,

27. r.c,, - P.483,
* "Trea” v 0f Anvitsar-25th April,18079'. 'By this
breaty, anjit's activities were confined to the

rioht side of the Sutlcj, and the Cis-Sutlej States
came deflnitely under British Protection'. Sec:
An _Advanced History of India, P.738,
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The Maharaja devastated the subhurbs of Hul;?n and

appcared before it on 24th February 1810 . Mawab
Muzaffar Khan fortified himself in thc HMultan Fort. His
army defended ithe town but failed and jt was captured

by the Sikh army on 27th February 1810 ‘??. Before leaving
the town at the mercy of the Sikhs, the Nawab ordercd

the people to shift to the Fort. A large number of
population shifted to the Fort alongwith grain and
valuables. The Nawab very bravely a7l successfully
defended the fort but could not save thc town from Sikh
ravaqge, who mercilessly and indiscriminately plundered Jt.
The popula!‘on of Multan hoth rural and urbhan had to seek
refuge at Bdahawalpur. The Sikh army laid siege to the
Multan Fort. which lasted for 55 daig. The fort was heavil:

bombarded for several days under the personal guidance

and supervision of Maharaja Ranjit Singh. The Pathans

28, T.M. ' PP.281,282.

—

29. Shahamet Aliop.cit., P.157; P.C., P.u84;
Ho., P.386,
30.  1brat Ptamah, P.421.,
31, T.M., L1590 PLCL PLoass; H.P,,
P.366; Lepe) CGriifin, 1 o iit Singh. Delhi,

t957, V.1835 Sec: Shahamcl Alil wriles that Ranjit
Sinah 1laid siege to the fort of lultan on the 20th

Februar; L1S1C ., PLUIDT.
32, Z.A.. PL705Yousuf Curdczi.up.cil..P.SQ;P.C.,
e sS4 Latif wriles that the towan was captured

rmoxt odav, H.P.,op.cit..P.336: Alind Din writes thal
tne Tuclip noldiers defended the twor for 8 days,
Ibralt #amah, P.421,
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resisted bravely under their able commander Mawab Muzaffar
Khan., The famous saint Hafiz Jamal Ullah Multan; also
tooKX active part in the defence of the Fort. He preached
that the war aqainst the Sikhs was a Jihad (holy war).

In spite of his old age, he voluntarily offered his
services to Mawab Muzaffar Khan against the infidels. He
ied a small contingent of ~archers and played a vital role
during the siege. Whenever the Sikh soldiers tried to
climb the walls of the Fort with rope-stalrs, the archers
under Haflz Jamal Ullah Multani failed their evil desigzg.
The Pathan soldiers also poured boiling water and oil on
the beslegers., Havipg failed in their lnitial attempt to
6apture the Fort, the Sikhs planned to lay mines to effect
a break through the walls of the fFort. A teambf expert
miners under Sardar Atar Singh Dhari laid out the mines.

As soon as the Nawab came to know of their move, he decided

to countermine. When Sardar Atar Singh Dhari went inside

33. H.P., P.387; Ali Muhammad Khan writes that
the Mahara,a retired after 53 days; T.M.,P.159; Lepel
Griffin writes that the Maharaja retired on l4th
April 1810 . il.e., after 50 days; P.C.,P.485;
Yousuf Garweer writes that the Nawab defended the
fort for two months, P.54; Shahamct Ali writes that
the Maharaja retired to Lahore on the 25th of April
1810 . 1.e., after 65 days, P.159; Sohan Lal writes
that thc slege lasted for 2 months, U.T., P.3%4.

* Hafiz Jamal Ullch Multani son of Huhammad Yousuf son
of Hafiz Abdur Rashid belonged to the tribe of Awan.
He was a pious man and was an expert in the art of
archery .Nawab Muzaffar Khan paid him great respect.
He died in 1812 . (1226 A.H.), See: Aulia-i-Hultan,
op.cit., PP.257-.01; M.K., . P.281.
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the tunnel to inspect the operation, the Pathans blew up
the mines which caused the death of Sardar Atar Slngh
DPharl and twelve others, while aﬁ?ral others including
Sardar Mehal Singh Attariwala and Sardar Hari Singh
Halwa were severely wounded. This counter-move caused
confuslon and chaos amonqg the assallants who deserted,
leaving thelr dead close to th%fﬂrt. Hawab Muzaffar
Khan was s0 good at heart that he ordered to wrap the
dead-body of Sardar Atar Singh Dharl in a palr of shawls
and sent it to the Haharai:. Maharaja Ranjit Singh then
plannes another operation and effectively organised all
transport arrangements linking Lahore through land and
water with other parts of his territory In order to
mobilise all his rescurces against Multan., He offered
gallantry anardsfﬁnd high offices to his Sardars to
motivate them agafnsl the Pathans. The Maharaja also

ordered to bring to Multan the famous Zam-7ama from Lahore.

34, MNajumuddin Chishti Sulaimani, Munagqib-al-Mahboobain,
Lahore, 1312 A.H,, PP.124,1134,

35 Tk, P.71; Shahamet Ali.op.cit., PP.157,158
Ibrat Na™a v, P.421; H.L,, P.aBu;
H.P., rP.356,387; U.T,, P.34,

ol This famous gqun belonyed to ‘hmad Shah, It was made

by his order. He used iIb against the Marathas in the
third battle of Panip.t. 1t had the capacity to
discharye a ball of two and a half mounds(more than
200 pounds), In weight, At present, It is lving on
the crossing of Shahrah-i-Quaid-i-‘sam,opposite
Lahore Huseum.
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His order was carried out but there was no body to handle
it. 1n spite of all efforts, the Sikhs could not use it
agalnst the Pathans during the siege. Maharaja Ranjit
Singh then ordered a general assault on the Fort on the
2lst of March 1810 . but the Pathans again failed

their attempts and the attack was repulsed. The 5ikh army
suffered heavy los.vs. The Haharaja was naturally annoyed
with hls officers and he despatched a strong army under
Diwan Mahkam Chand to conguer Shujaabad which was held by
Mawab Sarfaraz Khan. MHe repulsed the Sikh attack and
Diwan Mohkam Chand had to retur;EHultan without achieving
his nhjeig. Diwan Mohkam Chand fell 111 and the Maharaja
ordered snother general attack on the Multan Fort which
was carrled out on 25th March 1810 . but it met the same
fazz. Mines were laid out near the Dev gate {on the western
slde of the Fort). The Pathans countermined. This time
the 51ikh soldiers blew up the mines earlier on 29th March
1810 ° ' and a few Muslim soldlers who were inspecting
the mines on their side lost their lives. A portion of the
wall was breachcd. The Sikh soldiers tried to enter but
Zulfikar Khan alongwith his contingent checked their

38
designs. 1n the meantime, the breach was filled. Having

36. H.P., P.387;

3?. GLhahamer All.op.cit., P.158; P.C. P.4s4;
H.P., 1 ¥ g ' ' '
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been enconraged by thls Inci<ent, the Maharaja ordered to
lay out mines once agaln under the supervislon of Sardar
Hari Singh Nalwa, Sardar Muchh Singh and Sardar Tej Singh.
When they were examiningthe operatlon, the Pathans blew up
the mines killing Sardar Tej Sinqgh alongwith forty others.
Sardar Har!l Singh Nalwa and Sardar Muchh Singh lucklly
escaped but with brunt facii. The people of Multan thus
defended thelr homeland at the cost of all privation and
mlseries. Thercv was scarclity in food and wheat atta was
sold at the rate of two seers a rup:E. Haharajla Ranfit
Singh mobilized all hls resources and tactics during the
siege but mlserably falled to conquer the fort. After
great disappointment he agreed to enter Into negotiations
with the Mawab. The Sikh chlef pretended that he was
flghting for the exlled King of Afghanistan (Shah Shujfa-
ul-Hulk) w:fse brother in law Habib Ullah Khan Saddozal

was wlth him, After negotlations the Nawab agreed and

solemnly under took it in writing on the Holy Quran that

3g, I.r., PP.71,72;5hahamet Ali, op.cit., P,158,
39, Lok ®.72; Shahamet Alj,op.cit., PP.158,159,

40, Shahamel Ali,op.cit., P.158,

1. T.HM, P.&48; Shahamet Ali, op.cit.,
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he would hnnﬂ over the Multan Fort to Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk

on hls arrivdi. Simultaneously he made it clear to the
Maharaja that he was not going to let him enteristo the
Fort or he would not hand over the Fort to him, Mawab
Muzaffar Khan believed that he was a tributory of the

Kmg of Afghanistan and not the Sikh ruler of the Panjab.
The Mawab also agreed to pay one lac of rupees to the
Maharaja as the war indemni:i and promised to pay two

lacs of rupec~ to Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk as the annual tribute.
Mawab Muzaffar Khan could ,ay thlrty thousand only to the
Maharaja as war Indemnity and handed over Abu Baka Khan
Saddnzai as a4 hostage till the payment of the remalning
nunu:i. The Mahara}s on his side blamed his Sardars (chlefs)
for the failure and retired to Lahore on 19th April and
reached hls captial on 25th April, 1B81C &5. During his
return journey when the Maharaja was at llahatam,only 10
miles fromwultan.he neard that a portion of the wall of

the Fort had fallen. He was very tired of the slege,hence
he did neot bhive the couraqge to avall of the npportuniti.

He hurricdly reached Lahore alongwith Abu Bake Khan

Saddozai.
B&y Tulay: PP,159,238,448,449; Sohan Lal writes
that th *1b agreed to be loyal to Shah Shuja-ul-

Mulk; U.T.,(ii), P.34,
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tlaharaja Ranjit Singh realised the weaknesses
of his ill-disciplined army which was not under his direct
control,but owed allegience to his feudal Sardars.'After
a few days rest' at Lahore, he introduced 'reforms in his
military department'. 'A corps of horse artillery was
organised under the superintendence of skilful generals'.
Soldiers were selected for this corps and he enhanced
their pay and emolumenzz. The Maharaj}a also started
correspondence with Colonel Sir David Ochterlony at Ludhianc
and proposed a Joint march on Multan with the undertaking
to divide it equally. Colonel Sir D.0Ochterlony wrote to
- the Governor General on 23rd July and 13th August 1810 .
and sought his approval and guidance. In the meantime,
Nawab Muzaffar Khan had already approached the Governor

General for help against the Maharaja. The policy of the

Cosipany was that of non-interference in the affairs of the

43, Ibrat Mamah ) P.412; See: T.M,, P.238;

7.\, P.725; Yousuf Gardezi,op.cit., P.54;
also Sec: U.T.,. _ P.34; Shahamet Ali,c,.cit.,
P.159; Joseph Davey Cunninghamop.cit., P.147, writes
Rs.180,000/-; Also See: P.C., P.485; H.P.,
op.cit., P.387., writes Rs. 25400u/- but it could be
the total amount which the Nawab agreed to pay to
the Maharaja as well as the exiled King.

44, ?.238; Yousuf Gardezi, op.cit.,P.5&;

T.M., ,
Tbrat Mamah,: PP.421,822; U.T.,” —  (ii),

P.102; P.C., P.485; H.P.,  ~° P.387.
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native Sta.cs. The Covcrnment of Calcutta conveyed its

policy to Coler~1l Sir. D.Ochterlony in. its lettecr dated
48

25th September, 1%10 . The Masaraja and the Nawab were

49
also apprised of it,

Hoatsib Ullah Khan Soﬁézai hrouaht the Holy Quran
to Shah Shuj.-ul-HMulk at Rawalpindi dul: signed by Nawab
Muzaffar Khan., He also convcycd the allcgience of the
Nawab 10 the ¢ led King. Bezing convinced of the loyalty
of the Nawab, Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk sent his wife Queen Wafa
Begum and his 8 years old son Prince Timur to lultan in
1810 (1225 A.H.) and he himself proceeded to Peshawar.
Naeawab Mus/:ffar Khan and Nawab Sarfaraz Khan received the
royal guests outside the town with great respect and

50
brough* them in the Fort. Mawab Muzaffar Khan served the

* He was matltcrnal uncle of MHawab Sarfaraz Khan as
w01l as his father-in-law; T.H,, ’ 7.238;
Forat lamah, P.421; Yousul Gardezi,,
--(‘.‘it., P.Sqo

45, H.P., P.387; lepel Griffin writes that the
Maharaja rctired on l4th April 1§10 .. P.CL,
P.a4%55 Shal - £ Ali writes that the Maharaja retired
on 2bth oi Avvil, 1810 s, P15V,

46. Jbrat Hamah, .h22.

47. H.P., ’.387.

48, Joseph vavey Cunningham, op.cit., PP.149,150.

49.  1.DP., P.387.
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royal quests with great honour for two months. Queen

Wafa Begum conveyed the loyalty and sincerity of the
Mawab to “hah Shuja-ul-Mulk who had comc back to
Rawalpindi after belng defeated by the army of Fateh

Khan Barakz:i. The moment the exlled King received the
good news, he decided to procecd to Hultan to capture 1t.
When Nawab Muzaffar Khan heard of his arrival, he closed
the gates of the Fort as well as the town and did not go
to receive Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk. The exiled King encamped
itn the Hazuri Bagh (a garden) outside the town. The
Mawab prohibited all the Saddozais to wisit 5hah Shuja-
ul-Mulk. He also requested Queen Wafa Begum to vacate
the Fort, which she did and Jjoined her- husband. Shah
Shuja-ul-Mulk told the Nawab that he planned to set his
military base at Multamn against hls brother. le also
promised tLhat he would not In any way interfere with the
Hawab's rule in Hultzi. The Nawab did not trust him as he
was known to be in league with Maharaja Ranj)it Singh who had

coveted eves on Multan. 5S5hah Shuja-ul-Hulk did not expect

this lack of trust on the part of Mawab Muzafrar Khan.

20.: T.M;, PP.2368,227%, 449;
I.A,, Rodda

5. TaH., PP.449, 450,

$2. I.H,, PP.239, 159; Z.A.,
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After one month, the Nawab sent a delcgation led by hils
son Shah Mawaz Khan, including the Syeds and the Mukhdums
af Hultanjrequesting to Shah to shift to the Fort of
Tulamb;. He was also requested to accept the Parganas

of Rangpur and Sardarpur which had an annual income of
16,000 rupces. Seelng the Nawab firm, Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk
sent his family to Tulamba and he himself encamped at
Salarwah;;. Later on he also joined his famlly at Tulamg:.
It was at Tulamba that Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk wrote to Maharaja
Ranjit Singh for help. The HMaharaja despatched 1000
horsemen (all muslims) to help him (Shah Shufa-ul-Mulk)
against the HNawab alongwlth an assurance that In case the
S5hah needed relnforcement, a strong army under the command
of his eldest son Kharak 5ingh would be se::. The exlled
King sent the same letter to Mawab Muzaffar Khan. The
fear which was lurking In the mind of the Nawab proved to

be correct and he ylelded to the demand of Shah Shuja-ul-

Mulk. I+ was decided that Hawab Muzaffar Khan alongwith

— — i W —

* Tulamgiz it 15 situated 50 miles on the north
cast of Multan.

LR Salarwahan: It is situated 19 miles on the
north cast of Multan.

53, TN, , P.239; Z.A., P.73.
54 . T4, P.240; Sher Muhammad Hadir writes

that the Naharaja sent Diwan Dhawani Das far Lthe
help or Shah Shuja-vul -Mulk; Z.A., V.74,
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his army, ammunitions and other valuables would shift
to Shujaabad, whereas Nawab Sarfaraz Khan would stay in55
Multan and would render all assistance to the exiled King.
The Mawab took oath on the Holy Quran from all the Saddozais,
the Afghans and the Tumandars (chiefs) to remain loyal

to him, Every body took the oath of allegience except

Ali Muhammad Khaﬁ who commanded great respect 4among the
Saddozais. He did not abifi§ by the solemn pledge. Although
he lived in the Fort alongwlth other Saddozals. He had alsc
bullt a guest~huﬁ§8 outside the walled city where from

he slipped away and went over to the exiled King. He

remained with him for a few years and represented him in
56

the Court of Maharaja Ranjit Singh.

5. TalMay . P.2a0.

& The author of Tazkirat-ul-Muluk.

o He dfsoheved because MNawab Sarfaraz Khan had
confiscated hils Jagir ond had distributed It
+mongst his brothers. When it was brought to the
notlice of Hawab Muzaffar Khan, he kept quiet: See:
T.M,, - PP.,390,391,

¢¢¢ It was situated on the western side of the present
Town Hall. %hen the Mawab had requested Queen Wafa
Bequm t¢ vacaele the Fort, she shifted to the guest-
house of Ali Muhammad Khan and then joined Shah
Shuja-ul-HMulk.

56, T.M,, . PP.239,392; U.T., r.108.
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Mawab Muzaffar Khan had ruled Multan as a
tributory of the Afghan King. But since the Vizarate of
Fateh Khan Barakzal, he had stopped paying the annual
tribute to Kabul. Durlng this period, Maharaja Ranjit
Singh had emerged as a powerful ruler of the Panjab.

The Maharaja collected the war indemnity from Nawab
Muzaffar Khan. The Mawab paid him under coerclion and
frreguisviy, The Hawab could never think of any help

from the Kabul Government because of the enmity of the
Barakzals. The present situatlon which Nawab Muzaffar

Khan had to face was very closely studied by Abdul Jabbar
Khan, the Governor of Dera Chazi Khan. Ne believed that
the occupation of Multan by Shah Shuis-ul-Mulk would be

a potential danger to the Kabul Government. lle,immedlately
conveyed the polfttical development at Multan, te his

brother wazlr Fateh Khan Rarakzal. The Kabul GCovernment
felt concerned about Shah Shujfa-ul-Hulk as well as Maharaj«
Ran}it Singh,hence a letrer was sent to Mawab Muzaffar

Khan confirming him as the genuine Subedar of Multan with

a4 promise to help him In case of any Invaslon., This chang:
In the attitude of the Kabul Government strengthened the
hands of Hawab Muzaffar Khan. His Intelligence also broug't
him the news that the Sikh leader did not intend to send

a large arm. for the capture of Multan on account of his
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recent fallure. It encouraged the Mawab who abruptly
changed his decislon of handing over Multan to Shah
Shuja-ul-Mulk and shifting to Shujaabad. He also turned
down the request of Shah Shuja-ul-Hulk to accommodate
him In the Multan Fuiz. The Afghan King 5hah Mahmud
alongwith his Wazir, Fateh Khan Barakzai, arrived at
Peshawar and crossed the Indus near Kaiahagh to apprise
himself of the designs of Maharaja Raniit Singh who had
already reached Rawalpindi. Both the rulers met in

M
1811 . .. (1226 A.H.) and departed wlth great understandiin
Then Shah Shufa-ul-Mulk sent Ali Muhammad Khan to Maharaja
Ranjit Singh for help., He met the Sikh leader In Hawalpingg
and found the Maharajla Insincere. Maharaja Ranjit Singh
did not permit Ali Muhammad Khan to go back to Shah Shuja-
ul-Mulk, He detained him with a8 false promise to help
the exlled Klng and took him to Lahor - where he was duly
looked after nicefg. Shah Shuja-ul-Hulk was disappointed

and he camc back to Rawalpindi alongwith his family in

57.. TaW., PP.260-242;1.A., P.74,

58. 1.M,, P.159; Tate. ool 50,
H.P., P.389,

59. I.M., PI8%: Malus m.108.

60. T.H., PP.392,393.
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1811 : (1226 A.H.,). Turing his absence, the tawab

occupicd all the Parganas granted to him carlicr Including

Tulamba. Shah Shuja-ul-llulk then attacked Peshawar with

the hc]; of Hnmezzz brothers and defeatcd the Barakzal

army. The Barakzai Governor of Peshawar Ata Muliammad Khan

was killed and his brother Azim Khan Barakzai ran away

to Kabul., Sr:h Shuja-ul-liulk occupied Peshawar in 1812
(1227 A?L.). He had to face another rival in the

person of Jahondad Khan who became very powerful and

paid no heced to the authority of Shah Shuja-ul-Hulk. Ali

Muhammad Khan reached Peshawar having spent 16 months

in tke Court of Maharaja Ranjit Singh as he was recalled

by thc Shah. He was granted leave hesitantly on the

promise to be back at his earliest. e told the exiled

King in Peshawar that the Maharaja was not sinecerc to him.

In the meantime, Shah Shuja-ul-ttulk sent Prince Haider

son of Shah Zaman to Dera Ghazi Khan to capture it but

he was defeated by Abdul Jabhbar Khan the brother of Fateh

Khan Barakzai. Tt lowered the prestige of the Shal in

the eyes of Jahandad Khan who on the instiqation of his

* Ali fiuhammad Khan writes that Ata Huhammad Khan,
the Go--rnor of Kashmir, sent a stronq army under
Diwan tan- Ram and Jahandad Khan, the fGovernsar of
Attock, participated with his force; .co:
P.450,

T.H.,

* ¥ Ata hithammad Khan and Jahandad Yhan sons of
Sher FHuhammad Khan Bamezai who was the Wazir of
Shah Shuja-ul-Hulk,

61, Ihid, PP,159,450.
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elder brother Ata iluhimmad Khan attacked Bala Hissar and

the Shah was 'made a prisoncr' in August 1812 (Shahan
62

1227 A.H.) and 'was carried to kashmir'. Ali Muhammad Khan

came pack to Rawalpindi and met Queen Wafa Begum. Later
o

on hec procecded to Lhakar and from there reached Jalalputd
(3akavalpur) where Mawab Sadig Huhammad Khan sent him
presents in recognition of his position and status. He
celebrated his marriage in Jalalpur i+ February 1813
(Safar 1228 A.H.) with the daughter of Din HMuhammad Khan
Babar. After a ‘ew days, he decided to proceed to Lahore.
Nawal» Muzaffar Khan having come to know his programme
invitecd him to Multan. Ali Muharmad Khan cancclled his
visit to Lahore and procerded to Hultan where he was duly
honoured by MNawab Muzaffar Khan and M:.wab Sarfaraz Khan.
It restored brotherly feeling and understanding brtween

63
the two bhranches ot . " Saddozais of llultan.

After the departure of Shah Shuja-ul-tHulk,
Nawab Muzafiar Khan paid his attention towards maintaining
law and order in his dominion. He was also worricd for
the payment of the remaining amount of 70,000 rupeces to

the Haharaja for the rclrase of Abu Bakr Khan Saddozai.

6. T.H., PP.393, 450; Tate, op.cit.,r.125.
¢ Jalalynr: At present it is the Sub Tehsi) of

Shujaabad Tchsil (Multan District). It is situated
55 miles on th~ sourth west of Multan.

63. T.N.. P.394,
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Althouqgh he was also committed to pay 2 lacs of rupees
to the exller King but the helplessness of the 5Shah and
his weakness made him more careful about his commitment
to the ruler of Lahore. The Hawab concentrated on the
welfare of his people speclially the rural populatlon
because they were the people who were responsible for
the prosperity of his State. Rajab S5ial ef the Rajbanah
tribe was a source of constant disorder In the north-
eastern side of Multan. Hawab Muzaffar Khan despatched
a strong army to check his activities. Rajab 51al had
bullt a fortress near Ahmadpur and had fortifled it. It

was attacKed and captured. Hajab Sial ran away. The

"Nawab ordered the Fortress to be demolished. A new Fort

near Ahmadpur named Firozgarh was built, where a strong

army was kepnt to malntain law and order,

In the meantime, the Mawab had to turn his
attention to another grave 1ncldcii. Mawah Sarfaraz Khan
some how or other Interfered in the internal affairs of
the ruler of Dahawalpur, which stralned their relation
and - led them to the battle field. During the [nvasion
of Multan by Maharafa Ranjit Singh, Mawab Sadiq Muhammad

Khan had provided a small contingent to the Sikh chief.,

64. I1.A., PP.74,75; P.C.,
P.485, T
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He had also taken Kh.npur and its adjacent arca on lease
from Nawab Sarfaraz Khan against the wishes of Nawab
Muzaffar Khan, Moreover, he was not paying the fixed
annual amount regularis. It created misunderstanding
between the two chiefs., Certain principal officers of
the Nawab's army also provided an excuse for I!awab

Sarfaraz Khan to interfere in the lnternal affairs of

Bahawalpur State.

Fateh Muhammad Khan Ghauri, Jamadar Ahmad
Khan Tarin and several others conspired to kill Nawab
Sadiq Muhammad Khsn when he was in Ahmadpur East. They
deputcd.one Sanji Khan to accomplish it, but he failed In
- his mission. WMNawab Sadlg Muhammad Khan went back to hils
strong-hold of Derawgi. On an other occasion, when Nawab
Sadlg Muhammad Khan left Derawar for hunting, the
conspirators, with the help of Mulla Hashim,Allah Dad
Keiri, Bihar Khan Kehri and several others again played
foul with hin and declared S5ahibzada Ahmad Baksh son of
Sahibzada Hubarak Khan as their new ruler. They formed
a regency and having closed the gates of the Fort, they
fired guns to celebrate the installation of the new ruler.
When Nawab Sadiq Muhammad Khan heard the firec of the guns,
he rushed boack to the Fort and captured it by forgz.Fateh

Mulbammad Khan Ghauri, Jamadar Ahmad Khan Yarin and Dhooman

Singh 'who had each under his command 500 horse and foot
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proceeded towards Bahawalpur' town and from there ‘'were
obliged to cross the rivgf'(chara). Mawab Sarfaraz Khan
who was the actual manager of his father's terrltory

was In Shujaabgz. They met him there and instigated the
young Mawab against the ruler of Bahawalpur. Nawab
Sarfaraz Khan allowed them to plunder thc territory of
Bahawalpur on this side of the river. It annoyed Nawab
Sadig Muhammad Khan but he sent an emissary to settle

the dispute. The mission failed and ultimately Nawab
Sadiq Muhammad Khan despatched a strong army under his
commander Muhammad Yaqoob Khan who defeated Jamadar Ahmad
Khan Tarin at Khangarh. MNawab Sarfaraz Khan also sent

a strong army'under Diwan Sahibdad to check the advance
of the Bahawalpur forces but It was also defeatzg,hence
Mqhammad Yagoob Khan advanced towards Shujaabad. Another
force was despatched by Sarfaraz Khan and a pitched battl

was fought in which the Afghans were routed and Jamadar

Ahmad Khan Tarin alongwith fifty companions was killed.

€

65. Z.A., . . P.75.

B

66. Shahamet All,op.cit., P.163.

67. Sadig-ut-Tawarickh, . PP.345,349,

68. Snahamet Ali,op.cit., PP.163,164; Sadig-ut-Tawariekh,

P.350; Z.A.,op.cit., PP.76,77.
69. Shahamet Ali,op.cit., P.1lé4.

70l Z.Al,- Pl76l
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Fateh Muhammad Khan Ghauri ran away to Dera Ghazi Khan.
The Afghans having becen completely decfTeated had to

sign a truce. Nawab Muzaffar Khan express~d his concern
to Sadiq Muhammad Khan over this incldent and apologised
for these unpleasant developments. Similar feelings

were expressed by Mawab Sadiq Muhammad Khan who also paid
the outstan:ilng lease money of Khanpur and its adjacent
area to Jliawab Muzaffar Khan and promised Lo be punctual

71
in payment of the same in future.

The incompetent descendants of Ahmad Shah Dur-i-
Durran at Kabul failed to defend their tributaries from
the Sikh invasions. Belng convinced of the weakness of
the Afghan King, Nawab Mu. ffar Khan had concluded a truce
with Mabaraja Ranjit Singh and in 1811 . .(1226 A.?.) had
aareed to pay him 80,000 rupees as the annual tributi.

Accordingly 30,000 rupees, which were paid earlier to the

Maharaja, wcre adjusted ard it was decided to pay the

remaining 50,000 rupees from the Rabi crop of 1812 .Maharaja

Paciit Singh sont Sardar Dal Singh to Multan in April 1812
abonygwith Abu DBakpr Khan Scddozai who was in Lahore as a

hostage. The HMabaraja instructcd the Sardar to release

Abu Bakr Khan only on the veceipt of the remaining amount

71. T.4W., P.262; 1.A., PP.77-79;
Sadig-ut-Tawariekh, op.cit., PP.350; Shahamet Aii
writes that Mawab Muzaffar Khan himself declarcd
war against the Daudputras and proceeded to Shujaabad
which is incorrect, PP.166,167,

72, I.N., PP.242,243.
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73

of 50,000 rupees from Nawab Muzaffar Khan, The Nawab
found himself unable to honour the commitment because
the Sikhs had destroyed the standing crop in the north
eastern, part of his territory and the Bahawalpur!l army
had damaged the standing crop on the scuth western slide
of his dominion. The Nawab, having realised the
financial stringency, decided to sell hls jewellry to
clear the arrears., On the arrival of Sardar Dal Singh,
Hawab Muzaffar Khan sent his jewellry to Delhi where it
was sold and payment :as made to the Sikh commander who

released Abu Bakr Khan,

Shah Mahmud, the Afghan King alongwith his
Wazir, Fateh Khan started from Kabul in winter 1813 A.D.
to collect tributes from his Jndian vassals. He reached
Dera Ghazi Khan vla Daman whereas his Wazir, with his
permission, proceeded to Multan. With the help of Abdul
Jabbar Khan, the Governor of Dera Ghasi Khan, Fateh Khan
crossed the Indus. Fateh Khan wanted to replace Hawab
Muzaffar Khan with one of the Barakzais. The Mawab alread;
knew his nefarious designs, hence he despatched a

delegation led by Sarwar Khan Saddozai (his father in law)

73. T.H,, P.ab3: Batra,op.cit., P.5%2; H.P.,
P.393; Muranga-i-llultan, . i oLt
e, T.M., P.243; Hatra,ep.cit., P,59; H.P.,
op.cit., P 393; Muraqga-i-MHultan, P.127;

P_DG., N.b.,op.elits, P,551 U.T., P.106.
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to Shah Mahmud. Sarwar Khan explained to the Afghan King
that the Hawab could not pay his respects in the royal
Court at Dera Chaz! Khan due to the fcu; of his Wazir.

He also explalned that Maharaja Ranjit S5ingh was
collecting the tribute with force and the Mawab was in
financial distress. He presented 15,000 rupees alongwlth
some prescnts to Shah Mahmud who accepted it and promised
to safeguard hls interests. A royal corder was lssued to
Fateh Khan that he need not proceed to Multan and should
come back as the Afghan King was satisfied with the
attitude of Hawab Muzaffar Khan, The moment Fateh Khan
recelved the royal order, he at once retreated ;n early
1814 A.D. and dropped the ldea of invading Multag. The
Afghan King agaln came to Dera Chazi Khan in winter 1814
A.D. via S5i rdh. Mawab Muzaffar Khan agoin sent an emlssary
who presented the 'Mazar' to Shah Mahmud who reclprocated
by SEndigg a Khilat alongwith a horse tn the Hawab and

went back. Tt was a crltical situation for the Hawab because

on one side the Maharaja wanted to anncx his State whereas

. Enmity of Wazir Fateh Khan Barakzai,

75, T.4. PP,161,162,243; Latif narrates that
on Lhr ar*ival of tateh Khan at Trimu Chat,Mawab
Muzaffar khan sent Girlam Huhammad Khan to Maharaja
Raajlt Singh for help. "to Haheraja promised to
despatch a strong army undcr the command of Prince
Kharak Singh. The moment Fateh Khan heard of it,
he went back, H.P., P.398§.
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his own Afghan patron was knocking at his door for money.
The Mawab had to save his tiny Muslim State from the

clutches of the infldels as well as to kecep it safe from
the grip of the Darakzals who were In full control of the

affalrs In Afghanistan. He behaved very dlplomatlcally

and faced every sltuatlon couraglously. He also concentrated

on hls domestic affairs. He paid full attention to the
welfare of his people. The Nawab did not pay his promlised
tribute of 80,000 rupees to the Maharaja for the year
1§15 * .The Sikh chlef,on the pretext of extracting
tribu.v, marched on Multan in Fcbruary 1816 .. . While
he was at Tulamba In the last week of March, Syed Mohsln
Shah the representative of Nawab MHuzaffar Khan met him
and placed before him several prescnts including horses,
shawls and carpets wlth the promise that the Nawab would
pay him the tribute In Rabi 18l& * ... The Maharaja who
did not withdraw his forces and laid siege to the Ahmadabad
Fort which was captured with the help of the artillery of
Misr-Bewon Chand. The Maharaja proceeded towards Hultan
and after crossing the Chenab at frimu Ghat rcached

77

*
Khokharawn irn 1814 (1231 A.Il.). HNawab Muzaffar Khan

closed the gates of the Fort and the walled city. He was

76, I.M., P,243.
* Khokharewn: It is situvated 22 miles on the north

ecast of HMultan, It 1s on the left bank of Chenab.
It is also known as Khokharawn Muhabbat.
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ready to aive fight. “he Nawab was never impressed hy

the Sikh force and would never think of surrendering the
Fort to the infidels. In the meantime, a Sikh chief

Phula Singh taking advantage of the presence of the
Maharaja started devastating the standing Rabi crop ripe
for harvesting., Although the Nawab knew that the
prosperity of the people depended upon this crop, he did
not send any force to check Phula Singbh bhut the irregular
forcg of the Afghans whose crop was inyolved came forward
and checked Phula Singh near the Eidgah. A battle was
fought in which the Sikh force was defeated and Phula7Singh
ran away leaving the dead-bodies of his S5ikh companiong.
Maharajta Ranjit Singh realisedthe situation and sent hls
Wazir Fakir Aziz-ud-Din to Mawab Muzaffar Khan. He expressed
reqrets to the Nawab on behalf of the Maharaja on the
irresponsible behaviour of Phula Singi. There upon, the
Nawab paid him 40,000 rupees and promizcd to pay the
remaining amount at the time of the Rabi crop. After

receiving the money, the Maharaja retreated and encamped

at Gaggrgﬁ from where he despatched an emissary to Mankera

77. 1bid. PP.243,244,253; H.P., P.407; U.T.,
P.38; P.D.G., M.D., P.55 writes
that the Maharaja encamped at Salarwahan during the
Sikh attack on Multan under Phula Singh.

¢ The constant state of warfare had trained the rural
population and they were in habit of being united
at thr timec of any invasion; See: Z.A.,
PP.72, -0. T
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asking Nawaiy Muhammad Khan Sarbuland Muinud-Doulah to
pay the tribute. The veteran Hawab who was more than
80 ycars old rejected the demand of Haharaja Ranjit
Singh but scon he died. The MHuoharaja then despatched
a stronq army against his successor Sher Muhammad Khan,
the Nawab of Kachi-Shumali and after scveral battles

S0
the Nag¢8 agreed to pay him the tribute. The Maharaja
after settling the affairs with the Afghans returned to
Lahore via Jhang. Whlle at 3hang, he srrested Ahmad Khan
Sial, the Chirf of Jhang, who was a ‘ose ally of Nawab
Muzaffar Khan alongwith his Diwan, Jawaya Ram and sent
them to Lahore under a strong Guard. His territory was
confiscated. Rajab Sial of Rajbanah tribe was also arrested

81
and was sent to Lahore as a prisoner.

78, T.H., . PPL243.7445 7,A., PP.79,80;
See: H.P. P.407; P,C., PP, 485, 486
give a dlfferent account that Phula Singh took

‘possession of some of the out-works of the 01tadel,
which is incorrect because it is not bascd on
authentic reference.

79. Z.A., P.80; P.C., . P.486.

¢ Gaggrah: It is situated 17 miles north east of
Multan,

¢¢¢  Mawab Muhammad Khan Sarbuland Huin-ud-Doulah had no
male issue. Nawab Sher Mubtammad Khan was the son of
his only daughte~ who was marriecd to Hafiz Ahmad Khan
son of Abdul Rehman Khan son of Momen Khan. Hls
descendants are still living in Dera Ismail Khan;
See:T.M. Pp.282-290.

80. I.M., PP.282-285; H.P., PP.407,405;
u.v., P.38.
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Hlawab Muhammad Sarbuland Khan Huin-ud-Doulah
had given sheclter to Abdus Samad Khan BDadozai. His
strong-hold of Dera Din Panah was situated in hls dominlion.
The Mawah had given him the protection against MNawab
Muzaffar Khan and had also given him a stipcnd of fifty
rupecs daily. When the old Mawab died in 1816 (1231
Abdus Samad Khan raised a strong force and stationed it
in his Fort of Dera Din Panah. He plarned to capture a
portion of the territory of the late Nawab, but after
the departure of HMabaraja Ranjit Singh, Hafiz Ahmad Khan
the father of HMHawab Sher Muhammad Kh.a: csieged Dera Din
Panah. Abdus Samad Khan having realised his weak position
deserted to Lahore in 1817 (1232 A.H.) and induced
the Maharaja to invade Multan once aga?i.

Mawab Muzaffar Khan was always in arrears of
tribut:. The Sikh chief had bcen cherishing the desire
to capture Multan but the brave Afghans had alwavs resisted.
The Maharaja sent a strong army against Multan in 1817

. under the command of Diwan Bhawani Das and Lala Ram
Dayal assisted by Hari Singh Halwa 'to cnforce the payment
u? tvibute!l lisr Dewan Chand alongwith his artillery
83

consisting of 'a large number of guns’ followed them. They

encamped in the village Suraj Hiani two miles west of

81. H.P., P.408.
82. T.M., PP.252,253; H.P., P.40OS.
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Multan and looted the area west of Multan. The Sikh argi
did not have the courage to besiege thc Fort and the town.
They waited for the reallsation of the tribute from the
Nawab, but as they could not get anything, they crossed
the Chenab. They entered the dominion af MNawab Sher
Muhammad Khan and bes!eged Mahmud Kot which was captured,
Hafiz Ahmad Khan had to pay them some money. Then they
marched analinst the territory of Nawah Muzaffar Khan and
besiecged the Fort of Muzaffargagg. When the Sikh army was
in Mahmud Kot,Nawab Muzaffar Khan hau despatched a strong
army under his son Zulfikar Khan tn ‘¢fend the Fort of

iluzaffargarh against any possible Invaslon. The Afghans

offercd a stiff resistance to the invaders and showed

83. T.M., . P.2445 Z.A.. P.80y H.P.,
op.cit., P.410; U.T., . P.38.

84, T.M., P.2&4; 7.A.. . P.BO; Latif
narratcs th,t the Sikh army besieqged the Multan Fort

hut it was very bravely defended by the Mawah,HRP410.
fepel Griffin writes that the invaders retired on

the payment of 10,000 rupees,P.C.,P.486. He has not
given any authentic reference.

* Hahmud Kot:Tt is situated 17 miles norih west of
Muzaffargarh,

85. ,P.26b; Z.A., P.80.

T.M.,
Lo
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great valour. During the siegc, a ball was shot from a
close range, which get fire to the houses including the
Palace of the MNawab Iinside Lhe Fort., The defenders
controlled the situation and did not lose their morale.
Ultimately the Siih army went back to Lahore after
receliving mongg. On their arrival, Maharaja RanjilL S5ingh
penalised Diwan Bhawani Das, placed him undzr guard and
imposed a fine of 10,000 rupees for hls unsuccessful
mlsslgz. It was during the same periou that Abdus Samad
Khan ran away from Dera Din Panah an: | ,ined the Sikh

88
force on thelr way to Lahore.,

Maharaja Ranj]it Singh had been very successful
in all of his campalgns except Multan. He wanted to
conquer it because 1t had been a great hurdlc in his
pollcy of aggrandisement. WNawab Muzaffar Khan was nelther
paying the tribute to Maharaja Ranj}it Singh nor was he
paylng the revenues to the King of Afghanistan. In spite
of all the pressures both military and political by the
rulers of Afghanistan and the Panjah, he maintaincd his
Independencec by sheer dint of courage and kept his dignity
In the face of all hazards. He was an absolute ruler in
his Internal affairs and pald tribute to the Maharaja at
his c¢onvenicnee either in the form of ILndemnity or in the

shape of tribete,

86. T.M., P.24437 A, . PP.80,51;U.7.,
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As Maharaja Ranjit Singh was very much annoyed
at the failure of the mission of Diwan 3hawani Das, he
was determincd to conguer Multan at any cost. During the
later part of the year, the Maharaja pald full attentlon
to his preparations for an expedition against Multan, He
personallv supervised 'all the preparations, Including
the transport arrangements'. [t was decided Lo transport
all 'the provisions and war materials by the Ravi and
the Chenab' . All the boats werc requ.,itioned. 'A large
number of bullocks were procured tn vey the heavy
artillery to the Intended seat of ¥--'. 'Zam Zama', the
famous qun, was brought to Lahore from Amritsar and was
to »e moved to Multan. Maharaja Ranjlt Singh ordered his
Sardars to collect all possible suppllies as well as
soldiers from all quartegz. He dld not want to face
fatlure during this campalign of Multan as e had been
attempting th. congucst of 'ultan for thec last 8 years.
With a total foree of 50000 soldiers both reqgular and
Irregular he was ready to move against Hultzg. He was
also worried about thco selection of the commander of the

expedition. Once he discussed this problem in his court,

Misr Dewan Chand expressed his willincviess to lead the

87. U.T., P.39; H.P., P.410,

88, T.H., P.253.
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expeditlon with the assurance that all the expenses of
war would be met by the Haharaj}a and in case of success,
he would not be asked to submit the accounts of the

booii. The Maharaja accepted his demands and appolnted
him as the commander of the expedition. Some of the
Sardars were not willing to serve under Misr Dewan Chand
as he had risen from 'a low positior :0 that of commandan!
of the artillery on account of his * tents', Ultlmately
it was decided that Prince Kharak Singh would accompany
the 51kh army as a nominal(chlef und tLhe command would be
retalned by HMlsr Dewan Cha;g. The 1.naraja brlefed his

son Prince Kharak Singh about these arvangements.Hc was
afraid of a united front of the Muslims, He, rherefore,
releasted Ahmad Khan S51al and gave him a Jagir in Mirowal
fn the Amritsar District. He sent emissaries to the Nawab

of Bahawalpur, the Governor of Dera Ghazi Khan and Mawab

Sher Muhammad Khan of Kachi-Shumali. He cncamped in the

89, T.4., P.244; Ibrat Namah.. P.447;U.T.,
P.39; H.P.,. P.4+10; P.C., P.4Ar
90, 71.A., P.81; See: H.P., P.410;

Lepel Criffin writes that the total number of his
army consisted of 25000 soldiers, P.C., P.486.
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Shalamar garden and made the best possible arrangements
of communications between his station and the war front.
Being the supreme commander, he wanted to be well-informed
about each and every development. His grand army marched
to Multan with yreat pomp and show in January 1818
It included all big and small Sardars including Djwan Ram
Dayal, Hari Singh Malwa, Fateh Singh At'uwalia, Dil Singh,
Karam Singh, Diwan Moti Ram and Dlwan "hawani Dzz. He also
brought the Afghans of Kasur to the scenc of war and
Qutub-ud-Din Khan was made in charg:. of his contlngent.
Abdus Samad Khan also accompanied ti ‘rince. The Maharaj}a
appointed him as the adviser of Prince Kharak Singh and
instructed the Prince to pay full attention to his advizg.
When Nawab Muzaffar Khan heard the news of the arrival of
such a large army to conquer Multan, he appealed to the
wple of Multan in general and the Muslims in particular

to rise in defence of their homeland. He declared it a

holy war and was determined to put up a strong defence,

He shifted provisions %o the Multan Fort. His well-trained
21. lbrat! Namah, P.447,
92, H.P., P.410; Ibrat tlamah, P.un7;
P.C., P.486; Shahamet Ali, op.cit., P.J74
23, T.M., P.rabk; Youruf Gardezi, oOp.cit., P.54;
u.m., PP.32,208; H.P., PP.415,411,
94, U.T,, P.208.

:
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small army consisting of 2000 soldiers alongwith an
artillery of 20 small guns was ready to defend Multan

and Shujaabad because both were his invincible strong-
holds. The people of Muzaffargarh, Khangarh, Shujaabad
and Multan volunteered themselves and were ready to

face the enemy on thelr own., Nawab Muzaffar Khan wrote
to the Mawab of Bahawalpur, the Governor of Dera Ghazi
Khan and the Nawab of Kachl-Shumali for help but they
kepty quiet. The S51kh army after crossing the Chenab at
Trimu Ghat reached Muzaffargarh. It besieged the Fort
which could not stand In defence for long. It was defended
by tte local militia, hence it surrendered. Then the
SLlkhs proceceded towards Multan. Misr Dewan Chand was
encamped in the Hazuri Bagh on the northern side of the
Fort. He was successful fin his initial campaiqn. After
the fall of Muzaffargarh, the Sikhs devastated the entlre
territory. They destroyed the standing crops and looted
the people mercilessly. The women committed suicide in
order to save their honour. The people ran away towards
Dera Ghazi Khan for rcfuge. As the Maharaja had promised
his commander that he would not question him about the
booty, the soidicrs looted the Mawab's dominion fearlessly

and set the houses on fifre.
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The Nawab was then left with five guns and
1000 soldieiz (600 regular and 400 irregular ) and a
small contingcnt of volunteers to defend Shujaabad.
Necessary provisions was also stored in the Fort of
Shujaabad. The Nawab did not give importance to the
Fort of Khangarh., It was vacated and the people were
shifted to Shujaabad. The Sikh army occupied it without
any resistance. The Sikh soldiers were stationed in the

26
Fort of Muzaffargarh and Khangarh. The Mawab posted 1400

soldiers for the defence of the Multan Foiz. A small

army consisting of volunteers was ralised to defend the
town. The Sikhs under the command of Diwan Moti Ram
besieged the tcwn in March 1818 . (Jamadi-ul-Aawal

1235 A?S.) The Afghans fought very bravely and defended
the town with a great vigour. In spite of the best
defence several breaches were made in the wall of the

city on account of the heavy fire of artillery. The
bombardment was so severe that the defenders were unnerved
and ultimately the town was captured. The Sikhs entered
the city and performed acts of arson and loot,resulting

in the suicide of —~any women to save their honour.Ultimatcly

Misr Dewan Chand had to stop it because the fort was

yet to be conquepred. The Fort was besieged and was

95, 7.A., PP.31,82.
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hombarded and the artillery showed its performance which
caused breaches In the walls of the fort. The Nawab was
very vigilant and the breaches were repaired in no time.
The famous 7Zum Zama which was used by Ahmad Shah against
the Marathas in the third battle of Panipat in 1761

was duployed for the destruction of the Muslims in general
and the rulc of the Saddozais in Multan in particular.
During the sieqge of the Fort, it was fired four times and
every time it irrepairably damaged the outer wall of the
Fort. The MHawab undauntedly raised mounds of earth behind
the breaches;, ° Due to constant bombardment, KhizAr gate
facing Eidgah {(on the north eastern side) was blown up

but the defenders raised a mound of earth behind iz.Then

a general assault was attampted, which the Afghan soldiers
repulsed very courageously and the Sikhs ran away leaving
the dead-bodies of 1800 igg. Constant bombardment ultimately
caused two serious braches, one in th¢ wall near KhizaAjp~
gate and the other in the wall near the Dev gate (on the
western side). It encouraged the Sikh soldiers who having
crossed the -'‘ry moat rushed towards the Fort. A hand to

hand fight took place near the wall and the Afghans

succeeded in pushing them back. The old Nawab himself

9. I,M., P.24L,

97. 1bid. PP.244,245,
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took . tive part in tpne battle and his precsence cnhanced
the movale of the Afghan soldiurs. They at once raised
maunds of carth behind the breaches. [In the meantime,

Misr N+ n Chand despatched a strong army towards Shujaabad
A fl- = of artillery was also sent. It bhesicged the lort
of Shujaahad. In spite of heavy bombardment, il falled

to do any h. + to Lhe Fort. The defenders showd thelr
cxcoptional courage and repulsed their attack. The Sikh
army failed Lo capture Shujaabad cven aftev the fall of

the Fort of Multan. The Fort of Shujaabad remaincd

invinciblae.

Maharaja Ranjit Singh had deployced all of his
resaources and was anxiously waiting for good news, When
two months alapsed and the Sikh army failed Lo caplure
the fort, he instructed Mist Dewan Chand to offer .orms
of an honourable peace to the ilawab, As the Maharaja was
decply intrvasted in the conquest of Multan at. any cost,
he offcre . Shyjaabad and Khangarh in return to tlawabh

Huzafrar Khan as Jagirs for the maintenanec of his family.

P9, Ibid. P.r2any 72,AL, .94 See: N.T.,
P.39; Latil writes .Rat tae Sikh army besicoed
the town ir Feb: wary 1818 ° . (Phagan 1874 Samvet).
Maltan was alse ecaptured in Tebruary U.P., PLull;
Yousuf Cardezi -~~ite¢3 that the Hoharajo despatched

his army tewards Multan in Fehryary 1518
(Phagar 1874 Samvet), P.34,
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He wan asked to shift to Shujaahad -nd nand over the
charge of BPultan fort to Prince Kharak 5ingh. The Nawab
was also asked to live like a Jagirda., of Maharaja Ranjit
Slngh. Dfiwan Bhawani Das and Ghaudr! Cadir Baksh were
senl to the Maw~h and they gave assurance for the protection
of his 1ife, honour and propcrty. They also offered to
altow the tiwab to shift aiongwith his relations, Servants.
soldicrs and other belonglngs including ernaments. There
was a Jull, Fighting was stopped. he terms were placed
hefore the Tumandars (chiefs) for their consideration,The
position of the Fort was also explained. Provisions and
ammunition had exhausted. There were two irrepairable
breaches, one on the western side and the second on the
north ecastern side. During the war, if the Sikhs had lost
thousands of thelr soldlers, the MNawab ﬁad also incurred
the ‘uss of at least more than 1000 soldiers. For the
present there were hardly 300 soldiers including his
family-members and personal servants to defend the fort.

In spite of all these handicaps, a seclion of the proud
Afghans thought that the old Nawab was making peace for

the safety of his family, which was absolutely undesirable,

93. T.H4., . P.245%; Ibrat Mamah, P.447;
H.P., P.4l1l; P.C.,. P.486.

100. P.C., P.486,
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but the fact was that he was avolding ‘urther destruction.
Mawab Muzaffar Khan was interested In peace hecause the

Sikh artillery had destroyed most of the buildings Including
the Palace of the Hawab and the stores inside the fort.

The crafty Abdus Samad Khan for his selfish designs was
quiding the Sikh artlillery. He was a deadly enemy of the
Mawab. He had the desire to see the end of his rule. He
Intriqued with certaln Afghans and played a very dirty

role by bribing them. A section of the Afghans deserted

the Nawab during the siege and jolned the Sikhs. It did

not unnerve the veteran Nawab. The Nawab after consulting
hls sons had taken the decision of concluding an honourable
peace 15 days before the fall of the Fort but the proposal
had been rejectcd by other Afghans. I!'ltimately he consulted
his sons again and revised the decision accordingly. The
Sikh Chief made a desparate attempt to capture the fort and
the artillery fire was resumed. This time, the bombardment
was 50 severe Lhat It destroyed the reriining buildings
inside the Fort and it became absolutely difficult for the
defenders to repair the damaged walls of the Fort or to
raise earth bchind the breaches. The 5S5ikh soldiers succeeded
in entering tiv Fort on the norih western side near the Dev
gate. Under this critical situation, the Tumandars requested
the Hawabh to conclude peace with the Sikhs. The Hawab told

them that he kad chosen an honourable death for himseclf.
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He turned down their request for negotiations with the
lnflqels and preferred to die for the nrhle cause of
Islj;. Hec had preferred to die as a martyr in defendjng
Islam than live a defamed I}Eé.He rushed towards the Sikh
soldlers who had entered the Fort and pushed them back
with the help ¢~ his small contingent. He showed
exceptional bravery while defending the Fort. Hls courage
ralsed the morale of the remnants. He posted Hawab
Sarfaraz Khan to take care of the Dev gate. The sicge of
the Fort lasted for 84 days. The S5ikh soldiers finding

a way through the breach of the wall near Khizai Sate

“+ The old

entered the Fort on Friday, Ist June 1818
Nawab was there to stop them and thcy fought from morning
to the darkness of the night, DBoth were tired but remained

firm In their respecetive positlons. The 3ikh soldiers

had taken their positlion in the moat near the damaged wall,

101, 1.M., PP.244-246; 7.A., . PP,B2-84;
u.mT,,. ., PP.39, 213, ?216-218; ibral Mamah,
PP.447,448; Yousuf Garderi, op.cit.,
FP.54,55,
(AT o) onyj ool (LGl )l 5 it )
5 9 ol al) 1) DLl Gy oy 05 9 Mg S ol of Gliacalloe

S peet aplle 0 U ool opt aatas ey Gl pastl o iyt o s
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The tired Afghans and the Sikh soldiers slept
there for a few hours. Early next morning, Saturday, 2nd
June 1818 ~ ~ .{23JRajab 1233 A.H.) ( 18 Jaith 1874 Samvet),
Sadhu Singh, an Akali fanatic alongwith a small contingent,
seelng the Afghan soldlers sleeping, availed the opportunity
and entered Lhe Fort. Nawab Muzaffar Khan alongwlth a
few trusted faithful soldiers checked Sadhu Singh near
the Khizri gate. They fought from morning to thec after-
noon and during this battle, they used daggers, swords
and quns. Nawab Muzaffar Khan was fighting alongwith his
sons, loyal servants, relations and few loyal brave Afghans
but the rest had left him a day earlier. There was a
hand to hand fight. When Sadhu Singh agaln trled to enter
.the Fort and Mawab Muzaffar Khan once again checked him,
this time cutting him into two pieces with his sword.
Simultaneously a bullet whlch was fired by a Sikh soldier
gave him the honour of martyrdom. Seeing the blood
oozing out of the body of the old MNawaby his five sons
Shah Nawaz Khan, Haq MNawaz Khan, Mumtaz Khan, Aezaz Khan,
Shahhbaz Khan alongwith Nasrullah Khan(nepihcw of the Nawab)
and several other close relations and loyal Afghans
ineluding Jan Muhammad Khan Badozai, Khudayar Khan Allzai,
Diwan Sahib dad Khan, Muhammad Khan Tarin, Sarmast Khan

and
HalizaiZLFatch Khan Sacrifieéd their lives fighting for a
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noble cause. The brave daughter of the courageous Nawab
also took active part in the battle and following the
footateps of her father laid down her life for the safcty
of her homeland, Nawab Sarfaraz Khan who was fighting
near the Dev gate refused to. surrender. He did not know
that his father and brothers had lost their lives while
defending the Fort. In the meantime, Diwan Ram Dayal
approached him and told him about the debacle. He also
requested him to surrender which he did. He paid him
respect and took him to Misr Dewan Chand who received him
with great honour, Prince Kharak Singh also accorded full
respect to him according to the instructions of the
Maharaja. Zulflkar Khan was seriously ill but as he heard
about the death of his father, he rushed towards the
infidels furiously. He fought bravely and received serious
wounds on his face and fell down unconsgeious, He was later
on located ahong the dead bodies of the Afghans near the
Khizri gégg. Next day:. the dead bodies of Nawab Muzaffar

Khan and Shahnawaz Khan were located near the Khizri gate

102 _r.)_m.,, ‘ PP.162,163,245,246,; Z.A.,

PP. 9. 219 Veneu arezt op.le. pb Bish,

H.P., . . PL432, —
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and burried with all honours in the tomb of Hazrat
Baqudin Zakaria by the order of Misr Dewan Chand. The
dead bodles of othcr sons of the MHawab and the dead body
of his daughter could not be locatgg. After the fall of
the Fort, the royal Afghan ladles rén to safe places In
the clty to save thelr honour. When things were settled,
they were located by Hawab Sarfaraz Khan and they jolned
him en his vay to LahiE:. Shujaabad Fort remained
invincible throughout. In spite of the fact that the
defenders were informed about the fall of the Hultan but
they refused to believe. It was, therefore, decided that
Hawab Sarfaraz Khan be taken to the scene. \linder the
instructlons of Misc Dewan Chand, Diwan Ram Dayal alongiwth
Hawab Sarfar.az Khan went to Shujaabad where he disclosed
ocbinined
to the defenders that Mawab Muzaffar Yhan had/martyrdom
while defending the fort and asked them to surrender. The
defenders agreed on the condition that they would be

allowed to leave Shujaabad for Bahawalpur alongwith thelir

valuables. As they surrendered, the Sikh chijef entered the

103. Ll.A., P.88.,
104, Thid. .88,
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Fort of Shujaabad. The remaining five guns were found
inside the Fort. Nawab Sarfaraz Khan and Zulfikar Khan
were taken to Lahore to taharaja Ranjit Slngh where “hey
were granted Jagirs. They settled down in lLahore. The
youngest son of HNawab Muzaftar Khan, Amir B8az Khan aqged
14 and sevcral other Saddozais went to Bahawalpur,where
the Nawab granted them pensions and they settled down in
106

Bahawalpur.

The dynasty of the Saddozais in Nultan thus met
a tragic end on 2nd June 1818 . . #Simultareously the rule
of the Saddozais also ended in Afghanistan (Hirat) in 1818
A.D. Hultan wi'nessed for more than half a century the rule
of the brave Af: -ans who resisted the infidels heroically
At the cost of their lives. Multan always maintained its
autonomy since 1752 . The Afghans saw with great shock
the destruction of their palatial houses inside the Fort.
They were deprived of all they had. The Sikhs became masters
of Multan till its annexation by the Last India Company

in 1849 A.D.

105. Ibid., P.8S; Sohan Lal writes that Shajaahad was
cantured carlier whieh is incorrect, U.T., P.221

106. P.5.0., 8.5., 1904, P.én.
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Structure of Administration

Multan was one of the biggest and important
provinces of the Mughal Empgre. Princes of the royal
blood were appolnted as its Governor. Its geographical
situation enhanced its importance. It had a strong link
with the Siﬁiman Ranges and the rivers provided the
facilities of communications with the Panjal on the one
side and Sindh on the other. During the down-fall of the
Mughals, Multqn lost a major portion of its territory
but it retaincd jits iImportance which increased after the
conquest of Ahmad Shah as it was his birth plgie. After
conquering Multan, Ahmad Shah made it an Afghan province
and appointed an Afghan Subedar who was directly answerable
to him. Th4Afghan King was interested only in the
collection of the tribute. He never interferred in the
internal affairs of Multan and directed his Subedar to
keep a watchful eye on the activities of the Khudakka
haddozais who werc the only claiments to the Afghan throne.

The Subedar of Multan under the Afghan rule was absolutely
3

independent in his internal afféirs.

In the beginning, the structure of administration
4
was the same as it woas during the Mughal rule. Gradually,
the Afghan tribal system influenced it. Previously Djwan

who was the head of the department of Finance,was considered

Raverty, Cp.Cit., PP.557,558; c.f., M.H.E., P.12.

Tl PP.65,707,202: Yousuf Gardezi, Op.Cit., F.56,
Tole, PP.P0C6,222.

For detxil see The Administration of the Furh:l Empire,
by I.d..ureshi.

Fono
* B @




-282-
5

to be a very important person and was always very rinse
to the Subedar but with the passage of time, the tribal
chicfs becamc equally inmportant and a time came when
Nawab Shuja Khan and his son Mawab Muzaffar Khan did not
take any important decision without consulting th-ir
Tumandars (tribal chiefs). It is true that they were very
powerful Subicdars of their time but they did not ignore
their Tumandars. The Tumandars formed a sort of advisory

body {majlis) and they played a major role during war and
6

peace. They were the spinal cord of the administrative
structure. All the civil and military officers were
appointed from amongst them. The Tumandars were very

influential persons and were responsible for the maintenance
of : ~ace and order within their tribal jurisdiction. They
maintained their contingents consisting of the soldiers

of their own tribes. All the Subedars and the Tumandars
were supposcd to be good natured persons and had to maintain
a high moral standard. They were frce from most of the
vices such as drunkenness and the use of intoxicants,

dupli 1ty and cruelty. They were firm supporters of
religion. They possessed a kind heart and were generous

and ¢! ritable in their dis: - ition.

The admiristrative structure was i(hat the

Subeda» was a* the head of the administratjion. He was the

5. P.baran, The Provincial Government of the Muzhals,
Allabad, 1941, P.170; c.f., Moreland, Journazl of Indian
History, lladrag, 1927, Vol. VI, Pt.II.

6. T.F., PF.244,°46,

Note: In the Murnnl Administration there were other officers
but duriae the Afghan period in Multan, Tumnndars
played a~ very“important rule.
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chief executive. He exercised fullest control over all
departments of the administration both civil and military.
Amongst his officers, the Diwan and the Wakéel were the
most Importan! functioneries. The Diwar was the custodian

&
of the Finance department

The Wake€l represented the Subedar on all
important occasions outslde the Province. He had to
represent his Subedar in the royal court of the Afghan King.
His function was to strengthen the relations between the
master and the vassal whereas the duty of the Diwan was to
tapc all resources of income. After 1ts annexation by
Ahmad Shah, the Afghan Subedars of Multan subdivided it into
several smaller units for administrative purposes. The
main units were Multan, Shujaabad, Khangarh, Sikandarabad,
Muzaffargarh, Ghazanfargarh, Rangpur, Muradabad, Sardarpur,
Tulamba, Mailsi, Luddan and Kahror Pakka. During the rule
of Nawab Muzaffar Khan, Mailsi, Luddan, Kahror Pakka and

Jalalpur had fallen into MNawab Bahawalpur's areas of

influence.

1OFor military purposes, a Faujdar was appointed

in each unit bhut Multan, being the seat of the Subedar was
directly under his control. For the collection of revenue,
. .
»

a 'Kardar was appointed in each unit and under him were

placed several other officers to assist him in the collectirn

7. BN, P06, 2287
.y Sarar, Op.Cit., D, 1705 T H. .. ,0p.cit
P.22 8 %arqﬂ writes that Dlna 'WwWas second 1mpovt;nt —
ners on in A Suban but was suhordinate to Suredar,But with

the pascn~e 0 tire. Di
n M ~re, Jivan definitly becarme sn
to Suboiar. bordinate

B. T.Hd.w., Or.vit., PP.229,230,
9. T.M.,PF.210 , 220,
10. J(PP“, Qﬁ_g%k_, PP:QQ&;EEQJ * A nnme

,(7‘]' ven bt~ o0 - L -
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11
of revenue. Tihe smallest unit in the administrative
e
structure was a village. 1In each village, there was a

‘Dabeer for the collection of revenue. For purposes of
malntaelning law and order, in each unit there was a'koéuzli
He was a police officer. He was responsible for the
maintenance of law and order. In case of emergency:Faujdar
was also there to help him. Faujdar was a mllitary officer.
He was the commander of the military contingent which was
kept in a state of readineSa to fight 2galnst the external
Invaders as well as the Internal miscre:nts. For the
maintenance of law and order, police was also stationed

in the villages. The Subedar maintained his direct liaison
with Faujdars, Kotwals and the Dabeers. Being the chief

of the departments of the Finance and the revenue, the

Diwan was to look after the work of the officers of both

the departments.

F-r purposes of justlice, a full-fledged Judiciary

r ]
was there. 1In each unit, a Qazi was appointed to decide

14
the cases. He was to give the decision according to the
14 ’
Quran and the Sunnah, There were Muftis who were authorised

to give their opinion on certain matters relating to the -
15
tslamic laws. The Qazi did not go against the opinion of

the Mufti. The Hufti was supposed to be a learned scholar

of Islamic 3urisprudence. In the village, petty cases were

11. Saran, On.ujt., P.278. -

12. Ibid. PI.2%2=236; T.Hewey ODeCite, PP,220-237,

13. Saran, QELQLE.,PP.QQB,?EQ.

14, Ibid., PP.3HA-304; I.H.y., Op.vit., P.191.

15. 1I. H-g-, Op.Cit., P 191; Baran helives that in the 18th
century the Muftis seem tc have gradual®v been
irnored in the higher courts, On. Clt., Y.ALT

* Villaece 1life remained uﬂchdnrpd— _baram, On.Cit,., P.P41.
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¢« 16 ’
decided by the Panchayat according to the customary laws.
Sometimes, petty cases were also decided by the Tumandars.
In short the Subedar was responsible for the administration
of his proviace and he looked after all the departments.
Any appeal could be taken to his court. He was supposed
to hold his court at least once in a week. Every body was
allowed to file a mercy petition. Major punishments could
be given only with his permission. Every office was provid«i
a(Munshi,to write the proceeding in Persian which was the
officlal languaye. The record was also malntained and a

copy of the proceedings was sent to the headquarter.

All big and small officers wcre paid reqularly
from the government exchecquer. The pay was according to
their status. Different Kardars and Faujdars got their
pay according to their seniority. It depended entirely
upon the Subedar. The Afghan rule in Multan was generally
a benevolent rule. It added to the prosperity of the people
of Multan which lasted upto the Sikh invasions. Ultimately
the continuous Sikh invasions destroyed the prosperity of

the tiny Muslim territory.

16. I.H..., Op.vit., P.197; Savan, Op.“it., PF.246,047.

Note: ifter the death of Aurangzeb, [ultar started losing
its territory but it remaired an important orovince,
The civil administration ot "the Mush.l remaired
wrchanced. During the Afchan period, it retained all the
officers of a Barkar and a Pareanah in its smaller upits
with the same responsibilitiecs. See for detail the
provinei 1 Government of Muthale: by k,Saran,
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Religion and Culture

Multan was conquered by Muhammad bin Qasim in
713 .. . The people started embracing Islam and within
a short period of time, Islam was being practised here.
The local people started living like their Arab rulers.
Arabic became popular because it was the language of the
rulers. It also influenced the local language. Arabic
became the vfficial language and with the passage of time,
it was adopted by the local intelligentsia. 1In 980 A.D.
the Karmat-ians captured Multan and under their influence
Arabic progrﬁssed a lot. Sultan Mahmud of Ghazna conguered
Multan in 10”" D., which was the beginning of a new era.
The new congquerers introduced Persian and the local
population accepted their habits and copied them in almost
all fields of life. As time passed, Persian became very
popular and it played a significant role in 'he development
of the local language. Before the Mughal rule,(Saraiki,

2
(the local languagec }Yhad developed.

The Husli.... of Central Asia who ruled the Sub-
continent for centuries exercised an over all influence

over the local population. HMultan being a very im: rtant

province also maintained cultural relations with Central Asia,
During the Muthal period, its link with Central Asia was

strengthened specially with Khurasan. While realiasing its

Ta Muhnnmad Nazim, Opl.Cit., P.99.
2. Ikram-ul-Haa, Arz-i-lultan, Lahore, 1972, P.G4.
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importance Ahmad Shah annexed it In 1752 A.D, and it
remained an Afghan Province till 1818 A.D. During this
period, the officlal religion of the State was Islam and
the official language also remained Persian. The majority
of the inhabltants belonged to_Sunni sect and a sizeable
population also preferred Shia faith. The local ﬁ?ple
were already very much influenced by the ébple of Khurasan
as thc¢y had close commercial links with them. The people
from Khiirasan had already started migrating since the days
of Babur. The Afghans who were very much entrenched here
‘at the time of its annexation by Ahmad Shah, werdliving
In tribal forms under their tribal chiefs. They maintained
their customary laws even in Multan. During the Afghans
rule in Multan, the Pirs, the Mukhdums and the Syeds were
respected a lzt. The Afghans considered them as their
spiritual guide and obeyed their behests for the betterment
of their eternal life. The happiness of the Pir was
considered to be the happiness of God. Their ladies speciaﬂy
helieved In their 'Walayat' (nearness to God). The Afghans
built tombs and mosques and showed their practical obedience
*
to the living Pirs as well as to the dead ones. In order
to plcase the dead, they visited the mazars (tombs) and

lai! flower wreaths. They offered fatiha and distributed

almg+ among " he poor. The ladies kindied smail earthen

lamps on the graves of the saints. The Afghans were very

% Tellay Polt7,

* The af~han Subedars of Multan eranted Jagirs for the
maintenance of the shrines. 5See. the orisinal Farmans -

with Syed [Muhammad Ramzan Shah Gardezi, lMultan,
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rigid in their religious ceremonies. 0ld belicfs and
superstitiony remained unchanged among the Afghans. The
’ A i 7 [ 1)
Ulema and the Sufis popularly known an the Hullahs

enjoyed greal respect and commanded grcat influence over

Lhe neople.

The Afghan Subedars had a profound religious
bent of mind and were always fond of the society of the
learned and the holymen, They treated the #lullahs and
¢

y
Darveshes wilh great respect and devotion. The Syeds

and the HMullah were always allowed to remain sealted in

their presence. The learned Hullahs were to be appointed

n

as the Qazis and the Muftis by the Subedar. The orthodox

H

'l
lawsjof Islam known as Shara,

were emph ' ised in governing

the e¢very day life of the Afghans. Thev were very punctual

in offering their prayers and obhserved fast in the holy

month of Ramazan. The Mullahs were also responsible for

their religious eduction. Mosnues werv utilized for such

educortion. Children of both the sexes gol religious

education teset''er in the Hosques. All the Subedars of

Multan beilongeu Lo the Sunni Sect. Shias werc granted full

liberty in praclieing their religious coremonies but were

not alilowed to make publir demonstration on the davs of

Muharram. Religious tolerakion was one of rthe chief virtue
of the Afghan people. AlmoslL all the Afqghans belonged to

the rigid Sunni Sect but they tolerated ihe Shias s well

4o T, P.300.

Note: adi da’i Abdul Ghafoor was chief wadi of [Fultan. in

the later Afghan period. See T.M., P.307,.
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as the non-muslims. They also maintained good relations
with them. The non-muslims had full religious freedom
and their temples and gurdwaras were never interferred

with.

The Afghans were war-like people. Professionally
they were soidiers. They never indulged in any business.
All trade and commerce was controlled hy the non-Afghans.
Among the non-Afghans, the muslims excluding the Pirs and
the Syeds indulged in agriculture, cottage-industry and
masonary. 1he Hindus monopﬁiled almost all other business.
They were rich pcople and lent money to the muslims at a
heavy rate of interest which ultimately ruined them. They
controlled the business even outside Multan. Basically the
Hindus were urban people. The local muslim population
indulged in agriculture. The Hindu traders always exploited
them and made fortune. Even they cxploited the Afghans
whenever they were in need of money. They were so much
entrenched in the society that even the Afghan Subedars

fatled to check them,

Multan was famous for its masonary work as well
as fav the industries of 'glazed pottcry, glazed tiles with
floral patterns, nitrous enamel, ornaments in;silver,cotton
and wollen carpets, silk fabrics and metal wbr?'l As far

as glazed tiles and pottery were concerned, during the

Afghan period, the work was exclusively architeectural. The

5. P.D.G., M.D., P.271,
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ttiles painted in dark and light blue with large geometrical
patterns for wall surfaces, finials for the tops of domes,
the Yuhammadan profession of faith(kalima) painted in. bold
Arabic characters for tombs, and panels of various slzes
for lintels, door Jambs and tbe like' were special
characterlstics of this period. The glazaed tiles and
pottery did not diminish for more than a century and in
casc of decay, its finish did remain as it was in the
beginning. Multan was notable for this industry and it

. its standard *
was #aintaining:/during the Afghan perlod. The art of
‘thappa' (a sort of stamp) on the plain clothes with
different Fast colours, was also a very popular industry
in Multan. The coloured cotton rugs and carpet industry
of Kahror Pakka and Shujaabad excelled in their work., It
was also very popular even outside Multan. The bed-sheets
of Kahror Pakka were sent as sovineour to different parts
of the Sub-continent, Multan's contact with Khurasan,
Iran and Turklistan through the Afghans introduced wollen
carpet Industry which was at its zenith during the Afghan

period. Multan was also famous for its hand-loom industry,

G.. Ibid. E.211. C

* . Yercy Brown.writes that Glazed Tiles work was at its
zénfth in the 714th century as it is evident from the
tomb of Kukh-i-alam, The Indian Architecture, (The
Islamic period), Bombay, 1942. Chacter VII,Pr.3K, 35,
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speclally in making 'Khes' (silk sheet)). Silk was imported
from China, Kashmir and Central Asia. Coloured Khes of
Multan was also sent to different part of the Sub-continent
as sovincour. Multan silk-weaving was the hest in the area.
The combination of cotton with silk to make 'Susi'( a
local name to this kind of cioth) attracted the people and
this cloth became very popular among the ladies. The same
way 'Shuja Khani' cloth was popular among the males.ﬂThe
name of thls kind of cloth was after Nawab Shuja Kha;.Multan
s also famous for lts embriodary on clothes specially on
the shirts.The combination of silk with gold thread to

make 'Lungis' (piece of cloth for male instead of trouser)
and turbans for the Afghan Chiefs gained popularity. Its
border was always made of gold thread and it was used on
the ceremonial occasions by the rich speclally at marriage
ceremonies. The best features of thislmanufacture were

&
durability and the finish of the fabric.

7. Ibid. PP.2?14-216; Alexander Burnes, A vovage on the
Irdus,Karachi, 1273, P.111; Charles Masson,
Marrative of various journeys in Balochistan,
Afghanistan and the Panjab, Karachi, 1974, vol.I,
P.39:%.

8. P.D.G., 11.D., P.215.
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Social and Fcorcmic Aspects

Different tribes of the Afghans migrated from
Afharistan. to India during the Mughal period. Certain

notable tribes settled down in Multan. 'The bLast Phase
of the Muslim Rule in Multan' was dominated by the
Mohsinzai and the Saddozai Chiefs of the Afghan tribes.
The people of Afghanistan, in fact, were not a mixed
race in thec sense of miscegenation, on the contrary, they
were a conglomeration of several distinct nationalities
which did not intermarry, and each of which maintained
its own traditions, customs and dialects, more or less
completely distinct from the ot:ers. The Afghans belonged
to a martial race and were the only dominant race among-
other races which figured prominently in the history of
the country. After their migration to Multan they
maintained their tribal entity. The different tribes
lived in different localities of Multan and constructed
their houses accordi;gly. They never thought of settling
down inside the four walls of the city. The Afghans
maintained their tribal system in Multan for more than a
century, FEach tribe had a chief and the chiefship was
'+ ditary. In the beginnirq, all the civil, revenue and

criminal disputes were settled by the Chiefs of the tribes,

who applied the provisions of Muhammadan Law but gradually

1. Bellew, H.Y., An Encuiry in to the Ethnography of
Afrhanistan, Londen, 1932, .PF.17-19,

* The Afchans are maintaining their traditional houses
till tnis day.
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the local infiuence dominated and during the Afqghan
per{od, they slarted referring their disputes to the local
Courts. The Afghan lived pcacefully with the local
population and never showed rcligious fanaticism. They
maintained vory good relations even with the pon-muslim
nopulation of Hultan. The Afghans werc Jdemocratic

people. thercfore, they cooperated with the local people
in all affairs. It resulted in a better understanding
between the rule énd the ruled. During the 5ikh invasions,
the local population foughg side by side with the Aghans
and the Afghans trusted thém. Several Hindus enjoyed the
confidence of the Afghan Subedars of Multan. The rulers

of Multan were benevolent and paid their full attention
towards the betterment of the people. MNawab Ali Muhammad
Khan did a lot for the betterment of the agriculturists,
He paid his full attention to the prosperity of the urban
community. He dug many canals. He dug a big canal in
1755 A.D. from the Chenab which was named after him and

which is wrongly known as Nala Wali Muhammad. It still

exists and piays a vital role in the prosperity of the

agriculturists. The same way another canal ‘Durana lLangana'

was dug from the Chenab to provide the facilities of

_ 2
irrigation to the agriculturists. It also still exists and

2. T.M., P.206.
%» Muraga-i-Multan, PP.157,158.

* Sinces the days of Nawab Ali Mihammad Khan. See Toelley
PP,205,206.
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provides facllities of water to the agriculturists. The
prosperity of Multan can be judged from the income and
the savings of its ruler Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan when he
offered on~ crore nf ruafes to Ahmad Shah against the
price of his life in 1767 . His successor Nawab Shuja
Khan was <¢lso a great builder and paid special attentlon
on the development of his peop;;. During his period
'Sikandarabad','Shahpur', 'Larr Daud Sher' canals were
dug, which provided irrigation facilities to the
agriculturists of Multan and Muzaffargarh. It increased
the production and Multan started exporting Cotton, Wheat,
and Indigo to India and Afghanistan. Multan also exported
coarse cloth, silk Khes, Shoes, Sugar Candy and Lungis

e) same
to different areas., During the/perlod, certain land-lords
took the initiative, and dug several canals in different
parts of the dominion. For example 'Bakhtu' (a land-lord)
dug a canal during the period of Mawab Shuja Khan and it
was known as 'Bakhtu Wah'., Several small cunals were dug
from 'Bakhtu Wah' such as 'Larr Jhungi Wah','Larr Kasturi’
Mubarak Wah, 'Larr Mir Khadri', 'Larr Waryam %Wah', 'lLarr

cngd
Sheikbhpur', 'Lurr Mur Fakir', /'Larr Chuti', In the same

4, T,NM., PP.213,215.

5« The Imnerial Gazetteer of lndia,Vol., XVIII.lLondon,
1908, ©.31; Memoirs of Peer Ibrahem Khan,
PP.60,561,

* See poge 17-
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way the Nawabs of Bahawalpur State took interest and
dug several canals in the area of Mallsi, Lodhran and
'"Adam Wahan' which were given to them on lease by the
Afghan Subedars. They paid special attention for the
development of agriculture and dug many canals. Under
their patronage 'Sultan Wah', 'Jam Wah', 'Bahawal Wah',
'"Mubarak Wah', 'Khan Wah', and 'Hafiz Wah', were dug
which providod the facilities of irrigation to the

6
agriculturists.

Hawab Shuja Khan during his second governorship
took keen intercsts in improving the lot of his people.
He maintained law and order and proved to be very strict
in punishing the miscreants. He built Shujaabad and took
grcat interc-ts in its development and did a lot for the
bhetterment of his people. Ultimately it became an
invincible strong-hold of the ruler of Multan. Originally

lt was his personal Jagir where he built a Fort in i750

A.D. Later on the four walls of the town were also
- .
compi-ted in 1772 ° .. He also took keen interest in layinc

mauqo gardens in Multan and Shujaabad. He built a beautifu

mosque in the centre of Shujaabad Town. He ruled Multan
o

very judiciousiy. His sistecr Khan Bibi built a Fort on the

6. Huraga-i-linltan, P.158.
~% Ibid, P.244; Huruga-i-Shujaabad, P.12.

3e HMuraqa-i-vhujaabad, PP.54-060,
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right side of the Chenab. It flourished after the name
of Khan Bibi as Khangarh. His brother Ghazantar Khan,

built the fort and town of Ghazanfargarh,

Mawab Muzaffar Khan was a qrcat builder. He
buflt Muzaffargarh and several other towns. He also took
keen interests in the welfare of the pcople. He dug
canals, made embankments and extended cultivation. 'Kaju
Hatta' canal was the biggest which provided the irrigation
facilities t: the people of Shujaabad. He huilt eight
palatial houses for his eight sons and three palaces,

namely, Mubarak Mahal, Saman Mahal and Hijaz Hahal in

9

Shujaabad. He also built a Palace in the Multan Fort
alongwith several other buildings for his officers and
brrracks for the soldiers, He also took keen Interests

in laying mango gardens including one in Shujaabad., He:
was very hard working. He ruled very judiciously and
maintained law and order and punished miscrecants. He was

a brave man and llved a life of a soldier and died as a
martyre., Me was a pious man and at the time of laying the
stonc of the Muzaffargarh Fort in 1798; he admitted

that he never missed his prayer and never committed

@, HMHuragqa-i-Hultan, 7,158,245 Muzaffargarh
Distric!i Gazulteer, P.31.
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adultery. At this time an incident took place. The Nawab's
tsword-belt slipped from his shoulder and the sword fell
into the trench'. The Nawab predicted that there would
"never be a fight at’this Fort, as is shown by this omen

of the sword falling'. 'Moreover, a kite had killed a
maina (a small bird) and come to eat it on a kikar tree',
The Mawab said that it was another omen that the people

of Muzaffargarh would earn outside the town and ea; inside.
The later period proved that there was no bloody fight

and the people never indulged in trade at Muzaffargarﬁi

The Mawab led a simple life and maintained his family
tradition. 1In 1798 . (1213 A.H.}, the mother of Din
Muhammad Khan, the Khudakka Chief, died and during the

same neriod, flood water entered Multan. After the funeral
prayer in the Fort, the Nawab accompanied Din Muhammad

Khan to the ancestral graveyard of Sultam Hayat Khan in

a4 boat and rcmained there till the burial of the dead boé?.
The same way, the Nawab participated in the funeral prayer
of Hazrat Hafiz Jamal U11Q$ﬁalongwith his sons and also

attended the burial ceremony. Once he was ill and the mother

10, Skemp, Hultani Stories,Lahore,, 12!7, Story No.9.

1M, T.M., PP.384, 385.

12. Munagib-al-Mchboohain, P.122.
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of Al3 Muhammad Khan {(wife of Din Muhammad Khan), the
Khudakka chief, died, the Nawab sen%his sons MNawab
Sarfaraz Khan and Zulfigar Khan to attend the funeral
ceremony. Thesy accompanied the funeral to the graveyard
on horse back which was very much felt by Ali Muhammad
Khan but he kept qulet. After a few months when the
mother of MNawab Sarfaraz Khan died and her decad body was
to be burried in the tomb of Harzrat Bahauddin Zakaria,
Ali Muhammad Khan accompanied the funeral till the gate
of the tomb on horse back. Some one pointed it out to
Nawab Muzaffar Khan who said that it was the fault of

15
Nawab Sarfaraz Khan and kept quiet.

During the later period of Muslim Rule in Multan,
the Afghans indulged in wine and became cruel. Polygamy
was common in spite of the fact that their ladies commanded
great respect and controlled all the affairs inside the
house but still they were helpless before the tyrant
Afghans. They took interest in the dancing and singing
girls and married them which lowered their prestige. The
Nawab failed Lo check them. HNawab Muzaffar Khan always
remained busy in the defence of his dominion against the

Sikhs. He could not punish them because he always nceded

-
\\}]
-

i P.389.
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their monetary and physical support. He always ignored
them. According to the customary law, a woman, could

never claim «"are from the property of her father or
husband. After marriage a woman could not think of

going and living with her parents even after the death

of her husband., She was considered to be the property

of her husband. Women of the noble families observed
'Pardah' but the ladies of the common folk did not observe
Pardah, but it was customary not to come before a stranger,
If the husband was convinced of his wife's illicit
relaiions with some one, he was allowed to murder her. She
had to accept the_supermacy of her husband in all affairs.
Womenn were fond of ornaments made of gold. To differentiate
between a Muslim women and a Hindu woman she wore a red

or mustard yellow vefil. The authority of women (both
Muslims and non-Muslims) in the houschold, among both rich

and poor, was very extensive, and most of the money

transactions passed through their hands. It was she who
decided the dally menu ., She played a vital role in the
marriage of her chiidren. Their dress was a big embroidered

Shawl, a big Dupatta, and a shirt. ThéShalwar or Trousers
|

was not embroidered. They liked fast colours specially

flowery clotheg for their dress. Silken clothes were

liked by all. They were expert in cooking delicious food.
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The Afghans were landowners and free lancers.
They were reckless and extravagant in the latter period
of thelr rule. They were very social and mixed freely
with the local people without prejudice of cast, colour

and creed. The people had a proverb: 'PATHAM DA PUT,

KADAHIN JIHNM 'KADAHIN BHUT' ( A Pathan's son was some-

14
times a devil, sometimes a demon'). In their social

habits, the Afghans were very simple. They spoke Pashto

as well as Persian., They spoke Saraiki in their dealings
with the local people. Their dress was a big turban, an
embroidered Jacket over a cotton shirt and a loose shalwar.
The Tumandars wore a comparatively better dress. It included
a big Chogha or a Shawl, a leather coat. Sword and

dagger were also part of their dress. They wore shoes

of thick leather (Khussa) with extra strong toes bent
upwards and backwards like the upturned trunk of an Elephant.
In winter these shoes were replaced by long boots and
kid-leather socks. Majority of them shaved their heads

and grew beards.

The Afghans were also very simple in their
food. All the people, including big and small sat together
on the carpet for their meals with no social disteinction

of rank or wecalth and used to eat together. They were
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fond of roast, pulao, mutton-kabab and baked nans made
of wheat-fFlour. They were also fond of sweel pulao

known as 'i‘utanjan'. The Afyhans were very hospitable
and they not only provided shelter and food to guests

but they actually protected them from their enemies also.

The Afghans always supported humane rulers
like Ahmad Shah and Nawab Muzafrar Khan who forbade the
customary punishments of cutting the nose and ear what-
ever might be Lhe crime and forbade the master from killina
his slacg. In the field of sports thcy Indulged in horse-
racing, tent-pegqging, shootinua. wrestling and other many
gamas. The Afghans also indulged in cock and quail fightiha-
They were very fond of hunting and also used to keep
havks for hunting purposes. They werc also fond of
pigeon flying and their pastime was chess and draft. The

rich pcople were generallvy lethargic and stvayced at home

doing almoest nothing.

At Lhe time of Multan's annexalion by the
Afghan Kirn>. its ar a was much larger than what it was
at the time of its capture by the Sikbs in ]Hﬂﬁ P
income was also much greater than what it remained during

the later period. Multan was basicaily an agricultural

country. The Afghon rulers provided better facilities to

15. T.l., PP.2P5-227,
* hee for detail PP.168,169,
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the agriculturists. The arable land was divided into nine
categorles, namely, "Chahi' (irrigated hy wells alone},
'Chahi-Nahri' (irrigated by canal cum wells), 'MHahri'
(irrigated by canals alone), 'Jhalari' (irrigated by

canals but by 1ift), 'Chahi-Jhalari' (irrigated by wells
assisted by lift irrigation system), ’'Sailabi' (subject to
river floods), 'Chahi-Sailabi' (lIrrigated by wells or
river-floods), ‘Abi' (land irrigated by direct 1ift from
rivers, ponds, etc), 'Barani' (dependent on rail-fall).

The revenue was different for each category of land. The
government's -i1jor lncome was from the land revenue. There
" were other taxes as well, namely, octroi and tax on all
sorts of industry. The Subedar was to pay (.o tribute to
the Afghan King and also mect the administrative and the
military expend&%urc. He had to save for his household
expenditure, The prosperity of the people of Multan was
well known but the Sikh invasions drained all its resources
so much so that Nawab Muzaffar'Khan had to sell his Jewellcry
to make payment to the Sikh Chlef. He was such a benevolenbt
ruler thgt he did not force his people to pay him 50,000

i
rupees for onward transmlssion to Maharaja Ranjit Siégh.

The Afghans had a joint family system. They
used to live together till the death of the head of the

family. They seldom married in other tribes. They had a

16. Ibid. P.215.
17. ihid. P.24%; ULT,, P.106.
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liklng for the dancing girls. Theﬁefelebrated thelr
marriage and the Eids with great zual. They wore new
drcsses on such occasions. Their children and women

and even thelr servants wore new clothes on all such

ceremonies. The ladies made a show of their richness
by wearing maximum of their gold ornaments. They held
big feasts. Among the Afghans, marriage was always an

elaborate ccremony. The parents of the boy at first
selected a girl and then visited the house of the girl
with the request to her parents and other elders to give
her hand in marriage to their son. It was considered an
act of disgrace on the part of the parents of a girl

to initiate the proposal and go to the house of the boy
for a proposal for engagement. There were professional
ladies known as 'Tagdir' who were expert in arranging
such contracts and they were duly paid. On the agreement
of the parents of the girl, a ceremony took place called
'Manqani' which meant a public announcement of their
engagement. The boy and the qgirl were never supposed

to seze each other before marriage. Their consent was also
never required. On the announcement of the 'Manganli' a
grand fcast was arranged in the boy's house where all the
relatives were invited and they always served the hunted-

meat. The Afghans maintained relations with the local

18, T.M., PE.378,3%R85.



~304-
19

people and invited them on such occasions. They
participated in their ceremonies as well. The Afghans
lived for centuries in Multan and developed close contacts
with the local people, hence they lost many of their
characteristics, namely, their traditional laws and
language, nevertheless they maintained their entity as

a distinct race.

19. Ibid. PF.378,385,



-305-

CHAPTER V

Conclusion
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Conclusinn

The Afghans specially the Saddozais played a
very important role in the History of Afghanistan and
India in the 18th Century. It was the same period when
the Mighals were on thelr wav to decline. MNadir Shah,
realising the bravery of the Abdalis, recruited them
in his army after the fall of Hirat. He provided them
an opportunity during his Indian invasion to see with
their own eyes the weakness of the Mughals. After the
death of Nadir Shah, the Abdalis under the able command
of Ahmad Shah started invading India. During his second
invasion Ahmad Shah realised the importance of Multan.
The Saddozais had already settled in Multan where they
played a very Important role in the local politics. They
were also very close to the Mughal Court. MNawab Zahid
Khan Saddozai had gained a position of confidence in the
Mughal Court as well as commanded great respect in the
eyes of the local people. In a rellgious society that
was in Multan, he was specially considerate to the Syeds
and Mukhdums of Multan and gave away Jegirs to them, hence
his relations with them were very cordial. The Saddozais
of Multan under his leadership alsoc cultivated better
understanding with the local population. During the

second Afghan invasion, the Kian Khel Saddozais of Multan
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under Nawab Zahid Khan had refused to assist the Afghan
King and remained loyal to the Mughals but the disunity
and misfortune of the Mughals provided an opportunity to
Ahmad Shah to annex Multan during h!s third invasion. He
had already realised its strategical importance. It was
also his birth-place. It was a centre of husiness as
well, Its prosperity was well-known and it was famous

for the export of wheat, indligo and :ilk rugs to Afghanisian
and India. The Saddozais of Multan considered Ahmad Shah
a usurper because they bellieved that any descendant of
Sultan Hayat Khan -was the genuine successor of Sultan
Abdullah Khan {(the former ruler of Hirat) and he could

be Lhe only possible candidate for the chiefship of the
Abdalis. It was due to these feelings that Ahmad Shah

had appointed a non-Saddozai Subedar of Multan after its
annexation. A non-Saddozai remained as Subedar till the
Afghan King was convinced of the lovalty of the Khan Khels.
In the beginning the elder branch of the Saddozais
excluding Hawab Abdul Aziz Khan did rot support Ahmad

Shah and the same way he met an opposilion from the
younger branch, but after the death of Hawab Zahid Khan,
his son Hawah Shuja Khan-realized the situation and
decided to glve his hole-hearted and sincere support to
his clansman and recognised Ahmad Shah as the genuine Chie)

of the Abdalis. Following his footsteps, ali the KhizA
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Khels excluding the descendants of Sultan Abdullah Khan
also supported the Afghan King wholc-heartedly. The
descendants of Sultan Abdullah Khan never accepted Ahmad
Shah as the Chief of the Abdalis, and approached Delhi
for help. As the Mughals were already declining, they

failed to support their cause.

Ahmad Shah after the annexation of Hultan had
appointed Hawab Ali Muhammad Khan Mohsinzai Khugani as
the Subedar of Multan. This appointment was resented by
his own -tribesmen, the Saddozals who were strongly
entrenched in the soclio-political set up of HMultan and
were playing a very important role in the affairs of -
Multan slnce the days of Mawab Zahid Khan. They decided
to withdraw their cooperation which encouraged Anwar Khan
Saddnzai who captured the Multan Fort in the absence of
Nawab Ali Muhammad Khan, Ultimately, having realised the
situation, the Afghan King appointed Nawab Shuja Khan
Saddozai as the Subedar of Multan., The S5addozais of
Multan were already divided into two nroups since the days
of Shah Hussain Khan. They reconciled their differences
after the arrival of Sultan Hayat Khan from Safa to Multan.
They came closer to each other since the decision of
Sultan Hayat Khan conferring the Chiefship of the Khen Khel

Saddozais on Nawab Zahid Khan, but after his death, his
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ambitious son Nawab Abdul Aziz Khan challenged the
lcadership of Mawab Zahid Khan. It again created a gulf
between the two groups of the Multani Saddozais. The
situation remained under control during.the life-time of
Ahmad Shai# who commanded great respect among the Afghans.
In the later period of Timur Shah's rule, Mawah Muzaffar
Khan emerged as a.powerful Subedsror jtultan., Wafadar
Khan Saddozai, thc able minister of the Afghan King, was
a areat source of strength for Nawab Muzaffar Khan. The
Nawab proved to be a great diplomat in his dealings with
the Afghan Government as well as the Saddozais of Multan,
"He always patronised his tribesmen and paid special
attention to the Khudakka Chief on account of his
importance among the Afghans of Multan. He had instructed
his sons to be kind and respectful to the Afghans and
specially the Khudakkas. In the absence of his father,
Nawab Sarfaraz Khan became t%e Subedar (Hazim) of Multan.
He had his own likings and dislikings and he did not care
for the advice of his father in his dealings with the
Afghans. HMHc annoyed several chiefs. He confiscated the
Jagir of Ali Muhammad Khan and distributed it among his
brothers. He also gave away the South Western villages
of his fod%eaBSI.On to the Nawab of Bahawalpur on lease and

became himself responsible for the loss of his influence
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in that area. On the arrival of Nawab Muzaffar Khan, Ali
Muhammad Khan approached him for the restoration of his
Jagirs. The Mawab ordered his son to restorc the same but
he paid no heed to it. The old Nawab again made him
realisc the Iimportance of Ali Muhammad Khan but instead
of changing his attitude, he became all the more jealous
of him., It created a gulf between the KhizA Khels and
the Khan Khels. In the meantime, the unwise move of
Nawab Sarfaraz Khan céused a bitter clash between him and
the Mawab of Bahawalpur, which ruined his prestige. The
war of succession for the Kabul throne weakened the ruling
dynasty and lowered 1its prestige in the eyes of thelir
vassals as well as the rising Sikh power. During this
family fued in Afghanistan, the Barakzais emerged as a
powerful party. Nawab Muzaffar Khan failed to assess
their position and did not pay any serious attention to
them. He had already stopped paying the tibute during
the second term of the Kingship of Shah Mahmud. Once the
Barakzai Chief himself knocked at the doors of Multan in
order to make them realise his position. The Nawab
requested the Saddozai King for help and his timely
intervention saved the position of MNawab Muzaffar Khan.
It provided on opportunity to an unscruplous Afghan

Abdus Samad Khan Badozai to approach Fateh Khan LBarakzai
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and secure the orders for the Subedari cf Multan. It was
a eritlical situation for Nawab Muzaffar Khan. With the
support of the Khudakka Chief, he once again succeeded in
strengthening his position as the Subrdsr of Multan. He
also gave a crushing defeat to Abdus Samad Khan who ran
away to the infidel Chief at lLahore.

Ahmad Shah, being convinced of the loyalty and

s}
sincerity of the other descendantsiﬁultan Hayat Khan,

gave them Jagirs in Dera Ghazi Khan and Multan whcre?ﬁe
directed all his Officers in India to keep a watchful

eye on the activities of the descendants of Sultan Abdullah
Khan. He also ordered that, in case any one of them tried
to cross over to Afghanistan, he might be killed forthwith.
As far as other Afghan tribes living in Hultan were
poncerned, they never thought of indulging into politics.
They remained loyal to the Afghan Kings' and the Subedars

of Multan. It was only Abdus S5amad Khan Badozai who, being
encouragced by the Barakzai Chief, planned to grab power

but falled miserably. The Subedari of HMultan became
hereditary for the Saddozais who proved to he good diplomats
and maintalned friendly relations with the rulers of the

surrounding areas viz, the Nawab of Bahawalpur, the Mawab

of Kachi-Shumali (Mankera and Dera Ismail Khan}, the ruler
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of Dera Chasi Khan, the Mukhdum of Uch and the Chicf of

Sials (Jhang). It was rather a misfortunc of Hawab

Muzaffar Khan that he had to deal with an unscruplous

and power-hungry Sikh ruler of the Panjab who could not
tolerate the prospertiy and the peaceful almosphere at

Multan on account of his lust for territorial aggrandisement, .
The Mawah wrote to the Governor General of the L[ast India
Company and sought his help, but he remained a Silent
spectator. The Nawab also welcomcd the envoy of the

Rohilla Chief on his way to Kabul and provided facilities

to the Mughal Prince.

Maharaja Ranjit Singh had emerged as a powerful
ruler of the Panjab in the absence of a strong Government
at Kabul. He was a great diplomat, a skilled warrior,
an ambitious ruler and an unscrupleus chief who had a lust
for power. lle tried several times to capture the tiny
qulln1z577573f Multan but miserably failed. The family
fued of the Saddozais and specially the attitude of Shah
Shuja-ul-Mulk encouraged the Maharaja to go on trying his
luck again and again. Nawab Muzaffar Khan had been
surrounded by unfavourable circumstances which provided
an opportunity te his enemies to attair their object,
however, he showed great valour during his defence of

Multan, He defended the fort with a small army for months
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and ultimately established a commendable instance of the
sincerjty of purpose for which he laid down his life and
the lives of his sons and daughter aleongwith the Saddozals
and the Afghans of other tribes. The people of Multan
would never forget his courage and his sacrifice which he

made for the freedom of his soil.

The Saddozais had all along been very popular
in Multan. The ruler was a pious man but other Afghans
became power-drunk. They mixed with the local population
to the extent of marrying with their girls. Although 1t
resulted in a better understanding between the rulers
and the ruled, but they gradullay lost their racial
characteristics specially their language and adopted
the local customs and the local language, the 'Saraiki'.
The Afghans bhuilt their own Kiris and lived separately.
They never scttled within the four walls of Multan. They
always lived outside the city without any fear of the
invaders. They owned most of the lands in Multan but they
were the absentee land-lords. ODuring the last phase of
their rule in Multan, the Afghans mixed with the local
people and became their part and parcel. After the capture
of Multan, the local people not only wept for the loss
of their benevolent rulers, their ladies committed suicide

consi<ering their honour unsafe and several families left
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Multan to safer places. The Afghans were also very
social and wecre remembered for lonyg for their blood-

bath to save Multan.

In short, the Argh;ns were brave, honest to
thelr deeds, respectful, religious to the extent of
worshiping their pirs, social to the extent of marrying
the local girls,music-loving to the extent of keeplng
musicians including singing and dancing girls and forgetful

to the extent of foruyetting their own language and adopting

the local onc., They set an example of supreme sacrifice
by holsting high the flag of Me lusl Phase of The
Muslim 4Ué¢ /m  Multan at the cost of their own lives

and blood. They were pious to the extent of not only

of fering their dally prayers regularly hut also to the
extent of sacrificing their lives for the sacred cause

of Islam, The non-Muslims of Multan also admired their
judicious rule and remembered them even after their down-
fall. They had relished freedom during their rule as
they were trcated equally with the other Afghans, The
Afghans were necver privileged before the eyes of law.
Nawab Muzaffar Khan had set up such a judicious system

in his dominion that every body was equal before law. His
reforms had encouraged the poor to get their greivances
redressed without lel or hindrance. Even his own family
members did not have the courage to do injustice to the

people. There was rule of law in Multan.
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After the debzcle of the fall of Multan, therc
ensued a tyrannical rule of the Sikhs for years. The
peoplc were molested, their houses were set on fire and
looted. All the houses in the fort were demolished. The
Eidgah Mosque was converted into a stable. The call for
prayer was forbidden for the Muslims and "granth sahib"
was placed in the Central Mosque of the clty known as
Masjid Ali Muhammad Khan. The Muslims were denjed all
their basic rights. They were maltreated and disgraced
and severalil innocent Eersons ineluding old and young were
marcilessly killed. The women were raped. The Afghans
left Multan and ran away either to Dera Ismail Khan or
Bahawalpur. 1In such circumstances, Haharaja Ranjlt Singh
visited Multan, celebrated his victory and ordered all
his soldiers to deposit the looted money. The Sardars
intervened and reminded him of his promise but he refused
to listen to any one. MHe demanded money. Ultimately, with
great efforts, he could receive only 3 lacs of rupees out
of the plunder as his share. The people were disgraced
and were deprived of their liberty and civil rights. The
Maharaja did not care to redress the genuine greivances
of the pcople and went back to his capital. The people
were disappointed with the attitude of the Sikhs. Therc
was lawlessness in Multan. The Sikhs devastated even the

suburbs of Multan and the villagers left their lands and
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ran away to safe places. Agriculture was also ruined

by the Sikhs. The same way, the industry of glazecd tlles
and enamelled work including the carpets and silk rugs
suffered a sst-back due to the non-availability of the raw
material as well as the non-patronising attitude of the
rulers, The Sikhs were crude and had no taste for

niceties, They indulged in wine and women. They contribute!
nothing but destroyed every thing. 1In short Multan gained
nothing and lost every thing after the fall of the

Afghan rule.
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Fall B0LRUL (Laludiing, wiaudiufin )

Sy Terom o 3o T
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This theslis 1s based purely on orlginal and
hitherto unknown and unutllised sources. A few attempts,
though In A very rudimentary form,have been made to

trace out hi{story of 'THE LAST PHASE OF MUSLIM RULE IH

MULTAN,' ( 1752 - 1818 A.D.,) but these endeavours suffer
from serlious sethacks, l.e. the author had no access to
the orlginal sources and even their attempts were in no

way systematic ones to comprehend the history of the

times,

TAIKIRAT-(jL -MULUK

This manuscript written In vivid Persian Is one
of the major sourccs on which this thesis 1s bascd, Al{
Muhammad Khan Khudakka Saddozal, its author - a dircct
descendant of Mallk Saddu who had t'« honoroficltltlc of
Mir-1-Afgl.an was a renowned scholar of hils time. lle had a
vantage position to watch contemporary historical
developments, For telng the nearest kin and a close

assoclate of Shah Shuja-ul-Mulk, thc exlled King of

Afghanistan, All Muhammad Khan was deputed by him to scek
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1
assistance of Haharaja Ranjlt Singh to capture Nultan.

All Muhammad Khan was an ocular witne.: to many importand
events of the later Muslim perdiod in Multan as he was
living during the slege of Multan in 1818 . After
capturlng Multan, vhen Maharaja Ronjit-Singn vislted
Multan {n 1820 (1235 A.H.) Alil NMuhammad Khan had
fallen serlou:ly 111. The Maharajn, as soon as he learnt
about his i1llness visited his place and enquired about

2
his health.

During his extenslve travels he had collected rare
original documents on the history of the Saddozals. Thls
manuscript was completed on 16th April 1835 .{ 7th
Muhad;m-ul—Huram 1251 A.H.}lat Multan. The manuscript
measuring 10 Inches by 7 lnches consists of 483 folios.

This rare manuscript has come to light acecldeitly, It was

lying unnotlced, in the personal library of one of the
descendants of All Muhammad Khan. During hectic cffurts In
search of source materlal, the document was detected. Al
Huhammad khan Klindaokka Saddozadl introdueces his "TAJKIRAT-UL -

HUL K" as follow::
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.

Tazkirat-ul-Mulk is a detailed history of the Suddoznis.
It deols with the origin of the Afghans and the rise

and fall of the Saddozais in Afghanistan and Multan.

Pazkirat-ul-Multan, Mukhdum Syed Muhammad Yousuf Shah

Gardezi, Multan, 1861 ( 1278 A.H.).

Mukhdum Syced Mubammad Yousul Lhan Gardezl was a learnad
-

manb{ his time. He wrote a history of Mulitan i per.::

g .
iTonm t.,.“ PR R Y

b))

in 1861 (1278 heHae)e His wor: start

period and ends in 1861, The manusoript mewsiao D)

8 inches by 5 inches consisted of 200 folias. L praviidne:

sufficient mnterial specially abowb the events ocourau
in the later 18th century and the first kalf of “19tn
century. His family maintuihed extremely good relasione

with the rulers of Afspahistzn and specially with tne

g

Afghan. Subedars of Multan. liis work was based on ail tne
-

ol

original documents in shape of Farmans which were ;ronted -
by the Afghnns for the maintenance of the Bhrine of
Hazrat Syed Muhammad Yousuf Shah Gardez, of whics e was
custodian. Such Farmans are still with Syed Munammad
Ramzan Shah Gardezi. His original work is lost but Lnw

nriginal urdu translation is available. There are two

such <opies., One is with Maulsana Nur Ahmad Khan Fariti,
-

it was translated by Faiz-ul-lasan on the initiative ol

Bolonel Scorge william Hamiiton, Commissioner of [Multan

P e

and the work was completed oan Ist December,i9%8 {(<Z-n

L

Shawwal 1357 A.ld.). The same way Muhanmad Hashim Bahawslpuo:
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:ranslated it in I[ebruary 1939 by the order of Nawab
fuhammad Sadiq Khar I1 of Bahawalpurs. It is availalle
with Baith Oubad-ur-~Rehman of Bahawalpur.

Tarikh-i-Hindustan, Ahmad Shah Batalvi, Batala, no date.

The author of Tarikh-i-Hindustan belonged to a very

respectable adri family of Batala. He maintained

cordial relations with Maharaja Ranjit Singh. He had

also good relations with Ali-ud-Din, the author of Ibrai
Namah., He complged his work in the middle of 19th century
but the original manuscript 1s not available. The presen=z
persian manuscript was copied by Ra jab Ali son of Haji
Shah of Batala in 1866 (1288 A.H.). It is the only copy
available in Dyle Singh Trust Library, Lahore. It has

9%6 folios with 17 lines on cach page. It is a detailed
anistory of the Sikh period. He has dealt with tue Afghan
Indian invasions, vauce. o rorcearsg conflict with Maharala
Ranjit Singh and the fall of Muitvan., The author called

it ' Bayan-i-aAhwal-i=Mulx-i-Hiznd wa Malluk-i-An. '

—

Khulasat~ul-insat, Hafiz Rahpat bin Shah Alam Kuta Knel,d.D.

It is a history of Durranis. It is a small pezllun
manuscript measuring 7 inches by 5 inches. Haliz Kaamrat
son of 9Lah Alam of the Kuta Knel tribe has not given the
date of its compilation. It was traced by Prof. Atdul

Hye Habibi Afggéni during his researeh work in 1957-58.
According to him, itWwas written in the 19th century.

The manuscript is available in the National Museum,

Karachi.
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Tuhfat—-ul-Habib, Mullah Fagiz Muhammad of azara,

1970 { 1184 A.H.).

It is a history of Afghanistan, starting from =ha
forefathers of Ha?mud of Ghazna to A?mad Shan Dur—i-
Durran and his succescsors. Mullah Faiz Mutammuﬁ ot
Hazara completed his work in 1770 (17184 A.i.).

The persian manuscript measuring 12inches by 7 insiner
consists of 800 folios. It was also traced hy irofl.
Abdul Hye Habibi Afghani during his ressarch work
in 1957-=58. The manuscript is with the National

museum, Karachi.

Sadig-~ut-Tawarikh , Prof. Mirza Muhamnad Ashraf

Gurgani Delhvi and Maulvi Muhammad Din, Bahawalpur,

1899 (1317 A.H.)o

It is a history of Daudputra rulers of Bahawaljpur,
Prof. Mirza Mugammad Ashraf Gurgani completed

his work with the assistance of Maulvi Mu@&mmad din
in 1899 (1317 A.H.). The urdu manuscript measul'ing
12 inches by 8-inches consisted of 416 folics ani
is awailable in the Central Library, Bahawalpur.

It deals in detail the rclations of the rulers of
Bahawalpur with the Afghan Subedar of Multan. It

provides sufficient valuabtle material,
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7o Several Oripginal Farmans , T™ne Afghan vulers of

—
T e,

Afghanistan and the Alyuin LGhedirs of Multin

issued severs! Mermanas from time to time .Seve.al
such original Farmans are available with Syed
Muhammad Ramzan Shah Gardezi, Khuadad Khan Tar:in
(Multan) and Mukhdum-ul-Mulk Syed Ghulam Miran snah
of Jamal Din Wali, Rahim Yar Knhan. Such original
Farmans provide sufficient material about the
Afghan period of Multan,

8. Tazkirah-i-Anandram, Anand Ram Mukhlis, (FPersiasn M3

ends in 1748).
Anand Ram Mukhlis, son of Kajs Hirda Ram Khatr:,
was a resident of Lahore and .as appointed Wakee!
for Nawab Qaemar-ud-Din Khas in 4799="720C. e ui. ¢
.worked as wWaxeel for Nawab Avd-u's-Samad Khan,

the Suhedar of Lahore and Multsn. His work is ey

useful concerning the first lndiarn invasion of

Ahmad Shah Duv-i-Durran,

* o e s s uBae
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URIGINAL DPUBLIGHED SOURCES (ARABIC , PERoSTAL, Uil’l aND o070,

1. Abu-Rehan Al-Biruni, Alberuni's India (English

translation) Dr. Edward C. Bachau., Lahore¢,196,
It needs not any introduction., It is a very
valuable research work of Al-Biruni on India.

It is a detailed history of India.

o Ali-ud-Din, Ibrat Namah, (Pdrsian MS), 13th

September 1854 (20th Zilhijj 1270 A.H.), Paunjabi
Adabi Academy, Lahore, 1961,

Ali-ud-Din was in the service of the Bribtisk
Government. He wrote a detuailed hie ey of }angaq

providing sufficiont matericl oa Multan, Ho

also saw the later period of Mazharaja Ran i7T Dims,

bR Ata Muhammad, Munshi, Taza Nawai Muarsk, (Persian MY),
Shikarpur (8ind), June 1855.(Ramazan 1271 A.i.),
Sindhi Adabi Board, Karachi, 1959,
It is a history of Afghanistan and Sind. Ats Mu?amiad
deals the Afghan dynasty after the death of Timur
Shah. As the author belonged to Skikarpur (3ind),
therefore, he wrote a detailed history of Sind.
Multan had stronger links with Sind. The author =lso

dealt with the political events occured in Multan.,
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4, Andul Karim, Munshi, Tarikh-i-Abmad Chahi,

1850 (1266 A.H.), Urdu translation by

Waris Ali Saifi, Mir, Wagiat-i-Durruni,

Lahore, 1963,

It is a history of I'urranis. Abdul EHarim was irn
the service of the Briticsh Government at
Ludhiana and was sent to Afghanistan on a l.zlg™
;utic mission. He gives a Jdetailed history

of Durrani FEmpire. Multan was un.er the

Wit

Durrani Empire,therefore, he alsc acalt

tne puac.:2] events occured in Mui

R 1l
S B

Its original persian manuscript is not avuai.atl:«

but its urdu translation wilttem by Waric

Alil Saifi is availahle.

5e Aziz-ud-Din Fofalzai, Timur Shah Durrant,
(Fersian), Kabul, 1333,
Prof. Aziz-ud~Din Fofalzai is8 an eminent

scholar of Afghanistan. He wrote several

books on the initiative of late Sardar

Daud. It i5 a hisStory ......



o Rl RN LN S it 3 s e SRR BB A i i oo oo bl

(ix)

of Afghanistan during the reign of Tizur 3Si:n
Durrani. Multan was a part of Durrani ampire,
therefore, he gives valuable material on i<.

6. Aziz-ud-Din Fofalzai, Dura-Tul-Zaman, {(Fersiau;,

¥abul, 1337,
1t is a history of Afgadnistan during the re:.n o
' 3hdh Zaman son of Timur Shah Durrani. at Sha! Siae
Nawab Muzaffar Khan was . .» the Sabeddr of Multsin.
He has given detailed accounts of the relations

of Ksbul Government with its vassals.

7 Al-Masudi, Tarikh-i-Masudi, (Urdu translation of [dirus

uz-—Zahab) L)
It i3 a very valuable work of great Arab Geogrzpher

who visited Multan in 915, It provides sufficient
material on the early life of Sind and Multan,

8. Chach Namah, (Urdu translation) Hyderabad, 1963,

It is a history of Bind. Multan was a part of

S5ind in the early period. It provided an extremely
valuable material on the early period of Multan.
It was written by some Arab Muslim in the mi:ddie
of 8th celnvuc,e 2" 7 Tving unnoticed with gali
Ismail Saqfi of alor (Bind). Ali bin Humid bin
Abu Bakr Kofi truced it nnd tramslated iz from
AlaLic bto Persian under the patromage o!f lias?

Din Wabacha in 1216 (6773 A.H.). The peil.w:

was later on tranmslated into ardu,



(x)

9 . Daulat nai son of Izzat Rai, Mirat-i-Daulst-.-

oo

ol Daudputra rulers of Bahawalpur. Daulat xai
was in the service of Nawab Bahawal Khan Il.
The original persian manuscript 1s net availao!
it consisted of 47¢ folies., It was publisnwd

in twe volumes 1n 1850, ile also discusued L
datail the relations of the Nawabs of Bahawalpur
with the Subedéars of Multan and placed severul

political events occured during the Afghin period.

10a Daulat Rai, son of Izzat Rai, Eﬂgiiaﬁﬁfﬁp‘
Persian 1843 (1262 A.H.). Daulat Rai wrote on
the later period c¢f Daudputras of Bahawalpur
in his old age. It consists of two volumes.
It also provided the political events occured
during the fall of Multan. Both the original
.volumes are available with Nur-uz-Zamon Anhmad
of Bahawalpur,

11 Ghulam asi il.c.. A7~ Khazana-e-Amira, (Persian i,

S

1762 (1176 Ae.H.), MNawal Kisnore Frecs, Cawnpore,
18724

guulak Ali Khan Azad wrote the history of In-liu,
It provides gufficient material on tue- L.3in
invasions oi Ahmad Sh&h Dur-i-Durran till 763,
Although it.was published by Nawai Kishore Press,

Cawnpur in 1872 but I consulted the Persian
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manuscript copied by Sadiq Ali in 1819 (1274 Aefla )
It is with Mukhdum-ul-Mulk Ghulam Miran Shah of

Jamal Din Wali, Rahim Yar Khan,

Ghulam Hussain Khan, Siyar-ul-Mutakherin, Cawujur,
(Urdu translation), 1897.
It is a comprehensive history of India f{rom %706

r

to 1780 (1118 A H. to 1194 A H,). Multazn was a
part ol the Mughal bmpire before it was annexed by
Artmad Shiah Dur-i-Durran, therefor ., 1% proveirs

T

certain relevant materis! op the susjent <ind,
Ibne Asir, Al-Kamil (Arsbic) volaIV., Cnaro, “7do,
(1357 AHo).

It provided :relevant material on Multaa during

the earliy Maslim period.

Ibne Haukal, Surat-ul-Arz, (Arabic), vol.IIl., Leiden,
1939

It provided sufficient information on Mualtzn

during the early Muslim period. His work is hased o=
that of Istakhri,

Istakhri,Kitab-al-Masalik Wa'l Mamalik, (Arahic),

Leiden, 1927.
Istakhri visited Multan in 991 (240 A H.) and wrote

about Multan in his book.
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Iman-ud-Din Taunsivi, Nafe-ul-Salikin, Persian,

v !

The author was discinle of Ehwaja Muhammad Sulsino
I B J

Taunsivi. He wrote tae tiography of his ‘'Fipr',
He also mentioned abcut The vis i oif 1o 'i, 17

to Muluin and provices malerin ool

religious life of the later alv

- ..
fauna.

It is available with Asad Nizami,
Imam Eaksh, Khwaja, ;u%sggg-étggfgr, Persging
manuscript, 1283 A.id. The original copy is losnt
but its urdu translation by Saleh Muhammsd is
available. Imam Baksh wrote the biography of
his Pir »sur Muhammad Maharvi who had cordisl
relaticns with Hafiz Jamal Ullah Multani, Sur
Munammad Maharvi used to visit Multin very
frequently, therefore, it throws lignt on the
relijpious life of the Multani people during

the later period of Nawab luzaffar Knan,.

Muhammad Aslam, Farhat-un-Nazirin, 1770,
A genersl history of India. It throws very useful

light on the Indian invasions of Ahmad Zuin

Dur-~i-Durran. He was an employee of Bhuja-ud-Dnul i,

de compilled D1S WOrK Al Lk &iviCl Ol CUavieus

Jean Baptiste voseph Gentil,

3 L L 2 o
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Muqdisi (Arabic), Beirvt, 1906.
Muqdisi provides sufficient materiaiou une

life of Multan during the early Muslim period.

Muhammad Hayat Khan, Hayat-i-afghani (Urduj,
Lﬁhcre, 186" .

It is a history of the Afghais written in urdu.
The author velonged o a very respectable
family of the Panjap and was in the service

0i Luv o .“7"=h Government,.

Muhammad Oubad Ullan Multeni, Birr-e-Jiloelsws, -

Persian. Mahammad Oubaa Lliah Mul :2ni wrore
the biography of his FPir Maulana Kiuda Zaksu
who was deciple of Hafiz Jamal Ull;h Multani.
As the author was living in Multan, therefsre,
he narrated the religious life of the people
of his time.

Muhammad Azim Sheikn, son Sheikh Mupampad Saleh,

Jawahir-i-Abbasia, Persian, 1830, Sheikh Muhammad

Azim was in the service of Nawab Bahawal Khan II.
He wrote a history ol tha rulers of Banawulipur.

It is almost a copy of Mirat-i-~Daulat-iedAbbasia.

It consinted of 4717 fzlios.

Murad Shah Gardezi, QLariga-=i-ilurad Sloo., ~ova. g
il 3 L]

(MU

1876. Murad Shah Gardezi was in the ceprwl 0

Nawab of Bahawalpur aznd leater on join=d Lorn
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fervice of the hBritish Jovermment, e o=

history of Banawalpur. (lis history 1c @unes oo

v

i

that of Mirat-i-Daulaf—i-Abhacia and Jowanlo-

i—-Abbnsia,

-
3

Fajumud Din Chisnti Suldalimani, Munaqab=--l

Mahboob'ain, Persian, Lahore, 1312 A.d. ig wroun-

the biography of his Pir Khwaja Muham: ad
Sulaiman Taunsivi. His Fir who had cordial
relations with Hafiz Jamal Ullah Multani, had
visited Multan several tTimes. He wrote ahout

the religious life of the people of IMultZn durine
the later period of Nawab Muzaffar Khan, e alun
described the Sikh invacions. He started writing
his work from 1278 A.lH. and it took nim severat
years to finish it. He has not given tie vear of
the complation of his work.

Nimat Allah, Makhzan-i-Afghdni, vol.l., (coglich

translatvion), Dacca, 1910,

willat aliah son of Khwgja natio Jllan completeu
his work in July 17017 ( 15 Bafar 1113 a.d.). It
is a history of the Afg?éns. It is also kZnown
as Tg;ixh_ggapji—Jahan. Jon first two chapters,

the author deals with the origin of Afghans.
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Nur Muhammad, Q@gi, Janpg, Namah, (Persian MN3),1747%,

Nur Muhsmmad was a learned man of his time,
He was in the service of Mir Naseer Khan of
Kalat. He accompanied his master during the
Indiun invasion of‘Ahmad Shah Dur-i-Durran in °
He was an eye wilitness {0 many important evenis

specially during the seventh Indian invasion

of the Afghén Kingo. It is the Jang Namagh whici
coniirms the authenticity of the rescurch work
ol Ali Munammad EKhen ancut the f. o7 JSiku
invasion of Multan in 76l o 3oth have wolitnon
about the atrocitics of the Uikhs curiny; their
invasion on Mulcan. Betiu agree that the conouecs

of the Yikhs in the Pan, jab compelled tnn Afghin

f?"’.}“ -

Iirss

3]

King to invade India once again idorder to check

the infidels. It is written 1in poetry covering
226 folios and is a very impertant comtemporary
document. A copy of the original persian
manuscrirt was with the late Khan of Kalat
(Ahmad Yar Khan).

Sohan Lal, Umdat-ul-Tawarikh, (Persiaan)}

Lahore, 1885,

Sohan Lal was thecourt{ chronicéz of Maharaja
Ranjit Singhe. He wrote s nistory of the Panjan

and the Sikhs., He provided gufficient material
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on the events occured during the period of the
Maharaja but he was very careful in writing the
affairs of Multan. Being a loyal servanti, he
had to place only one side of tne picture bHut

still his work is considered valuable.

8,  Sher Iuhammad Nadir, Zubdat-ul-Akhbar, (Persiun .i0),
Lahore, 18%2 (1248 A.H.).
57

Sher Muhammad Nacdir was 1o the persoual scivics
Nawab Sarfaraz Khan son

of Nawab Muzaffar Khan, the last lMuslim Subedar
of Multin. After the fall of IMultam, Sher Muhammad

YT wrocmmonied his master t¢ Lahore, fe wrote

Abiarnm & e e e e 9

i

a history of the Khan Khel Baddozais. The persian
manuscript measuring 17 inches by 8 inches conglsts
of 111 folios. It was Tinuced wud publislhaed Ly Lo
Prararch Society of Pakistan, Lshore. it Is un
extremely valuable history on the later Musiic
period of fultan. It s urue thab the auracr is
very careful in praising the ancestors of his
master but still it provides sufficient materiai on

the Afghan period of Multan., Sher Muhammad Nadir

has not given the events choronologically. It

confirms the authenticity of Tazkirat-ul-Muluk.
He completed his work in 1832 (1248 A.H.).

29. Sher Muhammad Khan,Tawarikh Khurshid Jaban,(Persian),

Lahore, 1894,
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